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Responsibility Statement

Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft), ("Deutsche Hypothekenbank", "Deutsche Hypo"
or the "Issuer" or the "Bank") with its registered office in Hanover is solely responsible for the
information given in this Prospectus and for the information which will be contained in the Final Terms
(as defined herein). The Issuer hereby declares that, the information contained in this Prospectus is, to
the best of its knowledge, in accordance with the facts and that this Prospectus makes no omission
likely to affect its import.

Notice

This Prospectus should be read and understood in conjunction with any supplement hereto and with
any document incorporated herein by reference. Full information on the Issuer and any tranche of
Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of the Prospectus and the relevant final terms
(the "Final Terms").

The Issuer has confirmed to the dealers set forth on the cover page and any additional dealer
appointed from time to time under the Programme (each a "Dealer" and together the "Dealers"), that
this Prospectus contains all information with regard to the Issuer and the Notes which is material in the
context of the Programme and the issue and offering of Notes thereunder, that the information
contained in this Prospectus with respect to the Issuer and the Notes is accurate and complete in all
material respects and is not misleading, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly
held, that there are no other facts the omission of which would make this Prospectus as a whole or
any of such information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading in any material
respect and that the Issuer has made all reasonable enquiries to ascertain all facts material for the
purposes aforesaid.

No person has been authorised to give any information which is not contained in, or not consistent
with, the Prospectus or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme and, if given
or made, such information must not be relied upon as having been authorised by or on behalf of the
Issuer or any of the Dealers.

The Prospectus is valid for 12 months following after its approval and this Prospectus and any
supplement hereto as well as any Final Terms reflect the status as of their respective dates of
publication. The delivery of this Prospectus or any Final Terms and the offering, sale or delivery of any
Notes may not be taken as an implication that the information contained in such documents is
accurate and complete subsequent to their respective dates of issue or that there has been no
adverse change in the financial condition of the Issuer since such date or that any other information
supplied in connection with the Programme is accurate at any time subsequent to the date on which it
is supplied or, if different, the date indicated in the document containing the same.

The Issuer has undertaken with the Dealers to supplement the Prospectus or publish a new
Prospectus if and when the information herein should become materially inaccurate or incomplete and
has further agreed with the Dealers to furnish a supplement to the Prospectus in the case of every
significant new factor, material mistake or material inaccuracy relating to the information included in
this Prospectus which is capable of affecting the assessment of the Notes and upon approval by the
CSSF having been given in respect of Notes issued on the basis of this Prospectus.

To the extent permitted by the laws of any relevant jurisdiction, neither the Arranger nor any Dealer
nor any person mentioned in this Prospectus, excluding the Issuer, is responsible for the information
contained in this Prospectus or any supplement thereof, or any Final Terms or any document
incorporated herein by reference, and accordingly, and to the extent permitted by the laws of any
relevant jurisdiction, none of these persons accepts any responsibility for the accuracy and
completeness of the information contained in any of these documents.

This Prospectus should be read and understood in conjunction with any supplement hereto and with
any other documents incorporated by reference and, in relation to any Series of Notes, together with
the relevant Final Terms as defined herein.

This Prospectus and any Final Terms do not constitute an offer or an invitation by or on behalf of the
Issuer or the Dealers to subscribe for or purchase any Notes.



The distribution of this Prospectus and any Final Terms and the offering, sale and delivery of the
Notes in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Persons into whose possession this Prospectus
or any Final Terms comes are required to inform themselves about and to observe any such
restrictions. For a description of the restrictions applicable in the United States of America, European
Economic Area in general, the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland ("United
Kingdom™"), Japan and the Republic of Italy, see "Selling Restrictions". In particular, the Notes have
not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and
are subject to tax law requirements of the United States of America; subject to certain exceptions,
Notes may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States of America or to U.S. persons.

The language of the Prospectus is English. The German versions of the English language sets of
Terms and Conditions are shown in the Prospectus for additional information. As to form and content,
and all rights and obligations of the Holders and the Issuer under the Notes to be issued, German is
the controlling legally binding language if so specified in the relevant Final Terms.

The Final Terms in respect of any Notes may include a legend entitled "MiFID Il Product Governance"
which will outline the target market assessment in respect of the Notes and which channels for
distribution of the Notes are appropriate. Any person subsequently offering, selling or recommending
the Notes (a "distributor”) should take into consideration the target market assessment; however, a
distributor subject to Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, "MiFID II") is responsible for undertaking its
own target market assessment in respect of the Notes (by either adopting or refining the target market
assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels.

A determination will be made in relation to each issue about whether, for the purpose of the MiFID
Product Governance rules under EU Delegated Directive 2017/593 (the "MiFID Product Governance
Rules"), any Dealer subscribing for any Notes is a manufacturer in respect of such Notes, but
otherwise neither the Arranger nor the Dealers nor any of their respective affiliates will be a
manufacturer for the purpose of the MiFID Product Governance Rules.

If the Final Terms in respect of any Notes include a legend entitled "PROHIBITION OF SALES TO
EEA AND UK RETAIL INVESTORS", the Notes are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise
made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in
the European Economic Area ("EEA") or in the United Kingdom ("UK"). For these purposes, a retail
investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article
4(1) of MIFID II; or (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive 2016/97/EU, where that customer
would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MIFID II; or (iii) not a
qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Regulation. Consequently, no key information
document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (as amended, the "PRIIPs Regulation") for
offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the EEA or in the
UK has been prepared and, therefore, offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available
to any retail investor in the EEA or in the UK may be unlawful under the PRIIPs Regulation.

Interest amounts payable under Floating Rate Notes are calculated by reference to (i) EURIBOR (Euro
Interbank Offered Rate) which is provided by the European Money Markets Institute (EMMI) or (ii)
LIBOR (London Interbank Offered Rate) which is provided by ICE Benchmark Administration Limited
(IBA). As at the date of this Prospectus, each of EMMI and IBA appears on the register of
administrators and benchmarks established and maintained by the European Securities and Markets
Authority (ESMA) pursuant to Article 36 of the Benchmarks Regulation (Regulation (EU) 2016/1011)
("BMR").

Each Dealer and/or each further financial intermediary subsequently reselling or finally placing
Notes issued under the Programme is entitled to use the Prospectus as set out under "Consent to
the Use of the Prospectus" below.

This Prospectus may only be used for the purpose for which it has been published.

Neither this Prospectus nor any Final Terms may be used for the purpose of an offer or
solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorised or
to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation.

In connection with the issue of any Tranche of Notes under the Programme, the Dealer(s) who
is(are) specified in the relevant Final Terms as the Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting on
its(their) behalf) may overallot Notes or effect transactions with a view to supporting the price



of the Notes at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail. However, stabilisation
may not necessarily occur. Any stabilisation action may begin on or after the date on which
adequate public disclosure of the final terms of the offer of the relevant Tranche of Notes is
made and, if begun, may cease at any time, but it must end no later than the earlier of 30 days
after the Issue Date and 60 days after the date of the allotment of the relevant Tranche of Notes.
Any stabilisation action or over-allotment must be conducted by the relevant Stabilising
Manager(s) (or person(s) acting on behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s)) in accordance with all
applicable laws and rules.

The information on any website included in the Prospectus, except for the website www.bourse.lu in
the context of the documents incorporated by reference, do not form part of the Prospectus and has
not been scrutinised or approved by the CSSF.

Forward-looking Statements

This Prospectus contains certain forward-looking statements. A forward-looking statement is a
statement that does not relate to historical facts and events. They are based on analyses or forecasts
of future results and estimates of amounts not yet determinable or foreseeable. These forward-looking

statements are identified by the use of terms and phrases such as "anticipate", "believe", "could",
"estimate", "expect", "intend", "may", "plan”, "predict", "project", "will" and similar terms and phrases,
including references and assumptions. This applies, in particular, to statements in this Prospectus
containing information on future earning capacity, plans and expectations regarding the Issuer's
business and management, its growth and profitability, and general economic and regulatory

conditions and other factors that affect it.

Forward-looking statements in this Prospectus are based on current estimates and assumptions that
the Issuer makes to the best of its present knowledge. These forward-looking statements are subject
to risks, uncertainties and other factors which could cause actual results, including the Issuer's
financial condition and income position, to differ materially from and be worse than results that have
expressly or implicitly been assumed or described in these forward-looking statements. The Issuer's
business is also subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause a forward-looking
statement, estimate or prediction in this Prospectus to become inaccurate. Accordingly, investors are
strongly advised to read the following sections of this Prospectus: "Risk Factors" and "Deutsche
Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft)". These sections include more detailed descriptions of factors
that might have an impact on the Issuer's business and the markets in which it operates.

In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, future events described in this Prospectus may
not occur. In addition, neither the Issuer nor the Dealers assume any obligation, except as required by
law, to update any forward-looking statement or to conform these forward-looking statements to actual
events or developments.
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General Description of the Programme
I. General

Under this Programme, Deutsche Hypothekenbank may from time to time issue notes (the "Notes") to
one or more of the Dealers and any additional Dealer appointed under the Programme by the Issuer
from time to time. The maximum aggregate principal amount of the Notes outstanding under the
Programme will not exceed EUR 15,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in any other currency). The Issuer
may increase the amount of the Programme in accordance with the terms of the Dealer Agreement
from time to time.

Notes under the Programme may be issued as unsecured obligations of the Issuer, as Mortgage
Pfandbriefe (Hypothekenpfandbriefe) or Public Pfandbriefe (Offentliche Pfandbriefe). The Notes may
be offered to qualified and non-qualified investors, unless the applicable Final Terms include a legend
entitled "PROHIBITION OF SALES TO EEA AND UK RETAIL INVESTORS".

Notes in bearer form will be issued in Tranches (each a "Tranche"), each Tranche consisting of Notes
which are identical in all respects. One or more Tranches, which are expressed to be consolidated and
forming a single series and are identical in all respects, but may have different issue dates, interest
commencement dates, issue prices and dates for first interest payments may form a series of Notes
("Series"). Further Notes may be issued as part of existing Issues.

Notes may be issued at an issue price which is at par or at a discount to, or premium over, par as
stated in the relevant Final Terms. Notes will be issued with a maturity of twelve months or more. The
Notes will be freely transferable.

The yield for Notes with fixed interest rates will be calculated by the use of the ICMA method, which
determines the effective interest rate of notes taking into account accrued interest on a daily basis.

The Risk Factors contained in this Prospectus are limited to risks which are (i) specific to the Issuer as
well as the Notes, and (ii) are material for taking an informed investment decision. They are presented
in a limited number of categories depending on their nature. In each category the most material risk
factor is mentioned first.

Under this Prospectus a summary will only be drawn up in relation to a particular issue of Notes with a
denomination of less than EUR 100,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies). Such an issue-specific
summary will be annexed to the applicable Final Terms.

Application has been made to the CSSF, which is the Luxembourg competent authority for the
purpose of the Prospectus Regulation for its approval of this Prospectus.

Subject to any applicable legal or regulatory restrictions, notably the Pfandbrief Act, and requirements
of relevant central banks, monetary or other authorities, Notes may be issued in Australian Dollar,
Canadian Dollar, euro, Japanese Yen, Pound Sterling, Swiss Franc, U.S. Dollar or any other currency
agreed by the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s).

Notes will be issued in such denominations as may be agreed between the Issuer and the relevant
Dealer(s) and as indicated in the applicable Final Terms save that the minimum denomination of the
Notes will be, if in euro, EUR 1,000, and, if in any currency other than euro, an amount in such other
currency nearly equivalent to EUR 1,000 at the time of the issue of the Notes. Subject to any
applicable legal or regulatory restrictions, and requirements of relevant central banks, Notes may be
issued in euro or any other currency.

Application has been made to list Notes, including Pfandbriefe, to be issued under the Programme on
the regulated market of the Hanover Stock Exchange or on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange and to trade Notes on the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange or on the
professional segment of the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Notes may be
listed on further stock exchanges or may not be listed at all.

Notes will be accepted for clearing through one or more Clearing Systems as specified in the
applicable Final Terms. These systems will comprise those operated by Clearstream Banking AG,
Frankfurt am Main, Clearstream Banking S.A., Luxembourg and Euroclear Bank SA/NV. If the Notes
are intended to be held in a manner, which would allow Eurosystem eligibility, the Notes will be
deposited initially upon issue with in the case of (i) a new global note either Clearstream Banking S.A.,
Luxembourg or Euroclear Bank SA/NV as common safekeeper or, (ii) a classical global note



Clearstream Banking AG, Frankfurt am Main. It does not necessarily mean that the Notes will be
recognised as eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy and intra-day credit operations by the
Eurosystem either upon issue or at any or all times during their life. Such recognition will depend upon
satisfaction of the Eurosystem eligibility criteria.

Under the Luxembourg Law prospectuses relating to money market instruments having a maturity at
issue of less than 12 months and complying also with the definition of securities are not subject to the
approval provisions of Part Il of such law.

Il. Issue Procedures

General

The Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) will agree on the terms and conditions applicable to each
particular Tranche of Notes (the "Conditions"). The Conditions will be constituted by the relevant set
of Terms and Conditions of the Notes set forth below (the "Terms and Conditions") as further
specified by the Final Terms (the "Final Terms") as described below.

Options for sets of Terms and Conditions

A separate set of Terms and Conditions applies to each type of Notes, as set forth below. The Final
Terms provide for the Issuer to choose between the following Options:

- Option | — Terms and Conditions for Notes with fixed interest rates (and Option | A, Option | B,
Option | C, Option | D, Option | E, Option | F, Option | G and Option | H as defined in "Documents
incorporated by Reference");

- Option Il — Terms and Conditions for Notes with floating interest rates (and Option Il A, Option |l B,
Option II C, Option Il D, Option Il E, Option Il F, Option Il G and Option Il H as defined in
"Documents incorporated by Reference");

- Option lll - Terms and Conditions for Notes with fixed to floating interest rates;
- Option IV — Terms and Conditions for Notes with floating to fixed interest rates;
- Option V — Terms and Conditions for zero coupon Notes;

- Option VI — Terms and Conditions for Pfandbriefe with fixed interest rates (and Option VI A, Option
VI B, Option VI C, Option VI D, Option VI E, Option VI F, Option VI G and Option VI H as defined in
"Documents incorporated by Reference");

- Option VII — Terms and Conditions for Pfandbriefe with floating interest rates (and Option VII A,
Option VII B, Option VII C, Option VII D, Option VII E and Option VIl F as defined in "Documents
incorporated by Reference").

With respect to each type of Notes, the respective Option | A, Option Il A, Option VI A, Option VII A,
Option | B, Option Il B, Option VI B, Option VII B, Option | C, Option Il C, Option VI C, Option VII C,
Option | D, Option Il D, Option VI D, Option VII D, Option | E, Option Il E, Option VI E, Option VII E,
Option | F, Option Il F, Option VI F, Option VII F, Option | G, Option Il G, Option VI G, Option | H,
Option Il H and Option VI H are incorporated by reference into this Prospectus for the purpose of a
potential increase of Notes outstanding and issued under a base prospectus dated prior to the date of
this Prospectus.

Documentation of the Conditions

The Issuer may document the Conditions of an individual issue of Notes in either of the following
ways:

- The Final Terms shall be completed as set out therein. The Final Terms shall determine which of
the Option | to Option VII, including certain further options contained therein, respectively, shall be
applicable to the individual issue of Notes by replicating the relevant provisions and completing the
relevant placeholders of the relevant set of Terms and Conditions as set out in the Prospectus in
the Final Terms. The replicated and completed provisions of the set of Terms and Conditions alone
shall constitute the Conditions, which will be attached to each global note representing the Notes of
the relevant Tranche. This type of documentation of the Conditions will be required where the



Notes are publicly offered, in whole or in part, or are to be initially distributed, in whole or in part, to
non-qualified investors.

- Alternatively, the Final Terms shall determine which of Option | to Option VII and of the respective
further options contained in each of Option | to Option VIl are applicable to the individual issue by
referring to the relevant provisions of the relevant set of Terms and Conditions as set out in the
Prospectus only. The Final Terms will specify that the provisions of the Final Terms and the
relevant set of Terms and Conditions as set out in the Prospectus, taken together, shall constitute
the Conditions. Each global note representing a particular Tranche of Notes will have the Final
Terms and the relevant set of Terms and Conditions as set out in the Prospectus attached.

Determination of Options / Completion of Placeholders

The Final Terms shall determine which of the Option | to Option VIl shall be applicable to the individual
issue of Notes. Each of the sets of Terms and Conditions of Option | to Option VII contains also certain
further options (characterised by indicating the respective optional provision through instructions and
explanatory notes set out either on the left of or in square brackets within the text of the relevant set of
Terms and Conditions as set out in the Prospectus) as well as placeholders (characterised by square
brackets which include the relevant items) which will be determined by the Final Terms as follows:

Determination of Options

The Issuer will determine which options will be applicable to the individual issue either by replicating
the relevant provisions in the Final Terms or by reference of the Final Terms to the respective sections
of the relevant set of Terms and Conditions as set out in the Prospectus. If the Final Terms do not
refer to an alternative or optional provision or such alternative or optional provision is not replicated
therein it shall be deemed to be deleted from the Conditions.

Completion of Placeholders

The Final Terms will specify the information with which the placeholders in the relevant set of Terms
and Conditions will be completed. In the case the provisions of the Final Terms and the relevant set of
Terms and Conditions, taken together, shall constitute the Conditions the relevant set of Terms and
Conditions shall be deemed to be completed by the information contained in the Final Terms as if such
information were inserted in the placeholders of such provisions.

All instructions and explanatory notes and text set out in square brackets in the relevant set of Terms
and Conditions and any footnotes and explanatory text in the Final Terms will be deemed to be
deleted from the Conditions.

Controlling Language

As to the controlling language of the respective Conditions, the following applies:

- In the case of Notes (i) offered to the public, in whole or in part, in the Federal Republic of
Germany, or (i) initially distributed, in whole or in part, to non-qualified investors in the Federal
Republic of Germany, German will be the controlling language. If, in the event of such offer to the
public or distribution to non-qualified investors, however, English is chosen as the controlling
language, a German language translation of the Conditions will be available from the principal
offices of the Fiscal Agent and Deutsche Hypo, as specified on the back cover of this Prospectus.

- In other cases the Issuer will elect either German or English to be the controlling language.



Risk Factors

The following is a description of material risks that are specific to the Issuer and/or may affect
its ability to fulfill its obligations under the Notes and that are material to the Notes issued
under the Programme in order to assess the market risk associated with these Notes.
Prospective investors should consider these risk factors before deciding whether to purchase
Notes issued under the Programme.

Prospective investors should consider all information provided in this Prospectus and consult
with their own professional advisers (including their financial, accounting, legal and tax
advisers) if they consider it necessary. In addition, investors should be aware that the risks
described may combine and thus intensify one another.

Certain of the Dealers and their affiliates have engaged, and may in the future engage, in
investment banking and/or commercial banking transactions with, and may perform services
for, the Issuer and its affiliates in the ordinary course of business.

Risk Factors in respect of Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft)

The risk factors regarding Deutsche Hypothekenbank are presented in the following categories
depending on their nature with the most material risk factor presented first in each category:

1. Risks related to the general business of Deutsche Hypothekenbank

2. Risks related to the banking business of Deutsche Hypothekenbank

3. Risks related to legal, regulatory and other matters of Deutsche Hypothekenbank

1. Risks related to the general business of Deutsche Hypothekenbank

Risks related to coronavirus Sars-CoV-2 (COVID-19)

As at the date of this Prospectus, the spread of the coronavirus ("coronacrisis") has a noticeable, in
some cases significant, impact on the economic activity of many markets, some of which are
significant for Deutsche Hypothekenbank. Since 11 March 2020, the WHO has classified the spread of
the virus as a pandemic. This has also significantly increased the likelihood of further burdens on the
economy and future negative consequences for the real estate industry. As a result, there was a
noticeable deterioration in the sentiment among companies and consumers. Sharp declines in share
prices with higher volatilities were observed at times on the capital markets.

The concrete effects on the economy, individual markets and sectors cannot yet be conclusively
assessed. In view of the unfolding dynamics, forecasts are characterised by a high degree of
uncertainty. However, if the effects of the coronavirus on the economy are reflected in sustained
economic and capital market burdens and the current situation persists or worsens for a longer period
of time, this could also have a significant negative impact on the real estate markets due to vacancies
and losses in the value of commercial properties, thus leading to rising risk provisioning expenses.
There could also be a significant decrease in new business volume and portfolios in commercial real
estate financing.

Possible effects of the coronacrisis on business areas of Deutsche Hypothekenbank are being closely
monitored. It cannot be ruled out that further developments relating to the coronacrisis will have a
considerable negative impact on the planned earnings figures for Deutsche Hypothekenbank. In such
a situation, the result from normal operations could be significantly lower in the financial year 2020 and
beyond as a result of rising risk provision expenses and burdens in net interest income. In this case,
the other key performance indicators Cost-income ratio (CIR) and Return on Equity (RoE) could
possibly also develop less favourably. In addition, there may be corresponding consequences for
regulatory capital and regulatory key figures at both the Issuer and Group levels. This could also result
in considerable liquidity risks. It cannot be ruled out that further developments in the coronacrisis may
also have a significant negative impact on the risk control parameters.
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Risks for new business and portfolio development

This type of risk could arise as a result of changes in the economic climate. Unexpected developments
of external economic, geopolitical and industry-specific framework conditions and trends in the
international financial markets may have a significant influence on Deutsche Hypothekenbank. This
also includes market conditions, customer behaviour and technical advances.

There are risks of lower demand for real estate financing due to reduced growth in the real estate
markets, caused for example by weakening economic growth or a considerable interest rate increase.
Other uncertainties resulting from political developments are not to be excluded as they could
influence the real estate markets and hence also the new business activities of Deutsche
Hypothekenbank. An unexpectedly sharp increase in competition on the lender side is also possible,
which could have a corresponding impact on the realisable margins and new business of Deutsche
Hypothekenbank.

Changes in market conditions can cause the demand for products offered by Deutsche
Hypothekenbank to fall short of the Bank's expectations - it can disappear or be severely reduced.
Changes in customer behaviour can also lead to a loss of market share. One cause for this could be
that the Bank's reputation could have been compromised (reputation risk). Technical advances can
also give rise to risks that mean that certain of the Bank's products are no longer required, as they no
longer fulfil the current needs of the Bank's customers.

There is also the risk that the portfolio volume will not perform to the level anticipated in the Bank's
plans and expectations. This is influenced by general factors, largely affected by customer behaviour
in respect of ordinary or unscheduled repayments of loans. Furthermore, changes to underlying
conditions and the competitive situation in the commercial real estate finance market could lead to
portfolios and margins performing worse than expected. Changes to underlying external or internal
conditions could also have an impact on the Bank's funding terms.

Risks for the income development

Limited predictability of developments in the capital market portfolio constitutes a risk regarding the
result of Deutsche Hypothekenbank. Unexpected developments of external economic, geopolitical and
industry-specific framework conditions and trends in the international financial markets may have a
significant influence on the development of Deutsche Hypothekenbank’s results. They could drive the
worsening of borrower creditworthiness and therefore lead to a need for higher loan loss provisions
compared to the forecast, both in the commercial real estate finance business and in the capital
market portfolio. Despite careful planning of the risk result, a trend reversal of the external framework
conditions, for example a considerable drop in real estate prices following an interest rate increase,
could lead to the deterioration of borrower creditworthiness and to an impairment of the value of the
collateral provided, and could also result in a need for additional loan loss provisions.

Weaker than planned portfolio and margin developments, resulting for instance from increased
competition or a reduction in credit demand, also bear risks regarding the financial result of Deutsche
Hypothekenbank. Furthermore, it is conceivable that the terms for funding may become more costly
and that these costs cannot be passed on within the framework of conditions, or the demand for
unsecured funding may increase. Generally speaking, an early improvement in the Bank’s or the
parent company’s rating compared to the planning assumptions could have positive effects on funding
conditions. A deterioration of the Bank’s or parent company’s rating as well as longer-term uncertainty
about the Group’s situation could have corresponding negative effects on the Bank’s funding
opportunities and costs. Potential tensions in the financial markets could make funding measures
more difficult. A more restrictive than expected monetary policy of the relevant central banks could
increase funding costs or reduce funding opportunities as well. Risks could arise if the expected new
business volume cannot be generated in the markets at the planned margins. Increased funding costs
for Deutsche Hypothekenbank, for example due to changes to the Bank’s or parent company’s rating
with constant margin requirements, could restrict the volume of the planned new business and
therefore reduce the earnings base.
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2. Risks related to the banking business of Deutsche Hypothekenbank

Credit risk

Credit risk is a component of counterparty risk and describes the risk that a loss occurs due to default
or deterioration in creditworthiness of a debtor. It also includes country risk. In the case of Deutsche
Hypothekenbank, credit risk therefore results primarily from the commercial lending business.
Counterparty default risk continues to represent the greatest potential risk facing the Bank.

As expected, the total credit exposure of Deutsche Hypothekenbank fell during the year 2019, down
by EUR 0.7 billion or 3.1 % compared to 31 December 2018. As of 31 December 2019 the proportion
of finance with a rating of at least satisfactory was 96.7 % of the overall exposure (2018; 98.5 %), and
thus remained unchanged at a high level. The share of non-performing loans (NPL) fell slightly to 0.3
% of total exposure (2018: 0.5 %).

There is no guarantee that Deutsche Hypothekenbank's methods and provisions on risk management
for identifying, monitoring and controlling credit risk, including their policies on risk management,
provisions on risk management, risk management procedures, valuation methods and financing
principles, are sufficient in all individual cases and will always be sufficient and appropriate in the
future. It cannot be ruled out that undetected, unforeseen and unavoidable risks or risks that were not
identified in the past will arise and lead to loan losses which could have a negative effect on the net
assets, financial and income position of Deutsche Hypothekenbank and could limit its ability to make
payments under the Notes.

Due to the volatility and cyclicality of the market environment, there are uncertainties with regard to the
development of the need for value adjustments for real estate financing with regard to original risk
provisions. Significant uncertainty factors exist above all with regard to the development of the interest
rate environment and key segment-specific market parameters such as property prices and rents,
which are key input parameters for modelling as part of risk provisioning planning. If these parameters
develop worse than expected, it cannot be ruled out that new defaults to a greater extent and the
ability of individual exposures to be restructured will not occur in the planning period as assumed in
risk provision planning. This could result in unplanned charges due to additional risk provisioning.
Here, the effects of the coronacrisis on individual markets and sectors cannot yet be conclusively
assessed.

In addition, it cannot be ruled out that after the UK's withdrawal from the EU, there will be a significant
decline in real estate prices in the UK. With regard to Deutsche Hypothekenbank's real estate
financing portfolio in the UK, this could lead to additional risk provisioning.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk describes the risk that may arise from disturbances in the liquidity of individual parts of
the capital market, unexpected events in the lending or deposit business or the deterioration of
Deutsche Hypothekenbank's own funding conditions. A change in the Bank's rating or the parent
company's rating could have negative effects on the funding conditions or, in the case of a rating
downgrade, could trigger a significant outflow of cash or restrict funding opportunities. As a result of
liquidity risk, Deutsche Hypothekenbank may be unable to meet its payment obligations. To overcome
short-term liquidity needs under normal market conditions as well as in pre-defined stress scenarios,
Deutsche Hypothekenbank holds an unencumbered liquidity buffer as well as encumbered liquid
securities in the cover pools.

It cannot be ruled out that size, composition and degree of liquidity of the liquidity buffer are
insufficient. Should it become impossible to raise liquidity in the capital markets, and the liquidation of
the liquidity buffer is only possible in combination with significant loss of value, the net assets, financial
and income position of Deutsche Hypothekenbank could be impaired, and its ability to meet its
payment obligations under the Notes could be limited. Potential tensions on the financial markets
could make funding activities more difficult. In extreme circumstances a lack of liquidity could result in
reductions in the balance sheet and sales of assets, or potentially of an inability to fulfil lending
commitments. Asset sales, balance sheet reductions and increasing costs of funding can have a
negative effect on Deutsche Hypothekenbank's net assets, financial and income position.
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Market price risk

Market price risk comprises the potential losses which may result from changes in market parameters.
Deutsche Hypothekenbank divides market price risks substantially into interest rate risk (including
credit spread risk) and foreign exchange risk/currency risk.

The value-at-risk (VaR) ("Value-at-Risk") measure of Deutsche Hypothekenbank for the interest rate
risk (Business Case: confidence level 95%, holding period 1 day, excluding credit spread risk) was
EUR 1.0 million as of the reporting deadline on 31 December 2019, producing an average value of
EUR 1.0 million. Credit spread risk in the banking book defines potential changes in value which would
result in the banking book if the credit spread applicable for the respective issuer, borrower or
reference entity used for the market value of the item changed.

In accordance to Deutsche Hypothekenbank's business strategy of reducing the public sector lending
portfolio, the buying of securities and loans exposed to credit spread risk in the capital market
business is solely pursued for the purpose of liquidity and cover pool management as well as Bank
management and is limited to low-risk titles with short residual maturities.

By the end of 2019 the nominal volume of positions connected to credit spread risks was reduced on
schedule by roughly 14 % to EUR 6.4 billion.

Deutsche Hypothekenbank conducts substantial amounts of its business in currencies other than the
Euro, most importantly in Great Britain Pound and U.S. Dollars. Foreign exchange effects can affect
the Bank's income as well as the risk-weighted assets. To the extent Deutsche Hypothekenbank
continues to recognize operating income in currencies other than Euro, it will encounter foreign
exchange risk, which could have an adverse effect on its business, income position or financial
condition.

For currency risks Deutsche Hypothekenbank pursues the general strategy of hedging individual
transactions. The foreign exchange exposure of Deutsche Hypothekenbank's lending activities is
hedged on a back-to-back basis with the aim of eliminating all currency risk. The foreign exchange
exposure is limited and monitored on a daily basis.

If any of Deutsche Hypothekenbank's instruments and strategies to hedge market price risk are not
effective, the Bank may not be able to effectively mitigate its risk exposures. In the event that market
developments are not anticipated or forecasted by Deutsche Hypothekenbank or if forecasts regarding
market developments prove to be incorrect, this could have a negative effect on the net assets,
financial and income position of Deutsche Hypothekenbank and in extreme cases limit the ability of the
Bank to make payments under the Notes.

Operational risk

Deutsche Hypothekenbank is exposed to operational risk. Operational risk describes the risk of direct
or indirect losses incurred due to the unsuitability or failure of human beings, technical systems or
internal processes or as a result of external events. Governance risk is part of operational risk. It
includes risks resulting from behaviour, which is non-compliant with applicable laws, regulations,
internal guidelines or ethical standards. The guidelines for dealing with operational risks are
formulated in the Group risk strategy. These encompass the timely identification of operational risks
and the initiation of meaningful countermeasures regarding economic and risk strategy aspects.

There are framework conditions in the form of technical and organisational measures, contractual
provisions and work instructions to reduce the operational risk as much as possible and to guarantee
business security. Not only specific contingency plans and appropriate insurance coverage, but also
every employee’s understanding of risks plays a key role in this context. In addition a functioning
internal control system (ICS) is implemented to prevent operational risks. It cannot be ruled out that
the precautions taken by Deutsche Hypothekenbank against operational risk may be insufficient in
individual cases. The realisation of such a risk could have a negative effect on reputation, net assets,
the financial and income position of Deutsche Hypothekenbank which could limit its ability to make
payments under the Notes.
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3. Risks related to legal, regulatory and other matters of Deutsche Hypothekenbank

Risks arising from the dependencies on NORD/LB

Since 2013, Deutsche Hypothekenbank, a wholly-owned subsidiary of NORD/LB, makes use of the
simplified provisions pursuant to Art. 7 (1) of Regulation No. 575/2013 of the European Parliament and
of the Council on the prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms dated 26 June
2013, as amended or replaced from time to time (the "CRR"), formerly Section 2a(1) of the German
Banking Act (KWG) (the so-called waiver rule). This means that the regulatory capital requirements
must be complied with at NORD/LB level as the superordinate institution and not at Deutsche
Hypothekenbank level. There is a risk that NORD/LB will not be able to meet its obligations to meet
capital requirements at Group level. There is therefore also the risk that the new business
opportunities of Deutsche Hypothekenbank could be restricted by the CET1 (Common Equity Tier 1
capital) capitalisation of the superordinate institution, the relevant discretionary decisions of the bank
supervisory authority and decisions of the superordinate institution on the allocation of capital.
Increasing legal or supervisory requirements (in particular with regard to capital adequacy
requirements) or a higher RWA (risk-weighted assets) commitment as a result of a deterioration in the
real estate economy could also lead to fewer new business opportunities.

Due to the control and profit and loss transfer agreement as well as the use of the waiver rule,
Deutsche Hypothekenbank is dependent on the Group’s parent company NORD/LB. Additional
significant dependencies exist in terms of compliance with Group capital requirements, development of
the rating, liquidity and funding and the internal Group management and organisation. Additionally,
service relationships as well as intra-group receivables and liabilities exist between Deutsche
Hypothekenbank and NORD/LB.

Integrated bank management, which takes account in particular of earnings, risk, RWA management
and capital requirement aspects, can have an impact on the management of new business and
existing portfolios. The integration into the Group as well as corresponding decisions which may
change in connection with capital allocation and RWA management within the Group may have
negative effects on the development of new business and the existing portfolio of Deutsche
Hypothekenbank. Furthermore, stricter legal and regulatory requirements (particularly with regard to
capital requirements), discretionary decisions by the banking authority regarding additional individual
and increased industry-wide capital requirements or a higher RWA commitment due to a worsening of
the real estate economy could lead to restrictions in the acquisition of new business.

Risks arising from rating downgrades

Deutsche Hypothekenbank is rated by Moody's Deutschland GmbH, An der Welle 5, 60322 Frankfurt
am Main, Federal Republic of Germany ("Moody's"). In determining the rating assigned to Deutsche
Hypothekenbank, the agency examines several performance indicators, including profitability and the
ability to maintain its consolidated capital ratios. In the event that Deutsche Hypothekenbank does not
achieve or maintain certain performance measures, or maintain its capital ratios above certain levels,
one or more of the ratings assigned to Deutsche Hypothekenbank may be lowered. Unfavourable
developments in the credit rating of Deutsche Hypothekenbank could increase its funding costs and
could also fundamentally limit the funding opportunities of Deutsche Hypothekenbank.

Risks arising from the membership in the Sparkassen-Finanzgruppe

There are also risks due to the Bank’s membership in the Sparkassen-Finanzgruppe’s (Savings Banks
Finance Group) institute-specific protection scheme. Special payments could be demanded from the
institutes under the protection scheme in the course of compensation and support measures,
impacting the Bank’s result. This applies correspondingly to possible supplementary payment
obligations to the restructuring funds for financial institutions. Whether and in what amount such
payments will occur cannot be predicted at this time. If the Bank is required to make any special
payments under the protection scheme this could have a negative effect on the financial position of
Deutsche Hypothekenbank.
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Risks arising from stress tests

Through the affiliation to the NORD/LB Group, Deutsche Hypothekenbank could possibly be indirectly
subject to the continual EU-wide stress testing exercise initiated by the European Banking Authority
("EBA"). Stress tests usually take place every two years - the next stress test is scheduled for 2021.
NORD/LB and its subsidiaries may, as a consequence of stress tests, be subject to measures initiated
by the German financial regulatory authorities Bundesanstalt fiir Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht
("BaFin") and Deutsche Bundesbank, the EBA and/or the ECB. The results from normal operations of
Deutsche Hypothekenbank may be adversely affected if negative results were to be received on such
stress tests. Furthermore, the publication of the results of the stress test (and its findings), their
evaluation by financial market participants and the market's general impression that such a stress test
is not designed in a robust enough manner could have a negative impact on the reputation or the
ability to fund oneself as well as increase the costs of funding or require other remedial actions.
Further, the risks arising from the aforementioned aspects could have a material adverse effect on the
reputation, business, results from normal operations or financial condition of Deutsche
Hypothekenbank.

Risks arising from requlatory activity or changes

The global financial crisis has led to an increase in regulatory activities at national and international
level, by creating and adopting new rules and arbitrary decisions applicable to the financial sector and
enforcing existing rules in a stricter degree. The existing banking and financial services laws may
change at any time in such a way that the business of Deutsche Hypothekenbank may be impaired.
As a result, the way management is conducted, the products or services offered and the value of the
assets may be materially affected. Furthermore, regulatory authorities have the right to initiate
administrative or judicial proceedings against banks or new regulatory changes may be associated
with restrictions, which may substantially affect the business, financial results and the financial position
of Deutsche Hypothekenbank.

Risks arising from governmental and central bank actions

In response to the financial markets crisis, there has been significant intervention by governments and
central banks in the financial services sector, inter alia in taking direct shareholdings in individual
financial institutions and contributions of other forms of capital, taking over guarantees of debt and
purchasing distressed assets from financial institutions. The implementation of any such measures
with respect to other companies could affect the perception of the overall prospects for the financial
services sector or for certain financial instruments. In such case the price for the financial instruments
of Deutsche Hypothekenbank could drop and the cost of funding and capital could rise, which could
have a material adverse effect.

On 27 March 2020 the German Federal Cabinet adopted a "Law to mitigate the consequences of the
COVID-19 pandemic in civil, insolvency and criminal proceedings (Gesetz zur Abmilderung der Folgen
der COVID-19-Pandemie im Zivil-, Insolvenz- und Strafverfahrensrecht)". The effects of this law are
currently difficult to assess. It should mitigate the effects of the coronacrisis and contribute to a
stabilisation of development. In addition, the European Central Bank (ECB) and the German Federal
Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin) have announced the first measures to ease the burden on
banks during the crisis. These include the temporary reduction of minimum capital and liquidity
requirements, the postponement or suspension of individual measures such as EU-wide stress tests
and on-site inspections, and the notification of flexibility in the interpretation of various requirements,
for example with regard to non-performing loans. These measures are also intended to reduce the
effects of the coronacrisis for banks.
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Risk Factors in respect of the Notes

The risk factors regarding the Notes are presented in the following categories depending on their
nature with the most material risk factor presented first in each category:

1. Risks related to the nature of the Notes

2. Risks related to the ranking of the Notes

3. Risks related to specific Terms and Conditions of the Notes
4. Other related Risks

1. Risks related to the nature of the Notes

Market price risk, in particular with regard to Fixed Rate Notes and Floating Rate Notes

The development of market prices of the Notes depends on various factors, such as changes of
market interest rate levels or the lack of or excess demand for the relevant type of Notes. The Holders
of Notes are, therefore, exposed to the risk of an unfavorable development of market prices of their
Notes, which materializes if the Holders sell the Notes prior to the final maturity of such Notes. If a
Holder of Notes decides to hold the Notes until final maturity, the Notes will be redeemed at the
amount set out in the relevant Final Terms.

In particular, a Holder of Fixed Rate Notes is exposed to the risk that the price of such Notes falls as a
result of changes in the market interest rate levels. While the nominal interest rate of a Fixed Rate
Note as specified in the applicable Final Terms is fixed during the life of such Notes, the current
interest rate on the capital market ("market interest rate") typically changes on a daily basis. As the
market interest rate changes, the price of Fixed Rate Notes also changes, but in the opposite
direction. If the market interest rate increases, the price of Fixed Rate Notes typically falls, until the
yield of such Notes is approximately equal to the market interest rate of comparable issues. If the
market interest rate falls, the price of Fixed Rate Notes typically increases, until the yield of such Notes
is approximately equal to the market interest rate of comparable issues. If the Holder of Fixed Rate
Notes holds such Notes until maturity, changes in the market interest rate are without relevance to
such Holder as the Notes will be redeemed at a specified redemption amount, usually the principal
amount of such Notes.

A Holder of Floating Rate Notes (which term includes Fixed to Floating Rate Notes and Floating to
Fixed Rate Notes) is particularly exposed to the risk of fluctuating interest rate levels and uncertain
interest income. Fluctuating interest rate levels make it impossible to determine the profitability of
Floating Rate Notes in advance. Neither the current nor the historical value of the relevant floating rate
should be taken as an indication of the future development of such floating rate during the term of any
Notes.

Liquidity risk

Application has been made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange for Notes issued under this
Prospectus to be admitted to trading on the Regulated Market or on the professional segment of the
Regulated Market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and to be listed on the official list of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange. In addition, the Programme provides that Notes may not be listed at all.
Regardless of whether the Notes are listed or not, there is a risk that no liquid secondary market for
the Notes will develop or, if it does develop, that it will not continue. The fact that the Notes may be
listed does not necessarily lead to greater liquidity as compared to unlisted Notes. If Notes are not
listed on any exchange, pricing information for such Notes may, however, be more difficult to obtain
which may affect the liquidity of the Notes adversely. In an illiquid market, an investor is subject to the
risk that he will not be able to sell his Notes at any time at fair market prices. The possibility to sell the
Notes might additionally be restricted by country specific reasons.
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2. Risks related to the ranking of the Notes

Non-preferred Notes

The obligations of the Issuer under the non-preferred unsubordinated Notes constitute unsecured
obligations, ranking junior to obligations under unsubordinated instruments which are not non-
preferred. In the event of liquidation or bankruptcy of the Issuer, the obligations under the non-
preferred unsubordinated Notes may be satisfied only after claims of creditors of unsubordinated
instruments which are not non-preferred have been satisfied so that in any such event no amounts
shall be payable in respect of such obligations until the claims of all unsubordinated creditors of
instruments which are not non-preferred have been satisfied in full.

Subordinated Notes

The subordinated Notes ("Subordinated Notes") create unsecured and subordinated liabilities of the
Issuer. Subordinated Notes establish liabilities of the Issuer ranking pari passu with each other and
with all other subordinated liabilities of the Issuer, except as otherwise provided by applicable law or
the terms of any such other subordinated liabilities. In the event of the Issuer's dissolution, liquidation,
insolvency, composition or other proceedings for the avoidance of insolvency of, or against, the Issuer,
the liabilities under the Notes will be wholly subordinated to the claims of all unsubordinated creditors
of the Issuer with the result that, in any case, payments will not be made on the liabilities under the
Notes until all of the Issuer's unsubordinated creditors have been satisfied in full.

The Holders of Subordinated Notes are not entitled to set off claims arising from the Subordinated
Notes against any of the Issuer's claims. No security of whatever kind is, or shall at any later time be,
provided by the Issuer or any of its associated companies or any third party that has a close link with
the Issuer or any of its associated companies or any other person securing rights of the Holders under
such Subordinated Notes.

Furthermore, the termination, the redemption, the repurchase and the repayment of the Notes are
subject to specific restrictions, as set out in the relevant Terms and Conditions, and the risk factors.
These specific terms particularly have an effect on the market value of the Notes with the result that
the market value of instruments from the same issuer with the same specific terms but without
subordination is generally higher.

It should be noted that prior to any insolvency or liquidation of the Issuer, all respective claims, rights
and duties under, or arising out of, the subordinated Notes will be subject to the Bail-in tool as
described in more detail in the risk factor "Bail-in tool" referred to below.

The Terms and Conditions of subordinated Notes do not contain any right of the Holders to accelerate
repayment of the Notes. In the event that the Issuer fails to make an interest payment, for example, on
any scheduled Interest Payment Date, Holders will be entitled to bring proceedings against the Issuer
for payment of such amounts but will not be entitled to declare Notes due and demand immediate
redemption thereof.

Eligible Notes

The Holders of Notes that qualify as eligible instruments ("Eligible Notes") pursuant to the minimum
requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities ("MREL") are not entitled to set off claims arising from
such instruments against any of the Issuer's claims. No security of whatever kind is, or shall at any
later time be, provided by the Issuer or any of its associated companies or any third party that has a
close link with the Issuer or any of its associated companies or any other person securing rights of the
Holders under such Notes. Further, the termination, the redemption, the repurchase and the
repayment of the Notes are subject to specific restrictions, as set out in the relevant Terms and
Conditions. These specific terms particularly have an effect on the market value of the Notes with the
result that the market value of instruments from the same issuer with the same specific terms which
are not eligible for the purposes of MREL is generally higher. Furthermore, the eligibility criteria for
MREL are still under discussion and, therefore, it cannot be said with certainty at the date of this
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Prospectus which requirements instruments will have to fulfil in the future to be eligible for the
purposes of MREL.

Bail-in tool

Among other resolution actions and subject to certain conditions and exemptions, the Single
Resolution Board ("SRB") may, in accordance with Articles 18, 22, 23 and 27 of Regulation (EU) No
806/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 July 2014 establishing uniform rules
and a uniform procedure for the resolution of credit institutions and certain investment firms in the
framework of a Single Resolution Mechanism and a Single Resolution Fund ("SRM Regulation"),
instruct the German resolution authority to order in accordance with Article 29 SRM Regulation, by
exercising its powers under the German Act of 10 December 2014 on the Recovery and Resolution of
Credit Institutions and Groups of Credit Institutions, as amended, (Gesetz zur Sanierung und
Abwicklung von Instituten und Finanzgruppen vom 10. Dezember 2014, in der jeweils gultigen
Fassung, (Sanierungs- und Abwicklungsgesetz — "SAG")) — in particular 88 90 and 91 SAG (but
subject to the SRM Regulation) — that eligible liabilities (as defined in Article 3(1)(49) SRM Regulation)
of the Issuer including liabilities under the Notes be converted to equity or reduced in their principal
amount ("Bail-in tool"). In this case the Holder of the Notes might lose the entire or a substantial part
of its investment. The SRB may only so instruct the German resolution authority in accordance with
the procedure set out in Article 18 SRM Regulation if the following conditions are met: (a) the Issuer is
failing or likely to fail, (b) there is no reasonable prospect that any alternative private sector measures
would prevent the failure of the Issuer within a reasonable timeframe and (c) a resolution action is
necessary in the public interest. In accordance with the SRM Regulation and the SAG, Pfandbriefe are
excluded from the scope of the Bail-in tool as secured liabilities ("covered bonds").

In addition to the SRM Regulation and the SAG, the German Bank Restructuring Act (Gesetz zur
Reorganisation von Kreditinstituten (Kreditinstitute-Reorganisationsgesetz — "KredReorgG")) of
9 December 2010, as amended, as well as 8845 et seq. of the German Banking Act
(Kreditwesengesetz — "KWG") provide for a comprehensive set of measures to strengthen crisis
prevention and to create incentives for credit institutions to restructure themselves independently well
in advance of an insolvency occurring.

The described regulatory measures may severely affect the rights of the Holders of the Notes
including the loss of the entire or a substantial part of its investment and may have a negative impact
on the market value of the Notes also prior to non-viability or resolution. In addition, any indication or
hint that the Issuer would become or is likely to become subject to resolution (or the perception of
market participants in this regard) could have an adverse effect on the market price of the Notes.

Risk arising from the ranking of the unsubordinated Notes

The Resolution Mechanism Act (Abwicklungsmechanismusgesetz) of 2 November 2015 introduced a
new section into the German Banking Act (Gesetz Uiber das Kreditwesen) according to which claims
under unsecured liabilities of a bank are senior to claims under unsecured debt instruments, as the
unsubordinated Notes, in an insolvency proceeding in respect of a credit institution in accordance with
the provisions of the Capital Requirements Regulation (Kapitaladdquanzverordnung). The relevant
provisions became effective as of 1 January 2017 and are applicable to all outstanding liabilities of the
bank (for insolvency proceedings initiated prior to 1 January 2017, the provisions applicable by then
shall continue to be applied). Pfandbriefe are not affected by these provisions. As a consequence of
the ranking of the unsubordinated Notes, the Bail-in tool is applied to the unsecured debt instruments,
as the unsubordinated Notes, prior to the application of this resolution measure to unsecured liabilities
in the context of a resolution scenario. Such ranking of the unsubordinated Notes may therefore
materially adversely affect the rights of the Holders of the unsubordinated Notes and may result in the
loss of the entire or substantial part of its investment. It may also negatively impact the market value of
the unsubordinated Notes prior to any insolvency proceedings.
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3. Risks related to specific Terms and Conditions of the Notes

Risk of Early Redemption

The applicable Final Terms will indicate whether the Issuer may have the right to call the Notes prior to
maturity (optional call right) on one or several dates determined beforehand or whether the Notes will
be subject to early redemption upon the occurrence of an event specified in the applicable Final Terms
(early redemption event). Furthermore, the Issuer has a right for termination in the case of Floating
Rate Notes if a Replacement Rate, an Adjustment Spread, if any, or the Replacement Rate
Adjustments cannot be determined following a Rate Replacement Event as set out in the Terms and
Conditions. In addition, the Issuer will always have the right to redeem the Notes if the Issuer is
required to pay additional amounts (gross-up payments) on the Notes for tax reasons as set out in the
Terms and Conditions. If the Issuer redeems the Notes prior to maturity or the Notes are subject to
early redemption due to an early redemption event, a Holder of such Notes is exposed to the risk that
due to such early redemption his investment will have a lower than expected yield. The Issuer can be
expected to exercise his optional call right if the yield on comparable Notes in the capital market has
fallen which means that the investor may only be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds in
comparable Notes with a lower yield. On the other hand, the Issuer can be expected not to exercise
his optional call right if the yield on comparable Notes in the capital market has increased. In this event
an investor will not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds in comparable Notes with a higher
yield. It should be noted, however, that the Issuer may exercise any optional call right irrespective of
market interest rates on a call date.

Specific risks regarding Floating Rate Notes linked to EURIBOR or LIBOR

The interest rates of Floating Rate Notes are linked to reference rates such as the Euro Interbank
Offered Rate (EURIBOR) or the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) which are deemed to be
"benchmarks" (each a "Benchmark" and together, the "Benchmarks") and which are the subject of
recent national, international and other regulatory guidance and proposals for reform. Some of these
reforms are already effective while others are still to be implemented.

Key international proposals for reform of Benchmarks include (i) IOSCQO's Principles for Oil Price
Reporting Agencies (October 2012) and Principles for Financial Benchmarks (July 2013), (ii) ESMA-
EBA's Principles for the benchmark-setting process (June 2013), and (iii) the Benchmark Regulation
EU 2016/1011 of 8 June 2016 on indices used as benchmarks in financial instruments and financial
contracts or to measure the performance of investment funds (the "Benchmark Regulation"). In
addition to the aforementioned reforms, there are numerous other proposals, initiatives and
investigations which may impact Benchmarks.

Following the implementation of such potential reforms, the manner of administration of Benchmarks
may change, with the result that they perform differently than in the past, or Benchmarks could be
eliminated entirely, or become otherwise unavailable, or there could be consequences which cannot
be predicted. Any changes to a Benchmark as a result of the Benchmark Regulation or other initiatives
could have a material adverse effect on the costs of obtaining exposure to a Benchmark or the costs
and risks of administering or otherwise participating in the setting of a Benchmark and complying with
any such regulations or requirements. Such factors may have the effect of discouraging market
participants from continuing to administer or participate in certain Benchmarks, trigger changes in the
rules or methodologies used in certain Benchmarks or lead to the disappearance of certain
Benchmarks. For example, on 27 July 2017, the UK Financial Conduct Authority announced that it will
no longer persuade or compel banks to submit rates for the calculation of the LIBOR Benchmark after
2021 (the "FCA Announcement"). The FCA Announcement indicates that the continuation of LIBOR
on the current basis cannot and will not be guaranteed after 2021.

Investors should be aware that, if a Benchmark were discontinued or otherwise unavailable, the rate of
interest on Floating Rate Notes which are linked to or which reference such Benchmark will be
determined for the relevant interest period by the fallback provisions applicable to such Notes. The
Terms and Conditions of the Notes also provide for certain fallback arrangements in the event that a
published Benchmark, such as LIBOR or EURIBOR (including any screen page on which such
Benchmark may be published (or any successor page)) becomes unavailable.
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In certain circumstances, the ultimate fallback for determining the rate of interest for a particular
interest period, may result in the rate of interest for the last preceding interest period being used. This
may result in the effective application of a fixed rate for Floating Rate Notes based on the rate which
was last observed on the relevant screen page for the purposes of determining the rate of interest in
respect of an interest period.

In addition, due to the uncertainty concerning the availability of a Replacement Rate (as defined in 83
of the Terms and Conditions), the relevant further fallback provisions with a view to a Rate
Replacement Event (as defined in 83 of the Terms and Conditions) may not operate as intended at the
relevant time. If a Rate Replacement Event (which, amongst other events, includes the permanent
discontinuation of the Benchmark) occurs, fallback arrangements will include the possibility that:

(i) the relevant rate of interest could be determined by reference to a Replacement Rate determined
by (i) the Issuer if in its opinion the Replacement Rate is obvious and as such without any
reasonable doubt determinable by an investor that is knowledgeable in the respective type of
bonds, such as the Notes, or (ii) failing which, an independent advisor (each the "Relevant
Determining Party"); and

(i) such Replacement Rate may be adjusted (if required) by an Adjustment Spread (as defined in §3
of the Terms and Conditions) to be applied to the Replacement Rate in order to reduce or
eliminate, to the extent reasonably practicable, any transfer of economic value between the
Issuer and the Holders that would otherwise arise as a result of the replacement of the
Benchmark against the Replacement Rate.

However, the Issuer may be unable to appoint an independent advisor at commercially reasonable
terms, using reasonable endeavors or the Relevant Determining Party may not be able to determine a
Replacement Rate, an Adjustment Spread, if any, or the Rate Replacement Adjustments (as defined
in 83 of the Terms and Conditions) in accordance with the Terms and Conditions of the Floating Rate
Notes. If a Replacement Rate, an Adjustment Spread, if any, or the Rate Replacement Adjustments
cannot be determined, the rate of interest for the relevant interest period will be the rate of interest
applicable as at the last preceding interest determination date before the occurrence of the Rate
Replacement Event, or, where the Rate Replacement Event occurs before the first interest
determination date, the rate of interest will be the initial rate of interest. Applying the initial rate of
interest, or the rate of interest applicable as at the last preceding interest determination date before
the occurrence of the Rate Replacement Event could result in Notes linked to or referencing the
relevant Benchmark performing differently (which may include payment of a lower rate of interest) than
they would do if the relevant Benchmark were to continue to apply, or if a Replacement Rate could be
determined. Ultimately, if the Issuer does not use its right for termination pursuant to 83 of the Terms
and Conditions, it could result in the same Benchmark being applied for the determination of the
relevant rates of interest until maturity of the Floating Rate Notes, effectively turning the floating rate of
interest into a fixed rate of interest. In that case, a Holder would no longer participate in any favourable
movements of market interest rates, including central banks' key interest rates, that would have been
reflected in the relevant Benchmark if the Benchmark would not have been discontinued or otherwise
been unavailable, and payments of interest under the Floating Rate Notes would be lower than they
would have been had the Benchmark not been discontinued or otherwise been unavailable.

Also, even if a Replacement Rate was determined and an Adjustment Spread, if any, was applied to
that Replacement Rate, such an Adjustment Spread may not be effective to reduce or eliminate
economic prejudice to Holders. The application of an Adjustment Spread, if any, to a Replacement
Rate may still result in Floating Rate Notes originally linked to or referencing a Benchmark to perform
differently (which may include payment of a lower rate of interest) than they would if the Benchmark
were to continue to apply in its current form.

In addition, the Relevant Determining Party may also establish that, consequentially, other
amendments to the Terms and Conditions of the Floating Rate Notes are necessary to enable the
operation of the Replacement Rate (which may include, without limitation, adjustments to the
applicable business day convention, the definition of business day, the interest determination date, the
day count fraction and any methodology or definition for obtaining or calculating the Replacement
Rate). No consent of the Holders shall be required in connection with effecting any relevant
Replacement Rate or any other related adjustments and/or amendments described above.

Any such consequences could have a material adverse effect on the value of and return on any such
Notes. Moreover, any of the above matters or any other significant change to the setting or existence
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of any relevant rate could affect the ability of the Issuer to meet its obligations under the Floating Rate
Notes or could have a material adverse effect on the value or liquidity of, and the amount payable
under, the Floating Rate Notes. Investors should note that, in the case of a replacement of a
Benchmark the Relevant Determining Party will have discretion to adjust the Replacement Rate in the
circumstances described above. Any such adjustment could have unexpected commercial
consequences and there can be no assurance that, due to the particular circumstances of each
Holder, any such adjustment will be favorable to each Holder.

Although it is uncertain whether or to what extent any of the above-mentioned changes and/or any
further changes in the administration or method for determining a Benchmark could have an effect on
the value of any Notes whose interest is linked to or referencing the relevant Benchmark, investors
should be aware that they face the risk that any changes to the relevant Benchmark may have a
material adverse effect on the value or the liquidity of, and the amounts payable under Notes whose
rate of interest is linked to a Benchmark.

Zero Coupon Notes

Zero Coupon Notes do not pay current interest but are typically issued at a discount from their nominal
value. Instead of periodical interest payments, the difference between the redemption price and the
issue price constitutes interest income until maturity and reflects the market interest rate. A holder of a
Zero Coupon Note is particularly exposed to the risk that the price of such Note falls as a result of
changes in the market interest rate. Prices of Zero Coupon Notes are more volatile than prices of
Fixed Rate Notes and are likely to respond to a greater degree to market interest rate changes than
interest bearing notes with a similar maturity.

Currency Risk

A Holder of a Note denominated in a foreign currency is exposed to the risk of changes in currency
exchange rates which may affect the yield of such Notes. Changes in currency exchange rates result
from various factors such as macro-economic factors, speculative transactions and interventions by
central banks.

A change in the value of any currency other than euro against the euro, for example, will result in a
corresponding change in the euro value of a Note denominated in a currency other than euro and the
euro value of interest and principal payments made in accordance with the terms of such Note. If the
underlying exchange rate falls and the value of the euro correspondingly rises, the price of the Note
and the value of interest and principal payments made thereunder expressed in euro falls.

In addition, government and monetary authorities may impose (as some have done in the past)
exchange controls that could adversely affect an applicable currency exchange rate. As a result,
investors may receive less interest or principal than expected, or no interest or principal.

Resolutions of Holders

Since the Notes may provide for meetings of Holders or the taking of votes without a meeting, a
Holder is subject to the risk of being outvoted by a majority resolution of the Holders. As such majority
resolution is binding on all Holders, certain rights of such Holder against the Issuer under the Terms
and Conditions may be amended or reduced or even cancelled.
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Holders' Representative

Since the Notes may provide for the appointment of a Holders' Representative, either in the Terms
and Conditions or by a majority resolution of the Holders, it is possible that a Holder may be deprived
of its individual right to pursue and enforce its rights under the Terms and Conditions against the
Issuer, such right passing to the Holders' Representative who is then exclusively responsible to claim
and enforce the rights of all the Holders.

4. Other related Risks

Notes may not be a suitable Investment for all Investors

It exists the risk that the Notes, in particular with respect to their specific terms, are not suitable for an
investor and are not appropriate to fulfil an investor's goals. Each potential investor in Notes must
determine the suitability of that investment in light of its own circumstances and be aware of the risk
that an investment in the Notes may not be suitable at all times until maturity bearing in mind the
following key aspects when assessing the suitability of the Notes which may change over time and
could lead to the risk of non-suitability:

(i) have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the relevant
Notes, the merits and risks of investing in the relevant Notes and the information contained or
incorporated by reference in this Prospectus or any applicable supplement;

(i) bhave access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its
particular financial situation and the investment(s) it is considering, an investment in the Notes
and the impact the Notes will have on its overall investment portfolio;

(i) have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the
relevant Notes, or where the currency for principal or interest payments is different from the
potential investor's currency;,

(iv) understand thoroughly the terms of the relevant Notes and be familiar with the behaviour of
financial markets; and

(v) be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for
economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear
the applicable risks.
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Documents incorporated by Reference

Comparative Table of Documents incorporated by Reference

The following documents which have previously been published or which are published simultaneously
with this Prospectus and which have been filed with the CSSF shall be incorporated by reference in,

and form part of this Prospectus:

Page | Section of Documents incorporated by Reference
Prospectus
30 Deutsche Annual Report 2019 of Deutsche Hypothekenbank
Hypothekenb . . ) . '
ank (Actien- Audited unconsolidated ann_ual financial statements  for the f!scal year ended
Gesellschaft) 31 December 2019 prepared in accordance with German commercial law pursuant to
Historical ' | the German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch), and the respective audit opinion
Financial (Pages 65 to 98), including:
Information - balance sheet (Pages 66 to 67)
- income statement (Page 68)
- statement of changes in equity (Page 69)
- cash flow statement (Page 70)
- notes to the financial statements (Pages 71 to 91)
- independent auditor's report® (Pages 93 to 98)
https://www.deutsche-hypo.de/content/uploads/2020/04/AR-2019 _final.pdf
30 Deutsche Annual Report 2018 of Deutsche Hypothekenbank
Hypothekenb . . ) . )
ank (Actien- Audited unconsolidated annual financial statements for the fiscal year ended
Gesellschaft) 31 December 2018 prepared in accordance with German commercial law pursuant to
Historical " | the German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch), and the respective audit opinion
Financial with an explanatory note on material uncertainty in connection with the ability to continue
Information as a going concern (Pages 74 to 110), including:
- balance sheet (Pages 74 to 75)
- income statement (Page 76)
- statement of changes in equity (Page 77)
- cash flow statement (Page 78)
- notes to the financial statements (Pages 79 to 102)
- independent auditor's report? (Page 103 to 110)
https://www.deutsche-hypo.de/content/uploads/2019/07/AR-2018_final_neu.pdf
35- Terms and - set of Terms and Conditions for Notes with fixed interest rates contained in the Debt
330 Conditions of Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 18 October 2012 on pages 65-79 and 141-
the Notes 157 ("Option | A");
- set of Terms and Conditions for Notes with floating interest rates contained in the
Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 18 October 2012 on pages 80-97 and
158-177 ("Option Il A");
- set of Terms and Conditions for Pfandbriefe with fixed interest rates contained in the
Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 18 October 2012 on pages 98-107 and

1 The auditor's report (Bestatigungsvermerk) refers to the annual financial statements and the management report for the fiscal
year ended 31 December 2019 of Deutsche Hypothekenbank as a whole and not solely to the annual financial statements
incorporated by reference into this Prospectus.

2 The auditor's report (Bestatigungsvermerk) refers to the annual financial statements and the management report for the fiscal

year ended 31 December 2018 of Deutsche Hypothekenbank as a whole and not solely to the annual financial statements
incorporated by reference into this Prospectus.


https://www.deutsche-hypo.de/content/uploads/2020/04/AR-2019_final.pdf
https://www.deutsche-hypo.de/content/uploads/2019/07/AR-2018_final_neu.pdf
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178-187 ("Option VI A");

set of Terms and Conditions for Pfandbriefe with floating interest rates contained in
the Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 18 October 2012 on pages 108-
120 and 188-201 ("Option VII A");

https://www.deutsche-hypo.de/content/uploads/2018/08/EMTN-20121018.pdf

35-
330

Terms and
Conditions of
the Notes

set of Terms and Conditions for Notes with fixed interest rates contained in the Debt
Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 18 October 2013 on pages 62-77 and 133-
150 ("Option | B");

set of Terms and Conditions for Notes with floating interest rates contained in the
Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 18 October 2013 on pages 78-96 and
151-171 ("Option 11 B");

set of Terms and Conditions for Pfandbriefe with fixed interest rates contained in the
Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 18 October 2013 on pages 97-106 and
172-182 ("Option VI B");

set of Terms and Conditions for Pfandbriefe with floating interest rates contained in
the Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 18 October 2013 on pages 107-
120 and 183-196 ("Option VII B");

https://www.deutsche-hypo.de/content/uploads/2018/08/EMTN-20131018.pdf

35-
330

Terms and
Conditions of
the Notes

set of Terms and Conditions for Notes with fixed interest rates contained in the Debt
Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 16 October 2014 on pages 68-83 and 139-
156 ("Option | C");

set of Terms and Conditions for Notes with floating interest rates contained in the
Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 16 October 2014 on pages 84-102 and
157-177 ("Option I C";

set of Terms and Conditions for Pfandbriefe with fixed interest rates contained in the
Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 16 October 2014 on pages 103-112
and 178-188 ("Option VI C");

set of Terms and Conditions for Pfandbriefe with floating interest rates contained in
the Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 16 October 2014 on pages 113-
126 and 189-202 ("Option VII C");

https://www.deutsche-hypo.de/content/uploads/2018/08/EMTN-20141016.pdf

35-
330

Terms and
Conditions of
the Notes

set of Terms and Conditions for Notes with fixed interest rates contained in the Debt
Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 15 October 2015 on pages 71-86 and 142-
159 ("Option | D");

set of Terms and Conditions for Notes with floating interest rates contained in the
Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 15 October 2015 on pages 87-105 and
160-181 ("Option I D");

set of Terms and Conditions for Pfandbriefe with fixed interest rates contained in the
Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 15 October 2015 on pages 106-115
and 182-192 ("Option VI D").

https://www.deutsche-hypo.de/content/uploads/2018/08/EMTN-20151015.pdf

35-
330

Terms and
Conditions of
the Notes

set of Terms and Conditions for Notes with fixed interest rates contained in the Debt
Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2016 on pages 71-86 and 201-
218 ("Option | E");

set of Terms and Conditions for Notes with floating interest rates contained in the
Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2016 on pages 87-105 and
219-240 ("Option Il E);

set of Terms and Conditions for Pfandbriefe with fixed interest rates contained in the
Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2016 on pages 164-174
and 306-316 ("Option VI E").

https://www.deutsche-hypo.de/content/uploads/2018/08/EMTN-20161017.pdf

35-

Terms and
Conditions of

set of Terms and Conditions for Notes with fixed interest rates contained in the Debt
Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2017 on pages 70-85 and 197-



https://www.deutsche-hypo.de/content/uploads/2018/08/EMTN-20121018.pdf
https://www.deutsche-hypo.de/content/uploads/2018/08/EMTN-20131018.pdf
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330 |the Notes 215 ("Option | F");

- set of Terms and Conditions for Notes with floating interest rates contained in the
Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2017 on pages 86-105 and
216-238 ("Option Il F");

- set of Terms and Conditions for Pfandbriefe with fixed interest rates contained in the
Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2017 on pages 165-175
and 304-314 ("Option VI F").

- set of Terms and Conditions for Pfandbriefe with floating interest rates contained in
the Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2017 on pages 176-
189 and 315-329 ("Option VII D").

https://www.deutsche-hypo.de/content/uploads/2018/08/EMTN-20171017.pdf

35- Terms and - set of Terms and Conditions for Notes with fixed interest rates contained in the Debt
330 Conditions of Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2018 on pages 82-99 and 218-
the Notes 238 ("Option | G");

- set of Terms and Conditions for Notes with floating interest rates contained in the
Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2018 on pages 100-120
and 239-263 ("Option Il G");

- set of Terms and Conditions for Pfandbriefe with fixed interest rates contained in the
Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2018 on pages 186-196
and 337-347 ("Option VI G").

- set of Terms and Conditions for Pfandbriefe with floating interest rates contained in
the Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2018 on pages 197-
210 and 348-362 ("Option VII E").

https://www.deutsche-hypo.de/content/uploads/2018/10/20181017-Base-Prospectus.pdf

- set of Terms and Conditions for Notes with fixed interest rates contained in the Debt
Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2019 on pages 36-53 and 176-
196 ("Option | H").

- set of Terms and Conditions for Notes with floating interest rates contained in the
Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2019 on pages 54-77 and
197-223 ("Option Il H");

- set of Terms and Conditions for Pfandbriefe with fixed interest rates contained in the
Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2019 on pages 147-157
and 301-311 ("Option VI H").

- set of Terms and Conditions for Pfandbriefe with floating interest rates contained in
the Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2019 on pages 158-
173 and 312-328 ("Option VII F").

https://www.deutsche-hypo.de/content/uploads/2019/10/20191017-Base-Prospectus.pdf

The information incorporated by reference that is not included in the comparative table of documents
incorporated by reference above, is considered as additional information and is not required by the
relevant annexes of the Prospectus Regulation. The respective parts of the Debt Issuance Programme
Prospectus dated 18 October 2012, the Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 18 October
2013, the Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 16 October 2014, the Debt Issuance
Programme Prospectus dated 15 October 2015, the Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated
17 October 2016, the Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2017, the Debt
Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2018 and the Debt Issuance Programme
Prospectus dated 17 October 2019 not incorporated by reference (which, for the avoidance of doubt,
means any parts not listed in the cross-refence list above) are not relevant for the investor.

The documents incorporated by reference are English-language translations of the respective
German-language annual financial statements and audit opinion or auditor's report.


https://www.deutsche-hypo.de/content/uploads/2018/08/EMTN-20171017.pdf
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https://www.deutsche-hypo.de/content/uploads/2019/10/20191017-Base-Prospectus.pdf

25

Availability of Documents incorporated by Reference

Any document incorporated herein by reference can be obtained without charge at the office of
Deutsche Hypothekenbank as set out at the end of this Prospectus. In addition, such documents
together with the Base Prospectus and any Final Terms (for notes listed on the official list of the and
admitted to trading on the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange) will be available free
of charge from the principal office of the Listing Agent in Luxembourg and will be published on the
website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.bourse.lu) and on the website of the Issuer
(www.deutsche-hypo.de/en/capital-market/debt-issuance-programme/documents).


http://www.bourse.lu/
http://www.deutsche-hypo.de/en/capital-market/debt-issuance-programme/documents
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Consent to the Use of the Prospectus

Each Dealer and/or each further financial intermediary subsequently reselling or finally placing Notes
issued under the Programme is entitled to use the Prospectus in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg and
the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, the Republic of Ireland, the Republic of
Austria, the Federal Republic of Germany, for the subsequent resale or final placement of the relevant
Notes during the respective offer period (as determined in the applicable Final Terms) during which
subsequent resale or final placement of the relevant Notes can be made, provided however, that the
Prospectus is still valid in accordance with Article 12(1) of the Prospectus Regulation. The Issuer
accepts responsibility for the information given in this Prospectus also with respect to such subsequent
resale or final placement of the relevant Notes.

The Prospectus may only be delivered to potential investors together with all supplements published
before such delivery. Any supplement to the Prospectus is available for viewing in electronic form on
the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.bourse.lu) and on the website of Deutsche
Hypothekenbank (www.deutsche-hypo.de/en/capital-market/debt-issuance-programme/documents).

When using the Prospectus, each Dealer and/or relevant further financial intermediary must make
certain that it complies with all applicable laws and regulations in force in the respective jurisdictions,
including with the restrictions specified in the "PROHIBITION OF SALES TO EEA AND UK RETAIL
INVESTORS" legend set out on the cover page of the applicable Final Terms, if any.

In the event of an offer being made by a Dealer and/or a further financial intermediary the
Dealer and/or the further financial intermediary shall provide information to investors on the
terms and conditions of the Notes at the time of that offer.

Any Dealer and/or a further financial intermediary using the Prospectus shall state on its
website that it uses the Prospectus in accordance with this consent and the conditions
attached to this consent.


http://www.bourse.lu/
http://www.deutsche-hypo.de/en/capital-market/debt-issuance-programme/documents
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Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft)
General Information about Deutsche Hypothekenbank

Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft), a joint stock company, established on 13 February
1872, acting under the legal name "Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft)" and under the
commercial name "DEUTSCHE HYPQ", is one of Germany's oldest Pfandbriefbanken, operating under
the law of the Federal Republic of Germany, with its head office based in Hanover. The Bank is
incorporated in the Federal Republic of Germany and registered in Hanover, local court entry Hanover
HRB 5602. Legal Entity Identifier (LEI) of the Bank is 802UEDW6ZEYOW4YCVU89. The website of the
Bank is www.deutsche-hypo.de. The information on this website does not form part of the Prospectus and
has not been scrutinised or approved by the CSSF. The Bank's address is:

Osterstralle 31

30159 Hanover

Federal Republic of Germany
Phone +49 511 3045-0

Fax +49 511 3045-459

E-Mail: Mail@Deutsche-Hypo.de

Business Overview
Principal Activities

As a Pfandbriefbank Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft) focuses on all aspects of financing
and consultancy associated with real estate. In line with its current business strategy the Bank specialises
in commercial financing with professional real estate customers. Its business activities also comprise
capital market transactions with German and foreign market operators. Deutsche Hypothekenbank
(Actien-Gesellschaft) is also involved in funding through the issuance of Pfandbriefe.

Principal Markets

Deutsche Hypothekenbank operates in Germany, the United Kingdom, France, the Benelux countries,
Spain, Poland and Austria.

The Bank has its headquarters in Hanover, with offices in Berlin, Dusseldorf, Frankfurt am Main,
Hamburg and Munich, as well as in Amsterdam, London, Madrid, Paris and Warsaw.

The Bank is also engaged in public sector lending, providing funding not only for the German Federal
Government, the Bundeslander and local German authorities but also for member states of the European
Union, for Switzerland, for the United States of America, for Canada and for Japan. In accordance with
the new strategic requirements, Deutsche Hypo's public sector lending is solely pursued in a restrictive
manner and primarily for liquidity, cover pool as well as bank management.

Major Shareholders

The Bank's current shareholder is Norddeutsche Landesbank - Girozentrale -, Hanover, Brunswick and
Magdeburg ("NORD/LB") (100.00%).

As of 23 December 2019, the owners of Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale are the German states
of Lower Saxony and Saxony-Anhalt, the Lower Saxony Savings Banks and Giro Association
(Sparkassenverband Niedersachsen), the Saxony-Anhalt Savings Banks Holding Association
(Sparkassenbeteiligungsverband Sachsen-Anhalt), the Special Purpose Holding Association of the
Mecklenburg-Western Pomerania Savings Banks (Sparkassenbeteiligungszweckverband Mecklenburg-
Vorpommern), FIDES Delta GmbH and FIDES Gamma GmbH™.

Business and dependency of the Issuer within the Group

Hanover-based NORD/LB holds a 100.00% share in Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft). As
noted by NORD/LB in the notes to the 2019 consolidated financial statements of NORD/LB, NORD/LB

1 FIDES Gamma GmbH ("FIDES Gamma") and FIDES Delta GmbH ("FIDES Delta") are two entities founded by Sparkassen
Finanzgruppe for the capital increase. FIDES Gamma represents the savings banks (Sparkassen). FIDES Delta represents the
regional banks (Landesbanken).


http://www.deutsche-hypo.de/
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shall ensure that Deutsche Hypothekenbank is able to meet its obligations. The Board of Managing
Directors of NORD/LB and Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft) have each signed on 29 May
2013 a control and profit and loss transfer agreement between both companies, which was registered
with the commercial register on 18 June 2013. It entered into force retroactively on 1 January 2013.
NORD/LB obligates itself to take over possible losses at its subsidiary.

In the first quarter of 2013, Deutsche Hypothekenbank also decided to apply the simplification options in
accordance with Art. 7 (1) CRR, formerly Section 2a (1) of the German Banking Act (KWG), the so-called
waiver rule, and reported this to the German Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin) in Bonn in a letter
dated 7 June 2013. The simplification options were used for the first time as of the reporting deadline on
30 June 2013. As a result, the following regulatory requirements no longer have to be applied for
Deutsche Hypothekenbank as an individual institution, but rather are reported on the Group level:
Sections 25 to 410 CRR: Requirement of appropriate equity capital resources on the level of the
institution; Sections 431 to 455 CRR: Requirements for large exposure notification; and Section 25a (1)
Clause 3 No. 1 KWG: Determination and ensuring of the risk-bearing capacity, specifying (risk) strategies,
setting up processes for the identification, evaluation, control, monitoring and communication of risks.

Due to the control and profit and loss transfer agreement as well as the use of the waiver rule, Deutsche
Hypothekenbank is dependent on the Group’s parent company NORD/LB. Additional significant
dependencies exist in terms of compliance with Group capital requirements, development of the rating,
liquidity and funding and the internal Group management and organisation. Additionally, service
relationships as well as intra-group receivables and liabilities exist between Deutsche Hypothekenbank
and NORD/LB.

Although Deutsche Hypothekenbank is no longer required to meet the aforementioned regulatory
obligations, its autonomy according to its articles of association means that it will continue to identify,
evaluate, manage and communicate its risks in accordance with the requirements of the Group strategy.
Furthermore, it is ensured that Deutsche Hypothekenbank as a Pfandbrief bank meets the requirements
of the German Pfandbrief Act (PfandBG) and particularly the requirements for risk management in
accordance with Section 27 of the German Pfandbrief Act (Pfandbriefgesetz - PfandBG).

NORD/LB runs Deutsche Hypothekenbank as a participation and strategic investment in order to extend
NORD/LB's own business model. NORD/LB's motives for the takeover were of a strategic nature and
gave priority to the Bank's expertise and quality of its staff, its market presence and its structure. As a
Pfandbriefbank, Deutsche Hypothekenbank forms the centre of competence for commercial real estate
financing within the NORD/LB Group.

Organisational Structure

Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft) forms part of NORD/LB Group. The position of the Bank
within NORD/LB Group is shown in the following diagram:

NORDDEUTSCHE LANDESBANK - GIROZENTRALE - *)

100% NORD/LB Covered Bond Bank Luxembourg
Luxembourg
100% Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft)
Hanover

*) Other subsidiaries and affiliated companies can be found in the NORD/LB Annual Report 2019.

Trend Information

Since the date of its last published audited annual financial statements, 31 December 2019, save for the
developments referred to in the following paragraph, there has been no material adverse change in the
prospects of the Issuer.
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As at the date of this Prospectus, the spread of the coronavirus ("coronacrisis"™) has a noticeable, in
some cases significant, impact on the economic activity of many markets, some of which are significant
for Deutsche Hypothekenbank. It cannot be ruled out that the further developments relating to the
coronacrisis will have a significant negative impact on the planned earnings figures.

Management and Supervisory Bodies

In accordance with the German legislation, Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft) has a two-
tier board system, i.e. a Board of Managing Directors and a Supervisory Board. The following table shows
the current members of the Board of Managing Directors (Vorstand) and their respective principle areas

of responsibility:

Sabine Barthauer

Andreas Rehfus

Domestic Property Finance
Real Estate Investment Banking
London Branch

Real Estate Structured Finance and International
Property Finance

Transaction and Portfoliomanagement
Syndication

Change Management, Agile, Digital
Communications and Board Staff
Treasury

Compliance and Safety

Internal Audit

Credit Department and Property Valuation
Credit Risk Controlling

Credit Risk Management and Special Credit
Management

Organisation and IT

Human Resources and Legal
Accounting

Treasury Operations

Controlling

There are no principal activities performed by the members of the Board of Managing Directors outside

the Issuer with significance to the Issuer.

The table below shows the current members of the Bank's Supervisory Board (Aufsichtsrat), their position
as well as principal activities performed by them outside the Issuer where these are significant with

respect to the Issuer:

Thomas S. Burkle

Chairman

Chairman of the Managing Board of NORDI/LB,
Hanover

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Norddeutsche
Landesbank Luxembourg S.A. Covered Bond Bank,
Luxembourg

Member of the Supervisory Board and the Governing
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Body of VHV Holding AG, Hanover

Member of the Supervisory Board of VHV Holding
a.G., Hannover

Gunter Tallner Vice-Chairman Member of the Managing Board of NORD/LB, Hanover

Vice Chairman of the Supervisory Board of
Norddeutsche Landesbank Luxembourg S.A. Covered
Bond Bank, Luxembourg

Christoph Dieng Member Member of the Managing Board of NORD/LB, Hanover

Member of the Supervisory Board of Norddeutsche
Landesbank Luxembourg S.A. Covered Bond Bank,
Luxembourg

Vice Chairman of the Partners’ Meeting of RSU -
Rating Service Unit GmbH & Co KG

Thomas Krliger Member Member of the Investment Committee of Evangelische
Zusatzversorgungskasse (EZVK)

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Kulturgut
Furstenberg gGmbH

Chairman of the Management Board of Fordererkreis
der Hochschule fur Bildende Kunste Braunschweig
e.V.

Member of the Rating Committee of Assekurata
(Assekuranz Rating Agency)

Michael Gehrig Member none
(Employee
representative)

Andrea Behre Member none
(Employee
representative)

The business address of the above members of the Board of Managing Directors and of the Supervisory
Board is OsterstralRe 31, 30159 Hanover, Federal Republic of Germany.

There are no potential conflicting interests of the members of the Board of Managing Directors and the
Supervisory Board between any duties to the Issuer and their private interests and/or other duties.

Historical Financial Information

The audited annual financial statements for the fiscal years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2019 of Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft) are incorporated by reference herein and form
part of this Prospectus.

Auditors

The auditor of Deutsche Hypothekenbank in relation to the annual financial statements of Deutsche
Hypothekenbank for the fiscal years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019, prepared in
accordance with German commercial law (HGB), was KPMG AG Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft,
Ludwig-Erhard-Str. 11-17, Hamburg, Federal Republic of Germany, who has audited such annual
financial statements of Deutsche Hypothekenbank for the fiscal years ended 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2019, together with the management report (Lagebericht), in accordance with § 317 of the
HGB and German generally accepted standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by the
IDW and has given its unqualified auditor's reports thereon. For the annual financial statements ended
31 December 2018, the auditor issued an audit opinion with an explanatory note on material uncertainty
in connection with the ability to continue as a going concern. The auditor is a member of the Chamber of
the German Public Auditors, an institution incorporated under public law (Wirtschaftspriferkammer,
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Anstalt des Offentlichen Rechts).

Key Financial Information

Income statement

for the Financial Year ended
31 December

EUR million 2019 2018
Net interest income ¥ 182.5 177.4
Net commission income 2 0.9 -0.1
Risk result -41.6 -20.3
Income from securities and participatory interest 4 -5.5 9.1
Result from normal operations 55.1 74.7
Profit before taxes and profit and loss transfer ® 54.2 58.2

1) Net interest income = interest earnings from credit and money market transactions less negative interest from money
market transactions and fixed interest bearing securities and book-entry securities minus interest expenses from the
banking business less positive interest from the banking business

2) Net commission income = commission income less commission expenses

3) Risk result = write-downs and value adjustments on receivables and specific securities as well as allocations to
provisions in credit business

4) Income from securities and participatory interest = write-downs and value adjustments on participatory interest, shares in
affiliated companies and on securities treated as fixed assets and income from write-ups of participatory interest, shares in
affiliated companies and securities treated as fixed assets

5) Profit before taxes and profit and loss transfer = Result from normal operations plus extraordinary income minus
extraordinary expenses

Balance sheet

EUR million 31 Dec. 2019 31 Dec. 2018
Total assets 20,454.2 21,072.8
Liabilities to financial institutions and securitised

liabilities 12,220.3 12,296.3
Subordinated liabilities 341.0 379.5
Receivables from customers 14,500.9 14,819.6
Liabilities to customers 6,803.4 7,320.3
Equity 838.2 838.2
Cost-income ratio (CIR) ¥ 44.2 % 49.5 %

1) CIR = (general administrative expenses + write-downs and value adjustments on intangible assets and tangible fixed
assets) / (net interest income including current income + net commission income + other operating income - other operating
expenses)

Governmental, legal and arbitration proceedings

There have been no governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings in the past 12 months which, because
of their particular nature or more extensive scope than usual, have had or may have a significant effect on
the financial position or profitability of Deutsche Hypothekenbank, nor, as far as Deutsche
Hypothekenbank is aware, are there any such governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings pending or
threatened.

Significant Change in Deutsche Hypothekenbank's financial position

There has been no significant change in the financial position of Deutsche Hypothekenbank since
31 December 2019. There has not been any significant change in the financial performance of Deutsche
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Hypothekenbank since 31 December 2019, the end of the last financial period for which financial
information has been published, to the date of the Prospectus.

It cannot be ruled out that the further developments relating to the coronacrisis might have a negative
impact on the financial position of Deutsche Hypothekenbank.
Description of the expected financing of the issuer’s activities

Deutsche Hypothekenbank is a renowned issuer on the Pfandbrief market. In addition to Pfandbriefe, it
also issues unsecured bearer and registered bonds. In 2019, Deutsche Hypo issued own securities in the
amount of EUR 2,235.2 million in reporting year 2019 (2018: EUR 2,327.1 million). They consisted of
EUR 1,795.0 million (2018: EUR 1,722.8 million) of mortgage Pfandbriefe and EUR 440.2 million (2018:
EUR 604.3 million) of unsecured bonds. Term deposits with terms of more than 360 days totalling
EUR 369.8 million (2018: EUR 167.9 million) were received. 100 % of the unsecured bonds were issued
as private placements, usually in the form of registered bonds and only to a lesser proportion as bearer
bonds.

Information on the material changes in the issuer’s borrowing and funding structure since the last
financial year

There has not been any material change in the borrowing and funding structure of Deutsche
Hypothekenbank since 31 December 2019.

Share Capital

Deutsche Hypothekenbank holds a subscribed capital of EUR 80.6 million on 31 December 2019, which
is divided into 13,440,000 individual shares. Deutsche Hypothekenbank is a company of the NORD/LB
which holds 100 % of the Bank’s shares.

Corporate purpose

Pursuant to 8§ 2 of its Articles of Association, the purpose of Deutsche Hypothekenbank is to conduct all
permitted businesses of a credit institution including the issue of Pfandbriefe, the entering of investments
and the establishment of branches.

Credit Rating of the Issuer

The Bank has been assigned with the following rating(s) by Moody's Deutschland GmbH ("Moody's")%:
Long-term deposit and debt ratings: A3

Short-term rating: Prime-2

Baseline Credit Assessment (BCA): ba3

Subordinated debt rating: Ba2

The notes issued by the Bank have been assigned with the following rating(s) by Moody's:

Mortgage Pfandbriefe: Aal

Public Pfandbriefe: Aal

Senior Unsecured preferred Notes: A3

Junior/Senior unsecured non-preferred Notes: Baa2

Moody's expresses issuer ratings according to its general long-term and short-term scales. Moody's
ratings scale for long term debt obligations ranges from Aaa (highest quality, lowest level of credit risk) to

Moody's is established in the European Community and is registered under Regulation (EC) No 1060/2009 of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 16 September 2009 on credit rating agencies, as amended (the "CRA Regulation"). The
European Securities and Markets Authority publishes on its website (www.esma.europa.eu) a list of credit rating agencies
registered in accordance with the CRA Regulation. That list is updated within five working days following the adoption of a
decision under Article 16, 17 or 20 CRA Regulation. The European Commission shall publish that updated list in the Official
Journal of the European Union within 30 days following such update.
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C (lowest rated and typically in default, with little prospects for recovery of principal or interest).

Obligations rated Aa are judged to be of high quality and are subject to very low credit risk. Obligations
rated A are considered upper-medium-grade and are subject to low credit risk. Obligations rated Baa are
judged to be medium-grade and subject to moderate credit risk and as such may possess certain
speculative elements. Obligations rated Ba possess speculative elements and are judged to be subject to
considerable credit risk. Issuers rated Prime-2 are notably able to repay short-term debt.

Moody's appends numerical modifiers 1, 2 and 3 to each generic rating classification from Aa through
Caa. The modifier 1 indicates that the obligation ranks in the higher end of the generic rating category;
the modifier 2 indicates a mid-range ranking; and the modifier 3 indicates a ranking in the lower end of
the generic rating category.

Documents Available

During the life of this Prospectus, the Articles of incorporation and the annual reports of Deutsche
Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft) for the fiscal years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2019, respectively and copies of the Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 18 October 2012, the
Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 18 October 2013, the Debt Issuance Programme
Prospectus dated 16 October 2014, the Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 15 October 2015
the Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2016, the Debt Issuance Programme
Prospectus dated 18 October 2017, the Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2018
and the Debt Issuance Programme Prospectus dated 17 October 2019, can either be found on the Bank's
internet homepage under www.deutsche-hypo.de/en/capital-market/debt-issuance-
programme/documents or are obtainable in printed form at the address of the Bank's head office as well
as at the office of the fiscal agent. In the case of Notes listed on the official list of and admitted to trading
on the regulated market or on the professional segment of the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange or offered to the public in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, the Final Terms will be displayed
on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.bourse.lu). In the case of Notes listed on any
other stock exchange or offered to the public in one or more member states of the European Economic
Area other than the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, the Final Terms will be displayed on the website of
Deutsche  Hypothekenbank  (Actien-Gesellschaft)  (www.deutsche-hypo.de/en/capital-market/debt-
issuance-programme/documents).

Recent Events

As at the date of this Prospectus, the coronacrisis has a noticeable, in some cases significant, impact on
the economic activity of many markets, some of which are important for Deutsche Hypothekenbank.
Since 11 March 2020, the WHO has classified the spread of the virus as a pandemic. This has also
significantly increased the likelihood of further burdens on the economy and future negative
consequences for the real estate industry. As a result, there was a noticeable deterioration in the
sentiment among companies and consumers. Sharp declines in share prices with higher volatilities were
observed at times on the capital markets.

The concrete effects on the economy, individual markets and sectors cannot yet be conclusively
assessed. In view of the unfolding dynamics, forecasts are characterised by a high degree of uncertainty.
However, if the effects of the coronavirus on the economy are reflected in sustained economic and capital
market burdens and the current situation persists or worsens for a longer period of time, this could also
have a significant negative impact on the real estate markets due to vacancies and losses in the value of
commercial properties, thus leading to rising risk provisioning expenses. For Deutsche Hypothekenbank,
there could also be a significant decrease in new business volume and portfolios in commercial real
estate financing.

Possible effects of the coronacrisis on business areas of Deutsche Hypothekenbank are being closely
monitored. It cannot be ruled out that further developments relating to the coronacrisis will have a
considerable negative impact on the planned earnings figures for Deutsche Hypothekenbank. In such a
situation, the result from normal operations could be significantly lower in the financial year 2020 and
beyond as a result of rising risk provisions expenses and burdens in net interest income. In this case, the
other key performance indicators Cost-income ratio (CIR) and Return on Equity (RoOE) could possibly also
develop less favourably. In addition, there may be corresponding consequences for regulatory capital and
regulatory key figures at both the Issuer and Group levels. This could also result in considerable liquidity
risks. It cannot be ruled out that further developments in the coronacrisis may also have a significant


http://www.deutsche-hypo.de/en/capital-market/debt-issuance-programme/documents
http://www.deutsche-hypo.de/en/capital-market/debt-issuance-programme/documents
http://www.bourse.lu/
http://www.deutsche-hypo.de/en/capital-market/debt-issuance-programme/documents
http://www.deutsche-hypo.de/en/capital-market/debt-issuance-programme/documents
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negative impact on the risk control parameters.

On 19 May 2020, Deutsche Hypothekenbank announced that Sabine Barthauer, Member of the Board of
Managing Directors will be leaving the Bank at her own request and will assume the function of a board
member at DZ HYP in Hamburg. The chairman of the Supervisory Board, Thomas Birkle, and Sabine
Barthauer, will now commence negotiations regarding the upcoming change in view of a possible
premature termination of Sabine Barthauer's position as Member of the Board of Managing Directors. The
Supervisory Board of Deutsche Hypothekenbank has not yet discussed and decided on this matter.
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Terms and Conditions of the Notes
(English Language Version)

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes (the "Terms and Conditions") are set
forth below in seven options:

Option | comprises the set of Terms and Conditions that apply to Tranches of
Notes (other than Pfandbriefe) with fixed interest rates.

Option 1l comprises the set of Terms and Conditions that apply to Tranches of
Notes (other than Pfandbriefe) with floating interest rates.

Option Il comprises the set of Terms and Conditions that apply to Tranches of
Notes (other than Pfandbriefe) with fixed to floating interest rates.

Option IV comprises the set of Terms and Conditions that apply to Tranches of
Notes (other than Pfandbriefe) with floating to fixed interest rates.

Option V comprises the set of Terms and Conditions that apply to Tranches of
zero coupon Notes (other than Pfandbriefe).

Option VI comprises the set of Terms and Conditions that apply to Tranches of
Pfandbriefe with fixed interest rates.

Option VII comprises the set of Terms and Conditions that apply to Tranches of
Pfandbriefe with floating interest rates.

The set of Terms and Conditions for each of these Options contains certain
further options, which are characterised accordingly by indicating the respective
optional provision through instructions and explanatory notes set out either on the
left of or in square brackets within the set of Terms and Conditions.

In the Final Terms the Issuer will determine, which of the Option | to Option VII
including certain further options contained therein, respectively, shall apply with
respect to an individual issue of Notes, either by replicating the relevant provisions
or by referring to the relevant options

To the extent that upon the approval of the Prospectus the Issuer had no
knowledge of certain items which are applicable to an individual issue of Notes,
this Prospectus contains placeholders set out in square brackets which include
the relevant items that will be completed by the Final Terms.

[The provisions of these Terms and Conditions apply to the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe]
as completed by the terms of the final terms which is attached hereto (the "Final
Terms"). The blanks in the provisions of these Terms and Conditions which are
applicable to the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] shall be deemed to be completed by the
information contained in the Final Terms as if such information were inserted in
the blanks of such provisions; alternative or optional provisions of these Terms
and Conditions as to which the corresponding provisions of the Final Terms are
not completed or are deleted shall be deemed to be deleted from these Terms
and Conditions; and all provisions of these Terms and Conditions which are
inapplicable to the [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] (including instructions, explanatory notes
and text set out in square brackets) shall be deemed to be deleted from these
Terms and Conditions, as required to give effect to the terms of the Final Terms.
Copies of the Final Terms may be obtained free of charge at the specified office of
the Fiscal Agent and at the principal office of the Issuer provided that, in the case
of [Notes] [Pfandbriefe] which are not listed on any stock exchange, copies of the
relevant Final Terms will only be made available to Holders of such [Notes]
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| [Pfandbriefe].]

OPTION | — Terms and Conditions that apply to Notes (other than
Pfandbriefe) with fixed interest rates

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES
ENGLISH LANGUAGE VERSION

g1
Currency, Denomination, Form, Certain Definitions

(1) Currency; Denomination. This tranche of [subordinated] Notes (the "Notes") of
Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft) (the "Issuer”) is being issued in
[Specified Currency] (the "Specified Currency") in the aggregate principal
amount [in the case the Global Note is a NGN the following applies: (subject
to 81 (4))] of [aggregate principal amount] (in words: [aggregate principal
amount in words]) in the denomination of [Specified Denomination] (the
"Specified Denomination™).

(2) Form. The Notes are in bearer form and represented by one or more global
notes (each a "Global Note").

[(3) Permanent Global Note. The Notes are represented by a permanent Global Note
(the "Permanent Global Note") without coupons. The Permanent Global Note shall
be signed manually by two authorised signatories of the Issuer and shall be
authenticated by or on behalf of the Fiscal Agent. Definitive Notes and interest
coupons will not be issued.]

[(3) Temporary Global Note — Exchange.

(@) The Notes are initially represented by a temporary global note (the
"Temporary Global Note") without interest coupons. The Temporary Global
Note will be exchangeable for a permanent global note (the "Permanent
Global Note") without interest coupons. The Temporary Global Note and the
Permanent Global Note shall each be signed manually by two authorized
signatories of the Issuer and shall each be authenticated by or on behalf of
the Fiscal Agent. Definitive Notes and interest coupons will not be issued.

(b) The Temporary Global Note shall be exchangeable for the Permanent Global
Note from a date (the "Exchange Date") 40 days after the date of issue of the
Temporary Global Note. Such exchange shall only be made upon delivery of
certifications to the effect that the beneficial owner or owners of the Notes
represented by the Temporary Global Note is or are not a U.S. person (other
than certain financial institutions or certain persons holding Notes through
such financial institutions) as required by U.S. tax law. The certifications shall
be in compliance with the respective United States Treasury Regulations as
applicable from time to time. Payment of interest on Notes represented by a
Temporary Global Note will be made only after delivery of such certifications.
A separate certification shall be required in respect of each such payment of
interest. Any such certification received on or after the 40" day after the date
of issue of the Temporary Global Note will be treated as a request to
exchange such Temporary Global Note pursuant to this subparagraph (b) of
this 8 1 (3). Any securities delivered in exchange for the Temporary Global
Note shall be delivered only outside of the United States. For purposes of this
subparagraph (3), "United States" means the United States of America
(including the States thereof and the District of Columbia) and its possessions
(including Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa,
Wake Island and Northern Mariana Islands).]

(4) Clearing System. Each Global Note representing the Notes will be kept in
custody by or on behalf of the Clearing System. The Permanent Global Note will
be kept in custody by or on behalf of the Clearing System until all obligations of
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the Issuer under the Notes have been satisfied. "Clearing System" means [if
more than one Clearing System the following applies: each of] the following:
[Clearstream Banking AG, Neue BdrsenstraBe 1, 60487 Frankfurt am Main,
Federal Republic of Germany ("Clearstream Frankfurt")] [Clearstream Banking
S.A., 42 Avenue JF Kennedy, 1855 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg
("Clearstream Luxembourg"), Euroclear Bank SA/NV, Boulevard du Roi Albert
Il, 1210 Brussels, Belgium ("Euroclear") (Clearstream Luxembourg and Euroclear
each an "ICSD" and together the "ICSDs")] and any successor in such capacity.

[The Notes are issued in new global note ("NGN") form and are kept in custody by
a common safekeeper on behalf of both ICSDs.

The aggregate principal amount of Notes represented by the Global Note shall be
the aggregate amount from time to time entered in the records of both ICSDs. The
records of the ICSDs (which expression means the records that each ICSD holds
for its customers which reflect the amount of such customer's interest in the
Notes) shall be conclusive evidence of the aggregate principal amount of Notes
represented by the Global Note and, for these purposes, a statement issued by an
ICSD stating the amount of Notes so represented at any time shall be conclusive
evidence of the records of the relevant ICSD at that time.

On any redemption or payment of an instalment or interest being made in respect
of, or purchase and cancellation of, any of the Notes represented by the Global
Note the Issuer shall procure that details of any redemption, payment or purchase
and cancellation (as the case may be) in respect of the Global Note shall be
entered pro rata in the records of the ICSDs and, upon any such entry being
made, the aggregate principal amount of the Notes recorded in the records of the
ICSDs and represented by the Global Note shall be reduced by the aggregate
principal amount of the Notes so redeemed or purchased and cancelled or by the
aggregate amount of such instalment so paid.

[In the case of a Temporary Global Note the following applies: On an
exchange of a portion only of the Notes represented by a Temporary Global Note,
the Issuer shall procure that details of such exchange shall be entered pro rata in
the records of the ICSDs.]]

[The Notes are issued in classical global note ("CGN") form and are kept in
custody by a common depositary on behalf of both ICSDs.]

(5) Holder of Notes. "Holder" means any holder of a proportionate co-ownership
or other beneficial interest or right in the Notes.

[§2
Status

The Notes constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured
obligations of the Issuer ranking pari passu among themselves and pari passu
with all other unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer, except for
obligations which are accorded priority by operation of law.

[At issuance, the Notes constituted [preferred] debt instruments [within the
meaning of [Section 46f Subsection 5 of the German Banking Act] [insert relevant
provision]].]]

[82
Status

(1) The Notes constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured
liabilities of the Issuer ranking pari passu with each other and with all other
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unsubordinated and unsecured liabilities of the Issuer, with the following
exception:

As unsubordinated, non-preferred obligations of the Issuer payment claims under
the Notess rank

subordinated to other unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer if
and to the extent, such unsubordinated and unsecured obligations enjoy
[preferred] treatments by law [within the meaning of [Section 46f Subsection 5 of
the German Banking Act] [insert relevant provision]] in insolvency proceedings or
in case of an imposition of resolution measures with regard to the Issuer,

but in each case rank senior to any subordinated debt of the Issuer.

[At issuance, the Notes constituted [non-preferred] debt instruments [within the
meaning of [Section 46f Subsection 6 Sentence 1 of the German Banking Act]
[insert relevant provision]].]

[(2) The Holders of the Notes are not entitled to set off claims arising from the
Notes against any of the Issuer's claims.

No security of whatever kind is, or shall at any later time be, provided by the
Issuer or any of its associated companies or any third party that has a close link
with the Issuer or any of its associated companies or any other person securing
rights of the Holders under the Notes.]

[(D][(3)] No subsequent agreement may alter the rank pursuant to the provisions
set out in this § 2 or shorten the term of the Notes or any applicable notice period.

[[(3)][(4)] The Notes shall qualify as instruments that qualify as eligible liabilities
pursuant to the minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities
(MREL).]

[[(D][(5)] Under the relevant resolution laws and regulations applicable to the
Issuer, the competent resolution authority may

(a) write down, in whole or in part, the claims for payment of principall, interest]
or any other amount;

(b) convert these claims into ordinary shares or other common equity tier 1
capital instruments of (i) the Issuer or (ii) any group entity or (iii) any bridge
bank (and issue such instruments to, or confer them on, the Holders); and/or

(c) apply any other resolution measure, including, but not limited to, (i) any
transfer of the obligations under the Notes to another entity, (ii) the
amendment, modification or variation of the Terms and Conditions of the
Notes or (iii) the cancellation of the Notes

(each, a "Resolution Measure").]

[[(5)][(6)] The Holders shall be bound by any Resolution Measure. No Holder
shall have any claim or other right against the Issuer arising out of or in
connection with any Resolution Measure. In particular, the exercise of any
Resolution Measure shall not constitute an event of default under the Notes.]]

[§2
Status

(1) In accordance with applicable provisions concerning the classification as own
funds, the Notes shall be available for the Issuer as eligible own funds instrument
in the form of Tier 2 capital pursuant to Art. 63 CRR (as defined in §[13]
(Ergadnzungskapital, "Tier 2 Capital")). The Notes constitute direct, unconditional,
subordinated and unsecured liabilities of the Issuer ranking pari passu with each
other and with all other subordinated liabilities of the Issuer, except as otherwise
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provided by applicable law or the terms of any such other subordinated liabilities.
In the event of resolution measures imposed on the Issuer and in the event of the
Issuer's dissolution, liquidation, insolvency, composition or other proceedings for
the avoidance of insolvency of, or against, the Issuer, the liabilities under the
Notes will be wholly subordinated to the claims of all unsubordinated creditors of
the Issuer with the result that, in any case, payments will not be made on the
liabilities under the Notes until all of the Issuer's unsubordinated creditors have
been satisfied in full.

(2) The Holders of the Notes are not entitled to set off claims arising from the
Notes against any of the Issuer's claims. No security of whatever kind is, or shall
at any later time be, provided by the Issuer or any of its associated companies or
any third party that has a close link with the Issuer or any of its associated
companies or any other person securing rights of the Holders under the Notes.

(3) No subsequent agreement may limit the subordination pursuant to the
provisions set out in this 8 2 or shorten the term of the Notes or any applicable
notice period. Any redemption or repurchase of the Notes prior to their scheduled
maturity requires the prior consent of the competent regulatory authority of the
Issuer. If the Notes are redeemed or repurchased and cancelled by the Issuer
otherwise than in the circumstances described in this § 2 or as a result of an early
repurchase or redemption pursuant to 8 4 or §[13] of these Terms and
Conditions, then the amounts redeemed or paid must be returned to the Issuer
irrespective of any agreement to the contrary unless the competent regulatory
authority has given its prior permission to such early redemption or repurchase.]

§3
Interest
(1) Rate of Interest and Interest Payment Dates.

[(@) The Notes shall bear interest on their aggregate principal amount at the rate
of [rate of interest] % per annum from (and including) [interest
commencement date] to (but excluding) the Maturity Date (as defined in
§5(1)).]

[(@) The Notes shall bear interest on their aggregate principal amount as follows:

from to
(and including) (but excluding) per cent per annum
[specified dates] [specified dates] [specified rates]]

Interest shall be payable in arrear on [interest payment date] in each year (each
such date, an "Interest Payment Date"). The first payment of interest shall be
made on [first interest payment date] [in the case of a long or short first
coupon the following applies: and will amount to [initial broken amount] per
Specified Denomination]. [in the case of a long or short last coupon the
following applies: Interest in respect of the period from (and including) [interest
payment date preceding the Maturity Date] to (but excluding) the Maturity Date
will amount to [final broken amount] per Specified Denomination.]

(b) If any Interest Payment Date would otherwise fall on a day which is not a
Business Day (as defined below), it shall be:

[postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall
into the next calendar month, in which event the Interest Payment Date shall be
the immediately preceding Business Day.]
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[postponed to the next day which is a Business Day.]

[the immediately preceding Business Day.]

If a payment of interest is [brought forward] [or] [postponed] to a Business Day
as described above, the amount of interest shall [not] be adjusted accordingly [If
an adjustment of interest applies insert: and the Interest Payment Date shall be
adjusted to the relevant Business Day].

(c) Inthis 8 3 (1) "Business Day" means

[a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which both (i) the Clearing
System, and (ii) the Trans-European Automated Real-time Gross Settlement
Express Transfer System 2 (TARGET2) ("TARGET") is open to settle
payments.]

[a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which both (i) the Clearing
System, and (ii) commercial banks and foreign exchange markets in [all
relevant financial centres] settle payments.]

(2) Accrual of Interest. The Notes shall cease to bear interest as from the
beginning of the day on which they are due for redemption. If the Issuer shall fail
to redeem the Notes when due, interest shall (except in the circumstances
provided in 8 5 (4) continue to accrue on the outstanding principal amount of the
Notes from (and including) the due date to (but excluding) the date of actual
redemption of the Notes at the default rate of interest established by law?, unless
the rate of interest under the Notes is higher than the default rate of interest
established by law, in which event the rate of interest under the Notes continues
to apply during the before-mentioned period of time.

(3) Calculation of Interest for Partial Periods. If interest is required to be calculated
for a period of less than a full year, such interest shall be calculated on the basis
of the Day Count Fraction (as defined below).

(4) Day Count Fraction. "Day Count Fraction” means with regard to the
calculation of interest on any Note for any period of time (the "Calculation
Period"):

[the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by the actual
number of days in the respective interest period.]

[the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by the number of days in
the Reference Period in which the Calculation Period falls.]

1 The default rate of interest established by law is five percentage points above the basic rate of interest set by the European
Central Bank from time to time, 8§ 288(1), 247 German Civil Code.
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[the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by the product of (1) the
number of days in the Reference Period in which the Calculation Period falls and
(2) the number of Interest Payment Dates that occur in one calendar year or that
would occur in one calendar year if interest were payable in respect of the whole
of such year.]

[the sum of:

(A) the number of days in such Calculation Period falling in the Reference
Period in which the Calculation Period begins divided by [in the case of
Reference Periods of less than one year the following applies: the
product of (1)] the number of days in such Reference Period [in the case of
Reference Periods of less than one year the following applies: and (2)
the number of Interest Payment Dates that occur in one calendar year or
that would occur in one calendar year if interest were payable in respect of
the whole of such year]; and

(B) the number of days in such Calculation Period falling in the next Reference
Period divided by [in the case of Reference Periods of less than one
year the following applies: the product of (1)] the number of days in such
Reference Period [in the case of Reference Periods of less than one
year the following applies: and (2) the number of Interest Payment Dates
that occur in one calendar year or that would occur in one calendar year if
interest were payable in respect of the whole of such year].]

['Reference Period" means the period from (and including) the Interest
Commencement Date to, but excluding, the first Interest Payment Date or from
(and including) each Interest Payment Date to, but excluding, the next Interest
Payment Date. [In the case of a short first or last Calculation Period the
following applies: For the purposes of determining the [first] [last] Reference
Period only, [deemed Interest Commencement Date or deemed Interest
Payment Date] shall be deemed to be an [Interest Commencement Date]
[Interest Payment Date].] [In the case of a long first or last Calculation
Period the following applies: For the purposes of determining the [first] [last]
Reference Period only, [deemed Interest Commencement Date and/or
deemed Interest Payment Date(s)] shall each be deemed to be [Interest
Commencement Date][and] [Interest Payment Date[s]].]]

[the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 365.]
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[the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360.]

[the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360, the number of days
to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with twelve 30-day months
(unless (A) the last day of the Calculation Period is the 315t day of a month but the
first day of the Calculation Period is a day other than the 30" or 31st day of a
month, in which case the month that includes that last day shall not be considered
to be shortened to a 30-day month, or (B) the last day of the Calculation Period is
the last day of the month of February in which case the month of February shall
not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-day month).]

[the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360 (the number of days
to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with twelve 30-day months,
without regard to the date of the first day or last day of the Calculation Period
unless, in the case of the final Calculation Period, the last day of the Calculation
Period is the last day of the month of February, in which case the month of
February shall not be considered lengthened to a 30-day month).]

§4
Redemption

(1) Final Redemption.

Unless previously redeemed in whole or in part or purchased and cancelled, the
Notes shall be redeemed at their Final Redemption Amount on [Maturity Date]
(the "Maturity Date"). The Final Redemption Amount in respect of each Note (the
"Final Redemption Amount") shall be its principal amount.

[(2) Early Redemption for Reasons of Taxation. If as a result of any change in, or
amendment to, the laws or regulations of the Federal Republic of Germany or any
political subdivision or taxing authority thereto or therein affecting taxation or the
obligation to pay duties of any kind, or any change in, or amendment to, an official
interpretation or application of such laws or regulations, which amendment or
change is effective on or after the date on which the last tranche of the Notes was
issued, the Issuer is required to pay Additional Amounts (as defined in § 7 herein)
on the next succeeding Interest Payment Date (as defined in § 3 (1)) and this
obligation cannot be avoided by the use of reasonable measures available to the
Issuer, the Notes may be redeemed, in whole but not in part, at the option of the
Issuer, upon not less than 60 days' prior notice of redemption given to the Fiscal
Agent and, in accordance with § [14] to the Holders, at their Final Redemption
Amount, together with interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption. However,
no such notice of redemption may be for redemption.

However, no such notice of redemption may be given (i) earlier than 90 days prior
to the earliest date on which the Issuer would be obligated to pay such Additional
Amounts were a payment in respect of the Notes then due, or (ii) if at the time
such notice is given, such obligation to pay such Additional Amounts does not
remain in effect.

Any such notice shall be given in accordance with § [14]. It shall be irrevocable,
must specify the date fixed for redemption and must set forth a statement in
summary form of the facts constituting the basis for the right of the Issuer so to
redeem.]

[(2) Early Redemption for Reasons of Taxation. The Notes may be redeemed at
any time in whole, but not in part, at the option of the Issuer and upon the prior
consent of the competent supervisory authority on giving not less than 30 and not
more than 60 days' notice to the Fiscal Agent and, in accordance with § [14] to
the Holders, at the Final Redemption Amount together with accrued interest (if
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any) to the date fixed for redemption if there is a change in the tax treatment of
the Notes (in particular, but not limited to, the obligation to pay Additional Amounts
(as defined in § 7 herein)) and such change is, in its own assessment, materially
adverse for the Issuer.]

[(3) Early redemption due to regulatory reasons. The Issuer shall be entitled to
call the Notes in whole but not in part, at the option of the Issuer and subject to
the prior permission of the competent regulatory authority, if the Issuer
determines, in its own discretion, that it: (i) may not treat the Notes in their full
aggregate principal amount as Tier 2 capital for the purposes of the Own Funds
Provisions (as defined in § [13] of these Terms and Conditions) other than for
reasons of an amortisation in accordance with Art. 64 of the CRR, or (ii) is subject
to any other form of a less advantageous regulatory own funds treatment with
respect to the Notes than as of the Issue Date.

In this case the redemption of the Notes shall, subject to § 2 of these Terms and
Conditions, be effected in accordance with the provisions contained in paragraph
(1). Termination is irrevocable. The rights and obligations arising from the Notes
shall expire upon redemption.]

[(4) Early Redemption at the Option of the Issuer.

(a) The Issuer may, upon notice given in accordance with clause (b) below,
redeem all or only some of the Notes [in the case of subordinated Notes
the following applies: , upon the prior consent of the competent supervisory
authority] on the Call Redemption Date(s) at the Call Redemption Amount(s)
set forth below together with accrued interest, if any, to (but excluding) the
Call Redemption Date.

[in the case of non-preferred Notes any Call Redemption Date must be at
least one full year after the issue date of the Notes]

[in the case of subordinated Notes any Call Redemption Date must be at
least five full years after the issue date of the Notes]

Call Redemption Date(s) Call Redemption Amount(s)
[Call Redemption Dates(s)] [Call Redemption Amount(s)]

[] []

[] []

[If Notes are subject to Early Redemption at the Option of the Holder the
following applies:

The Issuer may not exercise such option in respect of any Note which is the
subject of the prior exercise by the Holder thereof of its option to require the
redemption of such Note under subparagraph [(4)] of this § 4.]

[In the case of subordinated Notes the following applies: The Notess may
only be redeemed pursuant to this § 4(4) if the Issuer has, on the basis of the
Own Funds Provisions (as defined in §[13] of these Terms and Conditions),
obtained the prior permission of the competent regulatory authority (if required).]

(b)  Notice of redemption shall be given by the Issuer to the Holders of the
Notes in accordance with 8 [14]. Such notice shall specify:

(i) the Notes subject to redemption;

(i) whether such Notes are to be redeemed in whole or in part only and, if in part
only, the aggregate principal amount of the Notes which are to be redeemed;

(i) the Call Redemption Date, which shall be not less than [Minimum Notice]
days nor more than [Maximum Notice] days after the date on which notice is
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given by the Issuer to the Holders; and
(iv) the Call Redemption Amount at which such Notes are to be redeemed.

(c) In the case of a partial redemption of Notes, Notes to be redeemed shall be
selected in accordance with the rules and procedures of the relevant Clearing
System. [In the case of Notes in NGN form the following applies: Such
partial redemption shall be reflected in the records of Clearstream
Luxembourg and Euroclear as either a pool factor or a reduction in principal
amount, at the discretion of Clearstream Luxembourg and Euroclear.]]

[[(5)] Early Redemption at the Option of the Holder.

(a) The Issuer shall, at the option of the Holder of any Note, redeem such Note on
the Put Redemption Date(s) at the Put Redemption Amount(s) set forth below
together with accrued interest, if any, to (but excluding) the Put Redemption
Date.

Put Redemption Date(s) Put Redemption Amount(s)

[Put Redemption Dates(s)]

[] []
[] []

The Holder may not exercise such option in respect of any Note which is the
subject of the prior exercise by the Issuer of any of its options to redeem such
Note under this § 4.

(b) In order to exercise such option, the Holder must, not less than [Minimum
Notice] days nor more than [Maximum Notice] days days before the Put
Redemption Date on which such redemption is required to be made as
specified in the Put Notice (as defined below), send to the specified office of
the Fiscal Agent an early redemption notice in text format (Textform, e.g.
email or fax) or in written form ("Put Notice").In the event that the Put Notice
is received after 5:00 p.m. Frankfurt time on the 30th Payment Business Day
before the Put Redemption Date, the option shall not have been validly
exercised. The Put Notice must specify (i) the total principal amount of the
Notes in respect of which such option is exercised, [and] (i) the German
Security Code of such Notes, if any [in the case the Global Note is kept in
custody by CBF, the following applies: and (iii) contact details as well as a
bank account]. The Put Notice may be in the form available from the specified
offices of the Fiscal Agent and the Paying Agents in the German and English
language and includes further information. No option so exercised may be
revoked or withdrawn.]

[Put Redemption Amount(s)]

[[(6)] Cessation of eligibility. The Issuer shall be entitled to call the Notes in whole
but not in part, at the option of the Issuer and subject to the prior consent of the
competent regulatory authority, if required, in case the Notes, according to the
determination of the Issuer, cease to qualify as eligible for the purposes of the
minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities (MREL).

In this case the redemption of the Notes shall, subject to § 2 of these Terms and
Conditions, be effected in accordance with the provisions contained in paragraph
(1). Termination is irrevocable. The rights and obligations arising from the Notes
shall expire upon redemption.]
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§5
Payments

(1) (a)Payment of Principal. Payment of principal in respect of Notes shall be
made, subject to subparagraph (2) below, to the Clearing System or to its
order for credit to the accounts of the relevant account Holders of the Clearing
System.

(b) Payment of Interest. Payment of interest on Notes shall be made, subject to
subparagraph (2) below, to the Clearing System or to its order for credit to the
accounts of the relevant account Holders of the Clearing System.

[Payment of interest on Notes represented by the Temporary Global Note shall
only be made upon due certification as provided in § 1 (3) (b).]

(2) Manner of Payment. Subject to (i) applicable fiscal and other laws and
regulations and (ii) any withholding or deduction required pursuant to an
agreement described in Section 1471(b) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of
1986 (the "Code") or otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through 1474
of the Code, any regulations or agreements thereunder, any official interpretations
thereof, or any law implementing an intergovernmental approach thereto,
payments of amounts due in respect of the Notes shall be made in the Specified
Currency.

(3) Discharge. The Issuer shall be discharged by payment to, or to the order of,
the Clearing System.

(4) Banking Day. If the date for payment of any amount in respect of any Note is
not a Banking Day then the Holder shall not be entitled to payment until the next
Banking Day and shall not be entitled to further interest or other payment in
respect of such delay.

[For these purposes, "Banking Day" means a day (other than a Saturday or a
Sunday) on which both (i) the Clearing System, and (ii) the Trans-European
Automated Real-time Gross Settlement Express Transfer System 2 (TARGET2)
("TARGET") is open tosettle payments.]

[For these purposes, "Banking Day" means a day (other than a Saturday or a
Sunday) on which both (i) the Clearing System, and (ii) commercial banks and
foreign exchange markets in [relevant financial centres].]

(5) References to Principal and Interest. References in these Terms and
Conditions to principal in respect of the Notes shall be deemed to include, as
applicable: the Final Redemption Amount of the Notes, [if the Notes are
redeemable at the option of the Issuer for other than tax reasons the
following applies: the Call Redemption Amount of the Notes;] [if the Notes are
redeemable at the option of the Holder the following applies: the Put
Redemption Amount of the Notes;] and any premium and any other amounts
which may be payable under or in respect of the Notes. References in these
Terms and Conditions to interest in respect of the Notes shall be deemed to
include, as applicable, any Additional Amounts which may be payable under § 7.
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(6) Deposit of Principal and Interest. The Issuer may deposit with the local court
(Amtsgericht) in Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany, principal or
interest not claimed by Holders within 12 months after the due date, even though
such Holders may not be in default of acceptance of payment. If and to the extent
that the deposit is effected and the right of withdrawal is waived, the respective
claims of such Holders against the Issuer shall cease.

§6
Agents

(1) Appointment; Specified Office. The initial Fiscal Agent and its initial specified
office[s] shall be:

[Fiscal Agent:

Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft
Trust and Agency Services
Taunusanlage 12

60325 Frankfurt am Main

Federal Republic of Germany]

[Fiscal Agent:

Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft)
Osterstralie 31

30159 Hanover

Federal Republic of Germany]

The Fiscal Agent shall also fulfil the functions of a paying agent. The Fiscal Agent
reserves the right at any time to change its specified office[s] to some other
specified office in the same country.

(2) Variation or Termination of Appointment. The Issuer reserves the right at any
time to vary or terminate the appointment of the Fiscal Agent and to appoint
another Fiscal Agent. The Issuer shall at all times maintain a Fiscal Agent.

The Issuer shall without undue delay notify the Holders of any variation,
termination, appointment or change in accordance with § [14].

(3) Agent of the Issuer. The Fiscal Agent acts solely as the agent of the Issuer
and does not assume any obligations towards or relationship of agency or trust for
any Holder.

(4) Paying Agents. The Fiscal Agent shall act as the principal paying agent with
respect to the Notes.

[The additional paying agent[s] (the "Paying Agent[s]" which expression shall
include any successor and additional paying agent hereunder) and [its] [their]
respective initial specified offices shall be:

Paying Agent[s]: [Paying Agent[s] and specified office[s]]

Each Paying Agent reserves the right at any time to change its specified office to
another specified office in the same country. The Issuer reserves the right at any
time to vary or terminate the appointment of any Paying Agent and to appoint
additional or other Paying Agents. The Issuer shall without delay notify the
Holders of any variation, termination, appointment or change in accordance with
§ [14].

Each Paying Agent acts solely as the agent of the Issuer and does not assume
any obligations towards or relationship of agency or trust for any Holder.]



a7

(5) Required Paying Agents. The Issuer shall at all times maintain a Paying Agent
(which may be the Fiscal Agent) with a specified office in a European city and, so
long as the Notes are listed on any stock exchange and the rules of such stock
exchange so require, a Paying Agent (which may be the Fiscal Agent) with a
specified office in such place as may be required by the rules of such stock
exchange.

87
Taxation

All amounts payable in respect of the Notes shall be made without withholding or
deduction for or on account of any present or future taxes or duties of whatever
nature imposed or levied by way of withholding or deduction at source by, in or
on behalf of the Federal Republic of Germany or by or on behalf of any political
subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax unless such
withholding or deduction is required by law. In such event, the Issuer shall pay
such additional amounts [in the case of subordinated Notes the following
applies: with respect to payments of interest only] (the "Additional Amounts")
as shall be necessary in order that the net amounts received by the Holders, after
such withholding or deduction shall equal the respective amounts which the
Holders would otherwise have received in the absence of such withholding or
deduction, except that no such Additional Amounts shall be payable on account
of any taxes or duties which:

(a) are payable by any person acting as custodian bank or collecting agent on
behalf of a Noteholder, or otherwise in any manner which does not constitute
a deduction or withholding by the Issuer from payments of principal or interest
made by it, or

(b) are payable by reason of the Holder having, or having had, some personal or
business connection with the Federal Republic of Germany and not merely by
reason of the fact that payments in respect of the Notes are, or for purposes
of taxation are deemed to be, derived from sources in, or are secured in, the
Federal Republic of Germany, or

(c) are deducted or withheld pursuant to (i) any European Union Directive or
Regulation concerning the taxation of interest income, or (ii) any international
treaty or understanding relating to such taxation and to which the Federal
Republic of Germany or the European Union is a party, or (iii) any provision of
law implementing, or complying with, or introduced to conform with, such
Directive, Regulation, treaty or understanding, or

(d) to the extent such withholding or deduction is required pursuant to Sections
1471 through 1474 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the "Internal Revenue Code"), any current or future regulations or official
interpretations thereof, any agreement entered into pursuant to Section
1471(b) of the Internal Revenue Code, or any fiscal or regulatory legislation,
rules or practices adopted pursuant to any of the foregoing or under any
intergovernmental agreement entered into in connection with the
implementation of such Sections of the Internal Revenue Code, or

(e) are payable by reason of a change in law that becomes effective more than
30 days after the relevant payment becomes due, or is duly provided for and
notice thereof is published in accordance with § [14], whichever occurs later.

§8
Presentation period

The presentation period provided in § 801 (1), sentence 1 German Civil Code
(Burgerliches Gesetzbuch) is reduced to ten years for the Notes.
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[89
Events of Default

(1) Events of default. Each Holder shall be entitled to declare his Notes due and
demand immediate redemption thereof at the Final Redemption Amount, together
with accrued interest (if any) to the date of repayment, in the event that

(a) the Issuer fails to pay any amount due under the Notes within 30 days from
the relevant due date, or

(b) the Issuer fails duly to perform any other obligation arising from the Notes
which failure is not capable of remedy or, if such failure is capable of remedy,
such failure continues for more than 30 days after the Fiscal Agent has
received notice thereof from a Holder, or

(c) the Issuer suspends payment or announces its inability to pay its debts, or

(d) a court institutes insolvency proceedings against the Issuer, and such
proceedings are not set aside or stayed within 60 days, or the competent
supervisory authority or resolution authority, respectively, applies for or
institutes any such proceedings, or

(e) the Issuer goes into liquidation unless this is done in connection with a
merger, consolidation or other form of combination with another company or in
connection with a conversion and the other or new company assumes all
obligations contracted by the Issuer in connection with the Notes.

The right to declare Notes due shall terminate if the situation giving rise to it has
been cured before the right is exercised.

(2) Notice. Any notice, including any notice declaring Notes due, in accordance
with subparagraph (1) shall be made by means of a declaration in text format
(Textform, e.g. email or fax) or in written form in the German or English language
sent to the specified office of the Fiscal Agent together with proof that such Holder
at the time of such notice is a Holder of the relevant Notes by means of a
certificate of his Custodian (as defined in §[15] (3)) or in other appropriate
manner. The Notes shall be redeemed following receipt of the notice declaring
Notes due.]

§[10]
Substitution

(1) Substitution. The Issuer may, without the consent of the Holders, if it is not in
default with any payment of principal of or interest on any of the Notes, at any
time substitute for the Issuer any Affiliate (as defined below) of the Issuer as
principal debtor (the "Substitute Debtor") in respect of all obligations arising from
or in connection with this issue provided that:

(a) the Substitute Debtor assumes all obligations of the Issuer in respect of the
Notes;

(b) the Issuer and the Substitute Debtor have obtained all necessary
authorisations and approvals and may transfer to the Fiscal Agent in the
currency required hereunder and without being obligated to deduct or withhold
any taxes or other duties of whatever nature levied by the country in which the
Substitute Debtor has its domicile or tax residence, all amounts required for
the fulfilment of the payment obligations arising under the Notes;

(c) the Substitute Debtor has agreed to indemnify and hold harmless each Holder
against any tax, duty, assessment or governmental charge imposed on such
Holder in respect of such substitution;

[(d) (i) the proceeds are immediately available to the Issuer, without limitation and
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in a form that satisfies the requirements of eligibility, (ii) the liabilities assumed
by the Substitute Debtor continue to be eligible and (iii) each Holder is treated
as if the substitution of the Issuer had not taken place;]

[(d) (i) the Substitute Debtor is an entity which is part of the consolidation (relating
to the Issuer) pursuant to Article 63(n) sub-paragraph (i) of the CRR, (ii) the
proceeds are immediately available to the Issuer, without limitation and in a
form that satisfies the requirements of the CRR, (iii) the liabilities assumed by
the Substitute Debtor are subordinated on terms that are identical with the
subordination provisions of the liabilities assumed, (iv) the Substitute Debtor
invests the amount of the Notes with Norddeutsche Landesbank -
Girozentrale — on terms that match those of the Notes and (v) the Issuer
guarantees the Substitute Debtor's liabilities under the Notes on a
subordinated basis pursuant to § 2 of these Terms and Conditions and
provided that the recognition of the paid-in capital concerning the Notes as
Tier 2 Capital continues to be ensured;]

[(e)the Issuer irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees in favour of each Holder
the payment of all sums payable by the Substitute Debtor in respect of the
Notes on terms which ensure that each Holder will be put in an economic
position that is at least as favourable as that which would have existed if the
substitution had not taken place.]

[(e)the Issuer irrevocably, unconditionally and on a subordinated basis in
accordance with § 2 guarantees in favor of each Holder the payment of all
sums payable by the Substitute Debtor in respect of the Notes and the
regulatory classification of the paid-in capital under the Notes as Tier 2
supplementary capital is still assured.]

For purposes of this § [10], "Affiliate" shall mean any affiliated company
(verbundenes Unternehmen) within the meaning of 815 German Stock
Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz).

(2) Notice. Notice of any such substitution shall be published in accordance with
§ [14] without delay.

(3) Change of References. In the event of any such substitution, any reference in
these Terms and Conditions to the Issuer shall from then on be deemed to refer to
the Substitute Debtor and any reference to the country in which the Issuer is
domiciled or resident for taxation purposes shall from then on be deemed to refer
to the country of domicile or residence for taxation purposes of the Substitute
Debtor. Furthermore, in the event of such substitution the following shall apply:

[(@)in 8 7 and § 4 (2) an alternative reference to the Federal Republic of Germany
shall be deemed to have been included in addition to the reference according
to the preceding sentence to the country of domicile or residence for taxation
purposes of the Substitute Debtor;

(b) in 8 9 (1) (c) to [(e)] an alternative reference to the Issuer in its capacity as
guarantor shall be deemed to have been included in addition to the reference
to the Substitute Debtor; and

(c) in 8 9 (1) a further event of default shall be deemed to have been included;
such event of default shall exist in the case that the guarantee pursuant to
subparagraph 1 [(d)] is or becomes invalid for any reason.]

[In 8 7 and § 4 (2) an alternative reference to the Federal Republic of Germany
shall be deemed to have been included in addition to the reference according to
the preceding sentence to the country of domicile or residence for taxation
purposes of the Substitute Debtor.]
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(8 [11]
Resolutions of Holders

(1) Amendment of the Terms and Conditions. The Holders may agree by majority
resolution on all matters permitted by law, provided that no obligation to make any
payment or render any other performance shall be imposed on any Holder by
majority resolution.

(2) Majority resolutions shall be binding on all Holders. Resolutions, which do not
provide for identical conditions for all Holders are void, unless Holders who are
disadvantaged have expressly consented to their being treated
disadvantageously.

(3) Majority. Resolutions shall be passed by a majority of not less than 75% of the
votes cast (qualified majority). Resolutions relating to amendments to the Terms
and Conditions which are not material, require a majority of not less than 50% of
the votes cast.

(4) Resolution of Holders. Resolutions of Holders shall be passed at the election of
the Issuer by vote taken without a meeting in accordance with § 18 SchVG or in a
Holder's meeting in accordance with § 9 SchVG.

(5) Voting rights. Each Holder participating in any vote shall cast votes in
accordance with the nominal amount or the notional share of its entitlement to the
outstanding Notes. As long as the entitlement to the Notes lies with, or the Notes
are held for the account of, the Issuer or any of its affiliates (§ 271 paragraph 2
HGB (Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch))), the right to vote in respect of
such Notes shall be suspended. The Issuer may not transfer Notes, of which the
voting rights are so suspended, to another person for the purpose of exercising
such voting rights in the place of the Issuer; this shall also apply to any affiliate of
the Issuer. No person shall be permitted to exercise such voting right for the
purpose stipulated in sentence 3, first half sentence, herein above.

No person shall be permitted to offer, promise or grant any benefit or advantage
to another person entitled to vote in consideration of such person abstaining from
voting or voting in a certain way.

A person entitled to vote may not demand, accept or accept the promise of, any
benefit, advantage or consideration for abstaining from voting or voting in a
certain way.]

(8 [12]
Holders' Representative]

[(1) The Holders may by majority resolution appoint a common representative (the
"Holders' Representative") to exercise the Holders' rights on behalf of each
Holder.

(2) The Holders' Representative shall have the duties and powers provided by law
or granted by majority resolution of the Holders. The Holders' Representative shall
comply with the instructions of the Holders. To the extent that the Holders'
Representative has been authorised to assert certain rights of the Holders, the
Holders shall not be entitled to assert such rights themselves, unless explicitly
provided for in the relevant majority resolution. The Holders' Representative shall
provide reports to the Holders on its activities.

(3) The Holders' Representative shall be liable for the performance of its duties
towards the Holders who shall be joint and several creditors (Gesamtglaubiger); in
the performance of its duties it shall act with the diligence and care of a prudent
business manager. The liability of the Holders' Representative may be limited by a
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resolution passed by the Holders. The Holders shall decide upon the assertion of
claims for compensation of the Holders against the Holders' Representative.

(4) The appointment of the Holders' Representative may be revoked at any time
by the Holders without specifying any reasons.

(5) The Holders' Representative may demand from the Issuer to furnish all
information required for the performance of the duties entrusted to it.]

[(1) The common representative (the "Holders' Representative")!to exercise the
Holders' rights on behalf of each Holder shall be [Name and address of Holder's
Representative].

(2) The Holders' Representative shall be authorised, at its discretion, in respect of
the matters determined by it to call for a vote of Holders without a meeting and to
preside the taking of votes.

(3) The Holders' Representative shall comply with the instructions of the Holders.
To the extent that the Holders' Representative has been authorised to assert
certain rights of the Holders, the Holders shall not be entitled to assert such rights
themselves, unless explicitly provided so by majority resolution. The Holders'
Representative shall provide reports to the Holders with respect to its activities.

(4) The Holders' Representative shall be liable for the proper performance of its
duties towards the Holders who shall be joint and several -creditors
(Gesamtglaubiger); in the performance of its duties it shall act with the diligence
and care of a prudent business manager. The liability of the Holders'
Representative shall be limited to ten times the amount of its annual
remuneration, unless the Holders' Representative has acted willfully or with gross
negligence. The liability of the Holders' Representative may be further limited by a
resolution passed by the Holders. The Holders shall decide upon the assertion of
claims for compensation of the Holders against the Holders' Representative.

(5) The appointment of the Holders' Representative may be revoked at any time
by the Holders without specifying any reason.

(6) The Holders' Representative may demand from the Issuer to furnish all
information required for the performance of the duties entrusted to it.]

§[13]
Further Issues, Purchases and Cancellation

(1) Further Issues. The Issuer may from time to time, without the consent of the
Holders, issue further Notes having the same terms and conditions as the Notes
in all respects (or in all respects except for the date of issue, interest
commencement date and/or issue price) so as to form a single series with the
Notes.

[(2) Purchases. The Issuer may [in the case of non-preferred Notes the
following applies: upon the prior consent of the competent supervisory authority,
if required] at any time purchase Notes in the open market or otherwise and at
any price. Notes purchased by the Issuer may, at the option of the Issuer, be held,
resold or surrendered to the Fiscal Agent for cancellation. If purchases are made
by tender, tenders for such Notes must be made available to all Holders of such
Notes alike.]

[(2) Purchases. Subject to § 2 of these Terms and Conditions and only if, when
and to the extent that the purchase is not prohibited by applicable provisions
regarding own funds requirements as applied by the competent regulatory

1 The Holders' Representative must satisfy the conditions specified in § 8 paragraph 1 SchVG.
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authority and amended from time to time (including, but not limited to, the
Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council on
the prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms dated
26 June 2013, other provisions of bank supervisory laws and any rules and
regulations related thereto, including directly applicable provisions of European
Community law, in each case as amended or replaced from time to time (the
"CRR" and the "Own Funds Provisions", respectively)), the Issuer may at any
time purchase Notes in the open market or otherwise and at any price. Notes
purchased by the Issuer may, at the option of the Issuer, be held, resold or
surrendered to the Fiscal Agent for cancellation.]

(3) Cancellation. All Notes redeemed in full shall be cancelled forthwith and may
not be reissued or resold.

§[14]
Notices

[(1) Publication. All notices concerning the Notes shall be published in the Federal
Gazette (Bundesanzeiger) [and in the Luxemburger Wort, a newspaper of general
circulation in Luxembourg].

Any notice will be deemed to have been validly given on the third day following
the date of such publication (or, if published more than once, on the third day
following the date of the first such publication).]

[(2)] Electronic Publication. All notices concerning the Notes will be made by
means of electronic publication on the internet website of the [Luxembourg Stock
Exchange] [relevant stock exchange] (Jwww.bourse.lu] [www.[relevant
address]). Any notice will be deemed to have been validly given on the third day
following the date of such publication (or, if published more than once, on the third
day following the date of the first such publication).]

[(2)] Notification to Clearing System.

[The Issuer shall deliver all notices concerning the Notes to the Clearing System
for communication by the Clearing System to the Holders. Any such notice shall
be deemed to have been given to the Holders on the seventh day after the day on
which the said notice was given to the Clearing System.]

[So long as any Notes are admitted to trading on a market of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange, subparagraph (1) shall apply. In the case of notices regarding
the Rate of Interest or, if the Rules of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange otherwise
so permit, the Issuer may deliver the relevant notice to the Clearing System for
communication by the Clearing System to the Holders, in lieu of publication in the
newspaper set forth in subparagraph (1) above; any such notice shall be deemed
to have been given to the Holders on the seventh day after the day on which the
said notice was given to the Clearing System.]

[The Issuer may, in lieu of publication in the newspaper set forth in subparagraph
(1) above, deliver the relevant notice to the Clearing System, for communication
by the Clearing System to the Holders, provided that, the rules of the stock
exchange on which Notes are listed permit such form of notice. Any such notice
shall be deemed to have been given to the Holders on the seventh day after the
day on which the said notice was given to the Clearing System.]

[(3)] Form of Notice. Notices to be given by any Holder shall be made by means
of a declaration in text format (Textform, e.g. email or fax) or in written form to be
sent together with the relevant Note or Notes to the Fiscal Agent. So long as any
of the Notes are represented by a global Note, such notice may be given by any
Holder of a Note to the Agent through the Clearing System in such manner as the
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Agent and the Clearing System may approve for such purpose.

§ [15]
Applicable Law,
Place of Jurisdiction and Enforcement

(1) Applicable Law. The Notes, as to form and content, and all rights and
obligations of the Holders and the Issuer, shall be governed by German law.

(2) Submission to Jurisdiction. The District Court (Landgericht) in Frankfurt am
Main shall have non-exclusive jurisdiction for any action or other legal
proceedings ("Proceedings") arising out of or in connection with the Notes. The
jurisdiction of such Court shall be exclusive if Proceedings are brought by
merchants (Kaufleute), legal persons under public law (juristische Personen des
offentlichen Rechts), special funds under public law (6ffentlich-rechtliche
Sondervermdégen) and persons not subject to the general jurisdiction of the courts
of the Federal Republic of Germany (Personen ohne allgemeinen Gerichtsstand
in der Bundesrepublik Deutschland).

(3) Enforcement. Any Holder of Notes may in any Proceedings against the Issuer,
or to which such Holder and the Issuer are parties, protect and enforce in his own
name his rights arising under such Notes on the basis of (i) a statement issued by
the Custodian (as defined below) with whom such Holder maintains a securities
account in respect of the Notes (a) stating the full name and address of the
Holder, (b) specifying the aggregate principal amount of Notes credited to such
securities account on the date of such statement and (c) confirming that the
Custodian has given written notice to the Clearing System containing the
information pursuant to (a) and (b) and (ii) a copy (of the Note in global form
certified as being a true copy by a duly authorized officer of the Clearing System
or a depository of the Clearing System, without the need for production in such
Proceedings of the actual records or the global note representing the Notes. For
purposes of the foregoing, "Custodian" means any bank or other financial
institution of recognized standing authorized to engage in securities custody
business with which the Holder maintains a securities account in respect of the
Notes and includes the Clearing System. Each Holder may, without prejudice to
the foregoing, protect and enforce his rights under these Notes also in any other
way which is admitted in the country of the Proceedings.

§[16]
Language

[These Terms and Conditions are written in the German language and provided
with an English language translation. The German text shall be controlling and
binding. The English language translation is provided for convenience only.]

[These Terms and Conditions are written in the English language and provided
with a German language translation. The English text shall be controlling and
binding. The German language translation is provided for convenience only.]

[These Terms and Conditions are written in the English language only.]
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[Eine deutsche Ubersetzung der Anleihebedingungen wird bei der Deutsche

Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft),

Osterstralle 31,

30159 Hannover,

Bundesrepublik Deutschland zur kostenlosen Ausgabe bereitgehalten.]
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OPTION Il — Terms and Conditions that apply to Notes (other than
Pfandbriefe) with floating interest rates

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES
ENGLISH LANGUAGE VERSION

g1
Currency, Denomination, Form, Certain Definitions

(1) Currency; Denomination. This tranche of [subordinated] Notes (the "Notes")
of Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft) (the "Issuer") is being
issued in [Specified Currency] (the "Specified Currency") in the aggregate
principal amount [in the case the Global Note is a NGN the following
applies: (subject to 81 (4))] of [aggregate principal amount] (in words:
[aggregate principal amount in words]) in the denomination of [Specified
Denomination] (the "Specified Denomination").

(2) Form. The Notes are in bearer form and represented by one or more global
notes (each a "Global Note").

[(3) Permanent Global Note. The Notes are represented by a permanent Global
Note (the "Permanent Global Note") without coupons. The Permanent Global
Note shall be signed manually by two authorised signatories of the Issuer and
shall be authenticated by or on behalf of the Fiscal Agent. Definitive Notes and
interest coupons will not be issued.]

[(3) Temporary Global Note — Exchange.

(@) The Notes are initially represented by a temporary global note (the
"Temporary Global Note") without interest coupons. The Temporary Global
Note will be exchangeable for a permanent global note (the "Permanent
Global Note") without interest coupons. The Temporary Global Note and the
Permanent Global Note shall each be signed manually by two authorized
signatories of the Issuer and shall each be authenticated by or on behalf of
the Fiscal Agent. Definitive Notes and interest coupons will not be issued.

(b) The Temporary Global Note shall be exchangeable for the Permanent
Global Note from a date (the "Exchange Date") 40 days after the date of
issue of the Temporary Global Note. Such exchange shall only be made
upon delivery of certifications to the effect that the beneficial owner or
owners of the Notes represented by the Temporary Global Note is or are not
a U.S. person (other than certain financial institutions or certain persons
holding Notes through such financial institutions) as required by U.S. tax
law. The certifications shall be in compliance with the respective United
States Treasury Regulations as applicable from time to time. Payment of
interest on Notes represented by a Temporary Global Note will be made
only after delivery of such certifications. A separate certification shall be
required in respect of each such payment of interest. Any such certification
received on or after the 40t day after the date of issue of the Temporary
Global Note will be treated as a request to exchange such Temporary Global
Note pursuant to this subparagraph (b) of this § 1 (3). Any securities
delivered in exchange for the Temporary Global Note shall be delivered only
outside of the United States. For purposes of this subparagraph (3), "United
States" means the United States of America (including the States thereof
and the District of Columbia) and its possessions (including Puerto Rico, the
U.S. Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa, Wake Island and Northern
Mariana Islands).]

(4) Clearing System. Each Global Note representing the Notes will be kept in
custody by or on behalf of the Clearing System. The Permanent Global Note will
be kept in custody by or on behalf of the Clearing System until all obligations of
the Issuer under the Notes have been satisfied. "Clearing System" means [if
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more than one Clearing System the following applies: each of] the following:
[Clearstream Banking AG, Neue Boérsenstrale 1, 60487 Frankfurt am Main,
Federal Republic of Germany ("Clearstream Frankfurt™)] [Clearstream Banking
S.A., 42 Avenue JF Kennedy, 1855 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg
("Clearstream Luxembourg"), Euroclear Bank SA/NV, Boulevard du Roi Albert
I, 1210 Brussels, Belgium ("Euroclear") (Clearstream Luxembourg and
Euroclear each an "ICSD" and together the "ICSDs")] and any successor in
such capacity.

[The Notes are issued in new global note ("NGN") form and are kept in custody
by a common safekeeper on behalf of both ICSDs.

The aggregate principal amount of Notes represented by the Global Note shall
be the aggregate amount from time to time entered in the records of both
ICSDs. The records of the ICSDs (which expression means the records that
each ICSD holds for its customers which reflect the amount of such customer's
interest in the Notes) shall be conclusive evidence of the aggregate principal
amount of Notes represented by the Global Note and, for these purposes, a
statement issued by an ICSD stating the amount of Notes so represented at any
time shall be conclusive evidence of the records of the relevant ICSD at that
time.

On any redemption or payment of an instalment or interest being made in
respect of, or purchase and cancellation of, any of the Notes represented by the
Global Note the Issuer shall procure that details of any redemption, payment or
purchase and cancellation (as the case may be) in respect of the Global Note
shall be entered pro rata in the records of the ICSDs and, upon any such entry
being made, the aggregate principal amount of the Notes recorded in the
records of the ICSDs and represented by the Global Note shall be reduced by
the aggregate principal amount of the Notes so redeemed or purchased and
cancelled or by the aggregate amount of such instalment so paid.

[In the case of a Temporary Global Note the following applies: On an
exchange of a portion only of the Notes represented by a Temporary Global
Note, the Issuer shall procure that details of such exchange shall be entered pro
rata in the records of the ICSDs.]]

[The Notes are issued in classical global note ("CGN") form and are kept in
custody by a common depositary on behalf of both ICSDs.]

(5) Holder of Notes. "Holder" means any holder of a proportionate co-ownership
or other beneficial interest or right in the Notes.

[§2
Status

The Notes constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured
obligations of the Issuer ranking pari passu among themselves and pari passu
with all other unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer, except for
obligations which are accorded priority by operation of law.

[At issuance, the Notes constituted [preferred] debt instruments [within the
meaning of [Section 46f Subsection 5 of the German Banking Act] [insert
relevant provision]].]]
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[§2
Status

(1) The Notes constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured
liabilities of the Issuer ranking pari passu with each other and with all other
unsubordinated and unsecured liabilities of the Issuer, with the following
exception:

As unsubordinated, non-preferred obligations of the Issuer payment claims
under the Notess rank

subordinated to other unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer if
and to the extent, such unsubordinated and unsecured obligations enjoy
[preferred] treatments by law [within the meaning of [Section 46f Subsection 5
of the German Banking Act] [insert relevant provision]] in insolvency
proceedings or in case of an imposition of resolution measures with regard to
the Issuer,

but in each case rank senior to any subordinated debt of the Issuer.

[At issuance, the Notes constituted [non-preferred] debt instruments [within the
meaning of [Section 46f Subsection 6 Sentence 1 of the German Banking Act]
[insert relevant provision]].]

[(2) The Holders of the Notes are not entitled to set off claims arising from the
Notes against any of the Issuer's claims.

No security of whatever kind is, or shall at any later time be, provided by the
Issuer or any of its associated companies or any third party that has a close link
with the Issuer or any of its associated companies or any other person securing
rights of the Holders under the Notes.]

[(2]1[(3)] No subsequent agreement may alter the rank pursuant to the
provisions set out in this § 2 or shorten the term of the Notes or any applicable
notice period.

[[(3)][(4)] The Notes shall qualify as instruments that qualify as eligible liabilities
pursuant to the minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities
(MREL).]

[[(D][(5)] Under the relevant resolution laws and regulations applicable to the
Issuer, the competent resolution authority may

(&) write down, in whole or in part, the claims for payment of principall,
interest] or any other amount;

(b)  convert these claims into ordinary shares or other common equity tier 1
capital instruments of (i) the Issuer or (ii) any group entity or (iii) any bridge bank
(and issue such instruments to, or confer them on, the Holders); and/or

(c) apply any other resolution measure, including, but not limited to, (i) any
transfer of the obligations under the Notes to another entity, (ii) the amendment,
modification or variation of the Terms and Conditions of the Notes or (iii) the
cancellation of the Notes

(each, a "Resolution Measure").]

[[(5)][(6)] The Holders shall be bound by any Resolution Measure. No Holder
shall have any claim or other right against the Issuer arising out of or in
connection with any Resolution Measure. In particular, the exercise of any
Resolution Measure shall not constitute an event of default under the Notes.]]
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[§2
Status

(1) In accordance with applicable provisions concerning the classification as
own funds, the Notes shall be available for the Issuer as eligible own funds
instrument in the form of Tier 2 capital pursuant to Art. 63 CRR (as defined in
8§ [13] (Erganzungskapital, "Tier 2 Capital")). The Notes constitute direct,
unconditional, subordinated and unsecured liabilities of the Issuer ranking pari
passu with each other and with all other subordinated liabilities of the Issuer,
except as otherwise provided by applicable law or the terms of any such other
subordinated liabilities. In the event of resolution measures imposed on the
Issuer and in the event of the Issuer's dissolution, liquidation, insolvency,
composition or other proceedings for the avoidance of insolvency of, or against,
the Issuer, the liabilities under the Notes will be wholly subordinated to the
claims of all unsubordinated creditors of the Issuer with the result that, in any
case, payments will not be made on the liabilities under the Notes until all of the
Issuer's unsubordinated creditors have been satisfied in full.

(2) The Holders of the Notes are not entitled to set off claims arising from the
Notes against any of the Issuer's claims. No security of whatever kind is, or shall
at any later time be, provided by the Issuer or any of its associated companies
or any third party that has a close link with the Issuer or any of its associated
companies or any other person securing rights of the Holders under the Notes.

(3) No subsequent agreement may limit the subordination pursuant to the
provisions set out in this § 2 or shorten the term of the Notes or any applicable
notice period. Any redemption or repurchase of the Notes prior to their
scheduled maturity requires the prior consent of the competent regulatory
authority of the Issuer. If the Notes are redeemed or repurchased and cancelled
by the Issuer otherwise than in the circumstances described in this 8 2 or as a
result of an early repurchase or redemption pursuant to 8 4 or § [13] of these
Terms and Conditions, then the amounts redeemed or paid must be returned to
the Issuer irrespective of any agreement to the contrary unless the competent
regulatory authority has given its prior permission to such early redemption or
repurchase.]

83
Interest

(1) Interest Payment Dates.

(@) The Notes bear interest on their principal amount from (and including)
[Interest Commencement Date] (the "Interest Commencement Date") to
(but excluding) the first Interest Payment Date and thereafter from (and
including) each Interest Payment Date to (but excluding) the next following
Interest Payment Date (relevant [three] [six] [twelve] month period) (each,
an "Interest Period"). Interest on the Notes shall be payable in arrear on
each Interest Payment Date.

(b) "Interest Payment Date" means

[each [Specified Interest Payment Dates].]

[each date which (except as otherwise provided in these Terms and
Conditions) falls [number] [weeks] [months] [other specified periods]
after the preceding Interest Payment Date or, in the case of the first Interest
Payment Date, after the Interest Commencement Date.]

(c) If any Interest Payment Date would otherwise fall on a day which is not a
Business Day (as defined below), it shall be:
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[postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall
into the next calendar month, in which event the Interest Payment Date shall be
the immediately preceding Business Day.]

[postponed to the next day which is a Business Day.]

[the immediately preceding Business Day.]

If a payment of interest is [brought forward] [or] [postponed] to a Business Day
as described above, the amount of interest shall [not] be adjusted accordingly [If
an adjustment of interest applies insert: and the Interest Payment Date shall be
adjusted to the relevant Business Day].

(d) Inthis § 3 (1) "Business Day" means

[a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which both (i) the Clearing
System, and (ii) the Trans-European Automated Real-time Gross Settlement
Express Transfer System 2 (TARGET2) ("TARGET") is open to settle
payments.]

[a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which both (i) the Clearing
System, and (ii) commercial banks and foreign exchange markets in [all
relevant financial centres] settle payments.]

[(2) Rate of Interest. The rate of interest (the "Rate of Interest”) for each
Interest Period will, except as provided below, be determined by the Calculation
Agent and is the Reference Rate (as defined below) [[plus] [minus] the Margin
(as defined below)]. The applicable Reference Rate shall be the rate which
appears on the Screen Page as of 11:00 a.m. (Brussels time) on the Interest
Determination Date (as defined below).

"Reference Rate" is the offered quotation (expressed as a percentage rate per
annum) for deposits in the Specified Currency for that Interest Period
(EURIBOR).

"Interest Determination Date" means the [second] [other applicable number
of days] [TARGET] [London] [other relevant financial centre] Business Day
[prior to the commencement] of the relevant Interest Period. [In case of a
TARGET Business Day the following applies: "TARGET Business Day"
means a day on which TARGET is open.] [In case of a non-TARGET
Business Day the following applies: "[London] [other relevant financial
centre] Business Day" means a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on
which commercial banks are open for business (including dealings in foreign
exchange and foreign currency) in [London] other relevant financial centre].]

["Margin" means [¢]% per annum.]

"Screen Page" means EURIBORO1 or the relevant successor page on that
service or on any other service as may be nominated as the information vendor
for the purposes of displaying rates or prices comparable to the relevant
Reference Rate.

If the Screen Page is not available or no quotation for the Reference Rate
appears as at such time and provided that no Rate Replacement Event pursuant
to 8 3 [(8)] has occurred, the Calculation Agent shall request the principal Euro-
Zoneoffice of each of the Reference Banks (as defined below) to provide the
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Calculation Agent with its offered quotation (expressed as a percentage rate per
annum) for deposits in the Specified Currency for the relevant Interest Period
and in a representative amount to prime banks in the interbank market of the
Euro-Zone at approximately 11.00 a.m. (Brussels time) on the Interest
Determination Date. "Euro-Zone" means the region comprised of Member
States of the European Union that participate in the European Economic and
Monetary Union. If two or more of the Reference Banks provide the Calculation
Agent with such offered quotations, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period
shall be the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the nearest one
thousandth of a percentage point, with 0.0005 being rounded upwards) of such
offered quotations [[plus] [minus] the Margin], all as determined by the
Calculation Agent.

If on any Interest Determination Date only one or none of the Reference Banks
provides the Calculation Agent with such offered quotations as provided in the
preceding paragraph, the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period shall
be the rate per annum which the Calculation Agent determines as being the
arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the nearest [one thousandth of a
percentage point, with 0.0005 being rounded upwards) of the rates, as
communicated to and at the request of the Calculation Agent by major banks in
the interbank market in the Euro-Zone, selected by the Calculation Agent acting
in good faith, at which such banks offer, as at 11.00 a.m. (Brussels time) on the
relevant Interest Determination Date, loans in the Specified Currency for the
relevant Interest Period and in a representative amount to leading European
banks [[plus] [minus] the Margin].

If the Rate of Interest cannot be determined in accordance with the foregoing
provisions of this subparagraph (2), the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period
shall be the offered quotation on the Screen Page, as described above, on the
last day preceding the Interest Determination Date on which such offered
quotation was displayed [[plus] [minus] the Margin (as defined above)], all as
determined by the Calculation Agent.

As used herein, "Reference Banks" means four major banks in the interbank
market in the Euro-Zone.]

[(2) Rate of Interest. The rate of interest (the "Rate of Interest”) for each
Interest Period (as defined below) will, except as provided below, be determined
by the Calculation Agent and is the Reference Rate (as defined below) [[plus]
[minus] the Margin (as defined below)]. The applicable Reference Rate shall be
the rate which appears on the Screen Page as of 11:00 a. m. (London time) on
the Interest Determination Date (as defined below).

"Reference Rate" is the offered quotation (expressed as a percentage rate per
annum) for deposits in the Specified Currency for that Interest Period (LIBOR).

"Interest Determination Date" means the [first][second] [relevant financial
centre(s)] Business Day [prior to the commencement] of the relevant Interest
Period. "[relevant financial centre(s)] Business Day" means a day (other than
a Saturday or Sunday) on which commercial banks are open for business
(including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency) in [relevant
financial centre(s)].

["Margin" means [e] % per annum.]

"Screen Page" means Reuters screen page [LIBORO01] [LIBORO02] or the
relevant successor page on that service or on any other service as may be
nominated as the information vendor for the purposes of displaying rates or
prices comparable to the relevant Reference Rate.

If the Screen Page is not available or no quotation for the Reference Rate
appears as at such time and provided that no Rate Replacement Event pursuant
to 83 [(8)] has occurred, the Calculation Agent shall request each of the
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Reference Banks (as defined below) to provide the Calculation Agent with its
offered quotation (expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for deposits in
the Specified Currency for the relevant Interest Period and in a representative
amount to prime banks in the London interbank market at approximately 11.00
a. m. (London time) on the Interest Determination Date. If two or more of the
Reference Banks provide the Calculation Agent with such offered quotations,
the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall be the arithmetic mean
(rounded if necessary to the nearest one hundred-thousandth of a percentage
point, with 0.000005 being rounded upwards) of such offered quotations [[plus]
[minus] the Margin], all as determined by the Calculation Agent.

If on any Interest Determination Date only one or none of the Reference Banks
provides the Calculation Agent with such offered quotations as provided in the
preceding paragraph, the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period shall
be the rate per annum which the Calculation Agent determines as being the
arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the nearest one hundred-thousandth
of a percentage point, with 0.000005 being rounded upwards) of the rates, as
communicated to and at the request of the Calculation Agent by major banks in
the London interbank market, selected by the Calculation Agent acting in good
faith, at which such banks offer, as at 11.00 a.m. (London time) on the relevant
Interest Determination Date, loans in the Specified Currency for the relevant
Interest Period and in a representative amount to leading European banks
[[plus] [minus] the Margin].

If the Rate of Interest cannot be determined in accordance with the foregoing
provisions of this subparagraph (2), the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period
shall be the offered quotation on the Screen Page, as described above, on the
last day preceding the Interest Determination Date on which such offered
quotation was displayed [[plus] [minus] the Margin (as defined above)], all as
determined by the Calculation Agent.

As used herein, "Reference Banks" means four major banks in the London
interbank market.]

[(3) Minimum Rate of Interest. If the Rate of Interest in respect of any Interest
Period determined in accordance with the above provisions is less than
[Minimum Rate of Interest], the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall
be [Minimum Rate of Interest].]

[(3) Maximum Rate of Interest. If the Rate of Interest in respect of any Interest
Period determined in accordance with the above provisions is greater than
[Maximum Rate of Interest], the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall
be [Maximum Rate of Interest].]

[(4)] Interest Amount. The Calculation Agent will, on or as soon as practicable
after each time at which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, calculate the
amount of interest (the "Interest Amount") payable on the Notes in respect of
the Specified Denomination for the relevant Interest Period. Each Interest
Amount shall be calculated by multiplying the Rate of Interest applicable to an
Interest Period with the Specified Denomination and multiplying the product with
the Day Count Fraction (as defined below) and by rounding the resultant figure
to the nearest unit of the Specified Currency, with 0.5 of such unit being rounded
upwards.

[(5)] Notification of Rate of Interest and Interest Amount. The Calculation Agent
will cause the Rate of Interest, each Interest Amount for each Interest Period,
each Interest Period and the relevant Interest Payment Date to be notified to the
Issuer and, if required by the rules of any stock exchange on which the Notes
are from time to time listed, to such stock exchange (in the case of listing on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange not later than the first Business Day prior to the
Interest Period), and to the Holders in accordance with § [14] as soon as
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possible after their determination, but in no event later than the fourth [TARGET]
[London] [other relevant reference] Business Day (as defined in § 3 (2))
thereafter. Each Interest Amount and Interest Payment Date so notified may
subsequently be amended (or appropriate alternative arrangements may be
made by way of adjustment) without prior notice in the event of an extension or
shortening of the Interest Period. Any such amendment will be promptly notified
to any stock exchange on which the Notes are then listed and the rules of which
so require, and to the Holders in accordance with § [14].

[(6)] Determinations Binding. All certificates, communications, opinions,
determinations, calculations, quotations and decisions given, expressed, made
or obtained for the purposes of the provisions of this § 3 by the Calculation
Agent shall (in the absence of manifest error) be binding on the Issuer, the
Fiscal Agent [, the Paying Agents] and the Holders.

[(7)] Accrual of Interest. The Notes shall cease to bear interest as from the
beginning of the day on which they are due for redemption. If the Issuer shall fail
to redeem the Notes when due, interest shall (except in the circumstances
provided in § 5 (4) continue to accrue on the outstanding principal amount of the
Notes from (and including) the due date to (but excluding) the date of actual
redemption of the Notes at the default rate of interest established by law?,
unless the rate of interest under the Notes is higher than the default rate of
interest established by law, in which event the rate of interest under the Notes
continues to apply during the before-mentioned period of time.

[(8)](a) Rate Replacement. If the Issuer determines (in consultation with the
Calculation Agent) that a Rate Replacement Event has occurred on or prior to
an Interest Determination Date, the Relevant Determining Party shall determine
and inform the Issuer, if relevant, and the Calculation Agent of (i) the
Replacement Rate, (ii) the Adjustment Spread, if any, and (iii) the Replacement
Rate Adjustments (each as defined below in § 3 [(8)](b)(aa) to (cc) and (hh)) for
purposes of determining the Rate of Interest for the Interest Period related to
that Interest Determination Date and each Interest Period thereafter (subject to
the subsequent occurrence of any further Rate Replacement Event). The Terms
and Conditions shall be deemed to have been amended by the Replacement
Rate Adjustments with effect from (and including) the relevant Interest
Determination Date (including any amendment of such Interest Determination
Date if so provided by the Replacement Rate Adjustments). The Rate of Interest
shall then be the Replacement Rate (as defined below) adjusted by the
Adjustment Spread, if any, [[plus] [minus] the Margin (as defined above)].

The Issuer shall notify the Holders pursuant to § [14] as soon as practicable
(unverziglich) after such determination of the Replacement Rate, the
Adjustment Spread, if any, and the Replacement Rate Adjustments. In addition,
the Issuer shall request the [Clearing System] [common depositary on behalf of
both ICSDs] to supplement or amend the Terms and Conditions to reflect the
Replacement Rate Adjustments by attaching the documents submitted to the
Global Note in an appropriate manner.

(b) Definitions.

(aa) "Rate Replacement Event" means, with respect to the Reference Rate
each of the following events:

(i) the Reference Rate not having been published on the Screen Page
for the last ten Business Days prior to and including the relevant
Interest Determination Date; or

1

The default rate of interest established by law is five percentage points above the basic rate of interest set by the European
Central Bank from time to time, 8§ 288(1), 247 German Civil Code.
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(i) the occurrence of the date, as publicly announced by or, as the case
may be, determineable based upon the public announcement of the
administrator of the Reference Rate on which (x) the administrator
will cease to publish the Reference Rate permanently or indefinitely
(in circumstances where no successor administrator has been
appointed that will continue the publication of the Reference Rate),
or (y) the Reference Rate will permanently or indefinitely be
discontinued; or

(i) the occurrence of the date, as publicly announced by the regulatory
supervisor for the administrator of the Reference Rate, the central
bank for the Specified Currency, an insolvency official with
jurisdiction over the administrator for the Reference Rate, a
resolution authority with jurisdiction over the administrator for the
Reference Rate or a court (unappealable final decision) or an entity
with similar insolvency or resolution authority over the administrator
for the Reference Rate, on which the administrator of the Reference
Rate has ceased or will cease to provide the Reference Rate
permanently or indefinitely (in circumstances where no successor
administrator has been appointed that will continue the publication of
the Reference Rate); or

(iv) the occurrence of the date, as publicly announced by or, as the case
may be, determineable based upon the public announcement of the
supervisor of the administrator of the Reference Rate, from which
the Reference Rate will be prohibited from being used; or

(v) the occurrence of the date, as publicly announced by or, as the case
may be, determineable based upon the public announcement of the
administrator of the Reference Rate, of a material change in the
methodology of determining the Reference Rate; or

(vi) the publication of a notice by the Issuer pursuant to § [14] (1) that it
has become unlawful for the Issuer, the Calculation Agent or any
Paying Agent to calculate any Rate of Interest using the Reference
Rate.

(bb) "Replacement Rate" means a publicly available substitute, successor,
alternative or other rate designed to be referenced by financial instruments or
contracts, including the Notes, to determine an amount payable under such
financial instruments or contracts, including, but not limited to, an amount of
interest. In determining the Replacement Rate, the Relevant Guidance (as
defined below) shall be taken into account.

(cc) "Adjustment Spread" means a spread (which may be positive or
negative), or the formula or methodology for calculating a spread, which the
Relevant Determining Party determines is required to be applied to the
Replacement Rate to reduce or eliminate, to the extent reasonably practicable,
any transfer of economic value between the Issuer and the Holders that would
otherwise arise as a result of the replacement of the Reference Rate against the
Replacement Rate (including, but not limited to, as a result of the Replacement
Rate being a risk-free rate). In determining the Adjustment Spread, the Relevant
Guidance (as defined below) shall be taken into account.

(dd) "Relevant Determining Party" means

(i) the Issuer if in its opinion the Replacement Rate is obvious and as
such without any reasonable doubt determinable by an investor that
is knowledgeable in the respective type of bonds, such as the Notes;
or

(i) failing which, an Independent Advisor, to be appointed by the Issuer
at commercially reasonable terms, using reasonable endeavours, as
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its agent to make such determinations.

(ee) "Independent Advisor" means an independent financial institution of
international repute or any other independent advisor of recognised standing
and with appropriate expertise.

()  "Relevant Guidance" means (i) any legal or supervisory requirement
applicable to the Issuer or the Notes or, if none, (ii) any applicable requirement,
recommendation or guidance of a Relevant Nominating Body or, if none, (iii) any
relevant recommendation or guidance by industry bodies (including by ISDA),
or, if none, (iv) any relevant market practice.

(gg) "Relevant Nominating Body" means

(i) the central bank for the Specified Currency, or any central bank or
other supervisor which is responsible for supervising either the
Replacement Rate or the administrator of the Replacement Rate; or

(i) any working group or committee officially endorsed, sponsored or
convened by or chaired or co-chaired by (w) the central bank for the
Specified Currency, (X) any central bank or other supervisor which is
responsible for supervising either the Reference Rate or the
administrator of the Reference Rate, (y) a group of the
aforementioned central banks or other supervisors or (z) the
Financial Stability Board or any part thereof.

(hh) "Replacement Rate Adjustments" means such adjustments to the
Terms and Conditions as are determined consequential to enable the operation
of the Replacement Rate (which may include, without limitation, adjustments to
the applicable Business Day Convention, the definition of Business Day, the
Interest Determination Date, the Day Count Fraction and any methodology or
definition for obtaining or calculating the Replacement Rate). In determining any
Replacement Rate Adjustments the Relevant Guidance shall be taken in
account.

(c) Termination. If a Replacement Rate, an Adjustment Spread, if any, or the
Replacement Rate Adjustments cannot be determined pursuant to 8 3 [(8)](a)
and (b), the Reference Rate in respect of the relevant Interest Determination
Date shall be the Reference Rate determined for the last preceding Interest
Period. The Issuer will inform the Calculation Agent accordingly. As a result, the
Issuer may, upon not less than 15 days' notice given to the Holders in
accordance with § [14], redeem all, and not only some of the Notes at any time
up and until (but excluding) the respective subsequent Interest Determination
Date at the Final Redemption Amount together with accrued interest, if any, to
(but excluding) the respective redemption date.

[(9)] Day Count Fraction. "Day Count Fraction" means with regard to the
calculation of interest on any Note for any period of time (the "Calculation
Period"):

[the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by the actual
number of days in the respective interest period.]

[the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by the number of days in
the Reference Period in which the Calculation Period falls.]
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[the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by the product of (1) the
number of days in the Reference Period in which the Calculation Period falls
and (2) the number of Interest Payment Dates that occur in one calendar year
or that would occur in one calendar year if interest were payable in respect of
the whole of such year.]

[the sum of:

(A) the number of days in such Calculation Period falling in the Reference
Period in which the Calculation Period begins divided by [in the case of
Reference Periods of less than one year the following applies: the
product of (1)] the number of days in such Reference Period [in the case
of Reference Periods of less than one year the following applies: and
(2) the number of Interest Payment Dates that occur in one calendar year
or that would occur in one calendar year if interest were payable in
respect of the whole of such year]; and

(B) the number of days in such Calculation Period falling in the next
Reference Period divided by [in the case of Reference Periods of less
than one year the following applies: the product of (1)] the number of
days in such Reference Period [in the case of Reference Periods of
less than one year the following applies: and (2) the number of Interest
Payment Dates that occur in one calendar year or that would occur in one
calendar year if interest were payable in respect of the whole of such

year].]

['Reference Period" means the period from (and including) the Interest
Commencement Date to, but excluding, the first Interest Payment Date or from
(and including) each Interest Payment Date to, but excluding, the next Interest
Payment Date. [In the case of a short first or last Calculation Period the
following applies: For the purposes of determining the [first] [last] Reference
Period only, [deemed Interest Commencement Date or deemed Interest
Payment Date] shall be deemed to be an [Interest Commencement Date]
[Interest Payment Date].] [In the case of a long first or last Calculation
Period the following applies: For the purposes of determining the [first] [last]
Reference Period only, [deemed Interest Commencement Date and/or
deemed Interest Payment Date(s)] shall each be deemed to be [Interest
Commencement Date][and] [Interest Payment Date[s]].]]

[the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 365.]
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[the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360.]

[the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360, the number of
days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with twelve 30-day
months (unless (A) the last day of the Calculation Period is the 31st day of a
month but the first day of the Calculation Period is a day other than the 30t or
31st day of a month, in which case the month that includes that last day shall not
be considered to be shortened to a 30-day month, or (B) the last day of the
Calculation Period is the last day of the month of February in which case the
month of February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-day
month).]

[the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360 (the number of
days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with twelve 30-day
months, without regard to the date of the first day or last day of the Calculation
Period unless, in the case of the final Calculation Period, the last day of the
Calculation Period is the last day of the month of February, in which case the
month of February shall not be considered lengthened to a 30-day month).]

§4
Redemption

(1) Final Redemption.

Unless previously redeemed in whole or in part or purchased and cancelled, the
Notes shall be redeemed at their Final Redemption Amount on the Interest
Payment Date falling in [Redemption Month] (the "Maturity Date"). The Final
Redemption Amount in respect of each Note (the "Final Redemption Amount")
shall be its principal amount.

[(2) Early Redemption for Reasons of Taxation. If as a result of any change in,
or amendment to, the laws or regulations of the Federal Republic of Germany or
any political subdivision or taxing authority thereto or therein affecting taxation or
the obligation to pay duties of any kind, or any change in, or amendment to, an
official interpretation or application of such laws or regulations, which
amendment or change is effective on or after the date on which the last tranche
of the Notes was issued, the Issuer is required to pay Additional Amounts (as
defined in § 7 herein) on the next succeeding Interest Payment Date (as defined
in 83 (1)) and this obligation cannot be avoided by the use of reasonable
measures available to the Issuer, the Notes may be redeemed, in whole but not
in part, at the option of the Issuer, upon not less than 60 days' prior notice of
redemption given to the Fiscal Agent and, in accordance with § [14] to the
Holders, at their Final Redemption Amount, together with interest accrued to the
date fixed for redemption. However, no such notice of redemption may be for
redemption.

However, no such notice of redemption may be given (i) earlier than 90 days
prior to the earliest date on which the Issuer would be obligated to pay such
Additional Amounts were a payment in respect of the Notes then due, or (ii) if at
the time such notice is given, such obligation to pay such Additional Amounts
does not remain in effect. The date fixed for redemption must be an Interest
Payment Date.

Any such notice shall be given in accordance with § [14]. It shall be irrevocable,
must specify the date fixed for redemption and must set forth a statement in
summary form of the facts constituting the basis for the right of the Issuer so to
redeem.]
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[(2) Early Redemption for Reasons of Taxation. The Notes may be redeemed at
any time in whole, but not in part, at the option of the Issuer and upon the prior
consent of the competent supervisory authority on giving not less than 30 and
not more than 60 days' notice to the Fiscal Agent and, in accordance with § [14]
to the Holders, at the Final Redemption Amount together with accrued interest
(if any) to the date fixed for redemption if there is a change in the tax treatment
of the Notes (in particular, but not limited to, the obligation to pay Additional
Amounts (as defined in § 7 herein)) and such change is, in its own assessment,
materially adverse for the Issuer.]

[(3) Early redemption due to regulatory reasons. The Issuer shall be entitled to
call the Notes in whole but not in part, at the option of the Issuer and subject to
the prior permission of the competent regulatory authority, if the Issuer
determines, in its own discretion, that it: (i) may not treat the Notes in their full
aggregate principal amount as Tier 2 capital for the purposes of the Own Funds
Provisions (as defined in § [13] of these Terms and Conditions) other than for
reasons of an amortisation in accordance with Art. 64 of the CRR, or (ii) is
subject to any other form of a less advantageous regulatory own funds
treatment with respect to the Notes than as of the Issue Date.

In this case the redemption of the Notes shall, subject to § 2 of these Terms and
Conditions, be effected in accordance with the provisions contained in
paragraph (1). Termination is irrevocable. The rights and obligations arising from
the Notes shall expire upon redemption.]

[(4) Early Redemption at the Option of the Issuer.

(a) The Issuer may, upon notice given in accordance with clause (b) below,
redeem all or only some of the Notes [in the case of subordinated Notes
the following applies: , upon the prior consent of the competent
supervisory authority] on the Call Redemption Date(s) at the Call
Redemption Amount(s) set forth below together with accrued interest, if any,
to (but excluding) the Call Redemption Date.

[in the case of non-preferred Notes any Call Redemption Date must be
at least one full year after the issue date of the Notes]

[in the case of subordinated Notes any Call Redemption Date must be

at least five full years after the issue date of the Notes]
Call Redemption Date(s) Call Redemption Amount(s)

[Call Redemption Dates(s)] [Call Redemption Amount(s)]

[] []

[] []

[If Notes are subject to Early Redemption at the Option of the Holder the
following applies:

The Issuer may not exercise such option in respect of any Note which is the
subject of the prior exercise by the Holder thereof of its option to require the
redemption of such Note under subparagraph [(4)] of this § 4.]

[In the case of subordinated Notes the following applies: The Notess may
only be redeemed pursuant to this § 4(4) if the Issuer has, on the basis of the
Own Funds Provisions (as defined in 8 [13] of these Terms and Conditions),
obtained the prior permission of the competent regulatory authority (if required).]

(b) Notice of redemption shall be given by the Issuer to the Holders of the Notes
in accordance with § [14]. Such notice shall specify:

(i) the Notes subject to redemption;
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(i) whether such Notes are to be redeemed in whole or in part only and, if in
part only, the aggregate principal amount of the Notes which are to be
redeemed;

(iii) the Call Redemption Date, which shall be not less than [Minimum Notice]
days nor more than [Maximum Notice] days after the date on which notice
is given by the Issuer to the Holders; and

(iv) the Call Redemption Amount at which such Notes are to be redeemed.

(c) In the case of a partial redemption of Notes, Notes to be redeemed shall be
selected in accordance with the rules and procedures of the relevant
Clearing System. [In the case of Notes in NGN form the following
applies: Such partial redemption shall be reflected in the records of
Clearstream Luxembourg and Euroclear as either a pool factor or a
reduction in principal amount, at the discretion of Clearstream Luxembourg
and Euroclear.]]

[[(5)] Early Redemption at the Option of the Holder.

(a) The Issuer shall, at the option of the Holder of any Note, redeem such Note
on the Put Redemption Date(s) at the Put Redemption Amount(s) set forth
below together with accrued interest, if any, to (but excluding) the Put
Redemption Date.

Put Redemption Date(s) Put Redemption Amount(s)
[Put Redemption Dates(s)] [Put Redemption Amount(s)]

[] []
[] []

The Holder may not exercise such option in respect of any Note which is the
subject of the prior exercise by the Issuer of any of its options to redeem such
Note under this § 4.

(b) In order to exercise such option, the Holder must, not less than [Minimum
Notice] days nor more than [Maximum Notice] days days before the Put
Redemption Date on which such redemption is required to be made as
specified in the Put Notice (as defined below), send to the specified office of
the Fiscal Agent an early redemption notice in text format (Textform, e.qg.
email or fax) or in written form ("Put Notice"). In the event that the Put
Notice is received after 5:00 p.m. Frankfurt time on the 30th Payment
Business Day before the Put Redemption Date, the option shall not have
been validly exercised. The Put Notice must specify (i) the total principal
amount of the Notes in respect of which such option is exercised, [and] (ii)
the German Security Code of such Notes, if any [in the case the Global
Note is kept in custody by CBF, the following applies: and (iii) contact
details as well as a bank account]. The Put Notice may be in the form
available from the specified offices of the Fiscal Agent and the Paying
Agents in the German and English language and includes further
information. No option so exercised may be revoked or withdrawn.]

[[(6)] Cessation of eligibility. The Issuer shall be entitled to call the Notes in
whole but not in part, at the option of the Issuer and subject to the prior consent
of the competent regulatory authority, if required, in case the Notes, according to
the determination of the Issuer, cease to qualify as eligible for the purposes of
the minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities (MREL).
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In this case the redemption of the Notes shall, subject to § 2 of these Terms and
Conditions, be effected in accordance with the provisions contained in
paragraph (1). Termination is irrevocable. The rights and obligations arising from
the Notes shall expire upon redemption.]

§5
Payments

(1) (a) Payment of Principal. Payment of principal in respect of Notes shall be
made, subject to subparagraph (2) below, to the Clearing System or to its
order for credit to the accounts of the relevant account Holders of the
Clearing System.

(b) Payment of Interest. Payment of interest on Notes shall be made, subject to
subparagraph (2) below, to the Clearing System or to its order for credit to
the accounts of the relevant account Holders of the Clearing System.

[Payment of interest on Notes represented by the Temporary Global Note shall
only be made upon due certification as provided in § 1 (3) (b).]

(2) Manner of Payment. Subject to (i) applicable fiscal and other laws and
regulations and (ii) any withholding or deduction required pursuant to an
agreement described in Section 1471(b) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of
1986 (the "Code") or otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through
1474 of the Code, any regulations or agreements thereunder, any official
interpretations thereof, or any law implementing an intergovernmental approach
thereto, payments of amounts due in respect of the Notes shall be made in the
Specified Currency.

(3) Discharge. The Issuer shall be discharged by payment to, or to the order of,
the Clearing System.

(4) Banking Day. If the date for payment of any amount in respect of any Note is
not a Banking Day then the Holder shall not be entitled to payment until the next
Banking Day and shall not be entitled to further interest or other payment in
respect of such delay.

For these purposes, "Banking Day" means any day which is a Business Day.

(5) References to Principal and Interest. References in these Terms and
Conditions to principal in respect of the Notes shall be deemed to include, as
applicable: the Final Redemption Amount of the Notes, [if the Notes are
redeemable at the option of the Issuer for other than tax reasons the
following applies: the Call Redemption Amount of the Notes;] [if the Notes
are redeemable at the option of the Holder the following applies: the Put
Redemption Amount of the Notes;] and any premium and any other amounts
which may be payable under or in respect of the Notes. References in these
Terms and Conditions to interest in respect of the Notes shall be deemed to
include, as applicable, any Additional Amounts which may be payable under § 7.

(6) Deposit of Principal and Interest. The Issuer may deposit with the local court
(Amtsgericht) in Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany, principal or
interest not claimed by Holders within 12 months after the due date, even
though such Holders may not be in default of acceptance of payment. If and to
the extent that the deposit is effected and the right of withdrawal is waived, the
respective claims of such Holders against the Issuer shall cease.
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§6
Agents

(1) Appointment; Specified Office. The initial Fiscal Agent [and the Calculation
Agent] and [its] [their] initial specified office[s] shall be:

[Fiscal Agent:

Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft
Trust and Agency Services
Taunusanlage 12

60325 Frankfurt am Main

Federal Republic of Germany]

[Fiscal Agent:

Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft)
Osterstralle 31

30159 Hanover

Federal Republic of Germany]

[The Fiscal Agent shall act as Calculation Agent.]

[Calculation Agent: [name and specified office]]

The Fiscal Agent shall also fulfil the functions of a paying agent. The Fiscal
Agent [and the Calculation Agent] reserve[s] the right at any time to change [its]
[their] specified office[s] to some other specified office in the same country.

(2) Variation or Termination of Appointment. The Issuer reserves the right at any
time to vary or terminate the appointment of the Fiscal Agent [and/or the
Calculation Agent] and to appoint another Fiscal Agent [and/or another
Calculation Agent]. The Issuer shall at all times maintain a Fiscal Agent [and a
Calculation Agent].

The Issuer shall without undue delay notify the Holders of any variation,
termination, appointment or change in accordance with § [14].

(3) Agent of the Issuer. The Fiscal Agent [and the Calculation Agent] act[s]
solely as the agent[s] of the Issuer and [does] [do] not assume any obligations
towards or relationship of agency or trust for any Holder.

(4) Paying Agents. The Fiscal Agent shall act as the principal paying agent with
respect to the Notes.

[The additional paying agent[s] (the "Paying Agent[s]" which expression shall
include any successor and additional paying agent hereunder) and [its] [their]
respective initial specified offices shall be:

Paying Agent[s]: [Paying Agent[s] and specified office[s]]

Each Paying Agent reserves the right at any time to change its specified office
to another specified office in the same country. The Issuer reserves the right at
any time to vary or terminate the appointment of any Paying Agent and to
appoint additional or other Paying Agents. The Issuer shall without delay notify
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the Holders of any variation, termination, appointment or change in accordance
with § [14].

Each Paying Agent acts solely as the agent of the Issuer and does not assume
any obligations towards or relationship of agency or trust for any Holder.]

(5) Required Paying Agents. The Issuer shall at all times maintain a Paying
Agent (which may be the Fiscal Agent) with a specified office in a European city
and, so long as the Notes are listed on any stock exchange and the rules of
such stock exchange so require, a Paying Agent (which may be the Fiscal
Agent) with a specified office in such place as may be required by the rules of
such stock exchange.

87
Taxation

All amounts payable in respect of the Notes shall be made without withholding
or deduction for or on account of any present or future taxes or duties of
whatever nature imposed or levied by way of withholding or deduction at source
by, in or on behalf of the Federal Republic of Germany or by or on behalf of any
political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax
unless such withholding or deduction is required by law. In such event, the
Issuer shall pay such additional amounts [in the case of subordinated Notes
the following applies: with respect to payments of interest only] (the
"Additional Amounts") as shall be necessary in order that the net amounts
received by the Holders, after such withholding or deduction shall equal the
respective amounts which the Holders would otherwise have received in the
absence of such withholding or deduction, ex cept that no such Additional
Amounts shall be payable on account of any taxes or duties which:

(a) are payable by any person acting as custodian bank or collecting agent on
behalf of a Noteholder, or otherwise in any manner which does not
constitute a deduction or withholding by the Issuer from payments of
principal or interest made by it, or

(b) are payable by reason of the Holder having, or having had, some personal
or business connection with the Federal Republic of Germany and not
merely by reason of the fact that payments in respect of the Notes are, or for
purposes of taxation are deemed to be, derived from sources in, or are
secured in, the Federal Republic of Germany, or

(c) are deducted or withheld pursuant to (i) any European Union Directive or
Regulation concerning the taxation of interest income, or (i) any
international treaty or understanding relating to such taxation and to which
the Federal Republic of Germany or the European Union is a party, or (iii)
any provision of law implementing, or complying with, or introduced to
conform with, such Directive, Regulation, treaty or understanding, or

(d) to the extent such withholding or deduction is required pursuant to Sections
1471 through 1474 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the "Internal Revenue Code"), any current or future regulations or official
interpretations thereof, any agreement entered into pursuant to Section
1471(b) of the Internal Revenue Code, or any fiscal or regulatory legislation,
rules or practices adopted pursuant to any of the foregoing or under any
intergovernmental agreement entered into in connection with the
implementation of such Sections of the Internal Revenue Code, or

(e) are payable by reason of a change in law that becomes effective more than
30 days after the relevant payment becomes due, or is duly provided for and
notice thereof is published in accordance with 8 [14], whichever occurs later.
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§8
Presentation period

The presentation period provided in § 801 (1), sentence 1 German Civil Code
(Burgerliches Gesetzbuch) is reduced to ten years for the Notes.

[89
Events of Default

(1) Events of default. Each Holder shall be entitled to declare his Notes due and
demand immediate redemption thereof at the Final Redemption Amount,
together with accrued interest (if any) to the date of repayment, in the event that

(a) the Issuer fails to pay any amount due under the Notes within 30 days from
the relevant due date, or

(b) the Issuer fails duly to perform any other obligation arising from the Notes
which failure is not capable of remedy or, if such failure is capable of
remedy, such failure continues for more than 30 days after the Fiscal Agent
has received notice thereof from a Holder, or

(c) the Issuer suspends payment or announces its inability to pay its debts, or

(d) a court institutes insolvency proceedings against the Issuer, and such
proceedings are not set aside or stayed within 60 days, or the competent
supervisory authority or resolution authority, respectively, applies for or
institutes any such proceedings, or

(e) the Issuer goes into liquidation unless this is done in connection with a
merger, consolidation or other form of combination with another company or
in connection with a conversion and the other or new company assumes all
obligations contracted by the Issuer in connection with the Notes.

The right to declare Notes due shall terminate if the situation giving rise to it has
been cured before the right is exercised.

(2) Notice. Any notice, including any notice declaring Notes due, in accordance
with subparagraph (1) shall be made by means of a declaration in text format
(Textform, e.g. email or fax) or in written form in the German or English
language to be sent to the specified office of the Fiscal Agent together with proof
that such Holder at the time of such notice is a Holder of the relevant Notes by
means of a certificate of his Custodian (as defined in § [15] (3)) or in other
appropriate manner. The Notes shall be redeemed following receipt of the notice
declaring Notes due.]

§[10]
Substitution

(1) Substitution. The Issuer may, without the consent of the Holders, if it is not in
default with any payment of principal of or interest on any of the Notes, at any
time substitute for the Issuer any Affiliate (as defined below) of the Issuer as
principal debtor (the "Substitute Debtor") in respect of all obligations arising
from or in connection with this issue provided that:

(a) the Substitute Debtor assumes all obligations of the Issuer in respect of the
Notes;

(b) the Issuer and the Substitute Debtor have obtained all necessary
authorisations and approvals and may transfer to the Fiscal Agent in the
currency required hereunder and without being obligated to deduct or
withhold any taxes or other duties of whatever nature levied by the country
in which the Substitute Debtor has its domicile or tax residence, all amounts
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required for the fulfilment of the payment obligations arising under the Notes;

(c) the Substitute Debtor has agreed to indemnify and hold harmless each
Holder against any tax, duty, assessment or governmental charge imposed
on such Holder in respect of such substitution;

[(d) (i) the proceeds are immediately available to the Issuer, without limitation
and in a form that satisfies the requirements of eligibility, (ii) the liabilities
assumed by the Substitute Debtor continue to be eligible and (iii) each
Holder is treated as if the substitution of the Issuer had not taken place;]

[(d)()) the Substitute Debtor is an entity which is part of the consolidation
(relating to the lIssuer) pursuant to Article 63(n) sub-paragraph (i) of the
CRR, (ii) the proceeds are immediately available to the Issuer, without
limitation and in a form that satisfies the requirements of the CRR, (iii) the
liabilities assumed by the Substitute Debtor are subordinated on terms that
are identical with the subordination provisions of the liabilities assumed, (iv)
the Substitute Debtor invests the amount of the Notes with Norddeutsche
Landesbank — Girozentrale — on terms that match those of the Notes and (v)
the Issuer guarantees the Substitute Debtor's liabilities under the Notes on a
subordinated basis pursuant to § 2 of these Terms and Conditions and
provided that the recognition of the paid-in capital concerning the Notes as
Tier 2 Capital continues to be ensured;]

[(e)the Issuer irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees in favour of each
Holder the payment of all sums payable by the Substitute Debtor in respect
of the Notes on terms which ensure that each Holder will be put in an
economic position that is at least as favourable as that which would have
existed if the substitution had not taken place.]

[(e)the Issuer irrevocably, unconditionally and on a subordinated basis in
accordance with § 2 guarantees in favor of each Holder the payment of all
sums payable by the Substitute Debtor in respect of the Notes and the
regulatory classification of the paid-in capital under the Notes as Tier 2
supplementary capital is still assured.]

For purposes of this §[10], "Affiliate" shall mean any affiliated company
(verbundenes Unternehmen) within the meaning of § 15 German Stock
Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz).

(2) Notice. Notice of any such substitution shall be published in accordance with
§ [14] without delay.

(3) Change of References. In the event of any such substitution, any reference
in these Terms and Conditions to the Issuer shall from then on be deemed to
refer to the Substitute Debtor and any reference to the country in which the
Issuer is domiciled or resident for taxation purposes shall from then on be
deemed to refer to the country of domicile or residence for taxation purposes of
the Substitute Debtor. Furthermore, in the event of such substitution the
following shall apply:

[(@)in 8 7 and § 4 (2) an alternative reference to the Federal Republic of
Germany shall be deemed to have been included in addition to the reference
according to the preceding sentence to the country of domicile or residence
for taxation purposes of the Substitute Debtor;

(b) in 8 9 (1) (c) to [(e)] an alternative reference to the Issuer in its capacity as
guarantor shall be deemed to have been included in addition to the
reference to the Substitute Debtor; and

(c) in 8 9 (1) a further event of default shall be deemed to have been included;
such event of default shall exist in the case that the guarantee pursuant to
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subparagraph 1 [(d)] is or becomes invalid for any reason.]

[In 8 7 and § 4 (2) an alternative reference to the Federal Republic of Germany
shall be deemed to have been included in addition to the reference according to
the preceding sentence to the country of domicile or residence for taxation
purposes of the Substitute Debtor.]

(8 [11]
Resolutions of Holders

(1) Amendment of the Terms and Conditions. The Holders may agree by
majority resolution on all matters permitted by law, provided that no obligation to
make any payment or render any other performance shall be imposed on any
Holder by majority resolution.

(2) Majority resolutions shall be binding on all Holders. Resolutions, which do
not provide for identical conditions for all Holders are void, unless Holders who
are disadvantaged have expressly consented to their being treated
disadvantageously.

(3) Majority. Resolutions shall be passed by a majority of not less than 75% of
the votes cast (qualified majority). Resolutions relating to amendments to the
Terms and Conditions which are not material, require a majority of not less than
50% of the votes cast.

(4) Resolution of Holders. Resolutions of Holders shall be passed at the election
of the Issuer by vote taken without a meeting in accordance with § 18 SchvG or
in a Holder's meeting in accordance with § 9 SchVG.

(5) Voting rights. Each Holder participating in any vote shall cast votes in
accordance with the nominal amount or the notional share of its entitlement to
the outstanding Notes. As long as the entitlement to the Notes lies with, or the
Notes are held for the account of, the Issuer or any of its affiliates (8 271
paragraph 2 HGB (Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch))), the right to vote in
respect of such Notes shall be suspended. The Issuer may not transfer Notes,
of which the voting rights are so suspended, to another person for the purpose
of exercising such voting rights in the place of the Issuer; this shall also apply to
any affiliate of the Issuer. No person shall be permitted to exercise such voting
right for the purpose stipulated in sentence 3, first half sentence, herein above.

No person shall be permitted to offer, promise or grant any benefit or advantage
to another person entitled to vote in consideration of such person abstaining
from voting or voting in a certain way.

A person entitled to vote may not demand, accept or accept the promise of, any
benefit, advantage or consideration for abstaining from voting or voting in a
certain way.]

[§[12]
Holders' Representative]

[(1) The Holders may by majority resolution appoint a common representative
(the "Holders' Representative™)! to exercise the Holders' rights on behalf of
each Holder.

(2) The Holders' Representative shall have the duties and powers provided by

1 The Holders' Representative must satisfy the conditions specified in § 8 paragraph 1 SchvG.
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law or granted by majority resolution of the Holders. The Holders'
Representative shall comply with the instructions of the Holders. To the extent
that the Holders' Representative has been authorised to assert certain rights of
the Holders, the Holders shall not be entitled to assert such rights themselves,
unless explicitly provided for in the relevant majority resolution. The Holders'
Representative shall provide reports to the Holders on its activities.

(3) The Holders' Representative shall be liable for the performance of its duties
towards the Holders who shall be joint and several creditors (Gesamtglaubiger);
in the performance of its duties it shall act with the diligence and care of a
prudent business manager. The liability of the Holders' Representative may be
limited by a resolution passed by the Holders. The Holders shall decide upon
the assertion of claims for compensation of the Holders against the Holders'
Representative.

(4) The appointment of the Holders' Representative may be revoked at any time
by the Holders without specifying any reasons.

(5) The Holders' Representative may demand from the Issuer to furnish all
information required for the performance of the duties entrusted to it.]

[(1) The common representative (the "Holders' Representative")® to exercise
the Holders' rights on behalf of each Holder shall be [Name and address of
Holder's Representative].

(2) The Holders' Representative shall be authorised, at its discretion, in respect
of the matters determined by it to call for a vote of Holders without a meeting
and to preside the taking of votes.

(3) The Holders' Representative shall comply with the instructions of the
Holders. To the extent that the Holders' Representative has been authorised to
assert certain rights of the Holders, the Holders shall not be entitled to assert
such rights themselves, unless explicitly provided so by majority resolution. The
Holders' Representative shall provide reports to the Holders with respect to its
activities.

(4) The Holders' Representative shall be liable for the proper performance of its
duties towards the Holders who shall be joint and several creditors
(Gesamtglaubiger); in the performance of its duties it shall act with the diligence
and care of a prudent business manager. The liability of the Holders'
Representative shall be limited to ten times the amount of its annual
remuneration, unless the Holders' Representative has acted willfully or with
gross negligence. The liability of the Holders' Representative may be further
limited by a resolution passed by the Holders. The Holders shall decide upon
the assertion of claims for compensation of the Holders against the Holders'
Representative.

(5) The appointment of the Holders' Representative may be revoked at any time
by the Holders without specifying any reason.

(6) The Holders' Representative may demand from the Issuer to furnish all
information required for the performance of the duties entrusted to it.]

§[13]
Further Issues, Purchases and Cancellation

(1) Further Issues. The Issuer may from time to time, without the consent of the
Holders, issue further Notes having the same terms and conditions as the Notes
in all respects (or in all respects except for the date of issue, interest

2

The Holders' Representative must satisfy the conditions specified in § 8 paragraph 1 SchVG.
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commencement date and/or issue price) so as to form a single series with the
Notes.

[(2) Purchases. The Issuer may [in the case of non-preferred Notes the
following applies: upon the prior consent of the competent supervisory
authority, if required] at any time purchase Notes in the open market or
otherwise and at any price. Notes purchased by the Issuer may, at the option of
the Issuer, be held, resold or surrendered to the Fiscal Agent for cancellation. If
purchases are made by tender, tenders for such Notes must be made available
to all Holders of such Notes alike.]

[(2) Purchases. Subject to § 2 of these Terms and Conditions and only if, when
and to the extent that the purchase is not prohibited by applicable provisions
regarding own funds requirements as applied by the competent regulatory
authority and amended from time to time (including, but not limited to, the
Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council on
the prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms dated
26 June 2013, other provisions of bank supervisory laws and any rules and
regulations related thereto, including directly applicable provisions of European
Community law, in each case as amended or replaced from time to time (the
"CRR" and the "Own Funds Provisions", respectively)), the Issuer may at any
time purchase Notes in the open market or otherwise and at any price. Notes
purchased by the Issuer may, at the option of the Issuer, be held, resold or
surrendered to the Fiscal Agent for cancellation.]

(3) Cancellation. All Notes redeemed in full shall be cancelled forthwith and may
not be reissued or resold.

§[14]
Notices

[(1) Publication. All notices concerning the Notes shall be published in the
Federal Gazette (Bundesanzeiger) [and in the Luxemburger Wort, a newspaper
of general circulation in Luxembourg].

Any notice will be deemed to have been validly given on the third day following
the date of such publication (or, if published more than once, on the third day
following the date of the first such publication).]

[(2)] Electronic Publication. All notices concerning the Notes will be made by
means of electronic publication on the internet website of the [Luxembourg
Stock Exchange] [relevant stock exchange] ([www.bourse.lu] [www.[relevant
address]). Any notice will be deemed to have been validly given on the third
day following the date of such publication (or, if published more than once, on
the third day following the date of the first such publication).]

[(2)] Notification to Clearing System.

[The Issuer shall deliver all notices concerning the Notes to the Clearing System
for communication by the Clearing System to the Holders. Any such notice shall
be deemed to have been given to the Holders on the seventh day after the day
on which the said notice was given to the Clearing System.]

[So long as any Notes are admitted to trading on a market of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange, subparagraph (1) shall apply. In the case of notices regarding
the Rate of Interest or, if the Rules of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange
otherwise so permit, the Issuer may deliver the relevant notice to the Clearing
System for communication by the Clearing System to the Holders, in lieu of
publication in the newspaper set forth in subparagraph (1) above; any such
notice shall be deemed to have been given to the Holders on the seventh day
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I after the day on which the said notice was given to the Clearing System.]

[The Issuer may, in lieu of publication in the newspaper set forth in
subparagraph (1) above, deliver the relevant notice to the Clearing System, for
communication by the Clearing System to the Holders, provided that, the rules
of the stock exchange on which Notes are listed permit such form of notice. Any
such notice shall be deemed to have been given to the Holders on the seventh
day after the day on which the said notice was given to the Clearing System.]

[(3)] Form of Notice. Notices to be given by any Holder shall be made by means
of a declaration in text format (Textform, e.g. email or fax) or in written form to
be sent together with the relevant Note or Notes to the Fiscal Agent. So long as
any of the Notes are represented by a global Note, such notice may be given by
any Holder of a Note to the Agent through the Clearing System in such manner
as the Agent and the Clearing System may approve for such purpose.

§[15]
Applicable Law,
Place of Jurisdiction and Enforcement

(1) Applicable Law. The Notes, as to form and content, and all rights and
obligations of the Holders and the Issuer, shall be governed by German law.

(2) Submission to Jurisdiction. The District Court (Landgericht) in Frankfurt am
Main shall have non-exclusive jurisdiction for any action or other legal
proceedings ("Proceedings") arising out of or in connection with the Notes. The
jurisdiction of such Court shall be exclusive if Proceedings are brought by
merchants (Kaufleute), legal persons under public law (juristische Personen des
offentlichen Rechts), special funds under public law (6ffentlich-rechtliche
Sondervermdgen) and persons not subject to the general jurisdiction of the
courts of the Federal Republic of Germany (Personen ohne allgemeinen
Gerichtsstand in der Bundesrepublik Deutschland).

(3) Enforcement. Any Holder of Notes may in any Proceedings against the
Issuer, or to which such Holder and the Issuer are parties, protect and enforce in
his own name his rights arising under such Notes on the basis of (i) a statement
issued by the Custodian (as defined below) with whom such Holder maintains a
securities account in respect of the Notes (a) stating the full name and address
of the Holder, (b) specifying the aggregate principal amount of Notes credited to
such securities account on the date of such statement and (c) confirming that
the Custodian has given written notice to the Clearing System containing the
information pursuant to (a) and (b) and (ii) a copy (of the Note in global form
certified as being a true copy by a duly authorized officer of the Clearing System
or a depository of the Clearing System, without the need for production in such
Proceedings of the actual records or the global note representing the Notes. For
purposes of the foregoing, "Custodian” means any bank or other financial
institution of recognized standing authorized to engage in securities custody
business with which the Holder maintains a securities account in respect of the
Notes and includes the Clearing System. Each Holder may, without prejudice to
the foregoing, protect and enforce his rights under these Notes also in any other
way which is admitted in the country of the Proceedings.

§[16]
Language

[These Terms and Conditions are written in the German language and provided
with an English language translation. The German text shall be controlling and
binding. The English language translation is provided for convenience only.]
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[These Terms and Conditions are written in the English language and provided
with a German language translation. The English text shall be controlling and
binding. The German language translation is provided for convenience only.]

[These Terms and Conditions are written in the English language only.]

[Eine deutsche Ubersetzung der Anleihebedingungen wird bei der Deutsche
Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft), OsterstraBe 31, 30159 Hannover,
Bundesrepublik Deutschland zur kostenlosen Ausgabe bereitgehalten.]
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OPTION 1l — Terms and Conditions that apply to Notes (other than
Pfandbriefe) with fixed to floating interest rates

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES
ENGLISH LANGUAGE VERSION

g1
Currency, Denomination, Form, Certain Definitions

(1) Currency; Denomination. This tranche of [subordinated] Notes (the
"Notes") of Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft) (the "Issuer") is
being issued in [Specified Currency] (the "Specified Currency") in the
aggregate principal amount [in the case the Global Note is a NGN the
following applies: (subject to § 1 (4))] of [aggregate principal amount] (in
words: [aggregate principal amount in words]) in the denomination of
[Specified Denomination] (the "Specified Denomination").

(2) Form. The Notes are in bearer form and represented by one or more global
notes (each a "Global Note").

[(3) Permanent Global Note. The Notes are represented by a permanent
Global Note (the "Permanent Global Note") without coupons. The Permanent
Global Note shall be signed manually by two authorised signatories of the
Issuer and shall be authenticated by or on behalf of the Fiscal Agent. Definitive
Notes and interest coupons will not be issued.]

[(3) Temporary Global Note — Exchange.

(a) The Notes are initially represented by a temporary global note (the
"Temporary Global Note") without interest coupons. The Temporary
Global Note will be exchangeable for a permanent global note (the
"Permanent Global Note") without interest coupons. The Temporary
Global Note and the Permanent Global Note shall each be signed
manually by two authorized signatories of the Issuer and shall each be
authenticated by or on behalf of the Fiscal Agent. Definitive Notes and
interest coupons will not be issued.

(b) The Temporary Global Note shall be exchangeable for the Permanent
Global Note from a date (the "Exchange Date") 40 days after the date of
issue of the Temporary Global Note. Such exchange shall only be made
upon delivery of certifications to the effect that the beneficial owner or
owners of the Notes represented by the Temporary Global Note is or are
not a U.S. person (other than certain financial institutions or certain
persons holding Notes through such financial institutions) as required by
U.S. tax law. The certifications shall be in compliance with the respective
United States Treasury Regulations as applicable from time to time.
Payment of interest on Notes represented by a Temporary Global Note will
be made only after delivery of such certifications. A separate certification
shall be required in respect of each such payment of interest. Any such
certification received on or after the 40" day after the date of issue of the
Temporary Global Note will be treated as a request to exchange such
Temporary Global Note pursuant to this subparagraph (b) of this § 1 (3).
Any securities delivered in exchange for the Temporary Global Note shall
be delivered only outside of the United States. For purposes of this
subparagraph (3), "United States" means the United States of America
(including the States thereof and the District of Columbia) and its
possessions (including Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin lIslands, Guam,
American Samoa, Wake Island and Northern Mariana Islands).]

(4) Clearing System. Each Global Note representing the Notes will be kept in
custody by or on behalf of the Clearing System. The Permanent Global Note
will be kept in custody by or on behalf of the Clearing System until all
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obligations of the Issuer under the Notes have been satisfied. "Clearing
System" means [if more than one Clearing System the following applies:
each of] the following: [Clearstream Banking AG, Neue Boérsenstral3e 1, 60487
Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany ("Clearstream Frankfurt")]
[Clearstream Banking S.A., 42 Avenue JF Kennedy, 1855 Luxembourg, Grand
Duchy of Luxembourg ("Clearstream Luxembourg"), Euroclear Bank SA/NV,
Boulevard du Roi Albert Il, 1210 Brussels, Belgium ("Euroclear") (Clearstream
Luxembourg and Euroclear each an "ICSD" and together the "ICSDs")] and
any successor in such capacity.

[The Notes are issued in new global note ("NGN") form and are kept in
custody by a common safekeeper on behalf of both ICSDs.

The aggregate principal amount of Notes represented by the Global Note shall
be the aggregate amount from time to time entered in the records of both
ICSDs. The records of the ICSDs (which expression means the records that
each ICSD holds for its customers which reflect the amount of such customer's
interest in the Notes) shall be conclusive evidence of the aggregate principal
amount of Notes represented by the Global Note and, for these purposes, a
statement issued by an ICSD stating the amount of Notes so represented at
any time shall be conclusive evidence of the records of the relevant ICSD at
that time.

On any redemption or payment of an instalment or interest being made in
respect of, or purchase and cancellation of, any of the Notes represented by
the Global Note the Issuer shall procure that details of any redemption,
payment or purchase and cancellation (as the case may be) in respect of the
Global Note shall be entered pro rata in the records of the ICSDs and, upon
any such entry being made, the aggregate principal amount of the Notes
recorded in the records of the ICSDs and represented by the Global Note shall
be reduced by the aggregate principal amount of the Notes so redeemed or
purchased and cancelled or by the aggregate amount of such instalment so
paid.

[In the case of a Temporary Global Note the following applies: On an
exchange of a portion only of the Notes represented by a Temporary Global
Note, the Issuer shall procure that details of such exchange shall be entered
pro rata in the records of the ICSDs.]]

[The Notes are issued in classical global note ("CGN") form and are kept in
custody by a common depositary on behalf of both ICSDs.]

(5) Holder of Notes. "Holder" means any holder of a proportionate co-
ownership or other beneficial interest or right in the Notes.

[§2
Status

The Notes constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured
obligations of the Issuer ranking pari passu among themselves and pari passu
with all other unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer, except
for obligations which are accorded priority by operation of law.

[At issuance, the Notes constituted [preferred] debt instruments [within the
meaning of [Section 46f Subsection 5 of the German Banking Act] [insert
relevant provision]].]]
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[§2
Status

(1) The Notes constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured
liabilities of the Issuer ranking pari passu with each other and with all other
unsubordinated and unsecured liabilities of the Issuer, with the following
exception:

As unsubordinated, non-preferred obligations of the Issuer payment claims
under the Notess rank

subordinated to other unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer
if and to the extent, such unsubordinated and unsecured obligations enjoy
[preferred] treatments by law [within the meaning of [Section 46f Subsection 5
of the German Banking Act] [insert relevant provision]] in insolvency
proceedings or in case of an imposition of resolution measures with regard to
the Issuer,

but in each case rank senior to any subordinated debt of the Issuer.

[At issuance, the Notes constituted [non-preferred] debt instruments [within
the meaning of [Section 46f Subsection 6 Sentence 1 of the German Banking
Act] [insert relevant provision]].]

[(2) The Holders of the Notes are not entitled to set off claims arising from the
Notes against any of the Issuer's claims.

No security of whatever kind is, or shall at any later time be, provided by the
Issuer or any of its associated companies or any third party that has a close
link with the Issuer or any of its associated companies or any other person
securing rights of the Holders under the Notes.]

[(2)][(3)] No subsequent agreement may alter the rank pursuant to the
provisions set out in this § 2 or shorten the term of the Notes or any applicable
notice period.

[[(3)][(4)] The Notes shall qualify as instruments that qualify as eligible
liabilities pursuant to the minimum requirement for own funds and eligible
liabilities (MREL).]

[[(D][(5)] Under the relevant resolution laws and regulations applicable to the
Issuer, the competent resolution authority may

(&) write down, in whole or in part, the claims for payment of principall,
interest] or any other amount;

(b) convert these claims into ordinary shares or other common equity tier 1
capital instruments of (i) the Issuer or (ii) any group entity or (iii) any
bridge bank (and issue such instruments to, or confer them on, the
Holders); and/or

(c) apply any other resolution measure, including, but not limited to, (i) any
transfer of the obligations under the Notes to another entity, (ii) the
amendment, modification or variation of the Terms and Conditions of the
Notes or (iii) the cancellation of the Notes

(each, a "Resolution Measure").]

[[(®)][(6)] The Holders shall be bound by any Resolution Measure. No Holder
shall have any claim or other right against the Issuer arising out of or in
connection with any Resolution Measure. In particular, the exercise of any
Resolution Measure shall not constitute an event of default under the Notes.]]
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[§2
Status

(1) In accordance with applicable provisions concerning the classification as
own funds, the Notes shall be available for the Issuer as eligible own funds
instrument in the form of Tier 2 capital pursuant to Art. 63 CRR (as defined in
§[13] (Erganzungskapital, "Tier 2 Capital”)). The Notes constitute direct,
unconditional, subordinated and unsecured liabilities of the Issuer ranking pari
passu with each other and with all other subordinated liabilities of the Issuer,
except as otherwise provided by applicable law or the terms of any such other
subordinated liabilities. In the event of resolution measures imposed on the
Issuer and in the event of the lIssuer's dissolution, liquidation, insolvency,
composition or other proceedings for the avoidance of insolvency of, or
against, the Issuer, the liabilities under the Notes will be wholly subordinated to
the claims of all unsubordinated creditors of the Issuer with the result that, in
any case, payments will not be made on the liabilities under the Notes until all
of the Issuer's unsubordinated creditors have been satisfied in full.

(2) The Holders of the Notes are not entitled to set off claims arising from the
Notes against any of the Issuer's claims. No security of whatever kind is, or
shall at any later time be, provided by the Issuer or any of its associated
companies or any third party that has a close link with the Issuer or any of its
associated companies or any other person securing rights of the Holders
under the Notes.

(3) No subsequent agreement may limit the subordination pursuant to the
provisions set out in this § 2 or shorten the term of the Notes or any applicable
notice period. Any redemption or repurchase of the Notes prior to their
scheduled maturity requires the prior consent of the competent regulatory
authority of the Issuer. If the Notes are redeemed or repurchased and
cancelled by the Issuer otherwise than in the circumstances described in this
§ 2 or as a result of an early repurchase or redemption pursuant to § 4 or
§ [13] of these Terms and Conditions, then the amounts redeemed or paid
must be returned to the Issuer irrespective of any agreement to the contrary
unless the competent regulatory authority has given its prior permission to
such early redemption or repurchase.]

§3
Interest
(1) (a) Fixed Interest.

[The Notes shall bear interest on their aggregate principal amount at the rate of
[rate of interest] % per annum from (and including) [interest commencement
date] to (but excluding) the [relevant last fixed Interest Payment Date].]

[The Notes shall bear interest on their aggregate principal amount as follows:

from to
(and including) (but excluding) per cent per annum
[specified dates] [specified dates] [specified rates]]

Interest shall be payable in arrear on [fixed interest date or dates] in each
year (each such date, a "Fixed Interest Payment Date"). The first payment of
interest shall be made on [first fixed interest payment date] [in the case of a
long or short first coupon the following applies: and will amount to [initial
broken amount] per Specified Denomination]. [in the case of a long or short
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last coupon the following applies: Interest in respect of the period from (and
including) the penultimate Fixed Interest Payment Date to (but excluding) the
last Fixed Interest Payment Date will amount to [final broken amount] per
Specified Denomination.]

(b) Calculation of Interest for Partial Periods. If interest is required to be
calculated for a period of less than a full year, such interest shall be calculated
on the basis of the Day Count Fraction (as defined below).

(c) Day Count Fraction for the period of fixed interest. "Day Count Fraction"
means with regard to the calculation of interest on any Note for any period of
time (the "Fixed Calculation Period"):

[the actual number of days in the Fixed Calculation Period divided by the
actual number of days in the respective interest period.]

[the number of days in the Fixed Calculation Period divided by the number of
days in the Reference Period in which the Fixed Calculation Period falls.]

[the number of days in the Fixed Calculation Period divided by the product of
(1) the number of days in the Reference Period in which the Fixed Calculation
Period falls and (2) the number of Fixed Interest Payment Dates that occur in
one calendar year or that would occur in one calendar year if interest were
payable in respect of the whole of such year.]

[the sum of:

(A) the number of days in such Fixed Calculation Period falling in the
Reference Period in which the Fixed Calculation Period begins divided by
[in the case of Reference Periods of less than one year the following
applies: the product of (1)] the number of days in such Reference Period
[in the case of Reference Periods of less than one year the following
applies: and (2) the number of Fixed Interest Payment Dates that occur
in one calendar year or that would occur in one calendar year if interest
were payable in respect of the whole of such year]; and

(B) the number of days in such Fixed Calculation Period falling in the next
Reference Period divided by [in the case of Reference Periods of less
than one year the following applies: the product of (1)] the humber of
days in such Reference Period [in the case of Reference Periods of
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less than one year the following applies: and (2) the number of Fixed
Interest Payment Dates that occur in one calendar year or that would
occur in one calendar year if interest were payable in respect of the whole
of such year].]

['Reference Period" means the period from (and including) the Interest
Commencement Date to, but excluding, the first Fixed Interest Payment Date
or from (and including) each Fixed Interest Payment Date to, but excluding,
the next Fixed Interest Payment Date. [In the case of a short first or last
Fixed Calculation Period the following applies: For the purposes of
determining the ([first] [last] Reference Period only, [deemed Interest
Commencement Date or deemed Fixed Interest Payment Date] shall be
deemed to be an [Interest Commencement Date] [Fixed Interest Payment
Date].] [In the case of a long first or last Fixed Calculation Period the
following applies: For the purposes of determining the [first] [last] Reference
Period only, [deemed Interest Commencement Date and/or deemed Fixed
Interest Payment Date(s)] shall each be deemed to be [Interest
Commencement Date][and] [Fixed Interest Payment Date[s]].]]

[the actual number of days in the Fixed Calculation Period divided by 365.]

[the actual number of days in the Fixed Calculation Period divided by 360.]

[the number of days in the Fixed Calculation Period divided by 360, the number
of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with twelve 30-day
months (unless (A) the last day of the Fixed Calculation Period is the 31st day of
a month but the first day of the Fixed Calculation Period is a day other than the
30" or 315t day of a month, in which case the month that includes that last day
shall not be considered to be shortened to a 30-day month, or (B) the last day
of the Fixed Calculation Period is the last day of the month of February in which
case the month of February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-
day month).]

[the number of days in the Fixed Calculation Period divided by 360 (the number
of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with twelve 30-day
months, without regard to the date of the first day or last day of the Fixed
Calculation Period unless, in the case of the final Fixed Calculation Period, the
last day of the Fixed Calculation Period is the last day of the month of February,
in which case the month of February shall not be considered lengthened to a
30-day month).]

(2) Variable Interest.

(@) The Notes bear interest on their principal amount from (and including)
[relevant last Fixed Interest Payment Date] to (but excluding) the first
Variable Interest Payment Date and thereafter from (and including) each
Variable Interest Payment Date to (but excluding) the next following
Variable Interest Payment Date (relevant [three] [six] [twelve] month
period) (each, an "Interest Period"). Interest on the Notes shall be
payable in arrear on each Variable Interest Payment Date.

(b) "Variable Interest Payment Date" means

[each [Specified Variable Interest Payment Dates].]
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[each date which (except as otherwise provided in these Terms and
Conditions) falls [number] [weeks] [months] [other specified periods]
after the preceding Variable Interest Payment Date or, in the case of the
first Variable Interest Payment Date, after the last Fixed Interest Payment
Date.]

(c) If any Variable Interest Payment Date would otherwise fall on a day which
is not a Business Day (as defined below), it shall be:

[postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby
fall into the next calendar month, in which event the Variable Interest Payment
Date shall be the immediately preceding Business Day.]

[postponed to the next day which is a Business Day.]

[the immediately preceding Business Day.]

If a payment of interest is [brought forward] [or] [postponed] to a Business
Day as described above, the amount of interest shall [not] be adjusted
accordingly [If an adjustment of interest applies insert: and the Variable
Interest Payment Date shall be adjusted to the relevant Business Day].

(d) In this 8§ 3 (1) "Business Day" means

[a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which both (i) the Clearing
System, and (ii) the Trans-European Automated Real-time Gross Settlement
Express Transfer System 2 (TARGET2) ("TARGET") is open tosettle
payments.]

[a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which both (i) the Clearing
System, and (ii) commercial banks and foreign exchange markets in [all
relevant financial centres] settle payments.]

[(3) Rate of Interest. The rate of interest (the "Rate of Interest") for each
Interest Period will, except as provided below, be determined by the
Calculation Agent and is the Reference Rate (as defined below) [[plus]
[minus] the Margin (as defined below)]. The applicable Reference Rate shall
be the rate which appears on the Screen Page as of 11:00 a.m. (Brussels
time) on the Interest Determination Date (as defined below).

"Reference Rate" is the offered quotation (expressed as a percentage rate per
annum) for deposits in the Specified Currency for that Interest Period
(EURIBOR).

"Interest Determination Date" means the [second] [other applicable
number of days] [TARGET] [London] [other relevant financial centre]
Business Day [prior to the commencement] of the relevant Interest Period. [In
case of a TARGET Business Day the following applies: "TARGET
Business Day" means a day on which TARGET is open.] [In case of a hon-
TARGET Business Day the following applies: "[London] [other relevant
financial centre] Business Day" means a day (other than a Saturday or
Sunday) on which commercial banks are open for business (including dealings
in foreign exchange and foreign currency) in [London] other relevant
financial centre].]
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["Margin" means [¢]% per annum.]

"Screen Page" means EURIBORO1 or the relevant successor page on that
service or on any other service as may be nominated as the information
vendor for the purposes of displaying rates or prices comparable to the
relevant Reference Rate.

If the Screen Page is not available or no quotation for the Reference Rate
appears as at such time and provided that no Rate Replacement Event
pursuant to 8§ 3 [(9)] has occurred, the Calculation Agent shall request the
principal Euro-Zoneoffice of each of the Reference Banks (as defined below)
to provide the Calculation Agent with its offered quotation (expressed as a
percentage rate per annum) for deposits in the Specified Currency for the
relevant Interest Period and in a representative amount to prime banks in the
interbank market of the Euro-Zone at approximately 11.00 a.m. (Brussels time)
on the Interest Determination Date. "Euro-Zone" means the region comprised
of Member States of the European Union that participate in the European
Economic and Monetary Union. If two or more of the Reference Banks provide
the Calculation Agent with such offered quotations, the Rate of Interest for
such Interest Period shall be the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the
nearest one thousandth of a percentage point, with 0.0005 being rounded
upwards) of such offered quotations [[plus] [minus] the Margin], all as
determined by the Calculation Agent.

If on any Interest Determination Date only one or none of the Reference Banks
provides the Calculation Agent with such offered quotations as provided in the
preceding paragraph, the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period shall
be the rate per annum which the Calculation Agent determines as being the
arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the nearest [one thousandth of a
percentage point, with 0.0005 being rounded upwards) of the rates, as
communicated to and at the request of the Calculation Agent by major banks
in the interbank market in the Euro-Zone, selected by the Calculation Agent
acting in good faith, at which such banks offer, as at 11.00 a.m. (Brussels
time) on the relevant Interest Determination Date, loans in the Specified
Currency for the relevant Interest Period and in a representative amount to
leading European banks [[plus] [minus] the Margin].

If the Rate of Interest cannot be determined in accordance with the foregoing
provisions of this subparagraph (3), the Rate of Interest for such Interest
Period shall be the offered quotation on the Screen Page, as described above,
on the last day preceding the Interest Determination Date on which such
offered quotation was displayed [[plus] [minus] the Margin (as defined
above)], all as determined by the Calculation Agent.

As used herein, "Reference Banks" means four major banks in the interbank
market in the Euro-Zone.]

[(3) Rate of Interest. The rate of interest (the "Rate of Interest") for each
Interest Period (as defined below) will, except as provided below, be
determined by the Calculation Agent and is the Reference Rate (as defined
below) [[plus] [minus] the Margin (as defined below)]. The applicable
Reference Rate shall be the rate which appears on the Screen Page as of
11:00 a. m. (London time) on the Interest Determination Date (as defined
below).

"Reference Rate" is the offered quotation (expressed as a percentage rate per
annum) for deposits in the Specified Currency for that Interest Period (LIBOR).

"Interest Determination Date" means the [first][second] [relevant financial
centre(s)] Business Day [prior to the commencement] of the relevant Interest
Period. "[relevant financial centre(s)] Business Day" means a day (other
than a Saturday or Sunday) on which commercial banks are open for business
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(including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency) in [relevant
financial centre(s)].

["Margin" means [e] % per annum.]

"Screen Page" means Reuters screen page [LIBORO1] [LIBORO02] or the
relevant successor page on that service or on any other service as may be
nominated as the information vendor for the purposes of displaying rates or
prices comparable to the relevant Reference Rate.

If the Screen Page is not available or no quotation for the Reference Rate
appears as at such time and provided that no Rate Replacement Event
pursuant to 8 3 [(9)] has occurred, the Calculation Agent shall request each of
the Reference Banks (as defined below) to provide the Calculation Agent with
its offered quotation (expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for deposits
in the Specified Currency for the relevant Interest Period and in a
representative amount to prime banks in the London interbank market at
approximately 11.00 a. m. (London time) on the Interest Determination Date. If
two or more of the Reference Banks provide the Calculation Agent with such
offered quotations, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall be the
arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the nearest one hundred-thousandth
of a percentage point, with 0.000005 being rounded upwards) of such offered
quotations [[plus] [minus] the Margin], all as determined by the Calculation
Agent.

If on any Interest Determination Date only one or none of the Reference Banks
provides the Calculation Agent with such offered quotations as provided in the
preceding paragraph, the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period shall
be the rate per annum which the Calculation Agent determines as being the
arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the nearest one hundred-thousandth
of a percentage point, with 0.000005 being rounded upwards) of the rates, as
communicated to (and at the request of) the Calculation Agent by major banks
in the London interbank market, selected by the Calculation Agent acting in
good faith, at which such banks offer, as at 11.00 a.m. (London time) on the
relevant Interest Determination Date, loans in the Specified Currency for the
relevant Interest Period and in a representative amount to leading European
banks [[plus] [minus] the Margin].

If the Rate of Interest cannot be determined in accordance with the foregoing
provisions of this subparagraph (3), the Rate of Interest for such Interest
Period shall be the offered quotation on the Screen Page, as described above,
on the last day preceding the Interest Determination Date on which such
offered quotation was displayed [[plus] [minus] the Margin (as defined
above)], all as determined by the Calculation Agent.

As used herein, "Reference Banks" means four major banks in the London
interbank market.]

[(4) Minimum Rate of Interest. If the Rate of Interest in respect of any Interest
Period determined in accordance with the above provisions is less than
[Minimum Rate of Interest], the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall
be [Minimum Rate of Interest].]

[(4) Maximum Rate of Interest. If the Rate of Interest in respect of any Interest
Period determined in accordance with the above provisions is greater than
[Maximum Rate of Interest], the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall
be [Maximum Rate of Interest].]

[(5)] Interest Amount. The Calculation Agent will, on or as soon as practicable
after each time at which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, calculate the
amount of interest (the "Interest Amount") payable on the Notes in respect of
the Specified Denomination for the relevant Interest Period. Each Interest
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Amount shall be calculated by multiplying the Rate of Interest applicable to an
Interest Period with the Specified Denomination and multiplying the product
with the Day Count Fraction (as defined below) and by rounding the resultant
figure to the nearest unit of the Specified Currency, with 0.5 of such unit being
rounded upwards.

[(6)] Natification of Rate of Interest and Interest Amount. The Calculation
Agent will cause the Rate of Interest, each Interest Amount for each Interest
Period, each Interest Period and the relevant Variable Interest Payment Date
to be notified to the Issuer and, if required by the rules of any stock exchange
on which the Notes are from time to time listed, to such stock exchange (in the
case of listing on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange not later than the first
Business Day prior to the Interest Period), and to the Holders in accordance
with 8 [14] as soon as possible after their determination, but in no event later
than the fourth [TARGET] [London] [other relevant reference] Business Day
(as defined in § 3 (2)) thereafter. Each Interest Amount and Variable Interest
Payment Date so notified may subsequently be amended (or appropriate
alternative arrangements may be made by way of adjustment) without prior
notice in the event of an extension or shortening of the Interest Period. Any
such amendment will be promptly notified to any stock exchange on which the
Notes are then listed and the rules of which so require, and to the Holders in
accordance with § [14].

[(7)] Determinations Binding. All certificates, communications, opinions,
determinations, calculations, quotations and decisions given, expressed, made
or obtained for the purposes of the provisions of this § 3 by the Calculation
Agent shall (in the absence of manifest error) be binding on the Issuer, the
Fiscal Agent [, the Paying Agents] and the Holders.

[(8)] Accrual of Interest. The Notes shall cease to bear interest as from the
beginning of the day on which they are due for redemption. If the Issuer shall
fail to redeem the Notes when due, interest shall (except in the circumstances
provided in 8 5 (4) continue to accrue on the outstanding principal amount of
the Notes from (and including) the due date to (but excluding) the date of
actual redemption of the Notes at the default rate of interest established by
law?, unless the rate of interest under the Notes is higher than the default rate
of interest established by law, in which event the rate of interest under the
Notes continues to apply during the before-mentioned period of time.

[(9)](a) Rate Replacement. If the Issuer determines (in consultation with the
Calculation Agent) that a Rate Replacement Event has occurred on or prior to
an Interest Determination Date, the Relevant Determining Party shall
determine and inform the Issuer, if relevant, and the Calculation Agent of (i)
the Replacement Rate, (ii) the Adjustment Spread, if any, and (iii) the
Replacement Rate Adjustments (each as defined below in § 3 [(9)](b)(aa) to
(cc) and (hh)) for purposes of determining the Rate of Interest for the Interest
Period related to that Interest Determination Date and each Interest Period
thereafter (subject to the subsequent occurrence of any further Rate
Replacement Event). The Terms and Conditions shall be deemed to have
been amended by the Replacement Rate Adjustments with effect from (and
including) the relevant Interest Determination Date (including any amendment
of such Interest Determination Date if so provided by the Replacement Rate
Adjustments). The Rate of Interest shall then be the Replacement Rate (as
defined below) adjusted by the Adjustment Spread, if any, [[plus] [minus] the
Margin (as defined above)].

The Issuer shall notify the Holders pursuant to § [14] as soon as practicable

The default rate of interest established by law is five percentage points above the basic rate of interest set by the European
Central Bank from time to time, 8§ 288(1), 247 German Civil Code.
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(unverzuglich) after such determination of the Replacement Rate, the
Adjustment Spread, if any, and the Replacement Rate Adjustments. In
addition, the Issuer shall request the [Clearing System] [common depositary
on behalf of both ICSDs] to supplement or amend the Terms and Conditions to
reflect the Replacement Rate Adjustments by attaching the documents
submitted to the Global Note in an appropriate manner.

(b) Definitions.

(aa) "Rate Replacement Event" means, with respect to the Reference Rate
each of the following events:

() the Reference Rate not having been published on the Screen Page
for the last ten Business Days prior to and including the relevant
Interest Determination Date; or

(i) the occurrence of the date, as publicly announced by or, as the
case may be, determineable based upon the public announcement
of the administrator of the Reference Rate on which (x) the
administrator will cease to publish the Reference Rate permanently
or indefinitely (in circumstances where no successor administrator
has been appointed that will continue the publication of the
Reference Rate), or (y) the Reference Rate will permanently or
indefinitely be discontinued; or

(i) the occurrence of the date, as publicly announced by the regulatory
supervisor for the administrator of the Reference Rate, the central
bank for the Specified Currency, an insolvency official with
jurisdiction over the administrator for the Reference Rate, a
resolution authority with jurisdiction over the administrator for the
Reference Rate or a court (unappealable final decision) or an entity
with similar insolvency or resolution authority over the administrator
for the Reference Rate, on which the administrator of the
Reference Rate has ceased or will cease to provide the Reference
Rate permanently or indefinitely (in circumstances where no
successor administrator has been appointed that will continue the
publication of the Reference Rate); or

(iv) the occurrence of the date, as publicly announced by or, as the
case may be, determineable based upon the public announcement
of the supervisor of the administrator of the Reference Rate, from
which the Reference Rate will be prohibited from being used; or

(v) the occurrence of the date, as publicly announced by or, as the
case may be, determineable based upon the public announcement
of the administrator of the Reference Rate, of a material change in
the methodology of determining the Reference Rate; or

(vi) the publication of a notice by the Issuer pursuant to § [14] (1) that it
has become unlawful for the Issuer, the Calculation Agent or any
Paying Agent to calculate any Rate of Interest using the Reference
Rate.

(bb) "Replacement Rate" means a publicly available substitute, successor,
alternative or other rate designed to be referenced by financial instruments or
contracts, including the Notes, to determine an amount payable under such
financial instruments or contracts, including, but not limited to, an amount of
interest. In determining the Replacement Rate, the Relevant Guidance (as
defined below) shall be taken into account.

(cc) "Adjustment Spread" means a spread (which may be positive or
negative), or the formula or methodology for calculating a spread, which the
Relevant Determining Party determines is required to be applied to the
Replacement Rate to reduce or eliminate, to the extent reasonably practicable,



90

any transfer of economic value between the Issuer and the Holders that would
otherwise arise as a result of the replacement of the Reference Rate against
the Replacement Rate (including, but not limited to, as a result of the
Replacement Rate being a risk-free rate). In determining the Adjustment
Spread, the Relevant Guidance (as defined below) shall be taken into account.

(dd) "Relevant Determining Party" means

(i) the Issuer if in its opinion the Replacement Rate is obvious and as
such without any reasonable doubt determinable by an investor that
is knowledgeable in the respective type of bonds, such as the
Notes; or

(i) failing which, an Independent Advisor, to be appointed by the
Issuer at commercially reasonable terms, using reasonable
endeavours, as its agent to make such determinations.

(ee) "Independent Advisor" means an independent financial institution of
international repute or any other independent advisor of recognised standing
and with appropriate expertise.

(ff)  "Relevant Guidance" means (i) any legal or supervisory requirement
applicable to the Issuer or the Notes or, if none, (ii) any applicable
requirement, recommendation or guidance of a Relevant Nominating Body or,
if none, (iii) any relevant recommendation or guidance by industry bodies
(including by ISDA), or, if none, (iv) any relevant market practice.

(gg) "Relevant Nominating Body" means

(i) the central bank for the Specified Currency, or any central bank or
other supervisor which is responsible for supervising either the
Replacement Rate or the administrator of the Replacement Rate; or

(i) any working group or committee officially endorsed, sponsored or
convened by or chaired or co-chaired by (w) the central bank for
the Specified Currency, (x) any central bank or other supervisor
which is responsible for supervising either the Reference Rate or
the administrator of the Reference Rate, (y) a group of the
aforementioned central banks or other supervisors or (z) the
Financial Stability Board or any part thereof.

(hh) "Replacement Rate Adjustments" means such adjustments to the
Terms and Conditions as are determined consequential to enable the
operation of the Replacement Rate (which may include, without limitation,
adjustments to the applicable Business Day Convention, the definition of
Business Day, the Interest Determination Date, the Day Count Fraction and
any methodology or definition for obtaining or calculating the Replacement
Rate). In determining any Replacement Rate Adjustments the Relevant
Guidance shall be taken in account.

(c) Termination. If a Replacement Rate, an Adjustment Spread, if any, or the
Replacement Rate Adjustments cannot be determined pursuant to § 3 [(9)](a)
and (b), the Reference Rate in respect of the relevant Interest Determination
Date shall be the Reference Rate determined for the last preceding Interest
Period. The Issuer will inform the Calculation Agent accordingly. As a result,
the Issuer may, upon not less than 15 days' notice given to the Holders in
accordance with 8[14], redeem all, and not only some of the Notes at any
time up and until (but excluding) the respective subsequent Interest
Determination Date at the Final Redemption Amount together with accrued
interest, if any, to (but excluding) the respective redemption date.

[(10)] Day Count Fraction for the period of variable interest. "Day Count
Fraction" means with regard to the calculation of interest on any Note for any
period of time (the "Variable Calculation Period"):
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[the actual number of days in the Variable Calculation Period divided by the
actual number of days in the respective interest period.]

[the number of days in the Variable Calculation Period divided by the number
of days in the Reference Period in which the Variable Calculation Period
falls.]

[the number of days in the Variable Calculation Period divided by the product
of (1) the number of days in the Reference Period in which the Variable
Calculation Period falls and (2) the number of Variable Interest Payment
Dates that occur in one calendar year or that would occur in one calendar
year if interest were payable in respect of the whole of such year.]

[the sum of:

(A) the number of days in such Variable Calculation Period falling in the
Reference Period in which the Variable Calculation Period begins
divided by [in the case of Reference Periods of less than one year
the following applies: the product of (1)] the number of days in such
Reference Period [in the case of Reference Periods of less than one
year the following applies: and (2) the number of Variable Interest
Payment Dates that occur in one calendar year or that would occur in
one calendar year if interest were payable in respect of the whole of
such year]; and

(B) the number of days in such Variable Calculation Period falling in the next
Reference Period divided by [in the case of Reference Periods of less
than one year the following applies: the product of (1)] the number of
days in such Reference Period [in the case of Reference Periods of
less than one year the following applies: and (2) the number of
Variable Interest Payment Dates that occur in one calendar year or that
would occur in one calendar year if interest were payable in respect of
the whole of such year].]

['Reference Period" means the period from (and including) the last Fixed
Interest Payment Date or from (and including) each Variable Interest
Payment Date to, but excluding, the next Variable Interest Payment Date. [In
the case of a short first or last Variable Calculation Period the following
applies: For the purposes of determining the [first] [last] Reference Period
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only, [deemed Variable Interest Payment Date] shall be deemed to be a
[Variable Interest Payment Date].] [In the case of a long first or last
Variable Calculation Period the following applies: For the purposes of
determining the [first] [last] Reference Period only, [deemed Variable
Interest Payment Date(s)] shall be deemed to be [a] [Variable Interest
Payment Date[s]].]]

[the actual number of days in the Variable Calculation Period divided by 365.]

[the actual number of days in the Variable Calculation Period divided by 360.]

[the number of days in the Variable Calculation Period divided by 360, the
number of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with twelve
30-day months (unless (A) the last day of the Variable Calculation Period is
the 315t day of a month but the first day of the Variable Calculation Period is a
day other than the 30™ or 31st day of a month, in which case the month that
includes that last day shall not be considered to be shortened to a 30-day
month, or (B) the last day of the Variable Calculation Period is the last day of
the month of February in which case the month of February shall not be
considered to be lengthened to a 30-day month).]

[the number of days in the Variable Calculation Period divided by 360 (the
number of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with twelve
30-day months, without regard to the date of the first day or last day of the
Variable Calculation Period unless, in the case of the final Variable Calculation
Period, the last day of the Variable Calculation Period is the last day of the
month of February, in which case the month of February shall not be
considered lengthened to a 30-day month).]

8§84
Redemption

(1) Final Redemption.

Unless previously redeemed in whole or in part or purchased and cancelled,
the Notes shall be redeemed at their Final Redemption Amount on the Interest
Payment Date falling in [Redemption Month] (the "Maturity Date"). The Final
Redemption Amount in respect of each Note (the "Final Redemption
Amount") shall be its principal amount.

[(2) Early Redemption for Reasons of Taxation. If as a result of any change in,
or amendment to, the laws or regulations of the Federal Republic of Germany
or any political subdivision or taxing authority thereto or therein affecting
taxation or the obligation to pay duties of any kind, or any change in, or
amendment to, an official interpretation or application of such laws or
regulations, which amendment or change is effective on or after the date on
which the last tranche of the Notes was issued, the Issuer is required to pay
Additional Amounts (as defined in § 7 herein) on the next succeeding Interest
Payment Date and this obligation cannot be avoided by the use of reasonable
measures available to the Issuer, the Notes may be redeemed, in whole but
not in part, at the option of the Issuer, upon not less than 60 days' prior notice
of redemption given to the Fiscal Agent and, in accordance with § [14] to the
Holders, at their Final Redemption Amount, together with interest accrued to
the date fixed for redemption. However, no such notice of redemption may be
for redemption.

However, no such notice of redemption may be given (i) earlier than 90 days
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prior to the earliest date on which the Issuer would be obligated to pay such
Additional Amounts were a payment in respect of the Notes then due, or (ii) if
at the time such notice is given, such obligation to pay such Additional
Amounts does not remain in effect. The date fixed for redemption must be an
Interest Payment Date.

Any such notice shall be given in accordance with §[14]. It shall be
irrevocable, must specify the date fixed for redemption and must set forth a
statement in summary form of the facts constituting the basis for the right of
the Issuer so to redeem.]

[(2) Early Redemption for Reasons of Taxation. The Notes may be redeemed
at any time in whole, but not in part, at the option of the Issuer and upon the
prior consent of the competent supervisory authority on giving not less than 30
and not more than 60 days' notice to the Fiscal Agent and, in accordance with
§ [14] to the Holders, at the Final Redemption Amount together with accrued
interest (if any) to the date fixed for redemption if there is a change in the tax
treatment of the Notes (in particular, but not limited to, the obligation to pay
Additional Amounts (as defined in § 7 herein)) and such change is, in its own
assessment, materially adverse for the Issuer.]

[(3) Early redemption due to regulatory reasons. The Issuer shall be entitled to
call the Notes in whole but not in part, at the option of the Issuer and subject to
the prior permission of the competent regulatory authority, if the Issuer
determines, in its own discretion, that it: (i) may not treat the Notes in their full
aggregate principal amount as Tier 2 capital for the purposes of the Own
Funds Provisions (as defined in § [13] of these Terms and Conditions) other
than for reasons of an amortisation in accordance with Art. 64 of the CRR, or
(ii) is subject to any other form of a less advantageous regulatory own funds
treatment with respect to the Notes than as of the Issue Date.

In this case the redemption of the Notes shall, subject to § 2 of these Terms
and Conditions, be effected in accordance with the provisions contained in
paragraph (1). Termination is irrevocable. The rights and obligations arising
from the Notes shall expire upon redemption.]

[(4) Early Redemption at the Option of the Issuer.

(a) The Issuer may, upon notice given in accordance with clause (b) below,
redeem all or only some of the Notes [in the case of subordinated Notes
the following applies: , upon the prior consent of the competent
supervisory authority] on the Call Redemption Date(s) at the Call
Redemption Amount(s) set forth below together with accrued interest, if
any, to (but excluding) the Call Redemption Date.

[in the case of non-preferred Notes any Call Redemption Date must
be at least one full year after the issue date of the Notes]

[in the case of subordinated Notes any Call Redemption Date must be

at least five full years after the issue date of the Notes]
Call Redemption Date(s) Call Redemption Amount(s)

[Call Redemption Dates(s)]

[] []

[] []

[If Notes are subject to Early Redemption at the Option of the Holder the
following applies:

[Call Redemption Amount(s)]

The Issuer may not exercise such option in respect of any Note which is the
subject of the prior exercise by the Holder thereof of its option to require the
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redemption of such Note under subparagraph [(4)] of this § 4.]

[In the case of subordinated Notes the following applies: The Notess may
only be redeemed pursuant to this § 4(4) if the Issuer has, on the basis of the
Own Funds Provisions (as defined in § [13] of these Terms and Conditions),
obtained the prior permission of the competent regulatory authority (if
required).]

(b) Notice of redemption shall be given by the Issuer to the Holders of the
Notes in accordance with § [14]. Such notice shall specify:

(i) the Notes subject to redemption;

(i) whether such Notes are to be redeemed in whole or in part only and, if in
part only, the aggregate principal amount of the Notes which are to be
redeemed;

(iii) the Call Redemption Date, which shall be not less than [Minimum Notice]
days nor more than [Maximum Notice] days after the date on which
notice is given by the Issuer to the Holders; and

(iv) the Call Redemption Amount at which such Notes are to be redeemed.

(c) In the case of a partial redemption of Notes, Notes to be redeemed shall
be selected in accordance with the rules and procedures of the relevant
Clearing System. [In the case of Notes in NGN form the following
applies: Such partial redemption shall be reflected in the records of
Clearstream Luxembourg and Euroclear as either a pool factor or a
reduction in principal amount, at the discretion of Clearstream Luxembourg
and Euroclear.]]

[[(5)] Early Redemption at the Option of the Holder.

(a) The Issuer shall, at the option of the Holder of any Note, redeem such
Note on the Put Redemption Date(s) at the Put Redemption Amount(s) set
forth below together with accrued interest, if any, to (but excluding) the Put
Redemption Date.

Put Redemption Date(s) Put Redemption Amount(s)
[Put Redemption Dates(s)] [Put Redemption Amount(s)]

[] []
[] []

The Holder may not exercise such option in respect of any Note which is the
subject of the prior exercise by the Issuer of any of its options to redeem such
Note under this § 4.

(b) In order to exercise such option, the Holder must, not less than [Minimum
Notice] days nor more than [Maximum Notice] days days before the Put
Redemption Date on which such redemption is required to be made as
specified in the Put Notice (as defined below), send to the specified office
of the Fiscal Agent an early redemption notice in text format (Textform, e.g.
email or fax) or in written form ("Put Notice"). In the event that the Put
Notice is received after 5:00 p.m. Frankfurt time on the 30th Payment
Business Day before the Put Redemption Date, the option shall not have
been validly exercised. The Put Notice must specify (i) the total principal
amount of the Notes in respect of which such option is exercised, [and] (ii)
the German Security Code of such Notes, if any [in the case the Global
Note is kept in custody by CBF, the following applies: and (iii) contact
details as well as a bank account]. The Put Notice may be in the form
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available from the specified offices of the Fiscal Agent and the Paying
Agents in the German and English language and includes further
information. No option so exercised may be revoked or withdrawn.]

[[(6)] Cessation of eligibility. The Issuer shall be entitled to call the Notes in
whole but not in part, at the option of the Issuer and subject to the prior
consent of the competent regulatory authority, if required, in case the Notes,
according to the determination of the Issuer, cease to qualify as eligible for the
purposes of the minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities
(MREL).

In this case the redemption of the Notes shall, subject to § 2 of these Terms
and Conditions, be effected in accordance with the provisions contained in
paragraph (1). Termination is irrevocable. The rights and obligations arising
from the Notes shall expire upon redemption.]

8§85
Payments

(1) (a) Payment of Principal. Payment of principal in respect of Notes shall be
made, subject to subparagraph (2) below, to the Clearing System or to its
order for credit to the accounts of the relevant account Holders of the
Clearing System.

(b) Payment of Interest. Payment of interest on Notes shall be made, subject
to subparagraph (2) below, to the Clearing System or to its order for credit
to the accounts of the relevant account Holders of the Clearing System.

[Payment of interest on Notes represented by the Temporary Global Note shall
only be made upon due certification as provided in § 1 (3) (b).]

(2) Manner of Payment. Subject to (i) applicable fiscal and other laws and
regulations and (ii) any withholding or deduction required pursuant to an
agreement described in Section 1471(b) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of
1986 (the "Code") or otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through
1474 of the Code, any regulations or agreements thereunder, any official
interpretations thereof, or any law implementing an intergovernmental
approach thereto, payments of amounts due in respect of the Notes shall be
made in the Specified Currency.

(3) Discharge. The Issuer shall be discharged by payment to, or to the order
of, the Clearing System.

(4) Banking Day. If the date for payment of any amount in respect of any Note
is not a Banking Day then the Holder shall not be entitled to payment until the
next Banking Day and shall not be entitled to further interest or other payment
in respect of such delay.

For these purposes, "Banking Day" means any day which is a Business Day.

(5) References to Principal and Interest. References in these Terms and
Conditions to principal in respect of the Notes shall be deemed to include, as
applicable: the Final Redemption Amount of the Notes, [if the Notes are
redeemable at the option of the Issuer for other than tax reasons the
following applies: the Call Redemption Amount of the Notes;] [if the Notes
are redeemable at the option of the Holder the following applies: the Put
Redemption Amount of the Notes;] and any premium and any other amounts
which may be payable under or in respect of the Notes. References in these
Terms and Conditions to interest in respect of the Notes shall be deemed to
include, as applicable, any Additional Amounts which may be payable under §
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7.

(6) Deposit of Principal and Interest. The Issuer may deposit with the local
court (Amtsgericht) in Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany,
principal or interest not claimed by Holders within 12 months after the due
date, even though such Holders may not be in default of acceptance of
payment. If and to the extent that the deposit is effected and the right of
withdrawal is waived, the respective claims of such Holders against the Issuer
shall cease.

§6
Agents

(1) Appointment; Specified Office. The initial Fiscal Agent [and the Calculation
Agent] and [its] [their] initial specified office[s] shall be:

[Fiscal Agent:

Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft
Trust and Agency Services
Taunusanlage 12

60325 Frankfurt am Main

Federal Republic of Germany]

[Fiscal Agent:

Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft)
Osterstralie 31

30159 Hanover

Federal Republic of Germany]

[The Fiscal Agent shall act as Calculation Agent.]

[Calculation Agent: [name and specified office]]

The Fiscal Agent shall also fulfil the functions of a paying agent. The Fiscal
Agent [and the Calculation Agent] reserve[s] the right at any time to change
[its] [their] specified office[s] to some other specified office in the same
country.

(2) Variation or Termination of Appointment. The Issuer reserves the right at
any time to vary or terminate the appointment of the Fiscal Agent [and/or the
Calculation Agent] and to appoint another Fiscal Agent [and/or another
Calculation Agent]. The Issuer shall at all times maintain a Fiscal Agent [and a
Calculation Agent].

The Issuer shall without undue delay notify the Holders of any variation,
termination, appointment or change in accordance with § [14].

(3) Agent of the Issuer. The Fiscal Agent [and the Calculation Agent] act[s]
solely as the agent[s] of the Issuer and [does] [do] not assume any obligations
towards or relationship of agency or trust for any Holder.

(4) Paying Agents. The Fiscal Agent shall act as the principal paying agent
with respect to the Notes.
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[The additional paying agent[s] (the "Paying Agent[s]" which expression shall
include any successor and additional paying agent hereunder) and [its] [their]
respective initial specified offices shall be:

Paying Agent[s]: [Paying Agent[s] and specified office[s]]

Each Paying Agent reserves the right at any time to change its specified office
to another specified office in the same country. The Issuer reserves the right at
any time to vary or terminate the appointment of any Paying Agent and to
appoint additional or other Paying Agents. The Issuer shall without delay notify
the Holders of any variation, termination, appointment or change in
accordance with § [14].

Each Paying Agent acts solely as the agent of the Issuer and does not assume
any obligations towards or relationship of agency or trust for any Holder.]

(5) Required Paying Agents. The Issuer shall at all times maintain a Paying
Agent (which may be the Fiscal Agent) with a specified office in a European
city and, so long as the Notes are listed on any stock exchange and the rules
of such stock exchange so require, a Paying Agent (which may be the Fiscal
Agent) with a specified office in such place as may be required by the rules of
such stock exchange.

87
Taxation

All amounts payable in respect of the Notes shall be made without withholding
or deduction for or on account of any present or future taxes or duties of
whatever nature imposed or levied by way of withholding or deduction at
source by, in or on behalf of the Federal Republic of Germany or by or on
behalf of any political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having
power to tax unless such withholding or deduction is required by law. In such
event, the Issuer shall pay such additional amounts [in the case of
subordinated Notes the following applies: with respect to payments of
interest only] (the "Additional Amounts") as shall be necessary in order that
the net amounts received by the Holders, after such withholding or deduction
shall equal the respective amounts which the Holders would otherwise have
received in the absence of such withholding or deduction, ex cept that no
such Additional Amounts shall be payable on account of any taxes or duties
which:

(a) are payable by any person acting as custodian bank or collecting agent on
behalf of a Noteholder, or otherwise in any manner which does not
constitute a deduction or withholding by the Issuer from payments of
principal or interest made by it, or

(b) are payable by reason of the Holder having, or having had, some personal
or business connection with the Federal Republic of Germany and not
merely by reason of the fact that payments in respect of the Notes are, or
for purposes of taxation are deemed to be, derived from sources in, or are
secured in, the Federal Republic of Germany, or

(c) are deducted or withheld pursuant to (i) any European Union Directive or
Regulation concerning the taxation of interest income, or (ii) any
international treaty or understanding relating to such taxation and to which
the Federal Republic of Germany or the European Union is a party, or (iii)
any provision of law implementing, or complying with, or introduced to
conform with, such Directive, Regulation, treaty or understanding, or

(d) to the extent such withholding or deduction is required pursuant to Sections
1471 through 1474 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the "Internal Revenue Code"), any current or future regulations or official
interpretations thereof, any agreement entered into pursuant to
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Section 1471(b) of the Internal Revenue Code, or any fiscal or regulatory
legislation, rules or practices adopted pursuant to any of the foregoing or
under any intergovernmental agreement entered into in connection with the
implementation of such Sections of the Internal Revenue Code, or

(e) are payable by reason of a change in law that becomes effective more
than 30 days after the relevant payment becomes due, or is duly provided
for and notice thereof is published in accordance with § [14], whichever
occurs later.

§8
Presentation period

The presentation period provided in § 801 (1), sentence 1 German Civil Code
(Burgerliches Gesetzbuch) is reduced to ten years for the Notes.

[89
Events of Default

(1) Events of default. Each Holder shall be entitled to declare his Notes due
and demand immediate redemption thereof at the Final Redemption Amount,
together with accrued interest (if any) to the date of repayment, in the event
that

(a) the Issuer fails to pay any amount due under the Notes within 30 days from
the relevant due date, or

(b) the Issuer fails duly to perform any other obligation arising from the Notes
which failure is not capable of remedy or, if such failure is capable of
remedy, such failure continues for more than 30 days after the Fiscal
Agent has received notice thereof from a Holder, or

(c) the Issuer suspends payment or announces its inability to pay its debts, or

(d) a court institutes insolvency proceedings against the Issuer, and such
proceedings are not set aside or stayed within 60 days, or the competent
supervisory authority or resolution authority, respectively, applies for or
institutes any such proceedings, or

(e) the Issuer goes into liquidation unless this is done in connection with a
merger, consolidation or other form of combination with another company
or in connection with a conversion and the other or new company assumes
all obligations contracted by the Issuer in connection with the Notes.

The right to declare Notes due shall terminate if the situation giving rise to it
has been cured before the right is exercised.

(2) Notice. Any notice, including any notice declaring Notes due, in accordance
with subparagraph (1) shall be made by means of a declaration in text format
(Textform, e.g. email or fax) or in written form in the German or English
language sent by hand or registered mail to the specified office of the Fiscal
Agent together with proof that such Holder at the time of such notice is a
Holder of the relevant Notes by means of a certificate of his Custodian (as
defined in §[15] (3)) or in other appropriate manner. The Notes shall be
redeemed following receipt of the notice declaring Notes due.]

§[10]
Substitution

(1) Substitution. The Issuer may, without the consent of the Holders, if it is not
in default with any payment of principal of or interest on any of the Notes, at
any time substitute for the Issuer any Affiliate (as defined below) of the Issuer
as principal debtor (the "Substitute Debtor") in respect of all obligations
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arising from or in connection with this issue provided that:

(a) the Substitute Debtor assumes all obligations of the Issuer in respect of the
Notes;

(b) the Issuer and the Substitute Debtor have obtained all necessary
authorisations and approvals and may transfer to the Fiscal Agent in the
currency required hereunder and without being obligated to deduct or
withhold any taxes or other duties of whatever nature levied by the country
in which the Substitute Debtor has its domicile or tax residence, all
amounts required for the fulfilment of the payment obligations arising under
the Notes;

(c) the Substitute Debtor has agreed to indemnify and hold harmless each
Holder against any tax, duty, assessment or governmental charge imposed
on such Holder in respect of such substitution;

[(d) (i) the proceeds are immediately available to the Issuer, without limitation
and in a form that satisfies the requirements of eligibility, (ii) the liabilities
assumed by the Substitute Debtor continue to be eligible and (iii) each
Holder is treated as if the substitution of the Issuer had not taken place;]

[(d) (i) the Substitute Debtor is an entity which is part of the consolidation
(relating to the Issuer) pursuant to Article 63(n) sub-paragraph (i) of the
CRR, (i) the proceeds are immediately available to the Issuer, without
limitation and in a form that satisfies the requirements of the CRR, (iii) the
liabilities assumed by the Substitute Debtor are subordinated on terms that
are identical with the subordination provisions of the liabilities assumed,
(iv) the Substitute Debtor invests the amount of the Notes with
Norddeutsche Landesbank — Girozentrale — on terms that match those of
the Notes and (v) the Issuer guarantees the Substitute Debtor's liabilities
under the Notes on a subordinated basis pursuant to § 2 of these Terms
and Conditions and provided that the recognition of the paid-in capital
concerning the Notes as Tier 2 Capital continues to be ensured;]

[(e)the Issuer irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees in favour of each
Holder the payment of all sums payable by the Substitute Debtor in respect
of the Notes on terms which ensure that each Holder will be put in an
economic position that is at least as favourable as that which would have
existed if the substitution had not taken place.]

[(e)the Issuer irrevocably, unconditionally and on a subordinated basis in
accordance with § 2 guarantees in favor of each Holder the payment of all
sums payable by the Substitute Debtor in respect of the Notes and the
regulatory classification of the paid-in capital under the Notes as Tier 2
supplementary capital is still assured.]

For purposes of this 8§ [10], "Affiliate" shall mean any affiliated company
(verbundenes Unternehmen) within the meaning of 8§ 15 German Stock
Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz).

(2) Notice. Notice of any such substitution shall be published in accordance
with § [14] without delay.

(3) Change of References. In the event of any such substitution, any reference
in these Terms and Conditions to the Issuer shall from then on be deemed to
refer to the Substitute Debtor and any reference to the country in which the
Issuer is domiciled or resident for taxation purposes shall from then on be
deemed to refer to the country of domicile or residence for taxation purposes
of the Substitute Debtor. Furthermore, in the event of such substitution the
following shall apply:
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[(@)in 8§ 7 and §4 (2) an alternative reference to the Federal Republic of
Germany shall be deemed to have been included in addition to the
reference according to the preceding sentence to the country of domicile or
residence for taxation purposes of the Substitute Debtor;

(b) in 8 9 (1) (c) to [(e)] an alternative reference to the Issuer in its capacity as
guarantor shall be deemed to have been included in addition to the
reference to the Substitute Debtor; and

(c) in 8 9 (1) a further event of default shall be deemed to have been included;
such event of default shall exist in the case that the guarantee pursuant to
subparagraph 1 [(d)] is or becomes invalid for any reason.]

[In 8 7 and 84 (2) an alternative reference to the Federal Republic of
Germany shall be deemed to have been included in addition to the reference
according to the preceding sentence to the country of domicile or residence for
taxation purposes of the Substitute Debtor.]

[8[11]
Resolutions of Holders

(1) Amendment of the Terms and Conditions. The Holders may agree by
majority resolution on all matters permitted by law, provided that no obligation
to make any payment or render any other performance shall be imposed on
any Holder by majority resolution.

(2) Majority resolutions shall be binding on all Holders. Resolutions, which do
not provide for identical conditions for all Holders are void, unless Holders who
are disadvantaged have expressly consented to their being treated
disadvantageously.

(3) Majority. Resolutions shall be passed by a majority of not less than 75% of
the votes cast (qualified majority). Resolutions relating to amendments to the
Terms and Conditions which are not material, require a majority of not less
than 50% of the votes cast.

(4) Resolution of Holders. Resolutions of Holders shall be passed at the
election of the Issuer by vote taken without a meeting in accordance with § 18
SchVG or in a Holder's meeting in accordance with 8 9 SchVG.

(5) Voting rights. Each Holder participating in any vote shall cast votes in
accordance with the nominal amount or the notional share of its entitlement to
the outstanding Notes. As long as the entitlement to the Notes lies with, or the
Notes are held for the account of, the Issuer or any of its affiliates (§ 271
paragraph 2 HGB (Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch))), the right to vote
in respect of such Notes shall be suspended. The Issuer may not transfer
Notes, of which the voting rights are so suspended, to another person for the
purpose of exercising such voting rights in the place of the Issuer; this shall
also apply to any affiliate of the Issuer. No person shall be permitted to
exercise such voting right for the purpose stipulated in sentence 3, first half
sentence, herein above.

No person shall be permitted to offer, promise or grant any benefit or
advantage to another person entitled to vote in consideration of such person
abstaining from voting or voting in a certain way.

A person entitled to vote may not demand, accept or accept the promise of,
any benefit, advantage or consideration for abstaining from voting or voting in
a certain way.]
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[§[12]
Holders' Representative]

[(1) The Holders may by majority resolution appoint a common representative
(the "Holders' Representative")! to exercise the Holders' rights on behalf of
each Holder.

(2) The Holders' Representative shall have the duties and powers provided by
law or granted by majority resolution of the Holders. The Holders'
Representative shall comply with the instructions of the Holders. To the extent
that the Holders' Representative has been authorised to assert certain rights of
the Holders, the Holders shall not be entitled to assert such rights themselves,
unless explicitly provided for in the relevant majority resolution. The Holders'
Representative shall provide reports to the Holders on its activities.

(3) The Holders' Representative shall be liable for the performance of its duties
towards the Holders who shall be joint and several creditors
(Gesamtglaubiger); in the performance of its duties it shall act with the
diligence and care of a prudent business manager. The liability of the Holders'
Representative may be limited by a resolution passed by the Holders. The
Holders shall decide upon the assertion of claims for compensation of the
Holders against the Holders' Representative.

(4) The appointment of the Holders' Representative may be revoked at any
time by the Holders without specifying any reasons.

(5) The Holders' Representative may demand from the Issuer to furnish all
information required for the performance of the duties entrusted to it.]

[(1) The common representative (the "Holders' Representative")(2) to
exercise the Holders' rights on behalf of each Holder shall be [Name and
address of Holder's Representative].

(2) The Holders' Representative shall be authorised, at its discretion, in
respect of the matters determined by it to call for a vote of Holders without a
meeting and to preside the taking of votes.

(3) The Holders' Representative shall comply with the instructions of the
Holders. To the extent that the Holders' Representative has been authorised to
assert certain rights of the Holders, the Holders shall not be entitled to assert
such rights themselves, unless explicitly provided so by majority resolution.
The Holders' Representative shall provide reports to the Holders with respect
to its activities.

(4) The Holders' Representative shall be liable for the proper performance of
its duties towards the Holders who shall be joint and several creditors
(Gesamtglaubiger); in the performance of its duties it shall act with the
diligence and care of a prudent business manager. The liability of the Holders'
Representative shall be limited to ten times the amount of its annual
remuneration, unless the Holders' Representative has acted willfully or with
gross negligence. The liability of the Holders' Representative may be further
limited by a resolution passed by the Holders. The Holders shall decide upon
the assertion of claims for compensation of the Holders against the Holders'
Representative.

(5) The appointment of the Holders' Representative may be revoked at any

The Holders' Representative must satisfy the conditions specified in § 8 paragraph 1 SchVG.

2

The Holders' Representative must satisfy the conditions specified in § 8 paragraph 1 SchVG.
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time by the Holders without specifying any reason.

(6) The Holders' Representative may demand from the Issuer to furnish all
information required for the performance of the duties entrusted to it.]

§[13]
Further Issues, Purchases and Cancellation

(1) Further Issues. The Issuer may from time to time, without the consent of
the Holders, issue further Notes having the same terms and conditions as the
Notes in all respects (or in all respects except for the date of issue, interest
commencement date and/or issue price) so as to form a single series with the
Notes.

[(2) Purchases. The Issuer may [in the case of non-preferred Notes the
following applies: upon the prior consent of the competent supervisory
authority, if required] at any time purchase Notes in the open market or
otherwise and at any price. Notes purchased by the Issuer may, at the option
of the Issuer, be held, resold or surrendered to the Fiscal Agent for
cancellation. If purchases are made by tender, tenders for such Notes must be
made available to all Holders of such Notes alike.]

[(2) Purchases. Subject to § 2 of these Terms and Conditions and only if,
when and to the extent that the purchase is not prohibited by applicable
provisions regarding own funds requirements as applied by the competent
regulatory authority and amended from time to time (including, but not limited
to, the Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the
Council on the prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment
firms dated 26 June 2013, other provisions of bank supervisory laws and any
rules and regulations related thereto, including directly applicable provisions of
European Community law, in each case as amended or replaced from time to
time (the "CRR" and the "Own Funds Provisions”, respectively)), the Issuer
may at any time purchase Notes in the open market or otherwise and at any
price. Notes purchased by the Issuer may, at the option of the Issuer, be held,
resold or surrendered to the Fiscal Agent for cancellation.]

(3) Cancellation. All Notes redeemed in full shall be cancelled forthwith and
may not be reissued or resold.

§ [14]
Notices

[(1) Publication. All notices concerning the Notes shall be published in the
Federal Gazette (Bundesanzeiger) [and in the Luxemburger Wort, a
newspaper of general circulation in Luxembourg].

Any notice will be deemed to have been validly given on the third day following
the date of such publication (or, if published more than once, on the third day
following the date of the first such publication).]

[(2)] Electronic Publication. All notices concerning the Notes will be made by
means of electronic publication on the internet website of the [Luxembourg
Stock  Exchange] [relevant stock exchange] (Jwww.bourse.lu]
[www.[relevant address]). Any notice will be deemed to have been validly
given on the third day following the date of such publication (or, if published
more than once, on the third day following the date of the first such
publication).]

[(2)] Notification to Clearing System.

[The Issuer shall deliver all notices concerning the Notes to the Clearing
System for communication by the Clearing System to the Holders. Any such
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notice shall be deemed to have been given to the Holders on the seventh day
after the day on which the said notice was given to the Clearing System.]

[So long as any Notes are admitted to trading on a market of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange, subparagraph (1) shall apply. In the case of notices
regarding the Rate of Interest or, if the Rules of the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange otherwise so permit, the Issuer may deliver the relevant notice to
the Clearing System for communication by the Clearing System to the Holders,
in lieu of publication in the newspaper set forth in subparagraph (1) above; any
such notice shall be deemed to have been given to the Holders on the seventh
day after the day on which the said notice was given to the Clearing System.]

[The Issuer may, in lieu of publication in the newspaper set forth in
subparagraph (1) above, deliver the relevant notice to the Clearing System, for
communication by the Clearing System to the Holders, provided that, the rules
of the stock exchange on which Notes are listed permit such form of notice.
Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given to the Holders on the
seventh day after the day on which the said notice was given to the Clearing
System.]

[(3)] Form of Notice. Notices to be given by any Holder shall be made by
means of a declaration in text format (Textform, e.g. email or fax) or in written
form to be sent together with the relevant Note or Notes to the Fiscal Agent.
So long as any of the Notes are represented by a global Note, such notice
may be given by any Holder of a Note to the Agent through the Clearing
System in such manner as the Agent and the Clearing System may approve
for such purpose.

§[15]
Applicable Law,
Place of Jurisdiction and Enforcement

(1) Applicable Law. The Notes, as to form and content, and all rights and
obligations of the Holders and the Issuer, shall be governed by German law.

(2) Submission to Jurisdiction. The District Court (Landgericht) in Frankfurt am
Main shall have non-exclusive jurisdiction for any action or other legal
proceedings ("Proceedings") arising out of or in connection with the Notes.
The jurisdiction of such Court shall be exclusive if Proceedings are brought by
merchants (Kaufleute), legal persons under public law (juristische Personen
des offentlichen Rechts), special funds under public law (6ffentlich-rechtliche
Sondervermdgen) and persons not subject to the general jurisdiction of the
courts of the Federal Republic of Germany (Personen ohne allgemeinen
Gerichtsstand in der Bundesrepublik Deutschland).

(3) Enforcement. Any Holder of Notes may in any Proceedings against the
Issuer, or to which such Holder and the Issuer are parties, protect and enforce
in his own name his rights arising under such Notes on the basis of (i) a
statement issued by the Custodian (as defined below) with whom such Holder
maintains a securities account in respect of the Notes (a) stating the full name
and address of the Holder, (b) specifying the aggregate principal amount of
Notes credited to such securities account on the date of such statement and
(c) confirming that the Custodian has given written notice to the Clearing
System containing the information pursuant to (a) and (b) and (ii) a copy (of
the Note in global form certified as being a true copy by a duly authorized
officer of the Clearing System or a depository of the Clearing System, without
the need for production in such Proceedings of the actual records or the global
note representing the Notes. For purposes of the foregoing, "Custodian"
means any bank or other financial institution of recognized standing authorized
to engage in securities custody business with which the Holder maintains a
securities account in respect of the Notes and includes the Clearing System.
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Each Holder may, without prejudice to the foregoing, protect and enforce his
rights under these Notes also in any other way which is admitted in the country
of the Proceedings.

§[16]
Language

[These Terms and Conditions are written in the German language and
provided with an English language translation. The German text shall be
controlling and binding. The English language translation is provided for
convenience only.]

[These Terms and Conditions are written in the English language and provided
with a German language translation. The English text shall be controlling and
binding. The German language translation is provided for convenience only.]

[These Terms and Conditions are written in the English language only.]

[Eine deutsche Ubersetzung der Anleihebedingungen wird bei der Deutsche
Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft), OsterstralBe 31, 30159 Hannover,
Bundesrepublik Deutschland zur kostenlosen Ausgabe bereitgehalten.]



In the case of Notes
which are represented
by a Permanent
Global Note the
following applies

In the case of Notes
which are

initially represented
by a Temporary
Global Note the
following applies

105

OPTION IV — Terms and Conditions that apply to Notes (other than
Pfandbriefe) with floating to fixed interest rates

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES
ENGLISH LANGUAGE VERSION

g1
Currency, Denomination, Form, Certain Definitions

(1) Currency; Denomination. This tranche of [subordinated] Notes (the
"Notes") of Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft) (the "Issuer") is
being issued in [Specified Currency] (the "Specified Currency") in the
aggregate principal amount [in the case the Global Note is a NGN the
following applies: (subject to § 1 (4))] of [aggregate principal amount] (in
words: [aggregate principal amount in words]) in the denomination of
[Specified Denomination] (the "Specified Denomination").

(2) Form. The Notes are in bearer form and represented by one or more global
notes (each a "Global Note").

[(3) Permanent Global Note. The Notes are represented by a permanent
Global Note (the "Permanent Global Note") without coupons. The Permanent
Global Note shall be signed manually by two authorised signatories of the
Issuer and shall be authenticated by or on behalf of the Fiscal Agent. Definitive
Notes and interest coupons will not be issued.]

[(3) Temporary Global Note — Exchange.

(a) The Notes are initially represented by a temporary global note (the
"Temporary Global Note") without interest coupons. The Temporary
Global Note will be exchangeable for a permanent global note (the
"Permanent Global Note") without interest coupons. The Temporary
Global Note and the Permanent Global Note shall each be signed
manually by two authorized signatories of the Issuer and shall each be
authenticated by or on behalf of the Fiscal Agent. Definitive Notes and
interest coupons will not be issued.

(b) The Temporary Global Note shall be exchangeable for the Permanent
Global Note from a date (the "Exchange Date") 40 days after the date of
issue of the Temporary Global Note. Such exchange shall only be made
upon delivery of certifications to the effect that the beneficial owner or
owners of the Notes represented by the Temporary Global Note is or are
not a U.S. person (other than certain financial institutions or certain
persons holding Notes through such financial institutions) as required by
U.S. tax law. The certifications shall be in compliance with the respective
United States Treasury Regulations as applicable from time to time.
Payment of interest on Notes represented by a Temporary Global Note will
be made only after delivery of such certifications. A separate certification
shall be required in respect of each such payment of interest. Any such
certification received on or after the 40" day after the date of issue of the
Temporary Global Note will be treated as a request to exchange such
Temporary Global Note pursuant to this subparagraph (b) of this § 1 (3).
Any securities delivered in exchange for the Temporary Global Note shall
be delivered only outside of the United States. For purposes of this
subparagraph (3), "United States" means the United States of America
(including the States thereof and the District of Columbia) and its
possessions (including Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin lIslands, Guam,
American Samoa, Wake Island and Northern Mariana Islands).]

(4) Clearing System. Each Global Note representing the Notes will be kept in
custody by or on behalf of the Clearing System. The Permanent Global Note
will be kept in custody by or on behalf of the Clearing System until all
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obligations of the Issuer under the Notes have been satisfied. "Clearing
System" means [if more than one Clearing System the following applies:
each of] the following: [Clearstream Banking AG, Neue Boérsenstral3e 1, 60487
Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany ("Clearstream Frankfurt")]
[Clearstream Banking S.A., 42 Avenue JF Kennedy, 1855 Luxembourg, Grand
Duchy of Luxembourg ("Clearstream Luxembourg"), Euroclear Bank SA/NV,
Boulevard du Roi Albert Il, 1210 Brussels, Belgium ("Euroclear") (Clearstream
Luxembourg and Euroclear each an "ICSD" and together the "ICSDs")] and
any successor in such capacity.

[The Notes are issued in new global note ("NGN") form and are kept in
custody by a common safekeeper on behalf of both ICSDs.

The aggregate principal amount of Notes represented by the Global Note shall
be the aggregate amount from time to time entered in the records of both
ICSDs. The records of the ICSDs (which expression means the records that
each ICSD holds for its customers which reflect the amount of such customer's
interest in the Notes) shall be conclusive evidence of the aggregate principal
amount of Notes represented by the Global Note and, for these purposes, a
statement issued by an ICSD stating the amount of Notes so represented at
any time shall be conclusive evidence of the records of the relevant ICSD at
that time.

On any redemption or payment of an instalment or interest being made in
respect of, or purchase and cancellation of, any of the Notes represented by
the Global Note the Issuer shall procure that details of any redemption,
payment or purchase and cancellation (as the case may be) in respect of the
Global Note shall be entered pro rata in the records of the ICSDs and, upon
any such entry being made, the aggregate principal amount of the Notes
recorded in the records of the ICSDs and represented by the Global Note shall
be reduced by the aggregate principal amount of the Notes so redeemed or
purchased and cancelled or by the aggregate amount of such instalment so
paid.

[In the case of a Temporary Global Note the following applies: On an
exchange of a portion only of the Notes represented by a Temporary Global
Note, the Issuer shall procure that details of such exchange shall be entered
pro rata in the records of the ICSDs.]]

[The Notes are issued in classical global note ("CGN") form and are kept in
custody by a common depositary on behalf of both ICSDs.]

(5) Holder of Notes. "Holder" means any holder of a proportionate co-
ownership or other beneficial interest or right in the Notes.

[§2
Status

The Notes constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured
obligations of the Issuer ranking pari passu among themselves and pari passu
with all other unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer, except
for obligations which are accorded priority by operation of law.

[At issuance, the Notes constituted [preferred] debt instruments [within the
meaning of [Section 46f Subsection 5 of the German Banking Act] [insert
relevant provision]].]]
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[§2
Status

(1) The Notes constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured
liabilities of the Issuer ranking pari passu with each other and with all other
unsubordinated and unsecured liabilities of the Issuer, with the following
exception:

As unsubordinated, non-preferred obligations of the Issuer payment claims
under the Notess rank

subordinated to other unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer
if and to the extent, such unsubordinated and unsecured obligations enjoy
[preferred] treatments by law [within the meaning of [Section 46f Subsection 5
of the German Banking Act] [insert relevant provision]] in insolvency
proceedings or in case of an imposition of resolution measures with regard to
the Issuer,

but in each case rank senior to any subordinated debt of the Issuer.

[At issuance, the Notes constituted [non-preferred] debt instruments [within
the meaning of [Section 46f Subsection 6 Sentence 1 of the German Banking
Act] [insert relevant provision]].]

[(2) The Holders of the Notes are not entitled to set off claims arising from the
Notes against any of the Issuer's claims.

No security of whatever kind is, or shall at any later time be, provided by the
Issuer or any of its associated companies or any third party that has a close
link with the Issuer or any of its associated companies or any other person
securing rights of the Holders under the Notes.]

[(2)][(3)] No subsequent agreement may alter the rank pursuant to the
provisions set out in this § 2 or shorten the term of the Notes or any applicable
notice period.

[[(3)][(4)] The Notes shall qualify as instruments that qualify as eligible
liabilities pursuant to the minimum requirement for own funds and eligible
liabilities (MREL).]

[[(D][(5)] Under the relevant resolution laws and regulations applicable to the
Issuer, the competent resolution authority may

(&) write down, in whole or in part, the claims for payment of principall,
interest] or any other amount;

(b) convert these claims into ordinary shares or other common equity tier 1
capital instruments of (i) the Issuer or (ii) any group entity or (iii) any
bridge bank (and issue such instruments to, or confer them on, the
Holders); and/or

(c) apply any other resolution measure, including, but not limited to, (i) any
transfer of the obligations under the Notes to another entity, (ii) the
amendment, modification or variation of the Terms and Conditions of the
Notes or (iii) the cancellation of the Notes

(each, a "Resolution Measure").]

[[(®)][(6)] The Holders shall be bound by any Resolution Measure. No Holder
shall have any claim or other right against the Issuer arising out of or in
connection with any Resolution Measure. In particular, the exercise of any
Resolution Measure shall not constitute an event of default under the Notes.]]



In the case of
subordinated Notes
the following applies

In the case of
Specified Variable
Interest Payment
Dates the following
applies

In the case of
Specified Interest
Periods the following
applies

108

[§2
Status

(1) In accordance with applicable provisions concerning the classification as
own funds, the Notes shall be available for the Issuer as eligible own funds
instrument in the form of Tier 2 capital pursuant to Art. 63 CRR (as defined in
§[13] (Erganzungskapital, "Tier 2 Capital”)). The Notes constitute direct,
unconditional, subordinated and unsecured liabilities of the Issuer ranking pari
passu with each other and with all other subordinated liabilities of the Issuer,
except as otherwise provided by applicable law or the terms of any such other
subordinated liabilities. In the event of resolution measures imposed on the
Issuer and in the event of the lIssuer's dissolution, liquidation, insolvency,
composition or other proceedings for the avoidance of insolvency of, or
against, the Issuer, the liabilities under the Notes will be wholly subordinated to
the claims of all unsubordinated creditors of the Issuer with the result that, in
any case, payments will not be made on the liabilities under the Notes until all
of the Issuer's unsubordinated creditors have been satisfied in full.

(2) The Holders of the Notes are not entitled to set off claims arising from the
Notes against any of the Issuer's claims. No security of whatever kind is, or
shall at any later time be, provided by the Issuer or any of its associated
companies or any third party that has a close link with the Issuer or any of its
associated companies or any other person securing rights of the Holders
under the Notes.

(3) No subsequent agreement may limit the subordination pursuant to the
provisions set out in this § 2 or shorten the term of the Notes or any applicable
notice period. Any redemption or repurchase of the Notes prior to their
scheduled maturity requires the prior consent of the competent regulatory
authority of the Issuer. If the Notes are redeemed or repurchased and
cancelled by the Issuer otherwise than in the circumstances described in this
§ 2 or as a result of an early repurchase or redemption pursuant to § 4 or
§ [13] of these Terms and Conditions, then the amounts redeemed or paid
must be returned to the Issuer irrespective of any agreement to the contrary
unless the competent regulatory authority has given its prior permission to
such early redemption or repurchase.]

83
Interest

(1) Variable Interest.

(@) The Notes bear interest on their principal amount from (and including)
[Interest Commencement Date] (the "Interest Commencement Date")
to (but excluding) the first Variable Interest Payment Date and thereafter
from (and including) each Variable Interest Payment Date to (but
excluding) the next following Variable Interest Payment Date (relevant
[three] [six] [twelve] month period) (each, an "Interest Period"). Interest
on the Notes shall be payable in arrear on each Variable Interest Payment
Date.

(b) "Variable Interest Payment Date" means

[each [Specified Variable Interest Payment Dates].]

[each date which (except as otherwise provided in these Terms and
Conditions) falls [number] [weeks] [months] [other specified periods]
after the preceding Variable Interest Payment Date or, in the case of the
first Variable Interest Payment Date, after the Interest Commencement
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Date.]

(c) If any Variable Interest Payment Date would otherwise fall on a day which
is not a Business Day (as defined below), it shall be:

[postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby
fall into the next calendar month, in which event the Variable Interest Payment
Date shall be the immediately preceding Business Day.]

[postponed to the next day which is a Business Day.]

[the immediately preceding Business Day.]

If a payment of interest is [brought forward] [or] [postponed] to a Business
Day as described above, the amount of interest shall [not] be adjusted
accordingly [If an adjustment of interest applies insert: and the Variable
Interest Payment Date shall be adjusted to the relevant Business Day].

(d) In this 8§ 3 (1) "Business Day" means

[a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which both (i) the Clearing
System, and (ii) the Trans-European Automated Real-time Gross Settlement
Express Transfer System 2 (TARGET2) ("TARGET") is open tosettle
payments.]

[a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which both (i) the Clearing
System, and (ii) commercial banks and foreign exchange markets in [all
relevant financial centres] settle payments.]

[(2) Rate of Interest. The rate of interest (the "Rate of Interest") for each
Interest Period will, except as provided below, be determined by the
Calculation Agent and is the Reference Rate (as defined below) [[plus]
[minus] the Margin (as defined below)]. The applicable Reference Rate shall
be the rate which appears on the Screen Page as of 11:00 a.m. (Brussels
time) on the Interest Determination Date (as defined below).

"Reference Rate" is the offered quotation (expressed as a percentage rate per
annum) for deposits in the Specified Currency for that Interest Period
(EURIBOR).

"Interest Determination Date" means the [second] [other applicable
number of days] [TARGET] [London] [other relevant financial centre]
Business Day [prior to the commencement] of the relevant Interest Period. [In
case of a TARGET Business Day the following applies: "TARGET
Business Day" means a day on which TARGET is open.] [In case of a hon-
TARGET Business Day the following applies: "[London] [other relevant
financial centre] Business Day" means a day (other than a Saturday or
Sunday) on which commercial banks are open for business (including dealings
in foreign exchange and foreign currency) in [London] other relevant
financial centre].]

['Margin" means [¢]% per annum.]

"Screen Page" means EURIBOROL1 or the relevant successor page on that
service or on any other service as may be nominated as the information
vendor for the purposes of displaying rates or prices comparable to the
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relevant Reference Rate.

If the Screen Page is not available or no quotation for the Reference Rate
appears as at such time and provided that no Rate Replacement Event
pursuant to § 3 [(10)] has occurred, the Calculation Agent shall request the
principal Euro-Zoneoffice of each of the Reference Banks (as defined below)
to provide the Calculation Agent with its offered quotation (expressed as a
percentage rate per annum) for deposits in the Specified Currency for the
relevant Interest Period and in a representative amount to prime banks in the
interbank market of the Euro-Zone at approximately 11.00 a.m. (Brussels time)
on the Interest Determination Date. "Euro-Zone" means the region comprised
of Member States of the European Union that participate in the European
Economic and Monetary Union. If two or more of the Reference Banks provide
the Calculation Agent with such offered quotations, the Rate of Interest for
such Interest Period shall be the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the
nearest one thousandth of a percentage point, with 0.0005 being rounded
upwards) of such offered quotations [[plus] [minus] the Margin], all as
determined by the Calculation Agent.

If on any Interest Determination Date only one or none of the Reference Banks
provides the Calculation Agent with such offered quotations as provided in the
preceding paragraph, the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period shall
be the rate per annum which the Calculation Agent determines as being the
arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the nearest [one thousandth of a
percentage point, with 0.0005 being rounded upwards) of the rates, as
communicated to (and at the request of) the Calculation Agent by major banks
in the interbank market in the Euro-Zone, selected by the Calculation Agent
acting in good faith, at which such banks offer, as at 11.00 a.m. (Brussels
time) on the relevant Interest Determination Date, loans in the Specified
Currency for the relevant Interest Period and in a representative amount to
leading European banks [[plus] [minus] the Margin].

If the Rate of Interest cannot be determined in accordance with the foregoing
provisions of this subparagraph (2), the Rate of Interest for such Interest
Period shall be the offered quotation on the Screen Page, as described above,
on the last day preceding the Interest Determination Date on which such
offered quotation was displayed [[plus] [minus] the Margin (as defined
above)], all as determined by the Calculation Agent.

As used herein, "Reference Banks" means four major banks in the interbank
market in the Euro-Zone.]

[(2) Rate of Interest. The rate of interest (the "Rate of Interest") for each
Interest Period (as defined below) will, except as provided below, be
determined by the Calculation Agent and is the Reference Rate (as defined
below) [[plus] [minus] the Margin (as defined below)]. The applicable
Reference Rate shall be the rate which appears on the Screen Page as of
11:00 a. m. (London time) on the Interest Determination Date (as defined
below).

"Reference Rate" is the offered quotation (expressed as a percentage rate per
annum) for deposits in the Specified Currency for that Interest Period (LIBOR).

"Interest Determination Date" means the [first][second] [relevant financial
centre(s)] Business Day [prior to the commencement] of the relevant Interest
Period. "[relevant financial centre(s)] Business Day" means a day (other
than a Saturday or Sunday) on which commercial banks are open for business
(including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency) in [relevant
financial centre(s)].

["Margin" means [e] % per annum.]
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"Screen Page" means Reuters screen page [LIBORO01] [LIBORO02] or the
relevant successor page on that service or on any other service as may be
nominated as the information vendor for the purposes of displaying rates or
prices comparable to the relevant Reference Rate.

If the Screen Page is not available or no quotation for the Reference Rate
appears as at such time and provided that no Rate Replacement Event
pursuant to 8 3 [(10)] has occurred, the Calculation Agent shall request each
of the Reference Banks (as defined below) to provide the Calculation Agent
with its offered quotation (expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for
deposits in the Specified Currency for the relevant Interest Period and in a
representative amount to prime banks in the London interbank market at
approximately 11.00 a. m. (London time) on the Interest Determination Date. If
two or more of the Reference Banks provide the Calculation Agent with such
offered quotations, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall be the
arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the nearest one hundred-thousandth
of a percentage point, with 0.000005 being rounded upwards) of such offered
quotations [[plus] [minus] the Margin], all as determined by the Calculation
Agent.

If on any Interest Determination Date only one or none of the Reference Banks
provides the Calculation Agent with such offered quotations as provided in the
preceding paragraph, the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period shall
be the rate per annum which the Calculation Agent determines as being the
arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the nearest one hundred-thousandth
of a percentage point, with 0.000005 being rounded upwards) of the rates, as
communicated to and at the request of the Calculation Agent by major banks
in the London interbank market, selected by the Calculation Agent acting in
good faith, at which such banks offer, as at 11.00 a.m. (London time) on the
relevant Interest Determination Date, loans in the Specified Currency for the
relevant Interest Period and in a representative amount to leading European
banks [[plus] [minus] the Margin].

If the Rate of Interest cannot be determined in accordance with the foregoing
provisions of this subparagraph (2), the Rate of Interest for such Interest
Period shall be the offered quotation on the Screen Page, as described above,
on the last day preceding the Interest Determination Date on which such
offered quotation was displayed [[plus] [minus] the Margin (as defined
above)], all as determined by the Calculation Agent.

As used herein, "Reference Banks" means four major banks in the London
interbank market.]

[(3) Minimum Rate of Interest. If the Rate of Interest in respect of any Interest
Period determined in accordance with the above provisions is less than
[Minimum Rate of Interest], the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall
be [Minimum Rate of Interest].]

[(3) Maximum Rate of Interest. If the Rate of Interest in respect of any Interest
Period determined in accordance with the above provisions is greater than
[Maximum Rate of Interest], the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall
be [Maximum Rate of Interest].]

[(4)] Interest Amount. The Calculation Agent will, on or as soon as practicable
after each time at which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, calculate the
amount of interest (the "Interest Amount") payable on the Notes in respect of
the Specified Denomination for the relevant Interest Period. Each Interest
Amount shall be calculated by multiplying the Rate of Interest applicable to an
Interest Period with the Specified Denomination and multiplying the product
with the Day Count Fraction (as defined below) and by rounding the resultant
figure to the nearest unit of the Specified Currency, with 0.5 of such unit being
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rounded upwards.

[(5)] Natification of Rate of Interest and Interest Amount. The Calculation
Agent will cause the Rate of Interest, each Interest Amount for each Interest
Period, each Interest Period and the relevant Variable Interest Payment Date
to be notified to the Issuer and, if required by the rules of any stock exchange
on which the Notes are from time to time listed, to such stock exchange (in the
case of listing on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange not later than the first
Business Day prior to the Interest Period), and to the Holders in accordance
with 8 [14] as soon as possible after their determination, but in no event later
than the fourth [TARGET] [London] [other relevant reference] Business Day
(as defined in 8 3 (1)) thereafter. Each Interest Amount and Variable Interest
Payment Date so notified may subsequently be amended (or appropriate
alternative arrangements may be made by way of adjustment) without prior
notice in the event of an extension or shortening of the Interest Period. Any
such amendment will be promptly notified to any stock exchange on which the
Notes are then listed and the rules of which so require, and to the Holders in
accordance with § [14].

[(6)] Determinations Binding. All certificates, communications, opinions,
determinations, calculations, quotations and decisions given, expressed, made
or obtained for the purposes of the provisions of this § 3 by the Calculation
Agent shall (in the absence of manifest error) be binding on the Issuer, the
Fiscal Agent [, the Paying Agents] and the Holders.

[(7)] Day Count Fraction for the period of variable interest. "Day Count
Fraction" means with regard to the calculation of interest on any Note for any
period of time (the "Variable Calculation Period"):

[the actual number of days in the Variable Calculation Period divided by the
actual number of days in the respective interest period.]

[the number of days in the Variable Calculation Period divided by the number
of days in the Reference Period in which the Variable Calculation Period
falls.]

[the number of days in the Variable Calculation Period divided by the product
of (1) the number of days in the Reference Period in which the Variable
Calculation Period falls and (2) the number of Variable Interest Payment
Dates that occur in one calendar year or that would occur in one calendar
year if interest were payable in respect of the whole of such year.]

[the sum of:
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(A) the number of days in such Variable Calculation Period falling in the
Reference Period in which the Variable Calculation Period begins
divided by [in the case of Reference Periods of less than one year
the following applies: the product of (1)] the number of days in such
Reference Period [in the case of Reference Periods of less than one
year the following applies: and (2) the number of Variable Interest
Payment Dates that occur in one calendar year or that would occur in
one calendar year if interest were payable in respect of the whole of
such year]; and

the number of days in such Variable Calculation Period falling in the next
Reference Period divided by [in the case of Reference Periods of less
than one year the following applies: the product of (1)] the number of
days in such Reference Period [in the case of Reference Periods of
less than one year the following applies: and (2) the number of
Variable Interest Payment Dates that occur in one calendar year or that
would occur in one calendar year if interest were payable in respect of
the whole of such year].]

(B)

['Reference Period" means the period from (and including) the Interest
Commencement Date to, but excluding, the first Variable Interest Payment
Date or from (and including) each Variable Interest Payment Date to, but
excluding, the next Variable Interest Payment Date. [In the case of a short
first or last Variable Calculation Period the following applies: For the
purposes of determining the [first] [last] Reference Period only, [deemed
Interest Commencement Date or deemed Variable Interest Payment
Date] shall be deemed to be an [Interest Commencement Date] [Variable
Interest Payment Date].] [In the case of a long first or last Variable
Calculation Period the following applies: For the purposes of determining
the [first] [last] Reference Period only, [deemed Interest Commencement
Date and/or deemed Variable Interest Payment Date(s)] shall each be
deemed to be [Interest Commencement Date][and] [Variable Interest
Payment Date[s]].]]

[the actual number of days in the Variable Calculation Period divided by 365.]

[the actual number of days in the Variable Calculation Period divided by 360.]

[the number of days in the Variable Calculation Period divided by 360, the
number of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with twelve
30-day months (unless (A) the last day of the Variable Calculation Period is
the 31st day of a month but the first day of the Variable Calculation Period is a
day other than the 30t or 31st day of a month, in which case the month that
includes that last day shall not be considered to be shortened to a 30-day
month, or (B) the last day of the Variable Calculation Period is the last day of
the month of February in which case the month of February shall not be
considered to be lengthened to a 30-day month).]

[the number of days in the Variable Calculation Period divided by 360 (the
number of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with twelve
30-day months, without regard to the date of the first day or last day of the
Variable Calculation Period unless, in the case of the final Variable Calculation
Period, the last day of the Variable Calculation Period is the last day of the
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month of February, in which case the month of February shall not be
considered lengthened to a 30-day month).]

[(8)] (a) Fixed Interest.

[The Notes shall bear interest on their aggregate principal amount at the rate of
[rate of interest] % per annum from (and including) [last Variable Interest
Payment Date] to (but excluding) the Maturity Date (as defined in § 4(1)).]

[The Notes shall bear interest on their aggregate principal amount as follows:

from to
(and including) (but excluding) per cent per annum

[specified dates] [specified dates] [specified rates]]

Interest shall be payable in arrear on [fixed interest date or dates] in each
year (each such date, a "Fixed Interest Payment Date"). The first fixed
payment of interest shall be made on [first fixed interest payment date] [in
the case of a long or short first coupon the following applies: and will
amount to [initial broken amount] per Specified Denomination]. [in the case
of a long or short last coupon the following applies: Interest in respect of
the period from (and including) the penultimate Fixed Interest Payment Date to
(but excluding) the Maturity Date will amount to [final broken amount] per

Specified Denomination.]

(b) Calculation of Interest for Partial Periods. If interest is required to be
calculated for a period of less than a full year, such interest shall be calculated
on the basis of the Day Count Fraction (as defined below).

(c) Day Count Fraction for the period of fixed interest. "Day Count Fraction
means with regard to the calculation of interest on any Note for any period of
time (the "Fixed Calculation Period"):

[the actual number of days in the Fixed Calculation Period divided by the
actual number of days in the respective interest period.]

[the number of days in the Fixed Calculation Period divided by the number of
days in the Reference Period in which the Fixed Calculation Period falls.]

[the number of days in the Fixed Calculation Period divided by the product of
(1) the number of days in the Reference Period in which the Fixed Calculation
Period falls and (2) the number of Fixed Interest Payment Dates that occur in
one calendar year or that would occur in one calendar year if interest were
payable in respect of the whole of such year.]



If Actual/Actual
(ICMA Rule 251) is
applicable and if the
Fixed Calculation
Period is longer than
one Reference
Period (long coupon)
the following applies
(includes the case of
long and short
coupons)

In the case of all
options of
Actual/Actual (ICMA
Rule 251) except for
option Actual/Actual
(ICMA Rule 251) with
annual interest
payments (excluding
the case of afirst or
last short or long
coupon) the
following applies

Actual/365 (Fixed) the

In the case of
following applies

Actual/360 the

In the case of
following applies

In the case of 30/360,
360/360 or Bond
Basis the following
applies

115

[the sum of:

(A) the number of days in such Fixed Calculation Period falling in the
Reference Period in which the Fixed Calculation Period begins divided by
[in the case of Reference Periods of less than one year the following
applies: the product of (1)] the number of days in such Reference Period
[in the case of Reference Periods of less than one year the following
applies: and (2) the number of Fixed Interest Payment Dates that occur
in one calendar year or that would occur in one calendar year if interest
were payable in respect of the whole of such year]; and

the number of days in such Fixed Calculation Period falling in the next
Reference Period divided by [in the case of Reference Periods of less
than one year the following applies: the product of (1)] the number of
days in such Reference Period [in the case of Reference Periods of
less than one year the following applies: and (2) the number of Fixed
Interest Payment Dates that occur in one calendar year or that would
occur in one calendar year if interest were payable in respect of the whole
of such year].]

(B)

['Reference Period" means the period from (and including) the last Variable
Interest Payment Date or from (and including) each Fixed Interest Payment
Date to, but excluding, the next Fixed Interest Payment Date. [In the case of
a short first or last Fixed Calculation Period the following applies: For the
purposes of determining the [first] [last] Reference Period only, [deemed
Fixed Interest Payment Date] shall be deemed to be a [Fixed Interest
Payment Date].] [In the case of a long first or last Fixed Calculation
Period the following applies: For the purposes of determining the [first]
[last] Reference Period only, [deemed Fixed Interest Payment Date(s)] shall
be deemed to be [a] [Fixed Interest Payment Date[s]].]]

[the actual number of days in the Fixed Calculation Period divided by 365.]

[the actual number of days in the Fixed Calculation Period divided by 360.]

[the number of days in the Fixed Calculation Period divided by 360, the number
of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with twelve 30-day
months (unless (A) the last day of the Fixed Calculation Period is the 315t day of
a month but the first day of the Fixed Calculation Period is a day other than the
30" or 31t day of a month, in which case the month that includes that last day
shall not be considered to be shortened to a 30-day month, or (B) the last day
of the Fixed Calculation Period is the last day of the month of February in which
case the month of February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-
day month).]
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[the number of days in the Fixed Calculation Period divided by 360 (the number
of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with twelve 30-day
months, without regard to the date of the first day or last day of the Fixed
Calculation Period unless, in the case of the final Fixed Calculation Period, the
last day of the Fixed Calculation Period is the last day of the month of February,
in which case the month of February shall not be considered lengthened to a
30-day month).]

[(9)] Accrual of Interest. The Notes shall cease to bear interest as from the
beginning of the day on which they are due for redemption. If the Issuer shall
fail to redeem the Notes when due, interest shall (except in the circumstances
provided in 8 5 (4) continue to accrue on the outstanding principal amount of
the Notes from (and including) the due date to (but excluding) the date of actual
redemption of the Notes at the default rate of interest established by law?,
unless the rate of interest under the Notes is higher than the default rate of
interest established by law, in which event the rate of interest under the Notes
continues to apply during the before-mentioned period of time.

[(10)](a) Rate Replacement. If the Issuer determines (in consultation with the
Calculation Agent) that a Rate Replacement Event has occurred on or prior to
an Interest Determination Date, the Relevant Determining Party shall determine
and inform the Issuer, if relevant, and the Calculation Agent of (i) the
Replacement Rate, (ii) the Adjustment Spread, if any, and (iii) the Replacement
Rate Adjustments (each as defined below in § 3 [(10)](b)(aa) to (cc) and (hh))
for purposes of determining the Rate of Interest for the Interest Period related to
that Interest Determination Date and each Interest Period thereafter (subject to
the subsequent occurrence of any further Rate Replacement Event). The Terms
and Conditions shall be deemed to have been amended by the Replacement
Rate Adjustments with effect from (and including) the relevant Interest
Determination Date (including any amendment of such Interest Determination
Date if so provided by the Replacement Rate Adjustments). The Rate of
Interest shall then be the Replacement Rate (as defined below) adjusted by the
Adjustment Spread, if any, [[plus] [minus] the Margin (as defined above)].

The Issuer shall notify the Holders pursuant to § [14] as soon as practicable
(unverzuglich) after such determination of the Replacement Rate, the
Adjustment Spread, if any, and the Replacement Rate Adjustments. In addition,
the Issuer shall request the [Clearing System] [common depositary on behalf of
both ICSDs] to supplement or amend the Terms and Conditions to reflect the
Replacement Rate Adjustments by attaching the documents submitted to the
Global Note in an appropriate manner

(b) Definitions.

(aa) "Rate Replacement Event" means, with respect to the Reference Rate
each of the following events:

(i) the Reference Rate not having been published on the Screen Page
for the last ten Business Days prior to and including the relevant
Interest Determination Date; or

1 The default rate of interest established by law is five percentage points above the basic rate of interest set by the European
Central Bank from time to time, 8§ 288(1), 247 German Civil Code.
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(i) the occurrence of the date, as publicly announced by or, as the case
may be, determineable based upon the public announcement of the
administrator of the Reference Rate on which (x) the administrator
will cease to publish the Reference Rate permanently or indefinitely
(in circumstances where no successor administrator has been
appointed that will continue the publication of the Reference Rate),
or (y) the Reference Rate will permanently or indefinitely be
discontinued; or

(i) the occurrence of the date, as publicly announced by the regulatory
supervisor for the administrator of the Reference Rate, the central
bank for the Specified Currency, an insolvency official with
jurisdiction over the administrator for the Reference Rate, a
resolution authority with jurisdiction over the administrator for the
Reference Rate or a court (unappealable final decision) or an entity
with similar insolvency or resolution authority over the administrator
for the Reference Rate, on which the administrator of the Reference
Rate has ceased or will cease to provide the Reference Rate
permanently or indefinitely (in circumstances where no successor
administrator has been appointed that will continue the publication of
the Reference Rate); or

(iv) the occurrence of the date, as publicly announced by or, as the case
may be, determineable based upon the public announcement of the
supervisor of the administrator of the Reference Rate, from which
the Reference Rate will be prohibited from being used; or

(v) the occurrence of the date, as publicly announced by or, as the case
may be, determineable based upon the public announcement of the
administrator of the Reference Rate, of a material change in the
methodology of determining the Reference Rate; or

(vi) the publication of a notice by the Issuer pursuant to 8§ [14] (1) that it
has become unlawful for the Issuer, the Calculation Agent or any
Paying Agent to calculate any Rate of Interest using the Reference
Rate.

(bb) "Replacement Rate" means a publicly available substitute, successor,
alternative or other rate designed to be referenced by financial instruments or
contracts, including the Notes, to determine an amount payable under such
financial instruments or contracts, including, but not limited to, an amount of
interest. In determining the Replacement Rate, the Relevant Guidance (as
defined below) shall be taken into account.

(cc) "Adjustment Spread" means a spread (which may be positive or
negative), or the formula or methodology for calculating a spread, which the
Relevant Determining Party determines is required to be applied to the
Replacement Rate to reduce or eliminate, to the extent reasonably practicable,
any transfer of economic value between the Issuer and the Holders that would
otherwise arise as a result of the replacement of the Reference Rate against
the Replacement Rate (including, but not limited to, as a result of the
Replacement Rate being a risk-free rate). In determining the Adjustment
Spread, the Relevant Guidance (as defined below) shall be taken into account.

(dd) "Relevant Determining Party" means

(i) the Issuer if in its opinion the Replacement Rate is obvious and as
such without any reasonable doubt determinable by an investor that
is knowledgeable in the respective type of bonds, such as the Notes;
or
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(i) failing which, an Independent Advisor, to be appointed by the Issuer
at commercially reasonable terms, using reasonable endeavours, as
its agent to make such determinations.

(ee) "Independent Advisor" means an independent financial institution of
international repute or any other independent advisor of recognised standing
and with appropriate expertise.

(f)  "Relevant Guidance" means (i) any legal or supervisory requirement
applicable to the Issuer or the Notes or, if none, (ii) any applicable requirement,
recommendation or guidance of a Relevant Nominating Body or, if none, (iii)
any relevant recommendation or guidance by industry bodies (including by
ISDA), or, if none, (iv) any relevant market practice.

(gg) "Relevant Nominating Body" means

(i) the central bank for the Specified Currency, or any central bank or
other supervisor which is responsible for supervising either the
Replacement Rate or the administrator of the Replacement Rate; or

(i) any working group or committee officially endorsed, sponsored or
convened by or chaired or co-chaired by (w) the central bank for the
Specified Currency, (X) any central bank or other supervisor which is
responsible for supervising either the Reference Rate or the
administrator of the Reference Rate, (y) a group of the
aforementioned central banks or other supervisors or (z) the
Financial Stability Board or any part thereof.

(hh) "Replacement Rate Adjustments” means such adjustments to the
Terms and Conditions as are determined consequential to enable the operation
of the Replacement Rate (which may include, without limitation, adjustments to
the applicable Business Day Convention, the definition of Business Day, the
Interest Determination Date, the Day Count Fraction and any methodology or
definition for obtaining or calculating the Replacement Rate). In determining any
Replacement Rate Adjustments the Relevant Guidance shall be taken in
account.

(c) Termination. If a Replacement Rate, an Adjustment Spread, if any, or the
Replacement Rate Adjustments cannot be determined pursuant to § 3 [(10)](a)
and (b), the Reference Rate in respect of the relevant Interest Determination
Date shall be the Reference Rate determined for the last preceding Interest
Period. The Issuer will inform the Calculation Agent accordingly. As a result, the
Issuer may, upon not less than 15 days' notice given to the Holders in
accordance with 8§ [14], redeem all, and not only some of the Notes at any time
up and until (but excluding) the respective subsequent Interest Determination
Date at the Final Redemption Amount together with accrued interest, if any, to
(but excluding) the respective redemption date.

§4
Redemption

(1) Final Redemption.

Unless previously redeemed in whole or in part or purchased and cancelled,
the Notes shall be redeemed at their Final Redemption Amount on [Maturity
Date] (the "Maturity Date"). The Final Redemption Amount in respect of each
Note (the "Final Redemption Amount") shall be its principal amount.

[(2) Early Redemption for Reasons of Taxation. If as a result of any change in,
or amendment to, the laws or regulations of the Federal Republic of Germany
or any political subdivision or taxing authority thereto or therein affecting
taxation or the obligation to pay duties of any kind, or any change in, or
amendment to, an official interpretation or application of such laws or
regulations, which amendment or change is effective on or after the date on
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which the last tranche of the Notes was issued, the Issuer is required to pay
Additional Amounts (as defined in § 7 herein) on the next succeeding Interest
Payment Date and this obligation cannot be avoided by the use of reasonable
measures available to the Issuer, the Notes may be redeemed, in whole but
not in part, at the option of the Issuer, upon not less than 60 days' prior notice
of redemption given to the Fiscal Agent and, in accordance with § [14] to the
Holders, at their Final Redemption Amount, together with interest accrued to
the date fixed for redemption. However, no such notice of redemption may be
for redemption.

However, no such notice of redemption may be given (i) earlier than 90 days
prior to the earliest date on which the Issuer would be obligated to pay such
Additional Amounts were a payment in respect of the Notes then due, or (ii) if
at the time such notice is given, such obligation to pay such Additional
Amounts does not remain in effect. The date fixed for redemption must be an
Interest Payment Date.

Any such notice shall be given in accordance with §[14]. It shall be
irrevocable, must specify the date fixed for redemption and must set forth a
statement in summary form of the facts constituting the basis for the right of
the Issuer so to redeem.]

[(2) Early Redemption for Reasons of Taxation. The Notes may be redeemed
at any time in whole, but not in part, at the option of the Issuer and upon the
prior consent of the competent supervisory authority on giving not less than 30
and not more than 60 days' notice to the Fiscal Agent and, in accordance with
§ [14] to the Holders, at the Final Redemption Amount together with accrued
interest (if any) to the date fixed for redemption if there is a change in the tax
treatment of the Notes (in particular, but not limited to, the obligation to pay
Additional Amounts (as defined in § 7 herein)) and such change is, in its own
assessment, materially adverse for the Issuer.]

[(3) Early redemption due to regulatory reasons. The Issuer shall be entitled to
call the Notes in whole but not in part, at the option of the Issuer and subject to
the prior permission of the competent regulatory authority, if the Issuer
determines, in its own discretion, that it: (i) may not treat the Notes in their full
aggregate principal amount as Tier 2 capital for the purposes of the Own
Funds Provisions (as defined in § [13] of these Terms and Conditions) other
than for reasons of an amortisation in accordance with Art. 64 of the CRR, or
(ii) is subject to any other form of a less advantageous regulatory own funds
treatment with respect to the Notes than as of the Issue Date.

In this case the redemption of the Notes shall, subject to § 2 of these Terms
and Conditions, be effected in accordance with the provisions contained in
paragraph (1). Termination is irrevocable. The rights and obligations arising
from the Notes shall expire upon redemption.]

[(4) Early Redemption at the Option of the Issuer.

(@) The Issuer may, upon notice given in accordance with clause (b) below,
redeem all or only some of the Notes [in the case of subordinated Notes
the following applies: , upon the prior consent of the competent
supervisory authority] on the Call Redemption Date(s) at the Call
Redemption Amount(s) set forth below together with accrued interest, if
any, to (but excluding) the Call Redemption Date.

[in the case of non-preferred Notes any Call Redemption Date must
be at least one full year after the issue date of the Notes]

[in the case of subordinated Notes any Call Redemption Date must be
at least five full years after the issue date of the Notes]
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Call Redemption Date(s) Call Redemption Amount(s)
[Call Redemption Dates(s)] [Call Redemption Amount(s)]

[] []

[] []

[If Notes are subject to Early Redemption at the Option of the Holder the
following applies:

The Issuer may not exercise such option in respect of any Note which is the
subject of the prior exercise by the Holder thereof of its option to require the
redemption of such Note under subparagraph [(4)] of this § 4.]

[In the case of subordinated Notes the following applies: The Notess may
only be redeemed pursuant to this 8§ 4(4) if the Issuer has, on the basis of the
Own Funds Provisions (as defined in § [13] of these Terms and Conditions),
obtained the prior permission of the competent regulatory authority (if
required).]

(b) Notice of redemption shall be given by the Issuer to the Holders of the
Notes in accordance with § [14]. Such notice shall specify:

(i) the Notes subject to redemption;

(i) whether such Notes are to be redeemed in whole or in part only and, if in
part only, the aggregate principal amount of the Notes which are to be
redeemed;

(iii) the Call Redemption Date, which shall be not less than [Minimum Notice]
days nor more than [Maximum Notice] days after the date on which
notice is given by the Issuer to the Holders; and

(iv) the Call Redemption Amount at which such Notes are to be redeemed.

(c) In the case of a partial redemption of Notes, Notes to be redeemed shall
be selected in accordance with the rules and procedures of the relevant
Clearing System. [In the case of Notes in NGN form the following
applies: Such partial redemption shall be reflected in the records of
Clearstream Luxembourg and Euroclear as either a pool factor or a
reduction in principal amount, at the discretion of Clearstream Luxembourg
and Euroclear.]]

[[(5)] Early Redemption at the Option of the Holder.

(a) The Issuer shall, at the option of the Holder of any Note, redeem such
Note on the Put Redemption Date(s) at the Put Redemption Amount(s) set
forth below together with accrued interest, if any, to (but excluding) the Put
Redemption Date.

Put Redemption Date(s) Put Redemption Amount(s)
[Put Redemption Dates(s)] [Put Redemption Amount(s)]

[] []
[] []

The Holder may not exercise such option in respect of any Note which is the
subject of the prior exercise by the Issuer of any of its options to redeem such
Note under this § 4.

(b) In order to exercise such option, the Holder must, not less than [Minimum
Notice] days nor more than [Maximum Notice] days days before the Put
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Redemption Date on which such redemption is required to be made as
specified in the Put Notice (as defined below), send to the specified office
of the Fiscal Agent an early redemption notice in text format (Textform, e.g.
email or fax) or in written form ("Put Notice"). In the event that the Put
Notice is received after 5:00 p.m. Frankfurt time on the 30th Payment
Business Day before the Put Redemption Date, the option shall not have
been validly exercised. The Put Notice must specify (i) the total principal
amount of the Notes in respect of which such option is exercised, [and] (ii)
the German Security Code of such Notes, if any [in the case the Global
Note is kept in custody by CBF, the following applies: and (iii) contact
details as well as a bank account]. The Put Notice may be in the form
available from the specified offices of the Fiscal Agent and the Paying
Agents in the German and English language and includes further
information. No option so exercised may be revoked or withdrawn.]

[[(6)] Cessation of eligibility. The Issuer shall be entitled to call the Notes in
whole but not in part, at the option of the Issuer and subject to the prior
consent of the competent regulatory authority, if required, in case the Notes,
according to the determination of the Issuer, cease to qualify as eligible for the
purposes of the minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities
(MREL).

In this case the redemption of the Notes shall, subject to § 2 of these Terms
and Conditions, be effected in accordance with the provisions contained in
paragraph (1). Termination is irrevocable. The rights and obligations arising
from the Notes shall expire upon redemption.]

8§85
Payments

(1) (a) Payment of Principal. Payment of principal in respect of Notes shall be
made, subject to subparagraph (2) below, to the Clearing System or to its
order for credit to the accounts of the relevant account Holders of the
Clearing System.

(b) Payment of Interest. Payment of interest on Notes shall be made, subject
to subparagraph (2) below, to the Clearing System or to its order for credit
to the accounts of the relevant account Holders of the Clearing System.

[Payment of interest on Notes represented by the Temporary Global Note shall
only be made upon due certification as provided in § 1 (3) (b).]

(2) Manner of Payment. Subject to (i) applicable fiscal and other laws and
regulations and (ii) any withholding or deduction required pursuant to an
agreement described in Section 1471(b) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of
1986 (the "Code") or otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through
1474 of the Code, any regulations or agreements thereunder, any official
interpretations thereof, or any law implementing an intergovernmental
approach thereto, payments of amounts due in respect of the Notes shall be
made in the Specified Currency.

(3) Discharge. The Issuer shall be discharged by payment to, or to the order
of, the Clearing System.

(4) Banking Day. If the date for payment of any amount in respect of any Note
is not a Banking Day then the Holder shall not be entitled to payment until the
next Banking Day and shall not be entitled to further interest or other payment
in respect of such delay.
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For these purposes, "Banking Day" means any day which is a Business Day.

(5) References to Principal and Interest. References in these Terms and
Conditions to principal in respect of the Notes shall be deemed to include, as
applicable: the Final Redemption Amount of the Notes; [if the Notes are
redeemable at the option of the Issuer for other than tax reasons the
following applies: the Call Redemption Amount of the Notes;] [if the Notes
are redeemable at the option of the Holder the following applies: the Put
Redemption Amount of the Notes;] and any premium and any other amounts
which may be payable under or in respect of the Notes. References in these
Terms and Conditions to interest in respect of the Notes shall be deemed to
include, as applicable, any Additional Amounts which may be payable under §
7.

(6) Deposit of Principal and Interest. The Issuer may deposit with the local
court (Amtsgericht) in Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany,
principal or interest not claimed by Holders within 12 months after the due
date, even though such Holders may not be in default of acceptance of
payment. If and to the extent that the deposit is effected and the right of
withdrawal is waived, the respective claims of such Holders against the Issuer
shall cease.

8§86
Agents

(1) Appointment; Specified Office. The initial Fiscal Agent [and the Calculation
Agent] and [its] [their] initial specified office[s] shall be:

[Fiscal Agent:

Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft
Trust and Agency Services
Taunusanlage 12

60325 Frankfurt am Main

Federal Republic of Germany]

[Fiscal Agent:

Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft)
Osterstralie 31

30159 Hanover

Federal Republic of Germany]

[The Fiscal Agent shall act as Calculation Agent.]

[Calculation Agent: [name and specified office]]

The Fiscal Agent shall also fulfil the functions of a paying agent. The Fiscal
Agent [and the Calculation Agent] reserve[s] the right at any time to change
[its] [their] specified office[s] to some other specified office in the same
country.

(2) Variation or Termination of Appointment. The Issuer reserves the right at
any time to vary or terminate the appointment of the Fiscal Agent [and/or the
Calculation Agent] and to appoint another Fiscal Agent [and/or another
Calculation Agent]. The Issuer shall at all times maintain a Fiscal Agent [and a
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Calculation Agent].

The Issuer shall without undue delay notify the Holders of any variation,
termination, appointment or change in accordance with § [14].

(3) Agent of the Issuer. The Fiscal Agent [and the Calculation Agent] act[s]
solely as the agent[s] of the Issuer and [does] [do] not assume any obligations
towards or relationship of agency or trust for any Holder.

(4) Paying Agents. The Fiscal Agent shall act as the principal paying agent
with respect to the Notes.

[The additional paying agent[s] (the "Paying Agent[s]" which expression shall
include any successor and additional paying agent hereunder) and [its] [their]
respective initial specified offices shall be:

Paying Agent[s]: [Paying Agent[s] and specified office[s]]

Each Paying Agent reserves the right at any time to change its specified office
to another specified office in the same country. The Issuer reserves the right at
any time to vary or terminate the appointment of any Paying Agent and to
appoint additional or other Paying Agents. The Issuer shall without delay notify
the Holders of any variation, termination, appointment or change in
accordance with § [14].

Each Paying Agent acts solely as the agent of the Issuer and does not assume
any obligations towards or relationship of agency or trust for any Holder.]

(5) Required Paying Agents. The Issuer shall at all times maintain a Paying
Agent (which may be the Fiscal Agent) with a specified office in a European
city and, so long as the Notes are listed on any stock exchange and the rules
of such stock exchange so require, a Paying Agent (which may be the Fiscal
Agent) with a specified office in such place as may be required by the rules of
such stock exchange.

87
Taxation

All amounts payable in respect of the Notes shall be made without withholding
or deduction for or on account of any present or future taxes or duties of
whatever nature imposed or levied by way of withholding or deduction at
source by, in or on behalf of the Federal Republic of Germany or by or on
behalf of any political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having
power to tax unless such withholding or deduction is required by law. In such
event, the Issuer shall pay such additional amounts [in the case of
subordinated Notes the following applies: with respect to payments of
interest only] (the "Additional Amounts") as shall be necessary in order that
the net amounts received by the Holders, after such withholding or deduction
shall equal the respective amounts which the Holders would otherwise have
received in the absence of such withholding or deduction, ex cept that no
such Additional Amounts shall be payable on account of any taxes or duties
which:

(a) are payable by any person acting as custodian bank or collecting agent on
behalf of a Noteholder, or otherwise in any manner which does not
constitute a deduction or withholding by the Issuer from payments of
principal or interest made by it, or

(b) are payable by reason of the Holder having, or having had, some personal
or business connection with the Federal Republic of Germany and not
merely by reason of the fact that payments in respect of the Notes are, or
for purposes of taxation are deemed to be, derived from sources in, or are
secured in, the Federal Republic of Germany, or
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(c) are deducted or withheld pursuant to (i) any European Union Directive or
Regulation concerning the taxation of interest income, or (i) any
international treaty or understanding relating to such taxation and to which
the Federal Republic of Germany or the European Union is a party, or (iii)
any provision of law implementing, or complying with, or introduced to
conform with, such Directive, Regulation, treaty or understanding, or

(d) to the extent such withholding or deduction is required pursuant to
Sections 1471 through 1474 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended (the "Internal Revenue Code"), any current or future
regulations or official interpretations thereof, any agreement entered into
pursuant to Section 1471(b) of the Internal Revenue Code, or any fiscal or
regulatory legislation, rules or practices adopted pursuant to any of the
foregoing or under any intergovernmental agreement entered into in
connection with the implementation of such Sections of the Internal
Revenue Code, or

(e) are payable by reason of a change in law that becomes effective more
than 30 days after the relevant payment becomes due, or is duly provided
for and notice thereof is published in accordance with § [14], whichever
occurs later.

§8
Presentation period

The presentation period provided in § 801 (1), sentence 1 German Civil Code
(Burgerliches Gesetzbuch) is reduced to ten years for the Notes.

[89
Events of Default

(1) Events of default. Each Holder shall be entitled to declare his Notes due
and demand immediate redemption thereof at the Final Redemption Amount,
together with accrued interest (if any) to the date of repayment, in the event
that

(a) the Issuer fails to pay any amount due under the Notes within 30 days from
the relevant due date, or

(b) the Issuer fails duly to perform any other obligation arising from the Notes
which failure is not capable of remedy or, if such failure is capable of
remedy, such failure continues for more than 30 days after the Fiscal
Agent has received notice thereof from a Holder, or

(c) the Issuer suspends payment or announces its inability to pay its debts, or

(d) a court institutes insolvency proceedings against the Issuer, and such
proceedings are not set aside or stayed within 60 days, or the competent
supervisory authority or resolution authority, respectively, applies for or
institutes any such proceedings, or

(e) the Issuer goes into liquidation unless this is done in connection with a
merger, consolidation or other form of combination with another company
or in connection with a conversion and the other or new company assumes
all obligations contracted by the Issuer in connection with the Notes.

The right to declare Notes due shall terminate if the situation giving rise to it
has been cured before the right is exercised.

(2) Notice. Any notice, including any notice declaring Notes due, in accordance
with subparagraph (1) shall be made by means of a declaration in text format
(Textform, e.g. email or fax) or in written form in the German or English
language sent by hand or registered mail to the specified office of the Fiscal
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Agent together with proof that such Holder at the time of such notice is a
Holder of the relevant Notes by means of a certificate of his Custodian (as
defined in 8 [15] (3)) or in other appropriate manner. The Notes shall be
redeemed following receipt of the notice declaring Notes due.]

§[10]
Substitution

(1) Substitution. The Issuer may, without the consent of the Holders, if it is not
in default with any payment of principal of or interest on any of the Notes, at
any time substitute for the Issuer any Affiliate (as defined below) of the Issuer
as principal debtor (the "Substitute Debtor") in respect of all obligations
arising from or in connection with this issue provided that:

(a) the Substitute Debtor assumes all obligations of the Issuer in respect of the
Notes;

(b) the Issuer and the Substitute Debtor have obtained all necessary
authorisations and approvals and may transfer to the Fiscal Agent in the
currency required hereunder and without being obligated to deduct or
withhold any taxes or other duties of whatever nature levied by the country
in which the Substitute Debtor has its domicile or tax residence, all
amounts required for the fulfilment of the payment obligations arising under
the Notes;

(c) the Substitute Debtor has agreed to indemnify and hold harmless each
Holder against any tax, duty, assessment or governmental charge imposed
on such Holder in respect of such substitution;

[(d) (i) the proceeds are immediately available to the Issuer, without limitation
and in a form that satisfies the requirements of eligibility, (ii) the liabilities
assumed by the Substitute Debtor continue to be eligible and (iii) each
Holder is treated as if the substitution of the Issuer had not taken place;]

[(d) (i) the Substitute Debtor is an entity which is part of the consolidation
(relating to the Issuer) pursuant to Article 63(n) sub-paragraph (i) of the
CRR, (ii) the proceeds are immediately available to the Issuer, without
limitation and in a form that satisfies the requirements of the CRR, (iii) the
liabilities assumed by the Substitute Debtor are subordinated on terms that
are identical with the subordination provisions of the liabilities assumed,
(iv) the Substitute Debtor invests the amount of the Notes with
Norddeutsche Landesbank — Girozentrale — on terms that match those of
the Notes and (v) the Issuer guarantees the Substitute Debtor's liabilities
under the Notes on a subordinated basis pursuant to § 2 of these Terms
and Conditions and provided that the recognition of the paid-in capital
concerning the Notes as Tier 2 Capital continues to be ensured;]

[(e)the Issuer irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees in favour of each
Holder the payment of all sums payable by the Substitute Debtor in respect
of the Notes on terms which ensure that each Holder will be put in an
economic position that is at least as favourable as that which would have
existed if the substitution had not taken place.]

[(e)the Issuer irrevocably, unconditionally and on a subordinated basis in
accordance with § 2 guarantees in favor of each Holder the payment of all
sums payable by the Substitute Debtor in respect of the Notes and the
regulatory classification of the paid-in capital under the Notes as Tier 2
supplementary capital is still assured.]

For purposes of this § [10], "Affiliate" shall mean any affiliated company
(verbundenes Unternehmen) within the meaning of § 15 German Stock
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Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz).

(2) Notice. Notice of any such substitution shall be published in accordance
with § [14] without delay.

(3) Change of References. In the event of any such substitution, any reference
in these Terms and Conditions to the Issuer shall from then on be deemed to
refer to the Substitute Debtor and any reference to the country in which the
Issuer is domiciled or resident for taxation purposes shall from then on be
deemed to refer to the country of domicile or residence for taxation purposes
of the Substitute Debtor. Furthermore, in the event of such substitution the
following shall apply:

[(@)in 8 7 and § 4 (2) an alternative reference to the Federal Republic of
Germany shall be deemed to have been included in addition to the
reference according to the preceding sentence to the country of domicile or
residence for taxation purposes of the Substitute Debtor;

(b) in 8 9 (1) (c) to [(e)] an alternative reference to the Issuer in its capacity as
guarantor shall be deemed to have been included in addition to the
reference to the Substitute Debtor; and

(c) in 8 9 (1) a further event of default shall be deemed to have been included;
such event of default shall exist in the case that the guarantee pursuant to
subparagraph 1 [(d)] is or becomes invalid for any reason.]

[In 8 7 and § 4 (2) an alternative reference to the Federal Republic of Germany
shall be deemed to have been included in addition to the reference according
to the preceding sentence to the country of domicile or residence for taxation
purposes of the Substitute Debtor.]

[811]
Resolutions of Holders

(1) Amendment of the Terms and Conditions. The Holders may agree by
majority resolution on all matters permitted by law, provided that no obligation
to make any payment or render any other performance shall be imposed on
any Holder by majority resolution.

(2) Majority resolutions shall be binding on all Holders. Resolutions, which do
not provide for identical conditions for all Holders are void, unless Holders who
are disadvantaged have expressly consented to their being treated
disadvantageously.

(3) Majority. Resolutions shall be passed by a majority of not less than 75% of
the votes cast (qualified majority). Resolutions relating to amendments to the
Terms and Conditions which are not material, require a majority of not less
than 50% of the votes cast.

(4) Resolution of Holders. Resolutions of Holders shall be passed at the
election of the Issuer by vote taken without a meeting in accordance with § 18
SchVG or in a Holder's meeting in accordance with § 9 SchVG.

(5) Voting rights. Each Holder participating in any vote shall cast votes in
accordance with the nominal amount or the notional share of its entitlement to
the outstanding Notes. As long as the entitlement to the Notes lies with, or the
Notes are held for the account of, the Issuer or any of its affiliates (8§ 271
paragraph 2 HGB (Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch))), the right to vote
in respect of such Notes shall be suspended. The Issuer may not transfer
Notes, of which the voting rights are so suspended, to another person for the
purpose of exercising such voting rights in the place of the Issuer; this shall
also apply to any affiliate of the Issuer. No person shall be permitted to
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exercise such voting right for the purpose stipulated in sentence 3, first half
sentence, herein above.

No person shall be permitted to offer, promise or grant any benefit or
advantage to another person entitled to vote in consideration of such person
abstaining from voting or voting in a certain way.

A person entitled to vote may not demand, accept or accept the promise of,
any benefit, advantage or consideration for abstaining from voting or voting in
a certain way.]

[§[12]
Holders' Representative]

[(1) The Holders may by majority resolution appoint a common representative
(the "Holders' Representative")® to exercise the Holders' rights on behalf of
each Holder.

(2) The Holders' Representative shall have the duties and powers provided by
law or granted by majority resolution of the Holders. The Holders'
Representative shall comply with the instructions of the Holders. To the extent
that the Holders' Representative has been authorised to assert certain rights of
the Holders, the Holders shall not be entitled to assert such rights themselves,
unless explicitly provided for in the relevant majority resolution. The Holders'
Representative shall provide reports to the Holders on its activities.

(3) The Holders' Representative shall be liable for the performance of its duties
towards the Holders who shall be joint and several creditors
(Gesamtglaubiger); in the performance of its duties it shall act with the
diligence and care of a prudent business manager. The liability of the Holders'
Representative may be limited by a resolution passed by the Holders. The
Holders shall decide upon the assertion of claims for compensation of the
Holders against the Holders' Representative.

(4) The appointment of the Holders' Representative may be revoked at any
time by the Holders without specifying any reasons.

(5) The Holders' Representative may demand from the Issuer to furnish all
information required for the performance of the duties entrusted to it.]

[(1) The common representative (the "Holders' Representative")* to exercise
the Holders' rights on behalf of each Holder shall be [Name and address of
Holder's Representative].

(2) The Holders' Representative shall be authorised, at its discretion, in
respect of the matters determined by it to call for a vote of Holders without a
meeting and to preside the taking of votes.

(3) The Holders' Representative shall comply with the instructions of the
Holders. To the extent that the Holders' Representative has been authorised to
assert certain rights of the Holders, the Holders shall not be entitled to assert
such rights themselves, unless explicitly provided so by majority resolution.
The Holders' Representative shall provide reports to the Holders with respect
to its activities.

(4) The Holders' Representative shall be liable for the proper performance of
its duties towards the Holders who shall be joint and several creditors

The Holders' Representative must satisfy the conditions specified in § 8 paragraph 1 SchVG.
4 The Holders' Representative must satisfy the conditions specified in § 8 paragraph 1 SchVG.



In the case of
unsubordinated Notes
the following applies

In the case of
subordinated Notes
the following applies

In the case of Notes
which are admitted to
trading on a market of
a Stock Exchange the
following applies

If notices may be
given by means of

128

(Gesamtglaubiger); in the performance of its duties it shall act with the
diligence and care of a prudent business manager. The liability of the Holders'
Representative shall be limited to ten times the amount of its annual
remuneration, unless the Holders' Representative has acted willfully or with
gross negligence. The liability of the Holders' Representative may be further
limited by a resolution passed by the Holders. The Holders shall decide upon
the assertion of claims for compensation of the Holders against the Holders'
Representative.

(5) The appointment of the Holders' Representative may be revoked at any
time by the Holders without specifying any reason.

(6) The Holders' Representative may demand from the Issuer to furnish all
information required for the performance of the duties entrusted to it.]

§[13]
Further Issues, Purchases and Cancellation

(1) Further Issues. The Issuer may from time to time, without the consent of
the Holders, issue further Notes having the same terms and conditions as the
Notes in all respects (or in all respects except for the date of issue, interest
commencement date and/or issue price) so as to form a single series with the
Notes.

[(2) Purchases. The Issuer may [in the case of non-preferred Notes the
following applies: upon the prior consent of the competent supervisory
authority, if required] at any time purchase Notes in the open market or
otherwise and at any price. Notes purchased by the Issuer may, at the option
of the Issuer, be held, resold or surrendered to the Fiscal Agent for
cancellation. If purchases are made by tender, tenders for such Notes must be
made available to all Holders of such Notes alike.]

[(2) Purchases. Subject to § 2 of these Terms and Conditions and only if,
when and to the extent that the purchase is not prohibited by applicable
provisions regarding own funds requirements as applied by the competent
regulatory authority and amended from time to time (including, but not limited
to, the Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the
Council on the prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment
firms dated 26 June 2013, other provisions of bank supervisory laws and any
rules and regulations related thereto, including directly applicable provisions of
European Community law, in each case as amended or replaced from time to
time (the "CRR" and the "Own Funds Provisions", respectively)), the Issuer
may at any time purchase Notes in the open market or otherwise and at any
price. Notes purchased by the Issuer may, at the option of the Issuer, be held,
resold or surrendered to the Fiscal Agent for cancellation.]

(3) Cancellation. All Notes redeemed in full shall be cancelled forthwith and
may not be reissued or resold.

§ [14]
Notices

[(1) Publication. All notices concerning the Notes shall be published in the
Federal Gazette (Bundesanzeiger) [and in the Luxemburger Wort, a
newspaper of general circulation in Luxembourg].

Any notice will be deemed to have been validly given on the third day following
the date of such publication (or, if published more than once, on the third day
following the date of the first such publication).]

[(2)] Electronic Publication. All notices concerning the Notes will be made by
means of electronic publication on the internet website of the [Luxembourg



electronic publication
on the website of the
relevant Stock
Exchange the
following applies

In the case of Notes
which are unlisted the
following applies

In the case of Notes
which are admitted to
trading on a market of
the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange the
following applies

In the case of Notes
which are admitted to
trading on a market of
a Stock Exchange
other than the
Luxembourg Stock
Exchange the
following applies

129

Stock  Exchange] [relevant stock exchange]  ([www.bourse.lu]
[www.[relevant address]). Any notice will be deemed to have been validly
given on the third day following the date of such publication (or, if published
more than once, on the third day following the date of the first such
publication).]

[(2)] Noatification to Clearing System.

[The Issuer shall deliver all notices concerning the Notes to the Clearing
System for communication by the Clearing System to the Holders. Any such
notice shall be deemed to have been given to the Holders on the seventh day
after the day on which the said notice was given to the Clearing System.]

[So long as any Notes are admitted to trading on a market of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange, subparagraph (1) shall apply. In the case of notices
regarding the Rate of Interest or, if the Rules of the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange otherwise so permit, the Issuer may deliver the relevant notice to
the Clearing System for communication by the Clearing System to the Holders,
in lieu of publication in the newspaper set forth in subparagraph (1) above; any
such notice shall be deemed to have been given to the Holders on the seventh
day after the day on which the said notice was given to the Clearing System.]

[The Issuer may, in lieu of publication in the newspaper set forth in
subparagraph (1) above, deliver the relevant notice to the Clearing System, for
communication by the Clearing System to the Holders, provided that, the rules
of the stock exchange on which Notes are listed permit such form of notice.
Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given to the Holders on the
seventh day after the day on which the said notice was given to the Clearing
System.]

[(3)] Form of Notice. Notices to be given by any Holder shall be made by
means of a declaration in text format (Textform, e.g. email or fax) or in written
form to be sent together with the relevant Note or Notes to the Fiscal Agent.
So long as any of the Notes are represented by a global Note, such notice
may be given by any Holder of a Note to the Agent through the Clearing
System in such manner as the Agent and the Clearing System may approve
for such purpose.

§[15]
Applicable Law,
Place of Jurisdiction and Enforcement

(1) Applicable Law. The Notes, as to form and content, and all rights and
obligations of the Holders and the Issuer, shall be governed by German law.

(2) Submission to Jurisdiction. The District Court (Landgericht) in Frankfurt am
Main shall have non-exclusive jurisdiction for any action or other legal
proceedings ("Proceedings") arising out of or in connection with the Notes.
The jurisdiction of such Court shall be exclusive if Proceedings are brought by
merchants (Kaufleute), legal persons under public law (juristische Personen
des offentlichen Rechts), special funds under public law (6ffentlich-rechtliche
Sondervermdégen) and persons not subject to the general jurisdiction of the
courts of the Federal Republic of Germany (Personen ohne allgemeinen
Gerichtsstand in der Bundesrepublik Deutschland).

(3) Enforcement. Any Holder of Notes may in any Proceedings against the
Issuer, or to which such Holder and the Issuer are parties, protect and enforce
in his own name his rights arising under such Notes on the basis of (i) a
statement issued by the Custodian (as defined below) with whom such Holder
maintains a securities account in respect of the Notes (a) stating the full name
and address of the Holder, (b) specifying the aggregate principal amount of
Notes credited to such securities account on the date of such statement and
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(c) confirming that the Custodian has given written notice to the Clearing
System containing the information pursuant to (a) and (b) and (ii) a copy (of
the Note in global form certified as being a true copy by a duly authorized
officer of the Clearing System or a depository of the Clearing System, without
the need for production in such Proceedings of the actual records or the global
note representing the Notes. For purposes of the foregoing, "Custodian”
means any bank or other financial institution of recognized standing authorized
to engage in securities custody business with which the Holder maintains a
securities account in respect of the Notes and includes the Clearing System.
Each Holder may, without prejudice to the foregoing, protect and enforce his
rights under these Notes also in any other way which is admitted in the country
of the Proceedings.

§[16]
Language

[These Terms and Conditions are written in the German language and
provided with an English language translation. The German text shall be
controlling and binding. The English language translation is provided for
convenience only.]

[These Terms and Conditions are written in the English language and provided
with a German language translation. The English text shall be controlling and
binding. The German language translation is provided for convenience only.]

[These Terms and Conditions are written in the English language only.]

[Eine deutsche Ubersetzung der Anleihebedingungen wird bei der Deutsche
Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft), OsterstralBe 31, 30159 Hannover,
Bundesrepublik Deutschland zur kostenlosen Ausgabe bereitgehalten.]
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OPTION V — Terms and Conditions that apply to zero coupon Notes (other
than Pfandbriefe)

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES
ENGLISH LANGUAGE VERSION

§1
Currency, Denomination, Form, Certain Definitions

(1) Currency; Denomination. This tranche of [subordinated] Notes (the "Notes") of
Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft) (the "Issuer") is being issued in
[Specified Currency] (the "Specified Currency") in the aggregate principal
amount [in the case the Global Note is a NGN the following applies: (subject
to 81 (4))] of [aggregate principal amount] (in words: [aggregate principal
amount in words]) in the denomination of [Specified Denomination] (the
"Specified Denomination").

(2) Form. The Notes are in bearer form and represented by one or more global
notes (each a "Global Note").

[(3) Permanent Global Note. The Notes are represented by a permanent Global Note
(the "Permanent Global Note") without coupons. The Permanent Global Note shall
be signed manually by two authorised signatories of the Issuer and shall be
authenticated by or on behalf of the Fiscal Agent. Definitive Notes and interest
coupons will not be issued.]

[(3) Temporary Global Note — Exchange.

(@) The Notes are initially represented by a temporary global note (the
"Temporary Global Note") without interest coupons. The Temporary Global
Note will be exchangeable for a permanent global note (the "Permanent
Global Note") without interest coupons. The Temporary Global Note and the
Permanent Global Note shall each be signed manually by two authorized
signatories of the Issuer and shall each be authenticated by or on behalf of
the Fiscal Agent. Definitive Notes and interest coupons will not be issued.

(b) The Temporary Global Note shall be exchangeable for the Permanent Global
Note from a date (the "Exchange Date") 40 days after the date of issue of the
Temporary Global Note. Such exchange shall only be made upon delivery of
certifications to the effect that the beneficial owner or owners of the Notes
represented by the Temporary Global Note is or are not a U.S. person (other
than certain financial institutions or certain persons holding Notes through
such financial institutions) as required by U.S. tax law. The certifications shall
be in compliance with the respective United States Treasury Regulations as
applicable from time to time. Payment of interest on Notes represented by a
Temporary Global Note will be made only after delivery of such certifications.
A separate certification shall be required in respect of each such payment of
interest. Any such certification received on or after the 40™ day after the date
of issue of the Temporary Global Note will be treated as a request to
exchange such Temporary Global Note pursuant to this subparagraph (b) of
this § 1 (3). Any securities delivered in exchange for the Temporary Global
Note shall be delivered only outside of the United States. For purposes of this
subparagraph (3), "United States" means the United States of America
(including the States thereof and the District of Columbia) and its possessions
(including Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa,
Wake Island and Northern Mariana Islands).]

(4) Clearing System. Each Global Note representing the Notes will be kept in
custody by or on behalf of the Clearing System. The Permanent Global Note will
be kept in custody by or on behalf of the Clearing System until all obligations of
the Issuer under the Notes have been satisfied. "Clearing System" means [if
more than one Clearing System the following applies: each of] the following:
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[Clearstream Banking AG, Neue BdrsenstralBe 1, 60487 Frankfurt am Main,
Federal Republic of Germany ("Clearstream Frankfurt")] [Clearstream Banking
S.A., 42 Avenue JF Kennedy, 1855 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg
("Clearstream Luxembourg"), Euroclear Bank SA/NV, Boulevard du Roi Albert
Il, 1210 Brussels, Belgium ("Euroclear") (Clearstream Luxembourg and Euroclear
each an "ICSD" and together the "ICSDs")] and any successor in such capacity.

[The Notes are issued in new global note ("NGN") form and are kept in custody by
a common safekeeper on behalf of both ICSDs.

The aggregate principal amount of Notes represented by the Global Note shall be
the aggregate amount from time to time entered in the records of both ICSDs. The
records of the ICSDs (which expression means the records that each ICSD holds
for its customers which reflect the amount of such customer's interest in the
Notes) shall be conclusive evidence of the aggregate principal amount of Notes
represented by the Global Note and, for these purposes, a statement issued by
an ICSD stating the amount of Notes so represented at any time shall be
conclusive evidence of the records of the relevant ICSD at that time.

On any redemption or payment of an instalment or interest being made in respect
of, or purchase and cancellation of, any of the Notes represented by the Global
Note the Issuer shall procure that details of any redemption, payment or purchase
and cancellation (as the case may be) in respect of the Global Note shall be
entered pro rata in the records of the ICSDs and, upon any such entry being
made, the aggregate principal amount of the Notes recorded in the records of the
ICSDs and represented by the Global Note shall be reduced by the aggregate
principal amount of the Notes so redeemed or purchased and cancelled or by the
aggregate amount of such instalment so paid.

[In the case of a Temporary Global Note the following applies: On an
exchange of a portion only of the Notes represented by a Temporary Global Note,
the Issuer shall procure that details of such exchange shall be entered pro rata in
the records of the ICSDs.]]

[The Notes are issued in classical global note ("CGN") form and are kept in
custody by a common depositary on behalf of both ICSDs.]

(5) Holder of Notes. "Holder" means any holder of a proportionate co-ownership
or other beneficial interest or right in the Notes.

[§2
Status

The Notes constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured
obligations of the Issuer ranking pari passu among themselves and pari passu
with all other unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer, except for
obligations which are accorded priority by operation of law.

[At issuance, the Notes constituted [preferred] debt instruments [within the
meaning of [Section 46f Subsection 5 of the German Banking Act] [insert relevant
provision]].]]
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[§2
Status

(1) The Notes constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured
liabilities of the Issuer ranking pari passu with each other and with all other
unsubordinated and unsecured liabilities of the Issuer, with the following
exception:

As unsubordinated, non-preferred obligations of the Issuer payment claims under
the Notess rank

subordinated to other unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer if
and to the extent, such unsubordinated and unsecured obligations enjoy
[preferred] treatments by law [within the meaning of [Section 46f Subsection 5 of
the German Banking Act] [insert relevant provision]] in insolvency proceedings or
in case of an imposition of resolution measures with regard to the Issuer,

but in each case rank senior to any subordinated debt of the Issuer.

[At issuance, the Notes constituted [non-preferred] debt instruments [within the
meaning of [Section 46f Subsection 6 Sentence 1 of the German Banking Act]
[insert relevant provision]].]

[(2) The Holders of the Notes are not entitled to set off claims arising from the
Notes against any of the Issuer's claims.

No security of whatever kind is, or shall at any later time be, provided by the
Issuer or any of its associated companies or any third party that has a close link
with the Issuer or any of its associated companies or any other person securing
rights of the Holders under the Notes.]

[(2)][(3)] No subsequent agreement may alter the rank pursuant to the provisions
set out in this § 2 or shorten the term of the Notes or any applicable notice period.

[[(3)][(4)] The Notes shall qualify as instruments that qualify as eligible liabilities
pursuant to the minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities
(MREL).]

[[(D][(B)] Under the relevant resolution laws and regulations applicable to the
Issuer, the competent resolution authority may

(a) write down, in whole or in part, the claims for payment of principal[, interest]
or any other amount;

(b) convert these claims into ordinary shares or other common equity tier 1
capital instruments of (i) the Issuer or (ii) any group entity or (iii) any bridge
bank (and issue such instruments to, or confer them on, the Holders); and/or

(c) apply any other resolution measure, including, but not limited to, (i) any
transfer of the obligations under the Notes to another entity, (i) the
amendment, modification or variation of the Terms and Conditions of the
Notes or (iii) the cancellation of the Notes

(each, a "Resolution Measure").]

[[(5)][(6)] The Holders shall be bound by any Resolution Measure. No Holder
shall have any claim or other right against the Issuer arising out of or in
connection with any Resolution Measure. In particular, the exercise of any
Resolution Measure shall not constitute an event of default under the Notes.]]
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[§2
Status

(1) In accordance with applicable provisions concerning the classification as own
funds, the Notes shall be available for the Issuer as eligible own funds instrument
in the form of Tier 2 capital pursuant to Art. 63 CRR (as defined in §[13]
(Erganzungskapital, "Tier 2 Capital™)). The Notes constitute direct, unconditional,
subordinated and unsecured liabilities of the Issuer ranking pari passu with each
other and with all other subordinated liabilities of the Issuer, except as otherwise
provided by applicable law or the terms of any such other subordinated liabilities.
In the event of resolution measures imposed on the Issuer and in the event of the
Issuer's dissolution, liquidation, insolvency, composition or other proceedings for
the avoidance of insolvency of, or against, the Issuer, the liabilities under the
Notes will be wholly subordinated to the claims of all unsubordinated creditors of
the Issuer with the result that, in any case, payments will not be made on the
liabilities under the Notes until all of the Issuer's unsubordinated creditors have
been satisfied in full.

(2) The Holders of the Notes are not entitled to set off claims arising from the
Notes against any of the Issuer's claims. No security of whatever kind is, or shall
at any later time be, provided by the Issuer or any of its associated companies or
any third party that has a close link with the Issuer or any of its associated
companies or any other person securing rights of the Holders under the Notes.

(3) No subsequent agreement may limit the subordination pursuant to the
provisions set out in this § 2 or shorten the term of the Notes or any applicable
notice period. Any redemption or repurchase of the Notes prior to their scheduled
maturity requires the prior consent of the competent regulatory authority of the
Issuer. If the Notes are redeemed or repurchased and cancelled by the Issuer
otherwise than in the circumstances described in this § 2 or as a result of an early
repurchase or redemption pursuant to 8§ 4 or §[13] of these Terms and
Conditions, then the amounts redeemed or paid must be returned to the Issuer
irrespective of any agreement to the contrary unless the competent regulatory
authority has given its prior permission to such early redemption or repurchase.]

83
Interest

(1) No Periodic Payments of Interest. There will not be any periodic payments of
interest on the Notes.

(2) Accrual of Interest. If the Issuer shall fail to redeem the Notes when due,
interest shall accrue on the outstanding [In the case of accumulating zero
coupon Notes the following applies: accumulated] aggregate principal amount
of the Notes as from the due date to the date of actual redemption at the default
rate of interest established by law'. This does not affect other rights that might be
available to the Holders.

(3) Day Count Fraction. "Day Count Fraction” means with regard to the
calculation of interest on any Note for any period of time (the "Calculation
Period"):

[the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 365.]

1

The default rate of interest established by law is five percentage points above the basic rate of interest set by the European

Central Bank from time to time, 8§ 288(1), 247 German Civil Code.
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[the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360.]

[the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360, the number of days
to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with twelve 30-day months
(unless (A) the last day of the Calculation Period is the 315t day of a month but the
first day of the Calculation Period is a day other than the 30" or 31st day of a
month, in which case the month that includes that last day shall not be considered
to be shortened to a 30-day month, or (B) the last day of the Calculation Period is
the last day of the month of February in which case the month of February shall
not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-day month).]

[the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360 (the nhumber of days
to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with twelve 30-day months,
without regard to the date of the first day or last day of the Calculation Period
unless, in the case of the final Calculation Period, the last day of the Calculation
Period is the last day of the month of February, in which case the month of
February shall not be considered lengthened to a 30-day month).]

§4
Redemption

(1) Final Redemption.

Unless previously redeemed in whole or in part or purchased and cancelled, the
Notes shall be redeemed at their Final Redemption Amount on [Maturity Date]
(the "Maturity Date"). The Final Redemption Amount in respect of each Note (the
"Final Redemption Amount") shall be its principal amount.

[(2) Early Redemption for Reasons of Taxation. If as a result of any change in, or
amendment to, the laws or regulations of the Federal Republic of Germany or any
political subdivision or taxing authority thereto or therein affecting taxation or the
obligation to pay duties of any kind, or any change in, or amendment to, an official
interpretation or application of such laws or regulations, which amendment or
change is effective on or after the date on which the last tranche of the Notes was
issued, the Issuer is required to pay Additional Amounts (as defined in § 7 herein)
at maturity or upon the sale or exchange of any Note and this obligation cannot be
avoided by the use of reasonable measures available to the Issuer, the Notes
may be redeemed, in whole but not in part, at the option of the Issuer, upon not
less than 60 days' prior notice of redemption given to the Fiscal Agent and, in
accordance with §[14] to the Holders, at their Early Redemption Amount,
together with interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption. However, no such
notice of redemption may be for redemption.

However, no such notice of redemption may be given (i) earlier than 90 days prior
to the earliest date on which the Issuer would be obligated to pay such Additional
Amounts were a payment in respect of the Notes then due, or (ii) if at the time
such notice is given, such obligation to pay such Additional Amounts does not
remain in effect.

Any such notice shall be given in accordance with § [14]. It shall be irrevocable,
must specify the date fixed for redemption and must set forth a statement in
summary form of the facts constituting the basis for the right of the Issuer so to
redeem.]

[(2) Early Redemption for Reasons of Taxation. The Notes may be redeemed at
any time in whole, but not in part, at the option of the Issuer and upon the prior
consent of the competent supervisory authority on giving not less than 30 and not
more than 60 days' notice to the Fiscal Agent and, in accordance with § [14] to
the Holders, at the Early Redemption Amount together with accrued interest (if
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any) to the date fixed for redemption if there is a change in the tax treatment of
the Notes (in particular, but not limited to, the obligation to pay Additional
Amounts (as defined in § 7 herein)) and such change is, in its own assessment,
materially adverse for the Issuer.]

[(3) Early redemption due to regulatory reasons. The Issuer shall be entitled to
call the Notes in whole but not in part, at the option of the Issuer and subject to
the prior permission of the competent regulatory authority, if the Issuer
determines, in its own discretion, that it: (i) may not treat the Notes in their full
aggregate principal amount as Tier 2 capital for the purposes of the Own Funds
Provisions (as defined in § [13] of these Terms and Conditions) other than for
reasons of an amortisation in accordance with Art. 64 of the CRR, or (ii) is subject
to any other form of a less advantageous regulatory own funds treatment with
respect to the Notes than as of the Issue Date.

In this case the redemption of the Notes shall, subject to § 2 of these Terms and
Conditions, be effected in accordance with the provisions contained in paragraph
(1). Termination is irrevocable. The rights and obligations arising from the Notes
shall expire upon redemption.]

[(4) Early Redemption at the Option of the Issuer.

(a) The Issuer may, upon notice given in accordance with clause (b) below,
redeem all or only some of the Notes [in the case of subordinated Notes
the following applies: , upon the prior consent of the competent supervisory
authority] on the Call Redemption Date(s) at the Call Redemption Amount(s)
set forth below together with accrued interest, if any, to (but excluding) the
Call Redemption Date.

[in the case of non-preferred Notes any Call Redemption Date must be at
least one full year after the issue date of the Notes]

[in the case of subordinated Notes any Call Redemption Date must be at
least five full years after the issue date of the Notes]

Call Redemption Date(s) Call Redemption Amount(s)
[Call Redemption Dates(s)] [Call Redemption Amount(s)]

[] []

[] []

[If Notes are subject to Early Redemption at the Option of the Holder the
following applies:

The Issuer may not exercise such option in respect of any Note which is the
subject of the prior exercise by the Holder thereof of its option to require the
redemption of such Note under subparagraph [(4)] of this § 4.]

[In the case of subordinated Notes the following applies: The Notess may
only be redeemed pursuant to this § 4(4) if the Issuer has, on the basis of the
Own Funds Provisions (as defined in § [13] of these Terms and Conditions),
obtained the prior permission of the competent regulatory authority (if required).]

(b)  Notice of redemption shall be given by the Issuer to the Holders of the
Notes in accordance with 8 [14]. Such notice shall specify:

(i) the Notes subject to redemption;

(i) whether such Notes are to be redeemed in whole or in part only and, if in part
only, the aggregate principal amount of the Notes which are to be redeemed,;

(i) the Call Redemption Date, which shall be not less than [Minimum Notice]
days nor more than [Maximum Notice] days after the date on which notice is
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given by the Issuer to the Holders; and
(iv) the Call Redemption Amount at which such Notes are to be redeemed.

(c) In the case of a partial redemption of Notes, Notes to be redeemed shall be
selected in accordance with the rules and procedures of the relevant Clearing
System. [In the case of Notes in NGN form the following applies: Such
partial redemption shall be reflected in the records of Clearstream
Luxembourg and Euroclear as either a pool factor or a reduction in principal
amount, at the discretion of Clearstream Luxembourg and Euroclear.]]

[[(5)] Early Redemption at the Option of the Holder.

(a) The Issuer shall, at the option of the Holder of any Note, redeem such Note on
the Put Redemption Date(s) at the Put Redemption Amount(s) set forth below
together with accrued interest, if any, to (but excluding) the Put Redemption
Date.

Put Redemption Date(s) Put Redemption Amount(s)
[Put Redemption Dates(s)] [Put Redemption Amount(s)]

[] []
[] []

The Holder may not exercise such option in respect of any Note which is the
subject of the prior exercise by the Issuer of any of its options to redeem such
Note under this § 4.

(b) In order to exercise such option, the Holder must, not less than [Minimum
Notice] days nor more than [Maximum Notice] days days before the Put
Redemption Date on which such redemption is required to be made as
specified in the Put Notice (as defined below), send to the specified office of
the Fiscal Agent an early redemption notice in text format (Textform, e.g.
email or fax) or in written form ("Put Notice").In the event that the Put Notice
is received after 5:00 p.m. Frankfurt time on the 30th Payment Business Day
before the Put Redemption Date, the option shall not have been validly
exercised. The Put Notice must specify (i) the total principal amount of the
Notes in respect of which such option is exercised, [and] (ii) the German
Security Code of such Notes, if any [in the case the Global Note is kept in
custody by CBF, the following applies: and (iii) contact details as well as a
bank account]. The Put Notice may be in the form available from the specified
offices of the Fiscal Agent and the Paying Agents in the German and English
language and includes further information. No option so exercised may be
revoked or withdrawn.]

[(6)] Early Redemption Amount.

For purposes of subparagraph (2) of this 8 5 and §9, the Early Redemption
Amount of a Note shall be determined by the Fiscal Agent in accordance with the
following formula:

where RB means the Early Redemption Amount, NB means the aggregate
principal amount, D means the numerator of the discount rate per annum and Z
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means the Day Count Fraction, where the numerator of the Day Count Fraction
corresponds to the remaining life to maturity of the Notes from the early
redemption date (including) to the Maturity Date.

If the Issuer fails to pay the Early Redemption Amount when due, it shall be
calculated as provided above, except that reference to the Maturity Date shall
refer to the date on which upon due presentation and surrender of the relevant
Note (if required), payment is made.

[[(7)] Cessation of eligibility. The Issuer shall be entitled to call the Notes in whole
but not in part, at the option of the Issuer and subject to the prior consent of the
competent regulatory authority, if required, in case the Notes, according to the
determination of the Issuer, cease to qualify as eligible for the purposes of the
minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities (MREL).

In this case the redemption of the Notes shall, subject to § 2 of these Terms and
Conditions, be effected in accordance with the provisions contained in paragraph
(1). Termination is irrevocable. The rights and obligations arising from the Notes
shall expire upon redemption.]

§5
Payments

(1) Payment of Principal. Payment of principal in respect of Notes shall be made,
subject to subparagraph (2) below, to the Clearing System or to its order for credit
to the accounts of the relevant account Holders of the Clearing System.

(2) Manner of Payment. Subject to (i) applicable fiscal and other laws and
regulations and (ii) any withholding or deduction required pursuant to an
agreement described in Section 1471(b) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of
1986 (the "Code") or otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through 1474
of the Code, any regulations or agreements thereunder, any official interpretations
thereof, or any law implementing an intergovernmental approach thereto,
payments of amounts due in respect of the Notes shall be made in the Specified
Currency.

(3) Discharge. The Issuer shall be discharged by payment to, or to the order of,
the Clearing System.

(4) Banking Day. If the date for payment of any amount in respect of any Note is
not a Banking Day then the Holder shall not be entitled to payment until the next
Banking Day and shall not be entitled to further interest or other payment in
respect of such delay.

[For these purposes, "Banking Day" means a day (other than a Saturday or a
Sunday) on which both (i) the Clearing System, and (ii) the Trans-European
Automated Real-time Gross Settlement Express Transfer System 2 (TARGET?2)
("TARGET") is open tosettle payments.]

[For these purposes, "Banking Day" means a day (other than a Saturday or a
Sunday) on which both (i) the Clearing System, and (ii) commercial banks and
foreign exchange markets in [relevant financial centres].]

(5) References to Principal and Interest. References in these Terms and
Conditions to principal in respect of the Notes shall be deemed to include, as
applicable: the Final Redemption Amount of the Notes; [if the Notes are
redeemable at the option of the Issuer for other than tax reasons the
following applies: the Call Redemption Amount of the Notes;] [if the Notes are
redeemable at the option of the Holder the following applies: the Put
Redemption Amount of the Notes;] and any premium and any other amounts
which may be payable under or in respect of the Notes. References in these
Terms and Conditions to interest in respect of the Notes shall be deemed to
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include, as applicable, any Additional Amounts which may be payable under § 7.

(6) Deposit of Principal and Interest. The Issuer may deposit with the local court
(Amtsgericht) in Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany, principal or
interest not claimed by Holders within 12 months after the due date, even though
such Holders may not be in default of acceptance of payment. If and to the extent
that the deposit is effected and the right of withdrawal is waived, the respective
claims of such Holders against the Issuer shall cease.

§6
Agents

(1) Appointment; Specified Office. The initial Fiscal Agent and its initial specified
office[s] shall be:

[Fiscal Agent:

Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft
Trust and Agency Services
Taunusanlage 12

60325 Frankfurt am Main

Federal Republic of Germany]

[Fiscal Agent:

Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft)
Osterstralie 31

30159 Hanover

Federal Republic of Germany]

The Fiscal Agent shall also fulfil the functions of a paying agent. The Fiscal Agent
reserves the right at any time to change its specified office[s] to some other
specified office in the same country.

(2) Variation or Termination of Appointment. The Issuer reserves the right at any
time to vary or terminate the appointment of the Fiscal Agent and to appoint
another Fiscal Agent. The Issuer shall at all times maintain a Fiscal Agent.

The Issuer shall without undue delay notify the Holders of any variation,
termination, appointment or change in accordance with § [14].

(3) Agent of the Issuer. The Fiscal Agent acts solely as the agent of the Issuer
and does not assume any obligations towards or relationship of agency or trust for
any Holder.

(4) Paying Agents. The Fiscal Agent shall act as the principal paying agent with
respect to the Notes.

[The additional paying agent[s] (the "Paying Agent[s]" which expression shall
include any successor and additional paying agent hereunder) and [its] [their]
respective initial specified offices shall be:

Paying Agent[s]: [Paying Agent[s] and specified office[s]]

Each Paying Agent reserves the right at any time to change its specified office to
another specified office in the same country. The Issuer reserves the right at any
time to vary or terminate the appointment of any Paying Agent and to appoint
additional or other Paying Agents. The Issuer shall without delay notify the
Holders of any variation, termination, appointment or change in accordance with
§[14].

Each Paying Agent acts solely as the agent of the Issuer and does not assume
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I any obligations towards or relationship of agency or trust for any Holder.]

(5) Required Paying Agents. The Issuer shall at all times maintain a Paying Agent
(which may be the Fiscal Agent) with a specified office in a European city and, so
long as the Notes are listed on any stock exchange and the rules of such stock
exchange so require, a Paying Agent (which may be the Fiscal Agent) with a
specified office in such place as may be required by the rules of such stock
exchange.

87
Taxation

All amounts payable in respect of the Notes shall be made without withholding or
deduction for or on account of any present or future taxes or duties of whatever
nature imposed or levied by way of withholding or deduction at source by, in or
on behalf of the Federal Republic of Germany or by or on behalf of any political
subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax unless such
withholding or deduction is required by law. In such event, the Issuer shall pay
such additional amounts (the "Additional Amounts") as shall be necessary in
order that the net amounts received by the Holders, after such withholding or
deduction shall equal the respective amounts which the Holders would otherwise
have received in the absence of such withholding or deduction, except that no
such Additional Amounts shall be payable on account of any taxes or duties
which:

(a) are payable by any person acting as custodian bank or collecting agent on
behalf of a Noteholder, or otherwise in any manner which does not constitute
a deduction or withholding by the Issuer from payments of principal or interest
made by it, or

(b) are payable by reason of the Holder having, or having had, some personal or
business connection with the Federal Republic of Germany and not merely by
reason of the fact that payments in respect of the Notes are, or for purposes
of taxation are deemed to be, derived from sources in, or are secured in, the
Federal Republic of Germany, or

(c) are deducted or withheld pursuant to (i) any European Union Directive or
Regulation concerning the taxation of interest income, or (ii) any international
treaty or understanding relating to such taxation and to which the Federal
Republic of Germany or the European Union is a party, or (iii) any provision of
law implementing, or complying with, or introduced to conform with, such
Directive, Regulation, treaty or understanding, or

(d) to the extent such withholding or deduction is required pursuant to Sections
1471 through 1474 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the "Internal Revenue Code"), any current or future regulations or official
interpretations thereof, any agreement entered into pursuant to
Section 1471(b) of the Internal Revenue Code, or any fiscal or regulatory
legislation, rules or practices adopted pursuant to any of the foregoing or
under any intergovernmental agreement entered into in connection with the
implementation of such Sections of the Internal Revenue Code, or

(e) are payable by reason of a change in law that becomes effective more than
30 days after the relevant payment becomes due, or is duly provided for and
notice thereof is published in accordance with § [14], whichever occurs later.

§8
Presentation period

The presentation period provided in § 801 (1), sentence 1 German Civil Code
(Burgerliches Gesetzbuch) is reduced to ten years for the Notes.
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[§89
Events of Default

(1) Events of default. Each Holder shall be entitled to declare his Notes due and
demand immediate redemption thereof at the Early Redemption Amount, together
with accrued interest (if any) to the date of repayment, in the event that

(a) the Issuer fails to pay any amount due under the Notes within 30 days from
the relevant due date, or

(b) the Issuer fails duly to perform any other obligation arising from the Notes
which failure is not capable of remedy or, if such failure is capable of remedy,
such failure continues for more than 30 days after the Fiscal Agent has
received notice thereof from a Holder, or

(c) the Issuer suspends payment or announces its inability to pay its debts, or

(d) a court institutes insolvency proceedings against the Issuer, and such
proceedings are not set aside or stayed within 60 days, or the competent
supervisory authority or resolution authority, respectively, applies for or
institutes any such proceedings, or

(e) the Issuer goes into liquidation unless this is done in connection with a
merger, consolidation or other form of combination with another company or in
connection with a conversion and the other or new company assumes all
obligations contracted by the Issuer in connection with the Notes.

The right to declare Notes due shall terminate if the situation giving rise to it has
been cured before the right is exercised.

(2) Notice. Any notice, including any notice declaring Notes due, in accordance
with subparagraph (1) shall be made by means of a declaration in text format
(Textform, e.g. email or fax) or in written form in the German or English language
sent by hand or registered mail to the specified office of the Fiscal Agent together
with proof that such Holder at the time of such notice is a Holder of the relevant
Notes by means of a certificate of his Custodian (as defined in § [15] (3)) or in
other appropriate manner. The Notes shall be redeemed following receipt of the
notice declaring Notes due.]

§[10]
Substitution

(1) Substitution. The Issuer may, without the consent of the Holders, if it is not in
default with any payment of principal of or interest on any of the Notes, at any
time substitute for the Issuer any Affiliate (as defined below) of the Issuer as
principal debtor (the "Substitute Debtor") in respect of all obligations arising from
or in connection with this issue provided that:

(a) the Substitute Debtor assumes all obligations of the Issuer in respect of the
Notes;

(b) the Issuer and the Substitute Debtor have obtained all necessary
authorisations and approvals and may transfer to the Fiscal Agent in the
currency required hereunder and without being obligated to deduct or withhold
any taxes or other duties of whatever nature levied by the country in which the
Substitute Debtor has its domicile or tax residence, all amounts required for
the fulfilment of the payment obligations arising under the Notes;

(c) the Substitute Debtor has agreed to indemnify and hold harmless each Holder
against any tax, duty, assessment or governmental charge imposed on such
Holder in respect of such substitution;

[(d) (i) the proceeds are immediately available to the Issuer, without limitation and
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in a form that satisfies the requirements of eligibility, (ii) the liabilities assumed
by the Substitute Debtor continue to be eligible and (iii) each Holder is treated
as if the substitution of the Issuer had not taken place;]

[(d) (i) the Substitute Debtor is an entity which is part of the consolidation (relating
to the Issuer) pursuant to Article 63(n) sub-paragraph (i) of the CRR, (ii) the
proceeds are immediately available to the Issuer, without limitation and in a
form that satisfies the requirements of the CRR, (iii) the liabilities assumed by
the Substitute Debtor are subordinated on terms that are identical with the
subordination provisions of the liabilities assumed, (iv) the Substitute Debtor
invests the amount of the Notes with Norddeutsche Landesbank -
Girozentrale — on terms that match those of the Notes and (v) the Issuer
guarantees the Substitute Debtor's liabilities under the Notes on a
subordinated basis pursuant to 8§ 2 of these Terms and Conditions and
provided that the recognition of the paid-in capital concerning the Notes as
Tier 2 Capital continues to be ensured;]

[(e)the Issuer irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees in favour of each Holder
the payment of all sums payable by the Substitute Debtor in respect of the
Notes on terms which ensure that each Holder will be put in an economic
position that is at least as favourable as that which would have existed if the
substitution had not taken place.]

[(e)the Issuer irrevocably, unconditionally and on a subordinated basis in
accordance with § 2 guarantees in favor of each Holder the payment of all
sums payable by the Substitute Debtor in respect of the Notes and the
regulatory classification of the paid-in capital under the Notes as Tier 2
supplementary capital is still assured.]

For purposes of this §[10], "Affiliate" shall mean any affiliated company
(verbundenes Unternehmen) within the meaning of § 15 German Stock
Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz).

(2) Notice. Notice of any such substitution shall be published in accordance with
§ [14] without delay.

(3) Change of References. In the event of any such substitution, any reference in
these Terms and Conditions to the Issuer shall from then on be deemed to refer
to the Substitute Debtor and any reference to the country in which the Issuer is
domiciled or resident for taxation purposes shall from then on be deemed to refer
to the country of domicile or residence for taxation purposes of the Substitute
Debtor. Furthermore, in the event of such substitution the following shall apply:

[(@)in 8 7 and § 4 (2) an alternative reference to the Federal Republic of Germany
shall be deemed to have been included in addition to the reference according
to the preceding sentence to the country of domicile or residence for taxation
purposes of the Substitute Debtor;

(b) in 8 9 (1) (c) to [(e)] an alternative reference to the Issuer in its capacity as
guarantor shall be deemed to have been included in addition to the reference
to the Substitute Debtor; and

(c) in 8 9 (1) a further event of default shall be deemed to have been included,;
such event of default shall exist in the case that the guarantee pursuant to
subparagraph 1 [(d)] is or becomes invalid for any reason.]

[In 8 7 and § 4 (2) an alternative reference to the Federal Republic of Germany
shall be deemed to have been included in addition to the reference according to
the preceding sentence to the country of domicile or residence for taxation
purposes of the Substitute Debtor.]
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[8[11]
Resolutions of Holders

(1) Amendment of the Terms and Conditions. The Holders may agree by majority
resolution on all matters permitted by law, provided that no obligation to make any
payment or render any other performance shall be imposed on any Holder by
majority resolution.

(2) Majority resolutions shall be binding on all Holders. Resolutions, which do not
provide for identical conditions for all Holders are void, unless Holders who are
disadvantaged have expressly consented to their being treated
disadvantageously.

(3) Majority. Resolutions shall be passed by a majority of not less than 75% of the
votes cast (qualified majority). Resolutions relating to amendments to the Terms
and Conditions which are not material, require a majority of not less than 50% of
the votes cast.

(4) Resolution of Holders. Resolutions of Holders shall be passed at the election of
the Issuer by vote taken without a meeting in accordance with § 18 SchVG or in a
Holder's meeting in accordance with § 9 SchVG.

(5) Voting rights. Each Holder participating in any vote shall cast votes in
accordance with the nominal amount or the notional share of its entitlement to the
outstanding Notes. As long as the entitlement to the Notes lies with, or the Notes
are held for the account of, the Issuer or any of its affiliates (§ 271 paragraph 2
HGB (Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch))), the right to vote in respect of
such Notes shall be suspended. The Issuer may not transfer Notes, of which the
voting rights are so suspended, to another person for the purpose of exercising
such voting rights in the place of the Issuer; this shall also apply to any affiliate of
the Issuer. No person shall be permitted to exercise such voting right for the
purpose stipulated in sentence 3, first half sentence, herein above.

No person shall be permitted to offer, promise or grant any benefit or advantage
to another person entitled to vote in consideration of such person abstaining from
voting or voting in a certain way.

A person entitled to vote may not demand, accept or accept the promise of, any
benefit, advantage or consideration for abstaining from voting or voting in a
certain way.]

(8 [12]
Holders' Representative]

[(1) The Holders may by majority resolution appoint a common representative (the
"Holders' Representative”) to exercise the Holders' rights on behalf of each
Holder.

(2) The Holders' Representative shall have the duties and powers provided by law
or granted by majority resolution of the Holders. The Holders' Representative shall
comply with the instructions of the Holders. To the extent that the Holders'
Representative has been authorised to assert certain rights of the Holders, the
Holders shall not be entitled to assert such rights themselves, unless explicitly
provided for in the relevant majority resolution. The Holders' Representative shall
provide reports to the Holders on its activities.

(3) The Holders' Representative shall be liable for the performance of its duties
towards the Holders who shall be joint and several creditors (Gesamtglaubiger); in
the performance of its duties it shall act with the diligence and care of a prudent
business manager. The liability of the Holders' Representative may be limited by a
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resolution passed by the Holders. The Holders shall decide upon the assertion of
claims for compensation of the Holders against the Holders' Representative.

(4) The appointment of the Holders' Representative may be revoked at any time
by the Holders without specifying any reasons.

(5) The Holders' Representative may demand from the Issuer to furnish all
information required for the performance of the duties entrusted to it.]

[(1) The common representative (the "Holders' Representative")®to exercise the
Holders' rights on behalf of each Holder shall be [Name and address of Holder's
Representative].

(2) The Holders' Representative shall be authorised, at its discretion, in respect of
the matters determined by it to call for a vote of Holders without a meeting and to
preside the taking of votes.

(3) The Holders' Representative shall comply with the instructions of the Holders.
To the extent that the Holders' Representative has been authorised to assert
certain rights of the Holders, the Holders shall not be entitled to assert such rights
themselves, unless explicitly provided so by majority resolution. The Holders'
Representative shall provide reports to the Holders with respect to its activities.

(4) The Holders' Representative shall be liable for the proper performance of its
duties towards the Holders who shall be joint and several creditors
(Gesamtglaubiger); in the performance of its duties it shall act with the diligence
and care of a prudent business manager. The liability of the Holders'
Representative shall be limited to ten times the amount of its annual
remuneration, unless the Holders' Representative has acted willfully or with gross
negligence. The liability of the Holders' Representative may be further limited by a
resolution passed by the Holders. The Holders shall decide upon the assertion of
claims for compensation of the Holders against the Holders' Representative.

(5) The appointment of the Holders' Representative may be revoked at any time
by the Holders without specifying any reason.

(6) The Holders' Representative may demand from the Issuer to furnish all
information required for the performance of the duties entrusted to it.]

§[13]
Further Issues, Purchases and Cancellation

(1) Further Issues. The Issuer may from time to time, without the consent of the
Holders, issue further Notes having the same terms and conditions as the Notes
in all respects (or in all respects except for the date of issue, interest
commencement date and/or issue price) so as to form a single series with the
Notes.

[(2) Purchases. The Issuer may [in the case of non-preferred Notes the
following applies: upon the prior consent of the competent supervisory authority,
if required] at any time purchase Notes in the open market or otherwise and at
any price. Notes purchased by the Issuer may, at the option of the Issuer, be held,
resold or surrendered to the Fiscal Agent for cancellation. If purchases are made
by tender, tenders for such Notes must be made available to all Holders of such
Notes alike.]

[(2) Purchases. Subject to 8§ 2 of these Terms and Conditions and only if, when
and to the extent that the purchase is not prohibited by applicable provisions
regarding own funds requirements as applied by the competent regulatory

5 The Holders' Representative must satisfy the conditions specified in § 8 paragraph 1 SchVG.
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authority and amended from time to time (including, but not limited to, the
Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council on
the prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms dated
26 June 2013, other provisions of bank supervisory laws and any rules and
regulations related thereto, including directly applicable provisions of European
Community law, in each case as amended or replaced from time to time (the
"CRR" and the "Own Funds Provisions", respectively)), the Issuer may at any
time purchase Notes in the open market or otherwise and at any price. Notes
purchased by the Issuer may, at the option of the Issuer, be held, resold or
surrendered to the Fiscal Agent for cancellation.]

(3) Cancellation. All Notes redeemed in full shall be cancelled forthwith and may
not be reissued or resold.

§[14]
Notices

[(1) Publication. All notices concerning the Notes shall be published in the Federal
Gazette (Bundesanzeiger) [and in the Luxemburger Wort, a newspaper of general
circulation in Luxembourg].

Any notice will be deemed to have been validly given on the third day following
the date of such publication (or, if published more than once, on the third day
following the date of the first such publication).]

[(2)] Electronic Publication. All notices concerning the Notes will be made by
means of electronic publication on the internet website of the [Luxembourg Stock
Exchange] [relevant stock exchange] (Jwww.bourse.lu] [www.[relevant
address]). Any notice will be deemed to have been validly given on the third day
following the date of such publication (or, if published more than once, on the third
day following the date of the first such publication).]

[(2)] Notification to Clearing System.

[The Issuer shall deliver all notices concerning the Notes to the Clearing System
for communication by the Clearing System to the Holders. Any such notice shall
be deemed to have been given to the Holders on the seventh day after the day on
which the said notice was given to the Clearing System.]

[So long as any Notes are admitted to trading on a market of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange, subparagraph (1) shall apply. In the case of notices regarding
the Rate of Interest or, if the Rules of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange otherwise
so permit, the Issuer may deliver the relevant notice to the Clearing System for
communication by the Clearing System to the Holders, in lieu of publication in the
newspaper set forth in subparagraph (1) above; any such notice shall be deemed
to have been given to the Holders on the seventh day after the day on which the
said notice was given to the Clearing System.]

[The Issuer may, in lieu of publication in the newspaper set forth in
subparagraph (1) above, deliver the relevant notice to the Clearing System, for
communication by the Clearing System to the Holders, provided that, the rules of
the stock exchange on which Notes are listed permit such form of notice. Any
such notice shall be deemed to have been given to the Holders on the seventh
day after the day on which the said notice was given to the Clearing System.]

[(3)] Form of Notice. Notices to be given by any Holder shall be made by means
of a declaration in text format (Textform, e.g. email or fax) or in written form to be
sent together with the relevant Note or Notes to the Fiscal Agent. So long as any
of the Notes are represented by a global Note, such notice may be given by any
Holder of a Note to the Agent through the Clearing System in such manner as the
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Agent and the Clearing System may approve for such purpose.

§ [15]
Applicable Law,
Place of Jurisdiction and Enforcement

(1) Applicable Law. The Notes, as to form and content, and all rights and
obligations of the Holders and the Issuer, shall be governed by German law.

(2) Submission to Jurisdiction. The District Court (Landgericht) in Frankfurt am
Main shall have non-exclusive jurisdiction for any action or other legal
proceedings ("Proceedings") arising out of or in connection with the Notes. The
jurisdiction of such Court shall be exclusive if Proceedings are brought by
merchants (Kaufleute), legal persons under public law (juristische Personen des
offentlichen Rechts), special funds under public law (6ffentlich-rechtliche
Sondervermdgen) and persons not subject to the general jurisdiction of the courts
of the Federal Republic of Germany (Personen ohne allgemeinen Gerichtsstand
in der Bundesrepublik Deutschland).

(3) Enforcement. Any Holder of Notes may in any Proceedings against the Issuer,
or to which such Holder and the Issuer are parties, protect and enforce in his own
name his rights arising under such Notes on the basis of (i) a statement issued by
the Custodian (as defined below) with whom such Holder maintains a securities
account in respect of the Notes (a) stating the full name and address of the
Holder, (b) specifying the aggregate principal amount of Notes credited to such
securities account on the date of such statement and (c) confirming that the
Custodian has given written notice to the Clearing System containing the
information pursuant to (a) and (b) and (ii) a copy (of the Note in global form
certified as being a true copy by a duly authorized officer of the Clearing System
or a depository of the Clearing System, without the need for production in such
Proceedings of the actual records or the global note representing the Notes. For
purposes of the foregoing, "Custodian" means any bank or other financial
institution of recognized standing authorized to engage in securities custody
business with which the Holder maintains a securities account in respect of the
Notes and includes the Clearing System. Each Holder may, without prejudice to
the foregoing, protect and enforce his rights under these Notes also in any other
way which is admitted in the country of the Proceedings.

§ [16]
Language

[These Terms and Conditions are written in the German language and provided
with an English language translation. The German text shall be controlling and
binding. The English language translation is provided for convenience only.]

[These Terms and Conditions are written in the English language and provided
with a German language translation. The English text shall be controlling and
binding. The German language translation is provided for convenience only.]

[These Terms and Conditions are written in the English language only.]
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In case of Notes [Eine deutsche Ubersetzung der Anleihebedingungen wird bei der Deutsche
with English Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft), OsterstraRe 31, 30159 Hannover,

| T . ;
;”dgc“:?)%fmfg,ﬁf Bundesrepublik Deutschland zur kostenlosen Ausgabe bereitgehalten.]
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OPTION VI — Terms and Conditions that apply to Pfandbriefe with fixed
interest rates

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF PFANDBRIEFE
ENGLISH LANGUAGE VERSION

g1
Currency, Denomination, Form, Certain Definitions
[(1) Currency; Denomination. This tranche of Mortgage Pfandbriefe

(Hypothekenpfandbriefe) (the "Pfandbriefe") of Deutsche Hypothekenbank
(Actien-Gesellschaft) (the "Issuer") is being issued in [Specified Currency] (the
"Specified Currency") in the aggregate principal amount [in the case the Global
Note is a NGN the following applies: (subject to § 1 (4)) of [aggregate
principal amount] (in words: [aggregate principal amount in words]) in the
denomination of [Specified Denomination] (the "Specified Denomination").]

[(1) Currency; Denomination. This tranche of Public Pfandbriefe (Offentliche
Pfandbriefe) (the "Pfandbriefe”) of Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-
Gesellschaft) (the "Issuer") is being issued in [Specified Currency] (the
"Specified Currency") in the aggregate principal amount [in the case the Global
Note is a NGN the following applies: (subject to 81 (4)) of [aggregate
principal amount] (in words: [aggregate principal amount in words]) in the
denomination of [Specified Denomination] (the "Specified Denomination").]

(2) Form. The Pfandbriefe are in bearer form and represented by one or more
global notes (each a "Global Note").

[(3) Permanent Global Note. The Pfandbriefe are represented by a permanent
Global Note (the "Permanent Global Note") without coupons. The Permanent
Global Note shall be signed by authorised signatories of the Issuer and the
independent trustee appointed by the Federal Financial Supervisory Authority
(Bundesanstalt fur Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht) and shall be authenticated by or
on behalf of the Fiscal Agent. Definitive Pfandbriefe and interest coupons will not
be issued.]

[(3) Temporary Global Note — Exchange.

(&) The Pfandbriefe are initially represented by a temporary global note (the
"Temporary Global Note") without interest coupons. The Temporary Global
Note will be exchangeable for a permanent global note (the "Permanent
Global Note") without interest coupons. The Temporary Global Note and the
Permanent Global Note shall each be signed manually by two authorized
signatories of the Issuer and the independent trustee appointed by the
Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (Bundesanstalt far
Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht) and shall each be authenticated by or on
behalf of the Fiscal Agent. Definitive Pfandbriefe and interest coupons will not
be issued.

(b) The Temporary Global Note shall be exchangeable for the Permanent Global
Note from a date (the "Exchange Date") 40 days after the date of issue of
the Temporary Global Note. Such exchange shall only be made upon
delivery of certifications to the effect that the beneficial owner or owners of
the Pfandbriefe represented by the Temporary Global Note is or are not a
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U.S. person (other than certain financial institutions or certain persons
holding Pfandbriefe through such financial institutions) as required by U.S.
tax law. The certifications shall be in compliance with the respective United
States Treasury Regulations as applicable from time to time. Payment of
interest on Pfandbriefe represented by a Temporary Global Note will be
made only after delivery of such certifications. A separate certification shall
be required in respect of each such payment of interest. Any such
certification received on or after the 40" day after the date of issue of the
Temporary Global Note will be treated as a request to exchange such
Temporary Global Note pursuant to this subparagraph (b) of this § 1 (3).

Any securities delivered in exchange for the Temporary Global Note shall be
delivered only outside of the United States. For purposes of this
subparagraph (3), "United States" means the United States of America
(including the States thereof and the District of Columbia) and its
possessions (including Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands, Guam, American
Samoa, Wake Island and Northern Mariana Islands).]

(4) Clearing System. Each Global Note representing the Pfandbriefe will be kept
in custody by or on behalf of the Clearing System. The Permanent Global Note
will be kept in custody by or on behalf of the Clearing System until all obligations
of the Issuer under the Pfandbriefe have been satisfied. "Clearing System”
means [if more than one Clearing System the following applies: each of] the
following: [Clearstream Banking AG, Neue BorsenstraBe 1, 60487 Frankfurt am
Main, Federal Republic of Germany ("Clearstream Frankfurt")] [Clearstream
Banking S.A., 42 Avenue JF Kennedy, 1855 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of
Luxembourg ("Clearstream Luxembourg"), Euroclear Bank SA/NV, Boulevard
du Roi Albert Il, 1210 Brussels, Belgium ("Euroclear") (Clearstream Luxembourg
and Euroclear each an "ICSD" and together the "ICSDs")] and any successor in
such capacity.

[The Pfandbriefe are issued in new global note ("NGN") form and are kept in
custody by a common safekeeper on behalf of both ICSDs.

The aggregate principal amount of Pfandbriefe represented by the Global Note
shall be the aggregate amount from time to time entered in the records of both
ICSDs. The records of the ICSDs (which expression means the records that each
ICSD holds for its customers which reflect the amount of such customer's interest
in the Pfandbriefe) shall be conclusive evidence of the aggregate principal amount
of Pfandbriefe represented by the Global Note and, for these purposes, a
statement issued by an ICSD stating the amount of Pfandbriefe so represented at
any time shall be conclusive evidence of the records of the relevant ICSD at that
time.

On any redemption or payment of an instalment or interest being made in respect
of, or purchase and cancellation of, any of the Pfandbriefe represented by the
Global Note the Issuer shall procure that details of any redemption, payment or
purchase and cancellation (as the case may be) in respect of the Global Note
shall be entered pro rata in the records of the ICSDs and, upon any such entry
being made, the aggregate principal amount of the Pfandbriefe recorded in the
records of the ICSDs and represented by the Global Note shall be reduced by the
aggregate principal amount of the Pfandbriefe so redeemed or purchased and
cancelled or by the aggregate amount of such instalment so paid.

[In the case of a Temporary Global Note the following applies: On an
exchange of a portion only of the Pfandbriefe represented by a Temporary Global
Note, the Issuer shall procure that details of such exchange shall be entered pro
rata in the records of the ICSDs.]]

[The Pfandbriefe are issued in classical global note ("CGN") form and are kept in
custody by a common depositary on behalf of both ICSDs.]
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(5) Holder of Pfandbriefe. "Holder" means any holder of a proportionate co-
ownership or other beneficial interest or right in the Pfandbriefe.

8§82
Status

[The obligations under the Pfandbriefe constitute unsubordinated obligations of
the Issuer ranking pari passu without any preference among themselves. The
Pfandbriefe are covered in accordance with the Pfandbrief Act (Pfandbriefgesetz)
and rank at least pari passu with all other obligations of the Issuer under
Mortgage Pfandbriefe.]

[The obligations under the Pfandbriefe constitute unsubordinated obligations of
the Issuer ranking pari passu without any preference among themselves. The
Pfandbriefe are covered in accordance with the Pfandbrief Act (Pfandbriefgesetz)
and rank at least pari passu with all other obligations of the Issuer under Public
Pfandbriefe.]

83
Interest

(1) Rate of Interest and Interest Payment Dates.

[The Pfandbriefe shall bear interest on their principal amount at the rate of [Rate
of Interest]% per annum from (and including) [Interest Commencement Date]
to (but excluding) the Maturity Date (as defined in § 4 [(1)]).]

[The Notes shall bear interest on their aggregate principal amount as follows:

from to

(and including) (but excluding) per cent per annum

[specified dates] [specified dates]

[specified rates]]
Interest shall be payable in arrear on [Interest Payment Date] in each year (each
such date, an "Interest Payment Date"). The first payment of interest shall be
made on [First Interest Payment Date] and will amount to [Initial Broken
Amount] per Specified Denomination. Interest in respect of the period from (and
including) [Interest Payment Date preceding the Maturity Date] to (but
excluding) the Maturity Date will amount to [Final Broken Amount] per Specified
Denomination.]

(2) Accrual of Interest. The Pfandbriefe shall cease to bear interest as from the
beginning of the day on which they are due for redemption. If the Issuer shall fail
to redeem the Pfandbriefe when due, interest shall (except in the circumstances
provided in § 5 (4) continue to accrue on the outstanding principal amount of the
Pfandbriefe from (and including) the due date to (but excluding) the date of actual
redemption of the Pfandbriefe at the default rate of interest established by law?,
unless the rate of interest under the Pfandbriefe is higher than the default rate of
interest established by law, in which event the rate of interest under the

1 The default rate of interest established by law is five percentage points above the basic rate of interest set by the European
Central Bank from time to time, 8§ 288(1), 247 German Civil Code (Blrgerliches Gesetzbuch).
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Pfandbriefe continues to apply during the before-mentioned period of time.

(3) Calculation of Interest for Partial Periods. If interest is required to be calculated
for a period of less than a full year, such interest shall be calculated on the basis
of the Day Count Fraction (as defined below).

(4) Day Count Fraction. "Day Count Fraction” means with regard to the
calculation of interest on any Pfandbrief for any period of time (the "Calculation
Period"):

[the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by the actual
number of days in the respective interest period.]

[the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by the number of days in
the Reference Period in which the Calculation Period falls.]

[the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by the product of (1) the
number of days in the Reference Period in which the Calculation Period falls and
(2) the number of Interest Payment Dates that occur in one calendar year or that
would occur in one calendar year if interest were payable in respect of the whole
of such year.]

[the sum of:

(A) the number of days in such Calculation Period falling in the Reference
Period in which the Calculation Period begins divided by [in the case of
Reference Periods of less than one year the following applies: the
product of (1)] the number of days in such Reference Period [in the case of
Reference Periods of less than one year the following applies: and (2)
the number of Interest Payment Dates that occur in one calendar year or
that would occur in one calendar year if interest were payable in respect of
the whole of such year]; and

(B) the number of days in such Calculation Period falling in the next Reference
Period divided by [in the case of Reference Periods of less than one
year the following applies: the product of (1)] the number of days in such
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Reference Period [in the case of Reference Periods of less than one
year the following applies: and (2) the number of Interest Payment Dates
that occur in one calendar year or that would occur in one calendar year if
interest were payable in respect of the whole of such year].]

['Reference Period" means the period from (and including) the Interest
Commencement Date to, but excluding, the first Interest Payment Date or from
(and including) each Interest Payment Date to, but excluding, the next Interest
Payment Date. [In the case of a short first or last Calculation Period the
following applies: For the purposes of determining the [first] [last] Reference
Period only, [deemed Interest Commencement Date or deemed Interest
Payment Date] shall be deemed to be an [Interest Commencement Date]
[Interest Payment Date].] [In the case of a long first or last Calculation
Period the following applies: For the purposes of determining the [first] [last]
Reference Period only, [deemed Interest Commencement Date and/or
deemed Interest Payment Date(s)] shall each be deemed to be [Interest
Commencement Date][and] [Interest Payment Date[s]].]]

[the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 365.]

[the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360.]

[the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360, the number of days
to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with twelve 30-day months
(unless (A) the last day of the Calculation Period is the 31st day of a month but the
first day of the Calculation Period is a day other than the 30" or 31st day of a
month, in which case the month that includes that last day shall not be considered
to be shortened to a 30-day month, or (B) the last day of the Calculation Period is
the last day of the month of February in which case the month of February shall
not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-day month).]

[the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360 (the number of days
to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with twelve 30-day months,
without regard to the date of the first day or last day of the Calculation Period
unless, in the case of the final Calculation Period, the last day of the Calculation
Period is the last day of the month February, in which case the month of February
shall not be considered lengthened to a 30-day month).]

§4
Redemption
[(1) Final Redemption.]

Unless previously redeemed in whole or in part or purchased and cancelled, the
Pfandbriefe shall be redeemed at their Final Redemption Amount on [Maturity
Date] (the "Maturity Date"). The Final Redemption Amount in respect of each
Pfandbrief (the "Final Redemption Amount") shall be its principal amount.

[(2) Early Redemption at the Option of the Issuer.

(&) The Issuer may, upon notice given in accordance with clause (b) below,
redeem all or only some of the Pfandbriefe on the Call Redemption Date(s) at
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the Call Redemption Amount(s) set forth below together with accrued
interest, if any, to (but excluding) the Call Redemption Date.

Call Redemption Date(s) Call Redemption Amount(s)
[Call Redemption Dates(s)] [Call Redemption Amount(s)]

[] []
[] []

(b) Notice of redemption shall be given by the Issuer to the Holders of the
Pfandbriefe in accordance with § 10. Such notice shall specify:

() the Pfandbriefe subject to redemption;

(i) whether such Pfandbriefe are to be redeemed in whole or in part only and, if
in part only, the aggregate principal amount of the Pfandbriefe which are to
be redeemed;

(i) the Call Redemption Date, which shall be not less than [Minimum Notice]
days nor more than [Maximum Notice] days after the date on which notice is
given by the Issuer to the Holders; and

(iv) the Call Redemption Amount at which such Pfandbriefe are to be redeemed.

(c) In the case of a partial redemption of Pfandbriefe, Pfandbriefe to be
redeemed shall be selected in accordance with the rules and procedures of
the relevant Clearing System. [In the case of Pfandbriefe in NGN form the
following applies: Such partial redemption shall be reflected in the records
of Clearstream Luxembourg and Euroclear as either a pool factor or a
reduction in principal amount, at the discretion of Clearstream Luxembourg
and Euroclear.]]

§5
Payments

(1) (a) Payment of Principal. Payment of principal in respect of Pfandbriefe shall
be made, subject to subparagraph (2) below, to the Clearing System or to its
order for credit to the accounts of the relevant account Holders of the Clearing
System.

(b) Payment of Interest. Payment of interest on Pfandbriefe shall be made, subject
to subparagraph (2) below, to the Clearing System or to its order for credit to the
account of the relevant account Holders of the Clearing System.

[Payment of interest on Pfandbriefe represented by the Temporary Global Note
shall only be made upon due certification as provided in § 1 (3) (b).]

(2) Manner of Payment. Subject to (i) applicable fiscal and other laws and
regulations and (ii) any withholding or deduction required pursuant to an
agreement described in Section 1471(b) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of
1986 (the "Code") or otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through 1474
of the Code, any regulations or agreements thereunder, any official interpretations
thereof, or any law implementing an intergovernmental approach thereto,
payments of amounts due in respect of the Pfandbriefe shall be made in the
Specified Currency.

(3) Discharge. The Issuer shall be discharged by payment to, or to the order of,
the Clearing System.

(4) Banking Day. If the date for payment of any amount in respect of any
Pfandbrief is not a Banking Day then the Holder shall not be entitled to payment
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until the next Banking Day and shall not be entitled to further interest or other
payment in respect of such delay.

[For these purposes, "Banking Day" means a day (other than a Saturday or a
Sunday) on which both (i) the Clearing System, and (ii) the Trans-European
Automated Real-time Gross Settlement Express Transfer System 2 (TARGET2)
("TARGET") is open to settle payments.]

[For these purposes, "Banking Day" means a day (other than a Saturday or a
Sunday) on which both (i) the Clearing System, and (ii) commercial banks and
foreign exchange markets in [relevant financial centres].]

(5) References to Principal. References in these Terms and Conditions to
principal in respect of the Pfandbriefe shall be deemed to include, as applicable:
the Final Redemption Amount of the Pfandbriefe; [if the Pfandbriefe are
redeemable at the option of the Issuer: the Call Redemption Amount of the
Pfandbriefe;] and any premium and any other amounts which may be payable
under or in respect of the Pfandbriefe.

(6) Deposit of Principal and Interest. The Issuer may deposit with the local court
(Amtsgericht) in Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany, principal or
interest not claimed by Holders within 12 months after the due date, even though
such Holders may not be in default of acceptance of payment. If and to the extent
that the deposit is effected and the right of withdrawal is waived, the respective
claims of such Holders against the Issuer shall cease.

8§86
Agents

(1) Appointment; Specified Office. The initial Fiscal Agent and its initial specified
office[s] shall be:

[Fiscal Agent:

Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft
Trust and Agency Services
Taunusanlage 12

60325 Frankfurt am Main

Federal Republic of Germany]

[Fiscal Agent:

Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft)
Osterstralie 31

30159 Hanover

Federal Republic of Germany]

The Fiscal Agent shall also fulfil the functions of a paying agent. The Fiscal Agent
reserves the right at any time to change its specified office[s] to some other
specified office in the same country.

(2) Variation or Termination of Appointment. The Issuer reserves the right at any
time to vary or terminate the appointment of the Fiscal Agent and to appoint
another Fiscal Agent. The Issuer shall at all times maintain a Fiscal Agent.

The Issuer shall without, delay notify the Holders of any variation, termination,
appointment or change in accordance with § 10.



If any additional
Paying Agents are
to be appointed the
following applies

155

(3) Agent of the Issuer. The Fiscal Agent acts solely as the agent of the Issuer
and does not assume any obligations towards or relationship of agency or trust for
any Holder.

(4) Paying Agents. The Fiscal Agent shall act as the principal paying agent with
respect to the Pfandbriefe.

[The additional paying agent[s] (the "Paying Agent[s]" which expression shall
include any successor and additional paying agent hereunder) and [its] [their]
respective initial specified offices shall be:

Paying Agent[s]:
[Paying Agent[s] and specified office[s]]

Each Paying Agent reserves the right at any time to change its specified office to
another specified office in the same country. The Issuer reserves the right at any
time to vary or terminate the appointment of any Paying Agent and to appoint
additional or other Paying Agents. The Issuer shall without delay notify the
Holders of any variation, termination, appointment or change in accordance with
§ 10.

Each Paying Agent acts solely as the agent of the Issuer and does not assume
any obligations towards or relationship of agency or trust for any Holder.]

(5) Required Paying Agents. The Issuer shall at all times maintain a paying agent
(which may be the Fiscal Agent) with a specified office in a European city and, so
long as the Pfandbriefe are listed on any stock exchange and the rules of such
stock exchange so require, a Paying Agent (which may be the Fiscal Agent) with
a specified office in such place as may be required by the rules of such stock
exchange.

87
Taxation

All amounts payable in respect of the Pfandbriefe shall be made without
withholding or deduction at source for or on account of any present or future taxes
or duties of whatever nature imposed or levied by or on behalf of the Federal
Republic of Germany or any political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein
having power to tax unless such withholding or deduction is required by law.

88
Presentation Period

The presentation period provided in § 801 (1), sentence 1 German Civil Code
(Burgerliches Gesetzbuch) is reduced to ten years for the Pfandbriefe.

89
Further Issues, Purchases and Cancellation

(1) Further Issues. The Issuer may from time to time, without the consent of the
Holders, issue further Pfandbriefe having the same terms and conditions as the
Pfandbriefe in all respects (or in all respects except for the date of issue, interest
commencement date and/or issue price) so as to form a single series with the
Pfandbriefe.

(2) Purchases. The Issuer may at any time purchase Pfandbriefe in the open
market or otherwise and at any price. Pfandbriefe purchased by the Issuer may, at
the option of the Issuer, be held, resold or surrendered to the Fiscal Agent for
cancellation. If purchases are made by tender, tenders for such Pfandbriefe must
be made available to all Holders of such Pfandbriefe alike.

(3) Cancellation. All Pfandbriefe redeemed in full shall be cancelled forthwith and
may not be reissued or resold.
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8§10
Notices

[(1) Publication. All notices concerning the Pfandbriefe shall be published in the
Federal Gazette (Bundesanzeiger) [and in the Luxemburger Wort, a newspaper of
general circulation in Luxembourg].

Any notice will be deemed to have been validly given on the third day following
the date of such publication (or, if published more than once, on the third day
following the date of the first such publication).]

[(2)] Electronic Publication. All notices concerning the Pfandbriefe will be made by
means of electronic publication on the internet website of the [Luxembourg Stock
Exchange] [relevant stock exchange] (Jwww.bourse.lu] www.[relevant
address]). Any notice will be deemed to have been validly given on the third day
following the date of such publication (or, if published more than once, on the third
day following the date of the first such publication).]

[(2)] Notification to Clearing System.

[The Issuer shall deliver all notices concerning the Pfandbriefe to the Clearing
System for communication by the Clearing System to the Holders. Any such
notice shall be deemed to have been given to the Holders on the seventh day
after the day on which the said notice was given to the Clearing System.]

[So long as any Pfandbriefe are admitted to trading on a market of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange, subparagraph (1) shall apply. In the case of notices
regarding the Rate of Interest or, if the Rules of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange
otherwise so permit, the Issuer may deliver the relevant notice to the Clearing
System for communication by the Clearing System to the Holders, in lieu of
publication in the newspaper set forth in subparagraph (1) above; any such notice
shall be deemed to have been given to the Holders on the seventh day after the
day on which the said notice was given to the Clearing System.]

[The Issuer may, in lieu of publication in the newspaper set forth in subparagraph
(1) above, deliver the relevant notice to the Clearing System, for communication
by the Clearing System to the Holders, provided that, the rules of the stock
exchange on which Pfandbriefe are listed permit such form of notice. Any such
notice shall be deemed to have been given to the Holders on the seventh day
after the day on which the said notice was given to the Clearing System.]

[(3)] Form of Notice. Notices to be given by any Holder shall be made by means
of a declaration in text format (Textform, e.g. email or fax) or in written form to be
sent together with the relevant Pfandbrief or Pfandbriefe to the Fiscal Agent. So
long as any of the Pfandbriefe are represented by a global Note, such notice may
be given by any Holder of a Note to the Agent through the Clearing System in
such manner as the Agent and the Clearing System may approve for such
purpose.
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§11
Applicable Law, Place of Jurisdiction and Enforcement

(1) Applicable Law. The Pfandbriefe, as to form and content, and all rights and
obligations of the Holders and the Issuer, shall be governed by German law.

(2) Submission to Jurisdiction. The District Court (Landgericht) in Frankfurt am
Main shall have non-exclusive jurisdiction for any action or other legal
proceedings ("Proceedings") arising out of or in connection with the Pfandbriefe.
The jurisdiction of such Court shall be exclusive if Proceedings are brought by
merchants (Kaufleute), legal persons under public law (juristische Personen des
offentlichen Rechts), special funds under public law (6ffentlich-rechtliche
Sondervermdgen) and persons not subject to the general jurisdiction of the courts
of the Federal Republic of Germany (Personen ohne allgemeinen Gerichtsstand
in der Bundesrepublik Deutschland).

(3) Enforcement. Any Holder of Pfandbriefe may in any Proceedings against the
Issuer, or to which such Holder and the Issuer are parties, protect and enforce in
his own name his rights arising under such Pfandbriefe on the basis of (i) a
statement issued by the Custodian (as defined below) with whom such Holder
maintains a securities account in respect of the Pfandbriefe (a) stating the full
name and address of the Holder, (b) specifying the aggregate principal amount of
Pfandbriefe credited to such securities account on the date of such statement and
(c) confirming that the Custodian has given written notice to the Clearing System
containing the information pursuant to (a) and (b) and (ii) a copy of the Note in
global form certified as being a true copy by a duly authorized officer of the
Clearing System or a depository of the Clearing System, without the need for
production in such Proceedings of the actual records or the global note
representing the Pfandbriefe. For purposes of the foregoing, "Custodian" means
any bank or other financial institution of recognized standing authorized to engage
in securities custody business with which the Holder maintains a securities
account in respect of the Pfandbriefe and includes the Clearing System. Each
Holder may, without prejudice to the foregoing, protect and enforce his rights
under these Pfandbriefe also in any other way which is admitted in the country of
the Proceedings.

§12
Language

[These Terms and Conditions are written in the German language and provided
with an English language translation. The German text shall be controlling and
binding. The English language translation is provided for convenience only.]

[These Terms and Conditions are written in the English language and provided
with a German language translation. The English text shall be controlling and
binding. The German language translation is provided for convenience only.]

[These Terms and Conditions are written in the English language only.]

[Eine deutsche Ubersetzung der Anleihebedingungen wird bei der Deutsche
Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft), OsterstraBe 31, 30159 Hannover,
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Bundesrepublik Deutschland, zur kostenlosen Ausgabe bereitgehalten.]
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OPTION VIl — Terms and Conditions that apply to Pfandbriefe with
floating interest rates

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF PFANDBRIEFE
ENGLISH LANGUAGE VERSION

§1
Currency, Denomination, Form, Certain Definitions
[(1) Currency; Denomination. This tranche of Mortgage Pfandbriefe

(Hypothekenpfandbriefe) (the "Pfandbriefe”) of Deutsche Hypothekenbank
(Actien-Gesellschaft) (the "Issuer") is being issued in [Specified Currency]
(the "Specified Currency") in the aggregate principal amount [in the case the
Global Note is a NGN the following applies: (subject to §1 (4)) of
[aggregate principal amount] (in words: [aggregate principal amount in
words]) in the denomination of [Specified Denomination] (the "Specified
Denomination™).]

[(1) Currency; Denomination. This tranche of Public Pfandbriefe (Offentliche
Pfandbriefe) (the "Pfandbriefe”) of Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-
Gesellschaft) (the "Issuer") is being issued in [Specified Currency] (the
"Specified Currency”) in the aggregate principal amount [in the case the
Global Note is a NGN the following applies: (subject to §1 (6)) of
[aggregate principal amount] (in words: [aggregate principal amount in
words]) in the denomination of [Specified Denomination] (the "Specified
Denomination™).]

(2) Form. The Pfandbriefe are in bearer form and represented by one or more
global notes (each a "Global Note").

[(3) Permanent Global Note. The Pfandbriefe are represented by a permanent
Global Note (the "Permanent Global Note") without coupons. The Permanent
Global Note shall be signed by authorised signatories of the Issuer and the
independent trustee appointed by the Federal Financial Supervisory Authority
(Bundesanstalt fir Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht) and shall be authenticated
by or on behalf of the Fiscal Agent. Definitive Pfandbriefe and interest coupons
will not be issued.]

[(3) Temporary Global Note — Exchange.

(a) The Pfandbriefe are initially represented by a temporary global note (the
"Temporary Global Note") without interest coupons. The Temporary
Global Note will be exchangeable for a permanent global note (the
"Permanent Global Note") without interest coupons. The Temporary
Global Note and the Permanent Global Note shall each be signed
manually by two authorized signatories of the Issuer and the independent
trustee appointed by the Federal Financial Supervisory Authority
(Bundesanstalt fur Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht) and shall each be
authenticated by or on behalf of the Fiscal Agent. Definitive Pfandbriefe
and interest coupons will not be issued.

(b) The Temporary Global Note shall be exchangeable for the Permanent
Global Note from a date (the "Exchange Date") 40 days after the date of
issue of the Temporary Global Note. Such exchange shall only be made
upon delivery of certifications to the effect that the beneficial owner or
owners of the Pfandbriefe represented by the Temporary Global Note is or
are not a U.S. person (other than certain financial institutions or certain
persons holding Pfandbriefe through such financial institutions) as required
by U.S. tax law. The certifications shall be in compliance with the
respective United States Treasury Regulations as applicable from time to
time. Payment of interest on Pfandbriefe represented by a Temporary
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Global Note will be made only after delivery of such certifications. A
separate certification shall be required in respect of each such payment of
interest. Any such certification received on or after the 40" day after the
date of issue of the Temporary Global Note will be treated as a request to
exchange such Temporary Global Note pursuant to this subparagraph (b)
of this § 1 (3).

Any securities delivered in exchange for the Temporary Global Note shall
be delivered only outside of the United States. For purposes of this
subparagraph (3), "United States" means the United States of America
(including the States thereof and the District of Columbia) and its
possessions (including Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands, Guam,
American Samoa, Wake Island and Northern Mariana Islands).]

(4) Clearing System. Each Global Note representing the Pfandbriefe will be
kept in custody by or on behalf of the Clearing System. The Permanent Global
Note will be kept in custody by or on behalf of the Clearing System until all
obligations of the Issuer under the Pfandbriefe have been satisfied. "Clearing
System" means [if more than one Clearing System the following applies:
each of] the following: [Clearstream Banking AG, Neue Borsenstral3e 1, 60487
Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany ("Clearstream Frankfurt™)]
[Clearstream Banking S.A., 42 Avenue JF Kennedy, 1855 Luxembourg, Grand
Duchy of Luxembourg ("Clearstream Luxembourg"), Euroclear Bank SA/NV,
Boulevard du Roi Albert 1l, 1210 Brussels, Belgium ("Euroclear") (Clearstream
Luxembourg and Euroclear each an "ICSD" and together the "ICSDs")] and
any successor in such capacity.

[The Pfandbriefe are issued in new global note ("NGN") form and are kept in
custody by a common safekeeper on behalf of both ICSDs.

The aggregate principal amount of Pfandbriefe represented by the Global Note
shall be the aggregate amount from time to time entered in the records of both
ICSDs. The records of the ICSDs (which expression means the records that
each ICSD holds for its customers which reflect the amount of such customer's
interest in the Pfandbriefe) shall be conclusive evidence of the aggregate
principal amount of Pfandbriefe represented by the Global Note and, for these
purposes, a statement issued by an ICSD stating the amount of Pfandbriefe so
represented at any time shall be conclusive evidence of the records of the
relevant ICSD at that time.

On any redemption or payment of an instalment or interest being made in
respect of, or purchase and cancellation of, any of the Pfandbriefe represented
by the Global Note the Issuer shall procure that details of any redemption,
payment or purchase and cancellation (as the case may be) in respect of the
Global Note shall be entered pro rata in the records of the ICSDs and, upon
any such entry being made, the aggregate principal amount of the Pfandbriefe
recorded in the records of the ICSDs and represented by the Global Note shall
be reduced by the aggregate principal amount of the Pfandbriefe so redeemed
or purchased and cancelled or by the aggregate amount of such instalment so
paid.

[In the case of a Temporary Global Note the following applies: On an
exchange of a portion only of the Pfandbriefe represented by a Temporary
Global Note, the Issuer shall procure that details of such exchange shall be
entered pro rata in the records of the ICSDs.]]

[The Pfandbriefe are issued in classical global note ("CGN") form and are kept
in custody by a common depositary on behalf of both ICSDs.]
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(5) Holder of Pfandbriefe. "Holder" means any Holder of a proportionate co-
ownership or other beneficial interest or right in the Pfandbriefe.

82
Status

[The obligations under the Pfandbriefe constitute unsubordinated obligations of
the Issuer ranking pari passu without any preference among themselves. The
Pfandbriefe are covered in accordance with the Pfandbrief Act
(Pfandbriefgesetz) and rank at least pari passu with all other obligations of the
Issuer under Mortgage Pfandbriefe.]

[The obligations under the Pfandbriefe constitute unsubordinated obligations of
the Issuer ranking pari passu without any preference among themselves. The
Pfandbriefe are covered in accordance with the Pfandbrief Act
(Pfandbriefgesetz) and rank at least pari passu with all other obligations of the
Issuer under Public Pfandbriefe.]

83
Interest

(1) Interest Payment Dates.

(&) The Pfandbriefe bear interest on their principal amount from (and
including) [Interest Commencement Date] (the  "Interest
Commencement Date") to (but excluding) the first Interest Payment Date
and thereafter from (and including) each Interest Payment Date to (but
excluding) the next following Interest Payment Date (relevant [three] [siX]
[twelve] month period) (each, an "Interest Period"). Interest on the
Pfandbriefe shall be payable in arrear on each Interest Payment Date.

(b) "Interest Payment Date" means

[each [Specified Interest Payment Dates].]

[each date which (except as otherwise provided in these Terms and
Conditions) falls [number] [weeks] [months] [other specified periods]
after the preceding Interest Payment Date or, in the case of the first
Interest Payment Date, after the Interest Commencement Date.]

(c) If any Interest Payment Date would otherwise fall on a day which is not a
Business Day (as defined below), it shall be:

[postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would
thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event the Interest
Payment Date shall be the immediately preceding Business Day.]

[postponed to the next day which is a Business Day.]

[the immediately preceding Business Day.]
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If a payment of interest is [brought forward] [or] [postponed] to a Business Day
as described above, the amount of interest shall [not] be adjusted accordingly
[If an adjustment of interest applies insert: and the Interest Payment Date shall
be adjusted to the relevant Business Day].

(d) Inthis 8 3 "Business Day" means

[a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which both (i) the Clearing
System, and (ii) the Trans-European Automated Real-time Gross
Settlement Express Transfer System (TARGET2) ("TARGET") is open to
settle payments.]

[a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which both (i) the Clearing
System, and (ii) commercial banks and foreign exchange markets in [all
relevant financial centres] settle payments.]

[(2) Rate of Interest. The rate of interest (the "Rate of Interest") for each
Interest Period will, except as provided below, be determined by the
Calculation Agent and is the Reference Rate (as defined below) [[plus] [minus]
the Margin (as defined below)]. The applicable Reference Rate shall be the
rate which appears or appear, as the case may be, on the Screen Page as of
11:00 a.m. (Brussels time) on the Interest Determination Date (as defined
below).

"Reference Rate" is the offered quotation (expressed as a percentage rate per
annum) for deposits in the Specified Currency for that Interest Period
(EURIBOR).

"Interest Determination Date" means the [second] [other applicable
number of days] [TARGET] [London] [other relevant financial centre]
Business Day [prior to the commencement] of the relevant Interest Period. [In
case of a TARGET Business Day the following applies: "TARGET
Business Day" means a day on which TARGET is open.] [In case of a non-
TARGET Business Day the following applies: "[London] [other relevant
financial centre] Business Day" means a day (other than a Saturday or
Sunday) on which commercial banks are open for business (including dealings
in foreign exchange and foreign currency) in [London] other relevant
financial centre].]

["Margin" means [#]% per annum.]

"Screen Page" means EURIBORO1 or the relevant successor page on that
service or on any other service as may be nominated as the information
vendor for the purposes of displaying rates or prices comparable to the
relevant Reference Rate.

If the Screen Page is not available or no quotation for the Reference Rate
appears as at such time and provided that no Rate Replacement Event
pursuant to 8§ 3 [(8)] has occurred, the Calculation Agent shall request the
principal Euro-Zone office of each of the Reference Banks (as defined below)
to provide the Calculation Agent with its offered quotation (expressed as a
percentage rate per annum) for deposits in the Specified Currency for the
relevant Interest Period and in a representative amount to prime banks in the
interbank market of the Euro-Zone at approximately 11.00 a.m. (Brussels time)
on the Interest Determination Date. "Euro-Zone" means the region comprised
of Member States of the European Union that participate in the European
Economic and Monetary Union. If two or more of the Reference Banks provide
the Calculation Agent with such offered quotations, the Rate of Interest for
such Interest Period shall be the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the
nearest one thousandth of a percentage point, with 0.0005 being rounded
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upwards) of such offered quotations [[plus] [minus] the Margin], all as
determined by the Calculation Agent.

If on any Interest Determination Date only one or none of the Reference Banks
provides the Calculation Agent with such offered quotations as provided in the
preceding paragraph, the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period shall
be the rate per annum which the Calculation Agent determines as being the
arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the nearest one thousandth of a
percentage point, with 0.0005 being rounded upwards) of the rates, as
communicated to and at the request of the Calculation Agent by major banks in
the interbank market in the Euro-Zone, selected by the Calculation Agent
acting in good faith, at which such banks offer, as at 11.00 a.m. (Brussels time)
on the relevant Interest Determination Date, loans in the Specified Currency for
the relevant Interest Period and in a representative amount to leading
European banks [[plus] [minus] the Margin].

If the Rate of Interest cannot be determined in accordance with the foregoing
provisions of this subparagraph (2), the Rate of Interest for such Interest
Period shall be the offered quotation on the Screen Page, as described above,
on the last day preceding the Interest Determination Date on which such
offered quotation was displayed [[plus] [minus] the Margin (as defined above)],
all as determined by the Calculation Agent.

As used herein, "Reference Banks" means: four major banks in the interbank
market in the Euro-Zone.]

[(2) Rate of Interest. The rate of interest (the "Rate of Interest") for each
Interest Period (as defined below) will, except as provided below, be
determined by the Calculation Agent and is the Reference Rate (as defined
below) [[plus] [minus] the Margin (as defined below)]. The applicable
Reference Rate shall be the rate which appears on the Screen Page as of
11.00 a.m. (London time) on the Interest Determination Date (as defined
below).

"Reference Rate" is the offered quotation (expressed as a percentage rate per
annum) for deposits in the Specified Currency for that Interest Period (LIBOR).

"Interest Determination Date" means the [first] [second] [relevant financial
centre(s)] Business Day [prior to the commencement] of the relevant Interest
Period. "[relevant financial centre(s)] Business Day" means a day (other
than a Saturday or Sunday) on which commercial banks are open for business
(including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency) in [relevant
financial centre(s)].

["Margin" means [e] % per annum.]

"Screen Page" means Reuters screen page [LIBORO1] [LIBORO02] or the
relevant successor page on that service or on any other service as may be
nominated as the information vendor for the purposes of displaying rates or
prices comparable to the relevant Reference Rate.

If the Screen Page is not available or if, no quotation for the Reference Rate
appears as at such time and provided that no Rate Replacement Event
pursuant to § 3 [(8)] has occurred, the Calculation Agent shall request each of
the Reference Banks (as defined below) to provide the Calculation Agent with
its offered quotation (expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for deposits
in the Specified Currency for the relevant Interest Period and in a
representative amount to prime banks in the London interbank market at
approximately 11.00 a.m. (London time) on the Interest Determination Date. If
two or more of the Reference Banks provide the Calculation Agent with such
offered quotations, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall be the
arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the nearest one hundred-thousandth
of a percentage point, with 0.000005 being rounded upwards) of such offered
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quotations [[plus] [minus] the Margin], all as determined by the Calculation
Agent.

If on any Interest Determination Date only one or none of the Reference Banks
provides the Calculation Agent with such offered quotations as provided in the
preceding paragraph, the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period shall
be the rate per annum which the Calculation Agent determines as being the
arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the nearest one hundred-thousandth
of a percentage point, with 0.000005 being rounded upwards) of the rates, as
communicated to and at the request of the Calculation Agent by major banks in
the London interbank market, selected by the Calculation Agent acting in good
faith, at which such banks offer, as at 11.00 a.m. (London time) on the relevant
Interest Determination Date, loans in the Specified Currency for the relevant
Interest Period and in a representative amount to leading European banks
[[plus] [minus] the Margin].

If the Rate of Interest cannot be determined in accordance with the foregoing
provisions of this subparagraph (2), the Rate of Interest for such Interest
Period shall be the offered quotation on the Screen Page, as described above,
on the last day preceding the Interest Determination Date on which such
offered quotation was displayed [[plus] [minus] the Margin (as defined above)],
all as determined by the Calculation Agent.

As used herein, "Reference Banks" means four major banks in the London
interbank market.]

[(3) Minimum Rate of Interest. If the Rate of Interest in respect of any Interest
Period determined in accordance with the above provisions is less than
[Minimum Rate of Interest], the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall
be [Minimum Rate of Interest].]

[(3) Maximum Rate of Interest. If the Rate of Interest in respect of any Interest
Period determined in accordance with the above provisions is greater than
[Maximum Rate of Interest], the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall
be [Maximum Rate of Interest].]

[(4)] Interest Amount. The Calculation Agent will, on or as soon as practicable
after each time at which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, calculate the
amount of interest (the "Interest Amount") payable on the Pfandbriefe in
respect of the Specified Denomination for the relevant Interest Period. Each
Interest Amount shall be calculated by multiplying the Rate of Interest
applicable to an Interest Period with the Specified Denomination and
multiplying the product with the Day Count Fraction (as defined below) and by
rounding the resultant figure to the nearest unit of the Specified Currency, with
0.5 of such unit being rounded upwards.

[(5)] Notification of Rate of Interest and Interest Amount. The Calculation
Agent will cause the Rate of Interest, each Interest Amount for each Interest
Period, each Interest Period and the relevant Interest Payment Date to be
notified to the Issuer and, if required by the rules of any stock exchange on
which the Pfandbriefe are from time to time listed, to such stock exchange (in
the case of listing on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange not later than the first
Business Day prior to the Interest Period), and to the Holders in accordance
with § 10 as soon as possible after their determination, but in no event later
than the fourth [TARGET] [London] [other relevant reference] Business Day
(as defined in § 3 (2)) thereafter. Each Interest Amount and Interest Payment
Date so notified may subsequently be amended (or appropriate alternative
arrangements may be made by way of adjustment) without prior notice in the
event of an extension or shortening of the Interest Period. Any such
amendment will be promptly notified to any stock exchange on which the
Pfandbriefe are then listed and the rules of which so require, and to the
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Holders in accordance with 8 10.

[(6)] Determinations Binding. All certificates, communications, opinions,
determinations, calculations, quotations and decisions given, expressed, made
or obtained for the purposes of the provisions of this § 3 by the Calculation
Agent shall (in the absence of manifest error) be binding on the Issuer, the
Fiscal Agent[, the Paying Agents] and the Holders.

[(7)] Accrual of Interest. The Pfandbriefe shall cease to bear interest as from
the beginning of the day on which they are due for redemption. If the Issuer
shall fail to redeem the Pfandbriefe when due, interest shall (except in the
circumstances provided in 8 5(4) continue to accrue on the outstanding
principal amount of the Pfandbriefe from (and including) the due date to (but
excluding) the date of actual redemption of the Pfandbriefe at the default rate
of interest established by law?, unless the rate of interest under the Pfandbriefe
is higher than the default rate of interest established by law, in which event the
rate of interest under the Pfandbriefe continues to apply during the before-
mentioned period of time.

[(8)](a) Rate Replacement. If the Issuer determines (in consultation with the
Calculation Agent) that a Rate Replacement Event has occurred on or prior to
an Interest Determination Date, the Relevant Determining Party shall
determine and inform the Issuer, if relevant, and the Calculation Agent of (i) the
Replacement Rate, (i) the Adjustment Spread, if any, and (iii) the
Replacement Rate Adjustments (each as defined below in § 3 [(8)](b)(aa) to
(cc) and (hh)) for purposes of determining the Rate of Interest for the Interest
Period related to that Interest Determination Date and each Interest Period
thereafter (subject to the subsequent occurrence of any further Rate
Replacement Event). The Terms and Conditions shall be deemed to have
been amended by the Replacement Rate Adjustments with effect from (and
including) the relevant Interest Determination Date (including any amendment
of such Interest Determination Date if so provided by the Replacement Rate
Adjustments). The Rate of Interest shall then be the Replacement Rate (as
defined below) adjusted by the Adjustment Spread, if any, [[plus] [minus] the
Margin (as defined above)].

The Issuer shall notify the Holders pursuant to 8§ 10 as soon as practicable
(unverzuglich) after such determination of the Replacement Rate, the
Adjustment Spread, if any, and the Replacement Rate Adjustments. In
addition, the Issuer shall request the [Clearing System] [common depositary
on behalf of both ICSDs] to supplement or amend the Terms and Conditions to
reflect the Replacement Rate Adjustments by attaching the documents
submitted to the Global Note in an appropriate manner.

(b) Definitions.

(aa) "Rate Replacement Event" means, with respect to the Reference Rate
each of the following events:

(i) the Reference Rate not having been published on the Screen Page
for the last ten Business Days prior to and including the relevant
Interest Determination Date; or

(i) the occurrence